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(Al amounts are in EUR thousand, unless otherwise stated)

THE GROUPGS AND THE BANKOGS

Year ended
31 Dec e2nd 31 Dec e2ni
Not Gr o1 Ban Gr o1 Ban
Continuing operations
Interest income calculated using the effective interest method 1 243,478 227,237 195,726 181,049
Other similar income 1 26,735 24,953 21,242 21,070
Interest expense and similar charges 1 (110,004) (110,146) (60,115) (60,189)
Net interest income 160,209 142,044 156,853 141,930
Fee and commission income 2 38,021 32,587 28,610 28,968
Fee and commission expense 2 (8,941) (8,044) (8,358) (8,114)
Net fee and commission income 29,080 24,543 20,252 20,854
Net gain from trading activities 3 19,422 6,248 11,948 5,732
Net gain (loss) from derecognition of financial assets 6 544 778 809 532
Net gain (loss) from disposal of tangible assets 6 593 141 864 97
Revenue related to insurance activities 5 13,090 - 5,684 -
Other operating income 6 775 1,384 41 1,722
Salaries and related expenses (49,507) (43,840) (36,226) (33,004)
Depreciation and amortization expenses (8,006) (6,392) (5,490) (5,126)
Expenses related to insurance activities 5 (20,747) - (12,514) -
Other operating expenses 4 (38,111) (32,402) (31,247) (25,557)
Operating profit before impairment losses 107,342 92,504 110,974 107,180
Allowance for impairment losses
on loans and finance lease receivables 7 (10,896) (4,635) (15,518) (8,059)
(Allowance for)/ reversal of allowance for impairment losses on other 7 286 }
assets - -
Allowance for impairment losses on investments in subsidiaries - - - -
Share of the profit or loss of investments in subsidiaries accounted for 1¢ ) (4,267)
using the equity method - 7,227 '
Profit from continuing operations before income tax 96,446 95,096 95,742 94,854
Income tax expense 8 (17,659) (15,810) (20,367) (19,234)
Net profit from continuing operations for the year 78,787 79,286 75,375 75,620
Profit (loss) from discontinued operations, net of tax > = = =
Net profit for the year 78,787 79,286 75,375 75,620
Net profit attributable to:
Owners of the Bank 78,787 79,286 75,375 75,620
From continuing operations 78,787 79,286 75,375 75,620
From discontinued operations - - - -
Non-controlling interest - - - -
Basic earnings per share (in EUR per share) attributable to owners of 9 0.12 013
the Bank
From continuing operations 0.12 0.13
From discontinued operations - -
Diluted earnings per share (in EUR per share) attributable to owners of 9 0.12 013
the Bank
From continuing operations 0.12 0.13

From discontinued operations

Chief Executive Officer

Chief Financial Officer

4t March 2025

The accounting policies and notes on pages 11 to 132 constitute an integral part of these financial statements.

~zb! F
\

Vytautas Sinius

Donatas Savickas
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BANKGO6 S STATEMENTS

Year ended

31 December 2024 31 December 2023

Notes Group Bank Group Bank

Net profit for the year 78,787 79,286 75,375 75,620
Other comprehensive income (loss):
Iltems that may be subsequently reclassified to profit or loss:

Financial assets valuation gains (losses) taken to other compre?ﬁgg&lg : 3,026 3,026 716 716

Financial assets valuation result transferred to profit or loss £ 20 20 2,640 2,640

Deferred income tax on gain (loss) from revaluation of financial assets 8, (609) (609) (671) (671)
Items that may not be subsequently reclassified to profit or loss:

Fair value changes of financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss } - ) }
attributable to changes in their credit risk

Other comprehensive income (loss), net of deferred tax 2,437 2,437 2,685 2,685

Total comprehensive income for the year 81,224 81,723 78,060 78,305
Total comprehensive income attributable to:

Owners of the Bank 81,224 81,723 78,060 78,305

Non-controlling interest - - - -

81,224 81,723 78,060 78,305

Chief Executive Officer

Chief Financial Officer

4t March 2025

The accounting policies and notes on pages 11 to 132 constitute an integral part of these financial statements.

% /
C sp2o . .
{ [

Vytautas Sinius

Donatas Savickas
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(Al amounts are in EUR thousand, unless otherwise stated)

THE GROUPGOGS AND THE BANKOS STATEMENTS

31 December 2024 31 December 2023
Notes Group Bank Group Bank
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents 10 395,136 386,365 751,499 742,969
Securities in the trading book 12 235,110 13,543 207,677 20,402
Due from other banks 11 3,121 3,121 3,013 3,013
Derivative financial instruments 12 1,093 1,093 251 241
Loans to customers 13 3,117,700 3,105,007 2,645,104 2,633,482
Finance lease receivables 14 316,897 316,897 286,533 286,451
Investment securities at fair value 15 43,868 43,620 74,500 74,382
Investment securities at amortized cost 15 726,937 716,864 751,227 739,869
Investments in subsidiaries and associates 16 270 84,069 100 76,672
Intangible assets 17 43,617 7,859 45,138 8,149
Property, plant and equipment 18 15,261 14,689 15,781 14,702
Investment property 26 - - 993 -
Current income tax prepayment 82 - 35 -
Deferred income tax asset 8 6,076 2,716 7,577 3,658
Other financial assets 19 7,258 6,559 7,351 8,289
Other non-financial assets 19 10,043 8,505 12,392 10,681
Assets classified as held for sale 19 150 150 150 150
Total assets 4,922,619 4,711,057 4,809,321 4,623,110
LIABILITIES
Due to other banks and financial institutions 20 65,860 68,487 569,994 576,316
Derivative financial instruments 12 123 123 1,041 1,041
Due to customers 21 3,537,972 3,543,291 3,162,657 3,166,908
Special and lending funds 22 23,037 23,037 15,718 15,718
Debt securities in issue 23 448,159 448,159 276,480 276,480
Current income tax liabilities 303 48 6,412 6,412
Deferred income tax liabilities 8 6,141 - 6,125 -
Liabilities related to insurance activities 24 198,432 - 179,318 -
Other financial liabilities 25 46,426 39,245 40,107 34,359
Other non-financial liabilities 25 10,994 1,663 8,341 1,435
Total liabilities 4,337,447 4,124,053 4,266,193 4,078,669
EQUITY
Share capital 27 192,269 192,269 192,269 192,269
Share premium 27 25,534 25,534 25,534 25,534
Treasury shares (-) 27 (8,375) (8,375) (1,500) (1,500)
Reserve capital 27 756 756 756 756
Statutory reserve 27 61,025 60,805 47,803 47,605
Financial instruments revaluation reserve (2,989) (2,989) (5,426) (5,426)
Reserve for acquisition of own shares 27 20,000 20,000 20,000 20,000
Other equity 27 1,480 1,019 1,697 1,209
Retained earnings 295,472 297,985 261,995 263,994
Non-controlling interest - - - -
Total equity 585,172 587,004 543,128 544,441
Total liabilities and equity 4,922,619 4,711,057 4,809,321 4,623,110

/ / g
Chief Executive Officer (/7 W Vytautas Sinius
N a V4

Chief Financial Officer & ‘Q :/ X Donatas Savickas

4t March 2025 : ‘

The accounting policies and notes on pages 11 to 132 constitute an integral part of these financial statements.



$IAULIY :; BANKAS FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 31 DECEMBER 2024

(Al amounts are in EUR thousand, unless otherwise stated)

THEGROUPGO6S STATEMENT OF CHAN
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Attributable to Bank shareholders

31 December 2022 174,211 3,428 - 756 (8,111) 37,113 20,000 2,355 213,154 442,906 - 442,906
Impact of change in accounting principles - - - - - - - - - - - -
1 January 2023 174,211 3,428 - 756 (8,111) 37,113 20,000 2,355 213,154 442,906 - 442,906
Transfer to/from statutory reserve - - - - - 10,690 - - (10,690) - - -
Transfer to reserve for acquisition 2{12[\'/(:2 27 18,058 22,106 ) ) ) ) ) ) . 40164 - 40,164
Acquisition of own shares| 27 - - (3,368) - - - - - - (3,368) - (3,368)
Share-based payment| 27 - - 1,868 - - - - (658) 75 1,285 - 1,285
Payment of dividends| 29 - - - - - - - - (15,919) (15,919) - (15,919)
Total comprehensive income - - - - 2,685 - - - 75,375 78,060 - 78,060
31 December 2023 192,269 25,534 (1,500) 756 (5,426) 47,803 20,000 1,697 261,995 543,128 - 543,128
Transfer to statutory reserve - - - - - 13,222 - - (13,222) - - -
Increase in share capital| 27 - - - - - - - - - - - -
Acquisition of own shares| 27 - - (8,375) - - - - - (8,375) - (8,375)
Share-based payment| 27 - - 1,500 - - - - (217 7 1,290 - 1,290
Payment of dividends| 29 - - - - - - - - (32,095) (32,095) - (32,095)
Total comprehensive income - - - - 2,437 - - - 78,787 81,224 - 81,224
31 December 2024 192,269 25,534 (8,375) 756 (2,989) 61,025 20,000 1,480 295,472 585,172 - 585,172

The accounting policies and notes on pages 11 to 132 constitute an integral part of these financial statements.
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(Al amounts are in EUR thousand, unless otherwise stated)

THE BANKOGS STATEMENT OF CH#
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31 December 2022 174,211 3,428 - 756 (8,111) 36,922 20,000 1,917 214,888 444,011
Impact of change in accounting principles - - - - - - - - - -
1 January 2023 174,211 3,428 - 756 (8,111) 36,922 20,000 1,917 214,888 444,011
Transfer to/from statutory reserve - - - - - 10,683 - - (10,683) -
Transfer to reserve for acquisition of own shares| 27 18,058 22,106 - - - - - - - 40,164
Acquisition of own shares| 27 - - (3,368) - - - - - - (3,368)
Share-based payment| 27 - - 1,868 - - - - (708) 88 1,248
Payment of dividends| 29 - - - - - - - - (15,919) (15,919)
Total comprehensive income - - - - 2,685 - - - 75,620 78,305
31 December 2023 192,269 25,534 (1,500) 756 (5,426) 47,605 20,000 1,209 263,994 544,441
Transfer to statutory reserve - - - - - 13,200 - - (13,200) -
Increase in share capital| 27 - - - - - - - - - -
Acquisition of own shares| 27 - - (8,375) - - - - - (8,375)
Share-based payment| 27 - - 1,500 - - - (190) - 1,310
Payment of dividends| 29 - - - - - - - - (32,095) (32,095)
Total comprehensive income - - - - 2,437 - - - 79,286 81,723
31 December 2024 192,269 25,534 (8,375) 756 (2,989) 60,805 20,000 1,019 297,985 587,004

The accounting policies and notes on pages 11 to 132 constitute an integral part of these financial statements.
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(Al amounts are in EUR thousand, unless otherwise stated)

THE GROUPOGITSHEANBDANKOS STATEMENTS

| Year ended
31 December 2024 31 December 2023
Notes Group Bank Group Bank
Operating activities
Interest received on loans and advances 230,501 209,897 177,448 163,133
Interest received on finance leases 22,958 22,956 18,678 18,652
Interest received on debt securities in the trading book 1,470 1,292 1,887 1,741
Interest paid (103,746) (104,419) (29,458) (29,633)
Fees and commissions received 38,021 32,587 28,610 28,968
Fees and commissions paid (8,941) (8,044) (8,358) (8,114)
Net cash inflows from trade in securities in the trading book 2,667 7,116 2,973 1,602
Net inflows from foreign exchange trading 5,236 5,218 6,982 6,975
Net inflows from derecognition of financial assets 544 779 809 532
Net inflows from derecognition of non-financial assets 593 141 864 97
Cash inflows related to other activities of Group companies 13,865 1,384 5,725 2,096
Cash outflows related to other activities of Group companies (20,747) - (12,514) -
Recoveries on loans previously written off 285 161 210 208
Salaries and related payments to and on behalf of employees (45,619) (39,952) (34,372) (31,150)
Payments related to operating and other expenses (38,111) (32,402) (31,247) (25,557)
Income tax paid 8 (22,442) (22,442) (17,628) (16,200)
Net cash flow from operating activities before chan_ge_ in 76,534 74.272 110,609 113,350
operating assets and liabilities
Change in operating assets and liabilities:
(Increase) decrease in due from other banks (108) (108) (280) (280)
Increase in loans to customers (479,621) (475,529) (253,637) (263,910)
Decrease (increase) in finance lease receivable (30,412) (30,494) (47,511) (47,685)
Decrease (increase) in other financial assets 93 1,730 (1,536) (2,669)
(Increase) decrease in other non-financial assets 16,021 16,894 1,303 9,743
Increase in due to banks and financial institutions (487,444) (491,139) (129,700) (124,862)
Increase in due to customers 362,970 364,038 361,782 361,653
Increase (decrease) in special and lending funds 7,319 7,319 1,534 1,534
Increase (decrease) in other financial liabilities 6,176 4,743 15,731 10,203
Increase (decrease) in other non-financial liabilities (1,218) (3,655) 785 (3,155)
Change (606,224) (606,201) (51,529) (59,428)
Net cash flow from operating activities (529,690) (531,929) 59,080 53,922
Investing activities
Acquisition of property, plant and equipment, investment property and (5,457) (4,893) (7,754) (7,299)
intangible assets
Disposal of property, plant and equipment, investment property and 576 187 3.844 2215
intangible assets
Acquisition of debt securities at amortized cost 15 (438,515) (316,044) (91,408) (64,157)
Proceeds from redemption or sale of debt securities at amortized cost 15 452,745 335,131 292,941 279,209
Interest received on debt securities at amortized cost 15 19,620 17,776 10,082 9,777
Dividends received 204 13 14 10,014
Acquisition of investment securities at fair value - - - -
Sale or redemption of investment securities at fair value 33,645 33,645 16,824 16,824
Interest received on investment securities at fair value 639 639 758 758
Business acquired net of cash acquired during transaction 16 - - 5,608 -
Establishment of subsidiaries 16 (100) (100) - (400)
Increase in share capital of subsidiaries in cash 16 (70) (70) - (17,706)
Net cash flow from (used in) investing activities 63,287 66,284 230,909 229,235
Financing activities
Payment of dividends 29 (32,159) (32,159) (15,909) (15,909)
Acquisition of own shares 27 (8,375) (8,375) (3,368) (3,368)
Interest on debt securities in issue 23 (13,387) (13,387) (2,905) (2,905)
Issue of debt securities 23 375,000 375,000 100,000 100,000
Redemption of debt securities issued 23 (210,000) (210,000) - -
Principal elements of lease payments 10 (1,039) (2,038) (1,066) (1,524)
Net cash flow (used in) from financing activities 110,040 109,041 76,752 76,294
|
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (356,363) (356,604) 366,741 359,451
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January 751,499 742,969 384,758 383,518
Cash and cash equivalents at 31 December 10 395,136 386,365 751,499 742,969

The accounting policies and notes on pages 11 to 132 constitute an integral part of these financial statements.
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$IAULIY =; BANKAS NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 DECEMBER 2024

(Al amounts are in EUR thousand, unless otherwise stated)

GENERAL INFORMATION

Gi auli © Bankas AB was registered as a public company in t98&heEnt
Bank is licensed by the Bank of Lithuania to perform all banking operations provided for in the Law on Banks of the Republic of Lithuania
and the Charter of the Bank. In this document Giauli O Baandsatlse AB
Group.

The Head Office of the Bank i s -7634& /At theedd of tie redrtiagupkriochthe Bank Had 54 éustonsert r .
service outlets (2022: 56 outlets). As of 31 December 2023 the Bank had 981 employees (31 December 2022: 817). As at 31 December
2023 the Group had 1,137 employees (31 December 2022: 908 employees).

The Bank accepts deposits, issues loans, makes money transfers and documentary settlements, exchanges currencies for its clients,
issues and processes debit and credit cards, is engaged in trade finance and is investing and trading in securities, as well as performs
other activities set forth in the Law on Banks of the Republic of Lithuania and the Charter of the Bank. Subsidiary companies of the Group
perform consumer financing, life insurance and real estate management activities.

The Banko6s shares are |isted owiinuhStockEEachangec Main List of the NAS

As of 31 December 2024, the Bank owned the following As of 31 December 2023, the Bank owned the following
directly controlled subsidiaries: directly controlled subsidiaries:

. e . 1. SB Draudimas UAB (life insurance activities),
1 SB D_ra_ludlmas UAB (life Insurance ?‘C“""'?S): 2. SBLizingas UAB (consumer financing activities),
2. SB Lizingas UAB (consumer financing activities), 3. GiauliO®O Banko Lizingas UAE
3. SB.T.u.rto Fondas UAB (real estate management 4: SB Turto Fondas UAB (real estate management
activities), activities)
4. SB Modernizavimo Fondas UAB (multi-apartment 5. SB Mode}nizavimo Fondas UAB (multi-apartment

renovation financing)*,
5. SB Modernizavimo Fondas 2 UAB (multi-apartment 6
renovation financing)*, '

renovation financing)*,
SB Asset Management UAB (fund management

activities).
6. SB Asset Management UAB (fund management )
activities).
*not consolidated under IFRS 10 requirements *not consolidated under IFRS 10 requirements
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$IAULIY =; BANKAS NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 DECEMBER 2024

(Al amounts are in EUR thousand, unless otherwise stated)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The principal accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these financial statements are set out below.
Basis of preparation

The financial statements of the Group and the Bank have been prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards
as adopted by the EU. The financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention as modified for the fair value of
financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit or loss and investment securities at fair value through other comprehensive
income.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with International Financial Reporting Standards require the use of estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the
financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Although these estimates are
based on management 6s best knowledge of current romthesadastimatasd act i o

These financial statements combine the consolidated financial statements for the Group and separate financial statements of the Bank.
Such format of reporting was adopted to ensure consistency of presentation with the format prescribed by the Bank of Lithuania and
applied for statutory reporting.

Neither the Bankds sharehol der s, nor any other party haveocgowe
legislation, the financial statements are subject to approval in the general meeting of shareholders, but the approval/disapproval cannot
result in amendment of the financial statements.

Amounts shown in these financi al statements are presentedoupodsh
functional and presentation currency.

Amendments to existing standards and interpretations effective in 2024
A number of new standards are effective from 1 January 2024but t hey do not have a material effe

1 Disclosure of Accounting Policies (Amendments to IAS 1 and IFRS Practice Statement 2);

1 Definition of Accounting Estimates (Amendments to IAS 8);

1 Deferred Tax Related to Assets and Liabilities arising from a Single Transaction (Amendments to IAS 12);
1 International Tax Reform i Pillar Il Model Rules (Amendments to IAS 12).

On 1 January 2023 Group and Bankds sl thsCothpaay) applied ARS 1S Bisuthmca aomtracta a s
for the first time. Application of this standard introduced significant accounting changes for insurance and reinsurance contracts and
financial instruments.

Standards and amendments to existing standards that are not yet effective and have not been early adopted by the Group and
the Bank

A number of new standards are effective for annual periods beginning 1 January 2025 and after, earlier application is permitted; however,
the Group and the Bank has not early adopted the new or amended standards in preparing these financial statements.

The following new and amended standards are not expect ed tdamentsh av e
1 Classification and Measurement of Financial Instrument (Amendment to IFRS 9 and IFRS 7)
1 Presentation and Disclosure in Financial Statements (Amendments to IFRS 18);
1  Subsidiaries without Public Accountability: Disclosures (IFRS 19);
1 Lack of Exchangeability (Amendments to IAS 21);
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$IAULIY =; BANKAS NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 DECEMBER 2024

(Al amounts are in EUR thousand, unless otherwise stated)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Consolidation of subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are all entities (including structured entities) over which the Group has control. The Group controls an entity when the group
is exposed to, or has rights to, variable returns from its involvement with the entity and has the ability to affect those returns through its
power over the entity. Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the date on which control is transferred to the Group. They are
deconsolidated from the date that control ceases.

Transactions with non-controlling interests that do not result in loss of control are accounted for as equity transactions i that is, as
transactions with the owners in their capacity as owners. The difference between fair value of any consideration paid and the relevant
share acquired of the carrying value of net assets of the subsidiary is recorded in equity. Gains or losses on disposals to non-controlling
interests are also recorded in equity.

The Group applies the acquisition method to account for business combinations. The consideration transferred for the acquisition of a
subsidiary is the fair values of the assets transferred, the liabilities incurred to the former owners of the acquiree and the equity interests
issued by the Group. The consideration transferred includes the fair value of any asset or liability resulting from a contingent consideration
arrangement. Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities and contingent liabilities assumed in a business combination are measured
initially at their fair values at the acquisition date. The Group recognizes any non-controlling interest in the acquiree on an acquisition-by-
acquisition basis, either at fair value or atthenon-contr ol | i ng i nter est 0 srecqumizecdpaomat u notnsa t @f saa@
identifiable net assets.

Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred.

I f the business combination is achieved in stages, thetyantegstinsi t
the acquiree is re-measured to fair value at the acquisition date; any gains or losses arising from such re-measurement are recognized
in profit or loss.

The excess of the consideration transferred the amount of any non-controlling interest in the acquiree and the acquisition-date fair value
of any previous equity interest in the acquiree over the fair value of the identifiable net assets acquired is recorded as goodwiill.

Where goodwill forms part of a cash-generating unit and part of the operation within that unit is disposed of, the goodwill associated with
the operation disposed of is included in the carrying amount of the operation when determining the gain or loss on disposal of the
operation. Goodwill disposed of in this circumstance is measured based on the relative values of the operation disposed of and the
portion of the cash-generating unit retained.

If the total of consideration transferred, non-controlling interest recognized and previously held interest measured is less than the fair
value of the net assets of the subsidiary acquired in the case of a bargain purchase, the difference is recognized directly in the income
statement.

Inter-company transactions, balances and unrealized gains on transactions between the Group companies (including subsidiaries
classified as held for sale) are eliminated. Unrealized losses are also eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence of impairment
of the asset transferred. Accounting policies of subsidiaries have been changed where necessary to ensure consistency with the policies
adopted by the Bank.

Subsidiaries in the stand-alone financial statements are accounted for using equity method. Investment i |s initially recognized at cost, and

adjusted thereafter forthe posttacqui si ti on change in the Bank©o s h a rfehe prdfit onlesg is a s s
included in the value of investments in subS|d|aries and kBaenk 6
subtracted from the value of investment in subsidiary and not i

The Group6s -achuisition prafifor Igseis recognized in the income statement, and its share of post-acquisition movements

in other comprehensive income is recognized in other comprehensive income with a corresponding adjustment to the carrying amount

of the investment. When the Groupds share of | osses i n @qamyothers oc
unsecured receivables, the Group does not recognize further losses, unless it has incurred legal or constructive obligations or made
payments on behalf of the associate.
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$IAULIY =; BANKAS NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 DECEMBER 2024

(Al amounts are in EUR thousand, unless otherwise stated)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Foreign currency translation

(a) Functional and presentation currency

Iltems included in the financial statements of each of t m@mcGr o
environment in which the entity operates (06the functi omhaduroc ur I
which is the Bankdéds functional and presentation curr endaiesofEur
the Bank included in the consolidated financial statements

(b) Transactions and balances

All monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated into the euro (EUR) at the official daily euro
foreign exchange reference rates (published by the European Central Bank) prevailing at the end of the reporting period. Gains and
losses arising from this translation are included in the income statement for the reporting period. All non-monetary liabilities and
assets are translated using the exchange rate prevailing on the date of acquisition.

Foreign currency transactions are recorded in the euro using the exchange rate ruling on the date of the transaction. Exchange differences
arising from the settlement of transactions denominated in foreign currency are charged to the income statement at the time of transaction
using the exchange rate ruling at that date.

Off-setting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount reported in the balance sheet when there is a legally enforceable right to
offset the recognized amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or realize the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

Recognition of income and expenses

Interest income and expense are recognized in the income statement on debt instruments at amortized cost or at fair value through other
comprehensive income on an accrual basis using the effective interest method based on the actual purchase price. The effective interest
method is a method of calculating the authorized cost of a financial asset or a financial liability and of allocating the interest income or
interest expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments or
receipts through the expected life of the financial instrument or, when appropriate, a shorter period to the net carrying amount of the
financial asset or financial liability. When calculating the effective interest rate, the Group estimates cash flows considering all contractual
terms of the financial instrument (for example, prepayment options). The calculation includes all fees and points paid or received between
parties to the contract that are an integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and all other premiums or discounts.

Loan origination fees are accounted for as an adjustment to the effective interest rate calculation for each issued loan separately. Other
commission fees and other similar income and expenses are recognized as gained or incurred.

For financial assets interest income is calculated by applying the effective interest rate to the gross carrying amount, except for financial
assets that are credit-impaired (Stage 3), for which interest income is calculated by applying the effective interest rate to the net carrying
amount (i.e. gross carrying amount reduced by the allowance for impairment), and purchased or originated credit-impaired (POCI) assets,
for which the credit-adjusted effective interest rate is applied to the amortized cost of the financial asset.

Revenues from contracts with customers consist primarily of service-related fees and are reported as Commission income, including fees
for settlement services, service plans, cash operations, cards, account servicing fees, services related to securities, funds management
fees, collection of utility and similar payments and others. The revenues reflect the consideration which is expected to be received in
exchange for those services or transactions. The recognition in Income statement depends on whether the Group's obligations are
provided. Revenue from such services is recognized over time on a straight-line basis when the services are provided to the customer.
Revenue related to transactions is recognized at a point in time when the transaction takes place. Fee income for settlement services,
cash operations, documentary collection, collection of utility and similar payments, services related to securities, funds distribution and
other is recognized at a point in time when the Group satisfies its performance obligation upon execution of the specified transaction.

Insurance income and expense recognition is disclosed under Accounting principles section Insurance and investment contracts
classification and accounting.

For distribution of second and third-tier pension funds Group uses services of external intermediaries, for whom a commission fee is paid
for conclusion of the contract. The Group considers commissions paid to intermediaries for the conclusion of contracts for new pension
fund participants as the costs of concluding contracts with clients and capitalizes and amortizes them over the average expected period
of the new client's retention as a client of the Group - 10 years. Capitalized amounts of commission fees to intermediaries are recognized
in the statement of financial position in the part of fixed assets.

Revenue from other activities of the Group comprise sale of apartments or other developed real estate projects. This revenue is
recognized at a point of time upon transfer of completed property to client.
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$IAULIY =; BANKAS NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 DECEMBER 2024

(Al amounts are in EUR thousand, unless otherwise stated)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Share-based payment

Employees whose professional activities and/or decisions might have a significant impact on the risk accepted by the Group, receive
deferred variable remuneration. The grant-date fair value of equity-settled shares-based payment arrangements granted to these
employees is recognized as salaries and related expenses in income statement with a corresponding increase in other equity line in the
statement of financial position, over the vesting period of the awards. The amount recognized as an expense is adjusted to reflect the
number of awards for which the service and conditions (not directly based on market performance of shares) are expected to be met,
such that the amount ultimately recognized is based on the number of awards that meet the related service and conditions at vesting
date. Any deviation from the original approval due to modifications of original terms and conditions are recognized in Income statement
and a corresponding adjustment is recognized in other equity.

Taxation
a) Income tax

Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the liability method, on temporary differences arising between the tax bases of assets
and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the financial statements. Deferred income tax is determined using tax rates (and laws)
that have been enacted or substantially enacted by the balance sheet date and are expected to apply when the related deferred
income tax asset is realized or the deferred income tax liability is settled (20% for deferred income tax assets and liabilities recognized
at 31 December 2024 and at 31 December 2023. Starting from 1 January 2025, 21% of deferred income tax will be applied to the
Bank).

The principal temporary differences arise from carry forward of unused tax losses, revaluation of securities, difference between net
book value and tax base of tangible fixed assets and accrued charges. The rates enacted or substantively enacted at the balance
sheet date are used to determine deferred income tax. However, the deferred income tax is not accounted for if it arises from initial
recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction other than a business combination that at the time of the transaction affects neither
accounting nor taxable profit or loss.

Deferred tax assets are recognized where it is probable that future taxable profit will be available against which the temporary
differences can be utilized.

b) Other taxes

Since 16 May 2023 Republic of Lithuania has imposed new solidarity contribution for credit institutions operating in territory of
Lithuania. This contribution is calculated on surplus of net interest income of credit institution for years 2023 and 2024 generated
from operations in Lithuania. Expenses of this contribution are included in other expenses in the income statement.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purposes of the cash flow statement, cash and c asyfror
the date of acquisition, including cash and non-restricted balances with the Bank of Lithuania, treasury bills and other eligible bills,
amounts due from banks and financial institutions and short-term government securities.
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$IAULIY =; BANKAS NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 DECEMBER 2024

(Al amounts are in EUR thousand, unless otherwise stated)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Financial assets
Financial assets are classified into 3 categories:

1 financial assets at fair value through profit and loss (the Group and the Bank have debt and equity securities which are
included to trading book, and equity securities which are included to investment securities portfolio),

1 financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income (the Group and the Bank have only debt securities of this
category, these are included to Investment securities portfolio) and

 financial assets at amortized cost.

Financial assets are initially recognized at fair value plus transaction costs for all financial assets not carried at fair value through profit
or |l oss. The classification is based on the cash fl ow c &therassett er |

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Trading book (trading sub-portfolio) includes debt securities which were acquired either for generating a profit from short-term fluctuations
in price or dealerés margin.

Trading book (other assets sub-portfolio) includes debt and equity assets of the subsidiary involved in life insurance activities. These
assets are managed on behalf of customers and were designated at fair value through profit or loss in order to significantly reduce the
accounting mismatch between these securities and unit-linked provisions.

Investment portfolio includes non-trading (investment) equities that were acquired for generating a profit in longer term fluctuations or in
line with other purposes with the Group (e.g. to have participation in entities that provide services to the group, or other).

Securities at fair value through profit or loss are initially recognized at fair value, which is based on transaction price and are subsequently
measured at fair value based on quoted bid prices or derived from a discounted cash flow model if market price is unreliable measure.
All related realized and unrealized gains and losses are included in net trading income. Interest earned is reported as interest income.
Dividends received are included in dividend income. The instruments are derecognized when the rights to receive cash flows have
expired or the Group has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership and the transfer qualifies for derecognizing.

All purchases and sales of securities at fair value through profit or loss that require delivery within the time frame established by regulation
or market convention ( 6r egulracognized at Settlgment date,avbiehss the date wkea pagnseit is made
for assets purchased or sold. All other purchases and sales are recognized as derivative forward transactions until settlement. Changes
in the asset's fair value between the trade date and the settlement date are recognized as trading gains/losses in the income statement.

Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income

Debt securities that are held for collection of contr acsentadelyc as
payments of principal and interest, and that are not designated at fair value through profit or loss, are measured at fair value through

other comprehensive income. Movements in the carrying amount are taken through other comprehensive income, except for recognition

of impairment gains or losses, interest income and foreign exchange gains or losses on the financial instru me n autharized cost which

are recognized in profit or loss. When the debt asset is derecognized, the cumulative gain or loss previously recognized in other
comprehensive income is reclassified from equity to profit or loss and recognized in Net gain (loss) in operations from securities. Interest
income from these financial assets is included in Interest income using the effective interest rate method.

The Group did not designate any equities at fair value through other comprehensive income.
Financial assets at amortized cost

Loans to customers and finance lease receivables that are the main strategic direction of Group's business and debt securities that are
held for collecting cash flows in line with prescribed business model to generate long-term yield and to serve as secondary liquidity
reserves constitute the major part of Group's assets and are attributable to financial assets at amortized cost (as well as other qualifying
assets such as cash equivalents, due from banks, other financial assets). These assets may be sold, but sales (other than sales low in
volume or sales as part of problem debt recovery activities) are rare and infrequent. Financial assets at amortized cost are non-derivative
financi al assets that pass the @ Sol ddstothg than:ne thdsethabtlie bank dlassifies psadir a n
value through profit or loss due to intention for short-term sale or reduction of accounting mismatch; (b) those that the bank upon initial
recognition designates at fair value through other comprehensive income; or (c) those for which the holder may not recover substantially
all of its initial investment, other than because of credit deterioration. In the case of impairment, the impairment loss is reported as a
deduction from the carrying value of the asset and recognizedi n t he i ncome statement as O6Al Il owan
assets at amortized cost are derecognized when the contractual rights to receive the cash flow from the assets expire, or the assets are
written-off, or the Group has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership and the transfer qualifies for derecognizing.
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$IAULIY =; BANKAS NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 DECEMBER 2024

(Al amounts are in EUR thousand, unless otherwise stated)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Impairment of financial assets

The Group assesses on a forward-looking basis the expected credit losses (ECL) associated with its debt instrument assets carried at
amortized cost and fair value through other comprehensive income and with exposure arising from loan commitments and financial
guarantee contracts. The Group recognizes a loss allowance for such losses at each reporting date. The measurement of ECL reflects
an unbiased and probability-weighted amount that is determined by evaluating a range of possible outcomes, the time value of money
and reasonable and supportable information that is available without undue cost or effort at the reporting date about past events, current
conditions and forecasts of future economic condition. Section 1.3 of the Financial risk management disclosure provides more details on
the ECL measurement.

Derecognition of financial assets

The Group derecognizes a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial asset expire, or it transfers the
rights to receive the contractual cash flows in a transaction in which substantially all risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset
are transferred or in which the Group neither transfers nor retains substantially all of risks and rewards of ownership and it does not retain
control of the financial asset. On derecognition of a financial asset the difference between the carrying amount (measured at the date of
derecognition) and the consideration received (including any new asset obtained less any new liability assumed) and any cumulative
gain or loss that had been recognized in other comprehensive income is recognized in profit or loss.

Write-offs of financial assets

Loans and receivables are regularly reviewed and written-off from the balance sheet when the total loan balance or a part of it is
considered as uncollectible under the most optimistic scenario using expert judgement on each exposure. Typically, the judgement that
there is no reasonable expectation for recovery is applied for the exposures where there are no clear indications of possible cash flows

from the borrower and to the extent that the collateral is deemed insufficient. 100% impairment provision against the carrying amount of

the exposure must be recognized before an uncollectible exposure (or part of it that is considered to be uncollectible) can be written-off.
Written-off exposures are accounted forasoff-bal ance sheet cl ai mof f(sgc awmmull attehd wreigtad r
from the borrower expires.

Modifications of financial assets

The Bank sometimes modifies the payment terms of loans to customers due to commercial renegotiations, or for distressed loans, with
a view to maximizing recovery. Modification practices are based on criteria which, in the judgement of management, indicate that payment
will most likely continue. Legal treatment for loan contract amendments is followed, i.e. amended loan contracts are accounted for as
modifications - i.e. date of signing the original contract remains the point for loan parameters at origination used to assess significant
increase of credit risk. On modification, the gross carrying amount of the loan is recalculated as the present value of the modified
contractual cash flows that are discounted at the | oafsssindudadgi n
in other income line in the income statement. The modification of loan contract does not automatically impact its credit stage assignment
if it done on a commercial negotiations basis or according to public or sectoral moratoria, but the loans subject to modification are checked
if it is done because of borrower's inability to serve the loan by its original schedule. If this is the case, significant increase credit risk
(Stage 2) is recognized. Additional scenarios for moving the loans the loans that were modified due to customers problems to Stage 3
are in place, and additional observation periods are in place for recognizing improvement in staging for such loans.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Assets are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be
recoverable. Goodwill is tested for impairment at least annually. An impairment loss is recognizedf or t he amount by w
carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The recowkandbl e
value in use. For the purposes of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are separately identifiable

cash inflows (cash-generating units). The impairment test also can be performed on a single asset when the fair value less cost to sell

or the value in use can be determined reliably. Non-financial assets other than goodwill that suffered impairment are reviewed for possible
reversal of the impairment at each reporting date.

Reverse repurchase transactions

Securities purchased under agreements to resel!/l (Areverseers,aspos
appropriate. The difference between purchase and repurchase price is treated as interest and accrued over the life of agree ment using

the effective interest method. Securities borrowed are not recognized in the financial statements, unless these are sold to third parties,

in which case the purchase and sale are recorded with the gain or loss included in trading income.

Reverse repurchase agreements are classified as loans and receivables and are accounted for using the authorized cost method.
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$IAULIY =; BANKAS NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 DECEMBER 2024

(Al amounts are in EUR thousand, unless otherwise stated)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Intangible assets

Intangible assets are stated at cost less accumulated amortization. Intangible assets are authorized using the straight-line method over
their estimated useful life (see note 17).

Property, plant and equipment

Tangible fixed assets are stated at historical cost less accumulated depreciation. Depreciation is provided on a straight-line basis to write
off proportionally the cost of each asset over its estimated useful life.

Assets that are subject to depreciation are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the

carrying amount may not be recoverable. An assetodés carryhengsamo.
carrying amount s greater than its estimated recover abl keleshoun

costs to sell and value in use.

Gains and losses on disposals of fixed assets are determined by reference to their carrying amount and are charged to the Income
statement.

The assets residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at each balance sheet date. Asset maintenance
costs are charged to the income statement when they are incurred. Significant improvements of assets are capitalized and depreciated
over the remaining useful life period of the improved asset. Useful lives of property, plant and equipment are disclosed in Note 18.

Leases
a) Group company is the lessee

Right-of-use assets and liabilities arising from lease are initially measured on present value basis, discounted using the interest rate
implicit in the lease. Lease liabilities include fixed and variable payments (based on consumer index or inflation rate). Lease payments
to be made under reasonably certain extension options are also included in the measurement of the liability. The discount influence
is recognized in finance cost as interest expense in income statement. Right-of-use assets are measured at cost comprising the
amount of the initial measurement of lease liability, any initial direct costs, adjusted by advance payments. Right-of-use assets are
depreciated using the straight-line method over rent period. The depreciation charge is recognized as depreciation expenses in
income statement. The duration of rent agreements are adjusted bythe Gr oup 6s management assumpt.i
The expenses related to short-term leases or to leases of low-value assets are included in other operating expenses in income
statement. Right-of-use assets are included in Property, plant and equipment, lease liabilities are included in Other financial liabilities.

In determining the lease term, management considers all facts and circumstances that create an economic incentive to exercise an
extension option, or not exercise a termination option. Extension options are only included in the lease term if the lease is reasonably
certain to be extended (or not terminated). If any leasehold improvements are expected to have a significant remaining value, the
Group is typically reasonably certain to extend (or not terminate). Otherwise, the Group considers other factors including the plans
to continue an activity. Contracts may contain both lease and non-lease components. The Group allocates the consideration in the
contract to the lease and non-lease components based on their relative stand-alone prices. However, for leases of real estate for
which the Group is a lessee, it has elected not to separate lease and non-lease components and instead accounts for these as a
single lease component.

b) Group company is the lessor

Operating leases

Assets leased out under operating leases are included in tangible fixed assets in the statement of financial position. They are
depreciated over their expected useful lives on a basis consistent with similar owned fixed assets. Rental income is recognized on
a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Finance leases

A finance lease is a lease that transfers substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of an asset. Title may or may
not eventually be transferred. When assets are held subject to a finance lease, the present value of the lease payments is recognized
as a receivable. The difference between the gross receivable and the present value of the receivable is recognized as unearned
finance income. Lease income is recognized over the term of the lease using the net investment method (before tax), which reflects
a constant periodic rate of return.
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Financial liabilities

The Groupébés financial l'iabilities consi st aufhorizeth cos. dinadickakliabgitresdree d

derecognized when extinguished.
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

The group can designate certain liabilities upon initial recognition as at fair value through profit or loss (fair value option); this
designation cannot be changed subsequently.

Other liabilities measured at authorized cost

Financial liabilities that are not classified as at fair value through profit or loss fall into this category and are measured at authorized
cost. Financial liabilities measured at authorized cost are deposits from banks or customers, debt securities in issue, liabilities to
special and lending funds as well as other various financial liabilities. Initially they are recognized at fair value, and subsequently
stated at authorized cost, with any difference between net proceeds and the redemption value recognized in the Income statement
over their period using the effective interest method.

Accounting policies for subordinated perpetual bonds

Under IAS 32, a financial instrument is classified as a financial liability if the issuer has a contractual obligation to deliver cash or
another financial asset. The subordinated bond involves fixed interest payments, and the issuer's call option does not alter this
obligation. Bondholders do not have voting rights or ownership rights in the issuer. The subordinated bond is recognized as a
financial liability based on the following criteria: (i) the issuer has a contractual obligation to pay annual interest, (ii) the bond
redemption, though at the issuer's discretion, inevitably results in the return of the principal amount, (iii) write-down and write-up
features do not eliminate the obligation to pay interest, and (iv) bondholders have no rights to the residual value of the company or
voting rights. Upon initial recognition, the financial liability is measured at fair value, deducting directly attributable transaction costs.
These costs are amortized using the effective interest rate method over an expected period.

Provisions

Provisions are recognized when: the Group has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events; it is probable that an
outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation; and the amount of the obligation can be reliably estimated.

Dividends
Dividends on the Bankés shares are recorded in equity in the

Insurance and investment contracts classification and accounting

Subsidiary of the Bank SB draudimas UAB GD (hereinafter i the Company) is engaged in life insurance activities and offers various
insurance contracts.

The contracts concluded by the Company are divided into insurance contracts (accounted for in accordance with IFRS 17) and investment
contracts (accounted for in accordance with IFRS 9, except for investment contracts with discretionary participation feature that are
accounted for in accordance with IFRS 17) based on accepted insurance and (or) financial risk.

A contract is not recognized as an insurance contract if the insurer accepts only financial risks such as interest rate risk, equity prices
risk, credit risk or other financial risk but not significant insurance risk. A contract without significant insurance risk is recognized as an
investment contract.

A contract is recognized as an insurance contract only if it meets a definition for contract with significant insurance risk. The significance
of insurance risk is evaluated at initial recognition for each contract, except for products for which the significance of insurance risk is
obvious (for example, Term life insurance, Endowment etc.). For such products, the Company has decided not to evaluate the significance
of insurance risk separately for each contract and these contracts are recognized as insurance contracts accounted for with IFRS 17 at
the date of initial recognition. A contract which at the date of initial recognition is recognized as insurance contracts, remains an insurance
contract until all rights and obligations expire.

Company chooses to use 10 % limit for significant testing. The significance of insurance risk is evaluated considering the (evaluated by
probability) expected future cashflows discounted using risk-free interest rate curve at initial recognition, including additional amounts
which would be payable in economic scenarios. The evaluation of significance of insurance risk is based on the following two scenarios:

1. insurance event does not occur;
2. insurance event does occur with probability of 100 %.

If additional amount payable due to the second scenario are higher than 10% of amounts under the first scenario, then insurance risk is
considered significant.
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

For portfolio acquired on 1 December 2023 and new contracts concluded after this date, the significance of insurance risk is evaluated
using a simplified method, proving that the simplified method gives reliable results that do not significantly differ from results given by
exact evaluation. According to the simplified method, the significance of insurance risk for unit-linked contracts is evaluated by comparing
the sum of valid life and riders cover with 10% of unit-linked fund (investment) value. If the sum of valid life and riders cover is bigger,
then it is considered that contract has significant insurance risk.

IFRS 17 requires separating the investment component from insurance contract only if the investment component is distinct. Some of
the Company6s insurance contracts have investment componhents
highly interrelated and investment component is not distinct therefore the Company is not separating the investment component from the
insurance contracts. Receipts and payments from these investment components are excluded from insurance contract revenue and
insurance service expenses presented in profit or loss.

Insurance contract liabilities

Application of IFRS17 introduces significant accounting and disclosure changes for insurance contracts. All rights and obligations arising
from the insurance contracts are shown at fair value. Amounts related to reinsurance contracts held are presented separately. This
presentation of insurance and financial results provides a more transparently the sources of profit and the quality of income generated.

In accordance to IFRS 17, the amounts shown in profit (loss) are divided into:

1 Insurance service result, which consist of insurance revenue and insurance service expenses; and
1 insurance finance income and expenses.

Insurance revenue is a sum of expected benefits and expenses incurred, change in the risk adjustment, contractual service margin
recognized over period and recovery of acquisition cashflows. Insurance service expenses is a sum of incurred claims expenses, losses
on onerous contracts and reversal of those losses, changes of liability of incurred claims related to past service and insurance acquisition
costs. Insurance service result does not include investment components and cash-flow changes related to future services (these changes
ad adjusting the contractual service margin).

Insurance finance income and expenses include the time value of money (discounting) and changes in financial risks related to insurance
contracts groups. The Group and the Company have decided not to distribute the insurance finance income and expenses between profit
and loss and other comprehensive income statements.

In accordance with IFRS 17, the Company groups the insurance contracts into so-called units of accounts. The purpose of such grouping
is to ensure that profit would be recognized over time proportionally to the insurance service provided while losses are recognized
immediately when the Company assesses that the contract is generating loss. Setting off profit and loss between different insurance
contracts groups is not allowed. Insurance contracts are aggregated into insurance contracts groups based on such three levels:

1. Portfolio i similar risk contracts managed together.

2. Profitability 1 contracts of same profitability.
It was decided to divide a portfolio of insurance contracts issued into onerous and remaining, where onerous group covers insurance
contracts that at initial recognition have been estimated with a loss component. The insurance contract is estimated with loss
component if the risk-adjusted present value of future cash-flows for the is negative. After initial recognition no re-grouping in respect
of profitability is done.

3. Cohorti contracts which date of entry into force differ by more than one year.
Portfolio cohort period beginning is January 1st of each calendar year and contracts of each portfolio are accounted using a one-year
interval principle (annual cohort). The insurance contracts within a portfolio acquired at 1 December 2023 were recognized at
acquisition date and were group into 2023-year cohort.

The Company has chosen to apply two of the models defined in IFRS 17 for evaluating the insurance contracts:
1 General Measurement Model, GMM, is applied to insurance contracts that insures certain risk over the longer period of time.

1 Variable Fee Approach, VFA, is applied to insurance contracts with investment components and fulfilling the definition of contracts
with direct participation feature.

According to IFRS 17, the carrying value of a group of insurance contracts at end of each reporting period is calculated by adding the
liability for remaining coverage and the liability for incurred claims. When evaluating these liabilities, the risk-adjusted present value of
future cash-flows (hereinafter - fulfilment cashflows) is estimate for each unit of account, separately evaluating the present value of the
future cash-flows and risk adjustment for non-financial risks.

For unit of accounts without loss component, the liability for remaining coverage consists of fulfilment cashflows and contractual service
margin. At initial recognition, the contractual service margin is equal to such amount which results in total liability for remaining coverage
equal to 0. In case, the contractual service margin at initial recognition is negative, the contractual service margin is zeroized and the
corresponding negative value is recognized as loss component which directly impacts profit or loss.

For evaluation of the liability for remaining coverage, the future cashflows of insurance contracts are modelled within the contract

boundary. Due to long term insurance and the limited ability to reassess portfolio risk, the contract boundary isthe sameas cont r a

maturity date. When evaluating the unit of account liabilities, the Company takes into account all future cashflows within the boundary of
insurance contracts.
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Insurance acquisition cashflows is a separate cost category which is considered when evaluating the insurance liability of remaining
coverage. Such cashflows include cashflows arising from insurance contracts group acquisition, distribution and commencement costs
directly attributable to portfolio of insurance contracts to which that group belongs. When applying GMM and VFA methods, future
expected attributable costs are affecting the amount of CSM and are recognized in profit (loss) during the remaining insurance coverage
according to the respective coverage units.

For the estimation of the present value of the expected future cashflows, the Company has decided to use discount rates derived by
applying the bottom-up approach (described as a combination of risk-free curve and the liquidity premium). For the discounting of
cashflows, the Company has decided to use the risk-free interest rate curves published by European Insurance and Occupational
Pensions Authority (EIOPA). For the purpose to reflect the liquidity characteristics of the cashflows, for unit-linked products, the EIOPA
risk-free interest rate without volatility adjustment is used, and for other products, as they are considered less liquid, the EIOPA risk-free
rate with volatility adjustment is used.

When applying GMM, the discount curves locked-in at initial recognition are used. As new contracts start uniformly over the year, the
weighted average discount curve is locked-in which is derived by using end of each quarter/month risk-free rates and the contracts
issued/written premiums during the respective period.

When evaluating the insurance contract liabilities, the Company includes the risk adjustment for non-financial risk which is estimated
separately from the expected future cashflows and defined as the compensation an entity requires for bearing the uncertainty about the
amount and timing of the cash flows that arises from non-financial risk as the Company fulfils insurance contracts. The Company chose
to calculate risk adjustment based on Solvency Il capital requirement before diversification. Assumption is made that all Solvency Il non-
financial risk (mortality, longevity, disability, validity, outflows and catastrophe risk) is distributed by normal distribution. The calculation
of the risk adjustment is based on determining the risks at the reference date (t=0) and forecasting them based on a run-off pattern
appropriate for each non-financial risk based on Coverage units. Based on the decision of the Company, the risk adjustment corresponds
to a 75% confidence level of the derived non-financial risk distribution. The entire change in risk adjustment for non-financial risk is
included as part of the insurance service result.

The contractual service margin at the end of the accounting period shows profit from the units of account which has not yet been
recognized as it relates to service that will be provided for insurance contracts in the future. In accordance with IFRS 17, the part of
contractual service margin which is recognized as profit or loss in the period shows the service provided for the respective unit of account
in that period. The amount allocated to a certain period is determined by identifying coverage units within the portfolio. The number of
coverage units within a group of insurance contracts is the quantity of insurance contracts services provided by the contracts in the group,
determined considering for each contract the quantity of the benefits provided under a contract and its expected coverage period
(including expected surrenders). Based on Companyo6s decision,

The future cashflows for liability for incurred claims is estimated on the unit of account level, separately evaluating the present value of
expected future cashflows and the risk adjustment for non-financial risk. The present value of the expected future cashflows for liability

of incurred claims is estimated by evaluating the best estimate of incurred claim outpayments, forecasting the future cashflows using
Companyds historical claims settlement dat a &shk-fileeidteresstraieucantei Thegiskt h e
adjustment for non-financial risk, as part of the liability for incurred claims, reflects the risk compensation related to the amounts of the
incurred claims as well as the timing when the incurred claims will be settled, and corresponds to the confidence level of 75%.

Investment contracts liabilities

A contract without significant insurance risk is recognized as an investment contract. Under an investment contract the Company accepts
only financial risks such as interest rate, equity prices, credit or other financial risk but not significant insurance risk. Investment contracts
liabilities are measured by those contracts' portfolio market value, and the value of liabilities changes depending on the change in market
value of related investments. Administrative and risk fees of investment contracts decrease investment contracts liabilities and are
recognized as the Companyds i ncome.
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Segment information

Operating segments are reported in accordance with the information analyzed by the Executive Board (the chief operating decision-
maker) of the Group, which is responsible for allocating resources to the reportable segments and assesses its performance.

In relation to adjusted strategy of the Bank, business model and strategic decisions are divided into three business lines i corporate,
private and investment:

1 Private segment i includes retail banking operations such as issuing loans and providing banking services to the customers and
finance, lease and consumer financing services provided to private customers of the Group (includes financial information of the
subsidiaries);

1 Corporate segment i includes corporate banking operations such as issuing loans and providing banking services provided to
corporate customers of the Group (includes financial information of the subsidiaries);

1 Investment segment i includes banking treasury operations such as managing securities and liquidity portfolio, currency exchange
etc. (includes financial information of the Bank and subsidiaries allocated to this segment).

As the Groupds segment operations, except for real est afforeinterestv e | «
and the Group Executive Board relies primarily on net interest revenue to assess the performance of the segment, the total interest
income and expense for all reportable segments is presented on a net basis. Also all other main items of the income statement are
analyzed by the management of the Group on segment basis therefore they are presented in the segment reporting.

Transactions between the business segments are carried ouGroupt a
Executive Board is measured in a manner consistent with that in the consolidated income statement.

As the Group focuses on domestic activities, no geographimaule co
of Groupo6s activities (financial services), capital exgesaddnitheur e
segment reporting and total assets is more relevant indicator than the fixed asset amount.

Fair value of assets and liabilities

Fair value represents the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants at the measurement date.

Financial guarantee contracts, letters of credit and undrawn loan commitments

Financial guarantee contracts are contracts that require the issuer to make specified payments to reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs
because a specified debtor fails to make payments when due, in accordance with the terms of a debt instrument. Such financial
guarantees are given to banks, financial institutions and other bodies on behalf of customers to secure loans, overdrafts and other banking
facilities.

Financial guarantees are initially recognized in the financial statements at fair value on the date the guarantee was given. Subsequent to
initial recognition, the Bankés liabilities wunder such gamnchtheant
premium received on initial recognition less income recognized in accordance with principles of IFRS 15.

Undrawn loan commitments and letters of credits are commitments under which, over the duration of the commitment, the Bank is
required to provide a loan with pre-specified terms to the customer.

These contracts are in the scope of the ECL impairment recognition requirements.

22



$IAULIY =; BANKAS NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 DECEMBER 2024

(Al amounts are in EUR thousand, unless otherwise stated)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Investment properties

Properties that are held for long-term rental yields or for capital appreciation or both, and that are not occupied by the entities in the
consolidated group, are classified as investment properties. Investment properties comprise buildings for commercial activities and land
plots for undetermined future use.

Some properties may be partially occupied by the Group, with the remainder being held for rental income or capital appreciation. If that
part of the property occupied by the Group can be sold separately, the Group accounts for the portions separately. The portion that is
owner-occupied is accounted for under IAS 16, and the portion that is held for rental income or capital appreciation or both is treated as
investment property under IAS 40. When the portions cannot be sold separately, the whole property is treated as investment property
only if an insignificant portion is owner-occupied. The Group considers the owner-occupied portion as insignificant when the property is
more than 95% held to earn rental income or capital appreciation. In order to determine the percentage of the portions, the Group uses
the size of the property measured in square meters.

Recognition of investment properties takes place only when it is probable that the future economic benefits that are associated with the
investment property will flow to the entity and the cost can be measured reliably. This is usually the day when all risks are transferred.

Investment properties are measured initially at cost, including transaction costs. The carrying amount includes the cost of replacing parts
of an existing investment property at the time the cost has incurred if the recognition criteria are met; and excludes the costs of day-to-
day servicing of an investment property. Subsequent to initial recognition, investment properties are measured at cost less accumulated
depreciation. Depreciation is provided on a straight-line basis to write off proportionally the cost of each asset over its estimated useful
life. All other repairs and maintenance costs are charged to the income statement during the financial period in which they are incurred.

In addition, investment properties are tested for impairment. These valuations are performed annually by external or internal appraisers.

Derivative financial instruments

Derivatives are initially recognized at fair value on the date on which a derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently
remeasured at their fair value. Fair values are obtained from quoted market prices in active markets (for example, for exchange-traded
options), including recent market transactions, and valuation techniques (for example for non-traded options), including discounted cash
flow models and options pricing models, as appropriate. All derivatives are carried as assets when fair value is positive and as liabilities
when fair value is negative. All derivative financial instruments are classified as held for trading.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

Strategy in using financial instruments

The Bankds and the Groupbs activities are principally relf@on
customers and borrows from other financial institutions at both fixed and floating rates and for various periods and seeks to earn above
average interest margins by investing these funds in high quality assets. The Group seeks to increase these margins by consolidating
short-term funds and lending for longer periods at higher rates whilst maintaining sufficient liquidity to meet all claims that might fall due.

Strategic decisions related to financing and investing activities of the Bank and the Group is made by the Board of the Bank. Operating
financing and investment decisions are made on division level. Divisions of the Group are presented in Segment information. Decisions
on risk management are made by the Risk Management Committee of the Bank.

The Bank and the Group also seeks to raise its interest margins by obtaining above average margins, net of provisions, through lending
to commercial and retail borrowers with a range of credit standings. Such exposures involve not just on-balance sheet loans and advances
but the Group also enters into guarantees and other commitments such as letters of credit and other guarantees.

The Group analyzes, evaluates, accepts and manages the risk or combination of risks it is exposed to. Risk management at the Group
aims at ensuring a sufficient return on equity following the conservative risk management policy. While implementing an advanced risk
management policy the Group focuses not only on minimizing potential risk but also on improving pricing and achieving efficient capital
allocation.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

The Risk Management Policy approved by the Council of the Bank as well as by the procedures to manage different types of risks
prepared on its basis ensures the integrity of the risk management process in the Group.

The purpose of risk management policy is to define the .Duestkise as
fact that various risks experienced by the Group are interdependent their management is centralized. Organization and coordination of
the experienced risk management system is one of the main goal s

The Group reviews its risk management procedures and systems to reflect changes in markets, products and emerging best practice on
regular basis, at least annually.

The Group performs self assessment each year. This process analyzes types of risks that could potentially arise from banking activities
and have material impact to the Group. The most important types of risk the Group is exposed to are credit risk, market risk, liquidity risk,
concentration risk, operational risk, IT risk, model risk, compliance risk and ESG risk. Market risk includes currency risk, interest rate and
securities price risk. Other types of risk are considered immaterial by the Group and, therefore, are not assessed.

In order to avoid a conflict of interest the Banko6s subdihgsesi o
subdivisions the direct activities of which are connected with the up rise of various types of banking risks.

1. CREDIT RISK

Creditriski s defined as the risk for the Group to incur | osses omsue
towards the Group. Credit exposures arise princi pal | gbarkingadtidtiesdi ng
There is also credit risk in investment activities thaasintheadffse |

balance sheet financial instruments, such as loan commitments, guarantees and letters of credit.

The Bank regularly reviews its credit risk management policies which include lending policies, credit risk limit control, other credit risk
mitigation measures as well as the internal control and internal audit of credit risk management.

The Bankds Board has appr ov epbliciesshard poaeducks whichr lay léwn the priaciplesniiar orédit risk
management and control, establish an acceptable | evel of credit ri sk and
measures and their interaction. This ensures a uniform understanding of the principles for taking on exposure to credit risk and allows
achieving consi stency with the nature and complexity of the Bankods |

The Bank takes risks only in the fields, which are well known to it and where it has long-term experience, trying to avoid excessive risk

in transactions that can have negative influence t o rofitdbikty whichgin por
terms of increasing competition, would ensure the stabl easd#ssink 6 s
exposure to credit risk, the Bank adheres to the principle of prudence.

The Bankés |l ending policy tisige blismess cientd, seeking to pnavidd them with theneetter funding terms
andlongt erm support, at the same time paying attention to Banko6s p

Large entities are defined as entities employing more than 250 employees. Small and medium size entities are defined as entities
employing less than 250 employees and the balance sheet total does not exceed EUR 43 million or annual turnover does not exceed
EUR 50 million.

New types of activities or products are launched only after the assessment of the arising risk. All lending products and processes at the
Bank are regulated and documented pursuant to the requirements of risk assessment and internal control policy. Special procedures are
established with respect to each lending product.

The aim of the Bankods credit risk management policy i ststis@avoided.s ur
With respect to provision of credits to clients, the principle stating that profit should not be earned at the expense of excessive credit risk
is observed.

The Bankds credit ri sk megukatgreregeiremnentpto adeqoafe risk manbgemeatgoliay and the best practice
in risk management of other banks. Therefore, the Bankbés emeptl oy
systems of Lithuanian and foreign banks and the results of their application.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

1.1. Credit risk measurement

(a) Loans and receivables

The Bank applies credit risk management measures, which could be divided into two types:
1) Measures that help to avoid decisions to grant loans with higher risk potential;
2) Measures ensuring the effective monitoring system of the

Measures that help to avoid decisions to grant loans with higher risk potential:
1) Multi-stage decision-making and its approval system;
2) Defined credit risk appetite, credit risk indicators and risk allocation among structural levels i limit establishment;
3) Customer risk assessment requirements set by internal procedures;
4) Credit standards and acceptable credit risk criteria for separate products;
5) Security measures for credit repayment (collateral).

Multi-stage decision-making and its approval system has an aim not to make one-man decisions regarding credit granting by authorized

persons but to make them be discussed by the collegial b o dtteeg s
the Bankd6s Board or Council. There are certain |imits tdnauwelhor
as approval l'imits to collegial bodi es. Li mit e st a bériensehamdk thet

effectiveness of their managed branches; while in the Branch Committees and the Bank Loan Committee the attention is paid to the

[o

Commi ttee membersoé6 qualification, experience and ec thequality of loanc t i

portfolio and other factors. The level of involvement of second line of defense in decision making process, providing secondary opinion
or/ and performing decision-making control is determined depending on the size of the loan and compliance with the credit standards.

It is very important to precisely analyze all the information about the customer before granting the credit. The goal of credit analysis is to
do the best i n ev alcrediworthngss, stées and prespeatsnia thé field where he/she provides his/her goods or
services. Every credit decision is based on the adequate assessment of credit repayment possibilities proportionate to the size of

exposure and level of possible risk. Providing credit first of all the Bank analyzes t he borrower 6s financi al

cash flows. The repayment of credits granted by the Bank must be enough secure in order to minimize possible credit repayment risks.

(

A security measure has to be chosen in accordance with the credit type. Providing credit first of all the Bank analyzes t he bor r «

financi al capacity and credit repayment possibilities from the
Credit administration and constant credit monitoring i sThegropermai
credit administration includes the timely wupdat i nginfoonfation, thetimbly r r c

introduction of latest financial information to the database and preparation of the various documents and their amendments.

The Bank&s Managedhent andRGostrkl Department collects and, if necessary, provides to responsible managerial personnel
information on external conditions, the growth of the credit portfolio and fulfilment of targeted profit, expenses associated with risks, the
largest amounts due from clients, distribution of credits by the type of economic activity, repayment terms past due, the largest clients
with default possibilities, analysis of the credit portfolio by risk groups, changes in risk groups over a certain time period and other credit
risk metrics.

The Bank establishes and implements the procedures, improves information systems for monitoring separate credits as well as loan
portfolio. These procedures include the criteria for early indication of potentially impaired loans and other transactions.

(b) Debt securities

Credit risk exposures with respect to debt securities are managed by carrying out counterparty analysis when decision for acquisition of
securities is made. The concentration risk together with lending exposure arising from debt securities portfolio is analyzed and monitored
on a regular basis by the Risk Management Committee of the Bank.

(c) Credit-related commitments

Other credit-related commitments assumed by the Group include guarantees, letters of documentary credit, commitments to grant a
credit which expose the Group to the same credit risk as the loans do. The key aim of these instruments is to ensure that funds are

available to a customer as required. The above guarantees and letters of documentary credit are usually collateralizedby c |l i ent s

in the Bank accounts. With regards to commitments to grant credit the Bank is exposed to loss equal to the unused commitment amount.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

1.2. Control of risk limits and risk mitigation policy

(a) Concentrations

The Group manages, limits and controls concentration of credit risk T in particular, to individual counterparties and groups of the
associated counterparties as well as to economic sectors.

In addition to the supervisory requirements to limit the exposures to a single borrower and large exposures, the Group also sets exposure
requirement, which to a single borrower may not exceedveihBhighar c e
limits. Prudential maximum exposure requirement to a single borrower is 25 percent. Concentration of credit risk of the Bank is disclosed

in Section 1.8. of Financial Risk Management disclosure.

The Group also sets limits to industry segments, i . e. regrictpddogteei b | ¢
internal lending limits. The percentage and volume of lending limits are set for individual industries to ensure that the Group is not overly
exposed to any particular economic sector in the country.

The geographical concentration risk is not recognizedi n t he Group6s business since the princ
followed.

Some other specific control and mitigation measures are outlined below.

b) Collateral

The Group mitigates credit risk by taking security for loans granted. The types of collateral considered by the Group as the most
acceptable for loans and advances are the following:

w Real estate (mainly residential properties, commercial and industrial real estate);

w Business assets (equipment, inventory, transport vehicles);

w Property rights over financial instruments (debt securities, equities);

w Third party guarantees.

Long-term financing and lending to corporate entities are generally secured; revolving facilities and consumer loans to private individuals
are generally unsecured. In order to minimize the credit loss as the impairment indicators for the relevant individual loans and advances
are noticed the Group seeks for additional collateral from the counterparty.

While calculating a decrease in value for the loan the repayment of which is secured by the collateral, a cash flow from the security
measure is also taken into consideration when determining the LGD factor. If several loans are insured with the same security measure
(collateral), such security measure (collateral) is allocated according to rank of the pledge.

Debt securities, treasury and other eligible bills are generally unsecured.

For finance | ease receivables the | ender remains the ownlenderief t
able to gain control on the risk mitigation measures and realize them in rather short period.
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1.3. Impairment and provisioning policies
a) ECL model used by the Group

Upon assessing impairment losses on loans, due to banks, debt securities at amortized cost and at fair value through other
comprehensive income and other assets the Group follows the requirements expected credit loss (ECL) model prescribed in IFRS 9
Financial Instruments. The Group and the Bank carries out valuation of assets on a monthly basis, based on valuation policies approved
by the Board of the Bank.

The ECL is measured by the formula:

PD x LGD x EAD = ECL

Where:

PD i probability of default. It represents the likelihood of a borrower on defaulting on its financial obligation;

LGD i loss given default. It represents the extent of loss the Group is likely to incur in case the borrower defaults;
EAD i exposure at default. It represents expected exposure at the time of the default.

The financial assets are grouped into 3 stages:

1) Stage 1 financial assets i no significant increase in credit risk is observed since initial recognition. The Group uses low credit
risk exemption and assigns all of the exposures with external investment grade credit rating or exposures with Standard
internal credit rating to Stage 1. 12 months PDs apply to Stage 1 exposures;

2) Stage 2 financial assets 1 significant increase in credit risk is observed since initial recognition. The Group uses multiple
criteria to assess whether the credit risk has increased. Main criteria include: credit rating decrease (external credit rating
decrease by >=3 notches; internal credit rating decrease by more than 1 notch), payment delays (>30 days past due financial
assets are classified to Stage 2 unless there is observable evidence indicating otherwise), other observable criteria
(restructuring, forbearance, inclusion in Watch List, other qualitative factors showing increased credit risk reflected in lower
ratings). Lifetime PDs apply to Stage 2 exposures;

3) Stage 3 financial assets i credit-impaired financial assets. Main criteria for inclusion the asset in Stage 3 include: bankruptcy
of the customer; termination of the contract; payment delay >90 days; non-performing exposure status by regulatory rules (i.e.
the exposure is unlikely to be repaid in full without collateral realization (irrespective of any past-due amount or of the number
of days past-due)); other observable criteria. For Stage 3 exposures, the PD ratio is always equal to 1. Minimal provisions are
also calculated in accordance to regulatory requirements for older non-performing loans.

In case observable evidence is availabl e, Groupbs employeedo r e
better or worse stage.

The exposure ceases to be Stage 3 when it no longer meets the criteria for the consecutive period of at least 3 months. It should be
noted that some of the regulatory non-performing exposure criteria have their own exit periods, therefore the period for an exposure to
be classified out of Stage 3 may actually be longer.

The Group calculates its own PDs for loans to customers, finance lease receivables and other assets and uses PDs published by the
rating agencies for debt securities and due to banks.

PDs for |l oans to customers and finance |l ease receivabl esfoiaFull ca
approach is applied for finance | ease receivabl es apwsefthe Graup asesa | I
migration matrices for the exposures grouped by the economic sector. The Group uses PDs published by rating agencies for debt

securities and due from banks. For other financi #@alisused.set s, a si

For loans to customers and finance lease receivables, LGDs are estimated by the Group using the value of collateral available for each
exposure individually and discounting by certain ratios over certain period of time. Ratios and recovery periods depend on the type of
coll ater al and are derived from Groupds own recovery experiaenc
exposure group level using the ultimate recovery rate historical data. For debt securities and due from banks, LGDs from rating agencies

are used.

For lending portfolio, Stage 1 EAD represents the expected exposure value over 12 month period and assumptions on the expected use
of the off-balance sheet credit commitments; Stage 2 EAD represents the expected exposure value over the term of the loan and
assumptions on the expected use of the off-balance sheet credit commitments. Stage 3 EAD is estimated as the total balance and off-
balance sheet exposure. For debt securities, due from banks and other assets, gross exposure value is used as EAD estimate.
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Groupbs PD esti mat e-bokingnfoonatprn Thae Greup fransfevgédsrhdi st or i ¢ al (Athrough ¢t
situation sipticméo)x ddatp@dimy using models based on the expected
and their associated impact on the PD vary by financial instrument. The impact of economic variables on PD has been determined by
performing statistical regression analysis. Expert judgement is also applied in the process.

To include the impact of economic variables, the Group uses 3 economic scenarios (base case, optimistic, pessimistic) that are based
on the forecasts published by the chief economist of Gisassignéd
these scenarios. These probabilities are approved in ECL calculation procedure, any deviation from procedure is approved by the Board
of the Bank.

The most significant assumptions used for the ECL estimates as at 31 December 2024 are presented in the tables below:

2 5 g
= = 1S =
E £2 2 £o £
Q —_
5 5E < - 52 38
o €23 £ c'n =
& E58 2 33 23
0] O Eo =] O c O wn
At 31 December 2024:
Base scenario 2.90 % 6.50 % 6.80 % 6.28 % 8.70 %
Optimistic scenario 4.00 % 8.50 % 5.70 % 20.08 % 11.50 %
Pessimistic scenario 1.90 % 3.00 % 8.50 % -15.18 % 4.00 %
Scenario probabilities and weighted average GDP growth:
| 2025 2026 2027 2028 2029
At 31 December 2024: GDP  Probability GDP  Probability GDP  Probability GDP  Probability GDP  Probability
Base scenario 2.90 % 60 % 2.90 % 60 % 2.70 % 60 % 2.50 % 60 % 2.50 % 60 %
Optimistic scenario 4.00 % 15 % 4.00 % 15% 3.50 % 15% 3.10% 15 % 3.10% 15%
Pessimistic scenario 1.90 % 25 % 2.00 % 25% 1.50 % 25 % 1.50 % 25 % 1.50 % 25%
bifrghisr e E01 2.82% 2.84% 2.52% 2.34% 2.34%
growth
The most significant assumptions used for the ECL estimates as at 31 December 2023 are presented in the tables below:
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At 31 December 2023:
Base scenario 1.80% 6.50% 2.50% 6.80 %
Optimistic scenario 2.50% 6.00% 8.50% 20.08 %
Pessimistic scenario 0.20% 7.80% -2.30% -15.18 %
Scenario probabilities and weighted average GDP growth:

| 2024 2025 2026 2027 2028
At 31 December 2023: GDP  Probability GDP  Probability GDP  Probability GDP  Probability GDP  Probability
Base scenario 1.80% 60 % 3.10% 60 % 3.30% 60 % 2.21% 60 % 2.15% 60 %
Optimistic scenario 2.50% 15 % 3.80% 15 % 4.00% 15 % 3.50% 15 % 3.10% 15 %
Pessimistic scenario 0.20% 25 % 1.90% 25 % 2.00% 25% 1.50% 25% 1.50% 25 %

biizghise s C0P 1.51% 2.91% 3.08% 2.23% 2.13%

growth

The assumptions underlying ECL calculations are subject to frequent review, the models used in ECL calculation are back tested
against the actual performance data. In case of need, changes are made to the models. In 2024 EAD conversion factor was removed
from calculating Stage 3 EAD exposure and Unsecured Recoveries was included in LGD calculation for stage 1,2 and 3 loans. In 2023
EAD conversion factor was added in calculating Stage 3 EAD exposure.
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b) Impairment loss sensitivity

The most significant assumptions affected the estimated ECL allowance are GDP, given the significant impact on the borrowers
performance; real estate price level, given the significant impact on the collateral values and consumer financing portfolio recovery rates,
given the significant impact on the ultimate recoveries of the unsecured borrowings. The table below provides an sensitivity analysis of
the above factors.

2024

2023

Scenario 1: GDP growth
increases by 0.5 p.p.

Scenario 2: GDP growth
decreases by 0.5 p.p.

Scenario 3: real estate prices
increase by 5%

Scenario 4: real estate prices
decrease by 5%

Scenario 5: consumer
financing portfolio recoveries
increase by 5 p.p.

Scenario 6: consumer
financing portfolio recoveries
decrease by 5 p.p.

Group

ECL decreases by EUR 814
thousand, equity increases
by EUR 651 thousand

ECL increases by EUR 810
thousand, equity decreases
by 648 thousand

ECL decreases by EUR
1356 thousand, equity
increases by EUR 1085
thousand

ECL increases by EUR 1509
thousand, equity decreases
by EUR 1207 thousand

ECL decreases by EUR
1510 thousand, equity
increases by EUR 1208
thousand

ECL increases by EUR 2102
thousand, equity decreases
by EUR 1682 thousand

Bank

ECL decreases by EUR 814
thousand, equity increases
by EUR 651 thousand

ECL increases by EUR 810
thousand, equity decreases
by EUR 648 thousand

ECL decreases by EUR -
1356 thousand, equity
increases by EUR 1085
thousand

ECL increases by EUR 1509
thousand, equity decreases
by EUR 1207 thousand

ECL decreases by EUR 17
thousand, equity increases
by EUR 14 thousand

ECL increases by EUR 17
thousand, equity decreases
by EUR 14 thousand

Group

ECL decreases by EUR 935
thousand, equity increases

by EUR 748 thousand

ECL increases by EUR 928
thousand, equity decreases
by 742 thousand

ECL decreases by EUR 900
thousand, equity increases

by EUR 720 thousand

ECL increases by EUR
1,124 thousand, equity
decreases by EUR 899
thousand

ECL decreases by EUR
1,416 thousand, equity
increases by EUR 1,132
thousand

ECL increases by EUR
1,416 thousand, equity
decreases by EUR 1,132
thousand

Bank

ECL decreases by EUR 935
thousand, equity increases

by EUR 748 thousand

ECL increases by EUR 928
thousand, equity decreases
by EUR 742 thousand

ECL decreases by EUR 900
thousand, equity increases

by EUR 720 thousand

ECL increases by EUR
1,124 thousand, equity
decreases by EUR 899
thousand

ECL decreases by EUR 14
thousand, equity increases
by EUR 11 thousand

ECL increases by EUR 14
thousand, equity decreases
by EUR 11 thousand

c) write-offs

The accumulated write-offs, including any amount constituting legal claims to the borrowers even if those amounts were never recognized
on the balance sheet (the most common example of such cases is the difference between gross value and acquisition value of credit-
impaired loans acquired by the Group) is presented in the table below:

| 2024] 2023

Group Bank Group Bank

Total accumulated write-offs subject to enforcement 37,855 36,367 81,184 80,906

of which: amounts written-off during the year subject to enforcement 1,827 981 447 389
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1.4. Maximum exposure to credit risk before collateral held or other credit enhancements

2024 2023
Group Bank Group Bank
Cash equivalents: 315,599 307,181 679,810 671,390
Balances in bank correspondent accounts 267,305 258,887 608,675 600,255
Placements with Central Bank 48,294 48,294 71,135 71,135
Loans and advances to banks 3,121 3,121 3,013 3,013
Loans and advances to customers: 3,117,700 3,105,007 2,645,104 2,633,482
Loans and advances to financial institutions 20,287 311,104 26,413 273,966
Loans to individuals (Retail): 1,431,482 1,127,971 1,258,203 999,028
Consumer loans 305,329 1,818 260,914 1,739
Mortgages 915,760 915,760 778,931 778,931
Other (reverse repurchase agreements, other Ioans_ backed by 210,393 210,393 218,358 218,358
securities, other)
Loans to business customers: 1,665,931 1,665,932 1,360,488 1,360,488
Large corporates 216,656 216,657 108,069 108,069
SME 1,395,605 1,395,605 1,183,839 1,183,839
Central and local authorities, administrative bodies and other 53,670 53,670 68,580 68,580
Finance lease receivables 316,897 316,897 286,533 286,451
Individuals 43,125 43,125 32,475 33,281
Business customers 273,772 273,772 254,058 253,170
Securities in the trading book:
Debt securities in the trading book 56,617 13,521 65,761 20,240
Derivative financial instruments 1,093 1,093 251 241
Investment securities at fair value
Debt securities at fair value through other comprehensive income 40,994 40,994 71,740 71,740
Investment securities at amortized cost
Debt securities at amortized cost 726,937 716,864 751,227 739,869
Other financial assets 7,258 6,559 7,351 8,289
Credit risk exposures relating to off 1 balance sheet items are as follows:
Financial guarantees 87,985 87,985 59,216 59,256
Letters of credit 135 135 538 538
Loan commitments and other credit related liabilities 393,488 403,711 482,027 489,655
At 31 December 5,067,824 5,003,068 5,052,571 4,984,164

The table above represents a worst-case scenario of credit risk exposure at 31 December 2024 and 2023, without taking into account
any collateral held or other credit enhancements attached. For on-balance sheet assets, the exposures presented above are net carrying

amount as reported in the balance sheet.
1.5. Loans to customers

Loans to customers are summarized as follows:

2024| 2023
Group Bank Group Bank
Gross loans to customers 3,167,425 3,138,574 2,688,662 2,664,243
Allowance for loan impairment (49,725) (33,567) (43,558) (30,761)
Net loans to customers 3,117,700 3,105,007 2,645,104 2,633,482
During the year ended 31 December 2024, the Groupds gross | oansl8% n dTl had vGrnocuepsd si ntcort

provision for loans and advances amounts to EUR 49,725 thousand (2023: EUR 43,558 thousand) and it accounts for 1.57% of the

respective portfolio (2023: 1.62%).
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a) Credit grades

The Group and the Bank examines the potenti al borrower éds fmemanc

in financi al performance during the whole | oan service pa@manced .
at least annually. Consumer loans to individuals are assessed based on application scorings when decision is made. After they are
granted they are monitored based on their past due status.

Group loans to customers

2024 2023

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total

Standard 2,248,345 48,398 59 2,296,802 1,833,422 30,525 135 1,864,082

Watch 414,400 36,192 287 450,879 387,014 37,282 432 424,728

Substandard 221,441 122,969 4,394 348,804 189,748 132,932 7,006 329,686

Problem - - 70,941 70,941 - - 70,164 70,164

Gross 2,884,186 207,559 75,681 3,167,426 2,410,184 200,739 77,737 2,688,660

Less: allowance for impairment (25,347) (5,327) (19,052) (49,726) (21,262) (6,284) (16,010) (43,556)
Net| 2,858,839 202,232 56,629  3,117,700| 2,388,922 194,455 61,727 2,645,104

Bank loans to customers

2024 2023

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total

Standard 2,230,400 338,622 - 2,569,022 1,816,646 277,206 - 2,093,852

Watch 364,120 34,381 - 398,501 349,132 35,061 - 384,193

Substandard 350 105,117 - 105,467 144 115,889 - 116,033

Problem - - 65,585 65,585 - - 70,164 70,164

Gross 2,594,870 478,120 65,585 3,138,575 2,165,922 428,156 70,164 2,664,242

Less: allowance for impairment (18,389) (795) (14,384) (33,568) (15,954) (2,279) (12,527) (30,760)
Net| 2,576,481 477,325 51,201  3,105,007| 2,149,968 425,877 57,637 2,633,482

Group loans to individuals (retail)

2024 2023

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total

Standard 1,066,241 27,807 59 1,094,107 948,783 17,263 135 966,181

Watch 76,416 10,903 287 87,606 62,958 7,907 432 71,297

Substandard 221,412 19,878 4,394 245,684 189,748 19,543 7,006 216,297

Problem - - 27,426 27,426 - - 24,189 24,189

Gross 1,364,069 58,588 32,166 1,454,823 1,201,489 44,713 31,762 1,277,964

Less: allowance for impairment (10,177) (4,665) (8,496) (23,338) (8,968) (4,195) (6,598) (19,761)
Net 1,353,892 53,923 23,670 1,431,485 1,192,521 40,518 25,164 1,258,203

Bank loans to individuals (retail)

2024 2023

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total

Standard 1,048,296 27,213 - 1,075,509 932,007 16,391 - 948,398

Watch 26,136 9,092 - 35,228 25,076 5,686 - 30,762

Substandard 321 2,026 - 2,347 144 2,500 - 2,644

Problem - - 22,069 22,069 - - 24,189 24,189

Gross 1,074,753 38,331 22,069 1,135,153 957,227 24,577 24,189 1,005,993

Less: allowance for impairment (3,219) (133) (3,828) (7,180) (3,660) (190) (3,115) (6,965)
Net 1,071,534 38,198 18,241 1,127,973 953,567 24,387 21,074 999,028
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Group loans to individuals (retail): Consumer loans

2024 2023

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total

Standard 19,609 733 59 20,401 18,390 959 135 19,484

Watch 50,285 1,819 287 52,391 37,882 2,261 432 40,575

Substandard 221,092 17,852 4,394 243,338 189,603 17,069 7,006 213,678

Problem - - 5,549 5,549 - - 179 179

Gross 290,986 20,404 10,289 321,679 245,875 20,289 7,752 273,916

Less: allowance for impairment (7,034) (4,550) (4,766) (16,350) (5,370) (4,026) (3,606) (13,002)
Net 283,952 15,854 5,523 305,329 240,505 16,263 4,146 260,914

Bank loans to individuals (retail): Consumer loans

2024 2023

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total

Standard 1,663 139 - 1,802 1,613 87 - 1,700

Watch 5 8 - 13 - 40 - 40

Substandard 2 - - 2 - 26 - 26

Problem - - 192 192 - - 179 179

Gross 1,670 147 192 2,009 1,613 153 179 1,945

Less: allowance for impairment (76) (18) 97) (192) (62) (21) (123) (206)
Net 1,594 129 95 1,818 1,551 132 56 1,739

Group loans to individuals (retail): Mortgages

2024 2023

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total

Standard 868,147 26,061 - 894,208 748,506 14,144 - 762,650

Watch 3,062 6,898 - 9,960 3,510 3,017 - 6,527

Substandard 295 715 - 1,010 119 1,218 - 1,337

Problem - - 12,757 12,757 - - 10,929 10,929

Gross 871,504 33,674 12,757 917,935 752,135 18,379 10,929 781,443

Less: allowance for impairment (195) (29) (1,951) (2,174) 277) (45) (2,290) (2,512)
Net 871,309 33,645 10,806 915,760 751,958 18,334 8,639 778,931

Bank loans to individuals (retail): Mortgages

2024 2023

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total

Standard 868,147 26,061 - 894,208 748,506 14,144 - 762,650

Watch 3,062 6,898 - 9,960 3,510 3,017 - 6,527

Substandard 295 715 - 1,010 119 1,218 - 1,337

Problem - - 12,757 12,757 - - 10,929 10,929

Gross 871,504 33,674 12,757 917,935 752,135 18,379 10,929 781,443

Less: allowance for impairment (195) (29) (1,951) (2,174) 277) (45) (2,290) (2,512)
Net 871,309 33,645 10,806 915,760 751,958 18,334 8,639 778,931

Group loans to individuals (retail): Other

2024 2023

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total

Standard 178,485 1,013 - 179,498 181,887 2,160 - 184,047

Watch 23,069 2,186 - 25,255 21,566 2,629 - 24,195

Substandard 25 1,311 - 1,336 26 1,256 - 1,282

Problem - - 9,120 9,120 - - 13,081 13,081

Gross 201,579 4,510 9,120 215,209 203,479 6,045 13,081 222,605

Less: allowance for impairment (2,950) (86) (1,780) (4,814) (3,421) (124) (702) (4,247)
Net 198,629 4,424 7,340 210,393 200,058 5,921 12,379 218,358

Bank loans to individuals (retail): Other

2024 2023

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total

Standard 178,485 1,013 - 179,498 181,888 2,160 - 184,048

Watch 23,069 2,186 - 25,255 21,566 2,629 - 24,195

Substandard 24 1,311 - 1,335 25 1,256 - 1,281

Problem - - 9,120 9,120 - - 13,081 13,081

Gross 201,578 4,510 9,120 215,208 203,479 6,045 13,081 222,605

Less: allowance for impairment (2,949) (86) (1,780) (4,815) (3,421) (124) (702) (4,247)
Net 198,629 4,424 7,340 210,393 200,058 5,921 12,379 218,358

32



. P
SIAULIY =' BANKAS

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31 DECEMBER 2024

(Al amounts are in EUR thousand, unless otherwise stated)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

Group loans to financial institutions

2024 2023

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total

Standard 20,313 - - 20,313 14,704 - - 14,704

Watch - - - - 11,892 - - 11,892

Substandard - - - - - - - -

Problem - - - - - - - -

Gross 20,313 - - 20,313 26,596 - - 26,596

Less: allowance for impairment (26) - - (26) (183) - - (183)
Net 20,287 - - 20,287 26,413 - - 26,413

Bank loans to financial institutions

2024 2023

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total

Standard 20,314 290,817 - 311,131 14,704 247,553 - 262,257

Watch - - - - 11,892 - - 11,892

Substandard - - - - - - - -

Problem - - - - - - - -

Gross 20,314 290,817 - 311,131 26,596 247,553 - 274,149

Less: allowance for impairment (27) - - 27) (183) - - (183)
Net 20,287 290,817 - 311,104 26,413 247,553 - 273,966

Group loans to business customers

2024 2023

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total

Standard 1,161,791 20,592 - 1,182,383 869,935 13,262 - 883,197

Watch 337,984 25,289 - 363,273 312,164 29,375 - 341,539

Substandard 29 103,091 - 103,120 - 113,389 - 113,389

Problem - - 43,516 43,516 - - 45,975 45,975

Gross 1,499,804 148,972 43,516 1,692,292 1,182,099 156,026 45,975 1,384,100

Less: allowance for impairment (15,144) (662) (10,554) (26,360) (12,111) (2,089) (9,412) (23,612)
Net 1,484,660 148,310 32,962 1,665,932 1,169,988 153,937 36,563 1,360,488

Bank loans to business customers

2024 2023

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total

Standard 1,161,791 20,592 - 1,182,383 869,935 13,262 - 883,197

Watch 337,984 25,289 - 363,273 312,164 29,375 - 341,539

Substandard 29 103,091 - 103,120 - 113,389 - 113,389

Problem - - 43,516 43,516 - - 45,975 45,975

Gross 1,499,804 148,972 43,516 1,692,292 1,182,099 156,026 45,975 1,384,100

Less: allowance for impairment (15,144) (662) (10,554) (26,360) (12,111) (2,089) (9,412) (23,612)
Net 1,484,660 148,310 32,962 1,665,932 1,169,988 153,937 36,563 1,360,488

Group loans to business customers: Large corporates

2024 2023

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total

Standard 196,134 - - 196,134 89,586 1,768 - 91,354

Watch 1,401 5,450 - 6,851 - 1,047 - 1,047

Substandard - - - - - 243 - 243

Problem - - 16,262 16,262 - - 17,209 17,209

Gross 197,535 5,450 16,262 219,247 89,586 3,058 17,209 109,853

Less: allowance for impairment (494) 3) (2,095) (2,592) (651) (6) (1,127) (1,784)
Net 197,041 5,447 14,167 216,655 88,935 3,052 16,082 108,069

Bank loans to business customers: Large corporates

2024 2023

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total

Standard 196,134 - - 196,134 89,586 1,768 - 91,354

Watch 1,401 5,450 - 6,851 - 1,047 - 1,047

Substandard - - - - - 243 - 243

Problem - - 16,262 16,262 - - 17,209 17,209

Gross 197,535 5,450 16,262 219,247 89,586 3,058 17,209 109,853

Less: allowance for impairment (494) 3) (2,095) (2,592) (651) (6) (1,127) (1,784)
Net 197,041 5,447 14,167 216,655 88,935 3,052 16,082 108,069
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Group loans to business customers: SME

2024 2023

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total

Standard 913,788 19,833 - 933,621 718,128 9,384 - 727,512

Watch 336,217 19,839 - 356,056 311,571 28,328 - 339,899

Substandard 29 103,081 - 103,110 - 110,413 - 110,413

Problem - - 25,955 25,955 - - 27,423 27,423

Gross 1,250,034 142,753 25,955 1,418,742 1,029,699 148,125 27,423 1,205,247

Less: allowance for impairment (14,475) (658) (8,004) (23,137) (11,312) (2,069) (8,027) (21,408)
Net 1,235,559 142,095 17,951 1,395,605 1,018,387 146,056 19,396 1,183,839

Bank loans to business customers: SME

2024 2023

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total

Standard 913,788 19,833 - 933,621 718,128 9,384 - 727,512

Watch 336,217 19,839 - 356,056 311,571 28,328 - 339,899

Substandard 29 103,081 - 103,110 - 110,413 - 110,413

Problem - - 25,955 25,955 - - 27,423 27,423

Gross 1,250,034 142,753 25,955 1,418,742 1,029,699 148,125 27,423 1,205,247

Less: allowance for impairment (14,475) (658) (8,004) (23,137) (11,312) (2,069) (8,027) (21,408)
Net 1,235,559 142,095 17,951 1,395,605 1,018,387 146,056 19,396 1,183,839

Group loans to business customers: Central and local authorities and other

2024 2023

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total

Standard 51,868 759 - 52,627 62,221 2,110 - 64,331

Watch 366 - - 366 593 - - 593

Substandard - 10 - 10 - 2,733 - 2,733

Problem - - 1,299 1,299 - - 1,343 1,343

Gross 52,234 769 1,299 54,302 62,814 4,843 1,343 69,000

Less: allowance for impairment (175) 1) (457) (633) (148) (14) (258) (420)
Net 52,059 768 842 53,669 62,666 4,829 1,085 68,580

Bank loans to business customers: Central and local authorities and other

2024 2023

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total

Standard 51,868 759 - 52,627 62,221 2,110 - 64,331

Watch 366 - - 366 593 - - 593

Substandard - 10 - 10 - 2,733 - 2,733

Problem - - 1,299 1,299 - - 1,343 1,343

Gross 52,234 769 1,299 54,302 62,814 4,843 1,343 69,000

Less: allowance for impairment (175) 1) (457) (633) (148) (14) (258) (420)
Net 52,059 768 842 53,669 62,666 4,829 1,085 68,580

For analysis of debt securities according to the credit quality see Notes 12 and 15.

b) Payment delays

The tables below provide an analysis of loans and advances to customers by payment delays. The Group considers a loan to be past
due when the following criteria are met: for loans to individuals T overdue amount is higher than the lower of EUR 100 or 1% of total
exposure; for loans to business customers i overdue amount is higher than the lower of EUR 500 or 1% of total exposure.

Group loans to customers

2024 2023

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total

Not past due 2,841,708 169,149 23,870 3,034,727 2,364,707 165,303 36,773 2,566,783

Past due up to 30 days 42,477 25,004 5,262 72,743 45,340 20,976 5,455 71,771

Past due 31-90 days - 13 405 3431 16 836 135 14,397 5,263 19,795

Past due more than 90 days - - 43 117 43 117 4 64 30,247 30,315
Gross 2,884,185 207,558 75,680 3,167,423 2,410,186 200,740 77,738 2,688,664

Less: allowance for impairment (25,347) (5,327) (19,052) (49,726) (21,263) (6,285) (16,012) (43,560)
Net 2,858,838 202,232 56,630 3,117,697 2,388,923 194,455 61,726 2,645,104
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Bank loans to customers

2024 2023

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total

Not past due 2,552,393 458,625 21,358 3,032,376 2,130,579 412,310 35,118 2,578,007

Past due up to 30 days 42,477 10,296 3,931 56,704 35,340 6,877 4,065 46,282

Past due 31-90 days - 9,200 2,533 11,733 - 8,965 1,930 10,895

Past due more than 90 days - - 37,762 37,762 4 4 29,052 29,060
Gross 2,594,870 478,121 65,584 3,138,575 2,165,923 428,156 70,165 2,664,244

Less: allowance for impairment (18,391) (795) (14,384) (33,570) (15,955) (2,279) (12,528) (30,762)
Net| 2,576,479 477,326 51,200 3,105,005 2,149,968 425,877 57,637 2,633,482

Group loans to individuals (retail)

2024 2023

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total

Not past due 1,346 028 26,646 10,832 1,383,506 1,177,876 14,435 11,574 1,203,885

Past due up to 30 days 18,038 19,913 4,289 42,240 23,474 15,952 2,892 42,318

Past due 31-90 days - 12,027 2,508 14,535 135 14,264 4,801 19,200

Past due more than 90 days - - 14,536 14,536 4 64 12,496 12,564
Gross 1,364,066 58,586 32,165 1,454,817 1,201,489 44,715 31,763 1,277,967

Less: allowance for impairment (10,177) (4,665) (8,496) (23,338) (8,969) (4,196) (6,599) (19,764)
Net 1,353,889 53,921 23,669 1,431,479 1,192,520 40,519 25,164 1,258,203

Bank loans to individuals (retail)

2024 2023

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total

Not past due 1,056,712 25,303 8,320 1,090,335 943,748 13,889 9,919 967,556

Past due up to 30 days 18,038 5,205 2,958 26,201 13,474 1,853 1,502 16,829

Past due 31-90 days - 7,822 1,610 9,432 - 8,832 1,468 10,300

Past due more than 90 days - - 9,181 9,181 4 4 11,301 11,309
Gross 1,074,750 38,330 22,069 1,135,149 957,226 24,578 24,190 1,005,994

Less: allowance for impairment (3,219) (133) (3,828) (7,180) (3,661) (190) (3,115) (6,966)
Net 1,071,531 38,197 18,241 1,127,969 953,565 24,388 21,075 999,028

Group loans to financial institutions

2024 2023

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total

Not past due 20,314 - - 20,314 26,596 - - 26,596

Past due up to 30 days - - - - - - - -

Past due 31-90 days - - - - - - - -

Past due more than 90 days - - - - - - - -
Gross 20,314 - - 20,314 26,596 - - 26,596

Less: allowance for impairment 27) - - 27) (183) - - (183)
Net 20,287 - - 20,287 26,413 - - 26,413

Bank loans to financial institutions

2024 2023

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total

Not past due 20,314 290,817 - 311,131 26,596 247,553 - 274,149

Past due up to 30 days - - - - - - - -

Past due 31-90 days - - - - - - - -

Past due more than 90 days - - - - - - - -
Gross 20,314 290,817 - 311,131 26,596 247,553 - 274,149

Less: allowance for impairment 27) - - 27) (183) - - (183)
Net 20,287 290,817 - 311,104 26,413 247,553 - 273,966

Group loans to business customers

2024 2023

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total

Not past due 1,475,366 142,504 13,038 1,630,908 1,160,235 150,868 25,199 1,336,302

Past due up to 30 days 24,439 5,091 973 30,503 21,866 5,024 2,563 29,453

Past due 31-90 days - 1,378 923 2,301 - 133 462 595

Past due more than 90 days - - 28,581 28,581 - - 17,751 17,751
Gross 1,499,805 148,973 43,515 1,692,293 1,182,101 156,025 45,975 1,384,101

Less: allowance for impairment (15,144) (662) (10,556) (26,362) (12,111) (2,089) (9,413) (23,613)
Net 1,484,661 148,311 32,959 1,665,931 1,169,990 153,936 36,562 1,360,488
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Bank loans to business customers

Stage 1

Not past due 1,475 367

Past due up to 30 days 24,439

Past due 31-90 days -

Past due more than 90 days -
Gross 1,499,806

Less: allowance for impairment (15,145)
Net 1,484,661

c) Stage 3 loans and advances to customers

2024

Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
142,505 13,038 1,630,910
5,091 973 30,503
1,378 923 2,301

- 28,581 28,581
148,974 43,515 1,692,295
(662) (10,556) (26,363)
148,312 32,959 1,665,932

Stage 1
1,160,235
21,866

1,182,101
(12,111)
1,169,990

2023

Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
150,868 25,199 1,336,302
5,024 2,563 29,453
133 462 595

- 17,751 17,751
156,025 45,975 1,384,101
(2,089) (9,413) (23,613)
153,936 36,562 1,360,488

The breakdown of the gross amount of Stage 3 loans and advances by class, along with the fair value of related collateral held by the
Group and the Bank as security is as follows:

31 December 2024

Group Bank
Allowance for e Gross Allowance for elrvelle
Gross value impairment Net value of value impairment Net value of
collateral collateral
Loans and advances to financial
institutions ) ) ) ) ) ) ) )
Loans to individuals (Retail): 32,166 (8,497) 23,669 21,057 22,069 (3,828) 18,241 21,057
Consumer loans 10,289 (4,766) 5,523 6 192 (98) 94 6
Mortgages 12,757 (1,951) 10,806 10,765 12,757 (1,950) 10,807 10,765
Other 9,120 (1,780) 7,340 10,285 9,120 (1,780) 7,340 10,285
Loans to business customers: 43,516 (10,556) 32,960 45,328 43,516 (10,556) 32,960 45,328
Large corporates 16,262 (2,095) 14,167 17,209 16,262 (2,095) 14,167 17,209
SME 25,955 (8,004) 17,951 26,775 25,955 (8,004) 17,951 26,775
Central and local authorities, 1,299 (457) 842 1,343 1,299 (457) 842 1,343
administrative bodies and other
Total loans to customers 75,682 (19,053) 56,629 66,384 65,585 (14,384) 51,201 66,384
31 December 2023
Group Bank
Allowance for el vl Gross Allowance for el vEle
Gross value . . Net value of . . Net value of
impairment value impairment
collateral collateral
Loans and advances to financial
institutions ) ) ) ) ) ) ) )
Loans to individuals (Retail): 31,762 (6,598) 25,164 21,057 24,189 (3,115) 21,074 21,057
Consumer loans 7,752 (3,606) 4,146 6 179 (123) 56 6
Mortgages 10,929 (2,290) 8,639 10,765 10,929 (2,290) 8,639 10,765
Other 13,081 (702) 12,379 10,285 13,081 (702) 12,379 10,285
Loans to business customers: 45,975 (9,412) 36,563 45,328 45,975 (9,412) 36,563 45.328
Large corporates 17,209 (2,127) 16,082 17,209 17,209 (1,127) 16,082 17,209
SME 27,423 (8,027) 19,396 26,775 27,423 (8,027) 19,396 26,775
Central and local authorities,
administrative bodies and other 1,343 (258) 1,085 1,343 1,343 (258) 1,085 1,343
Total loans to customers 77,737 (16,010) 61,727 66,384 70,164 (12,527) 57,637 66,384

Impairment loss by class of financial assets for loans is disclosed in Note 13.
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d) Information about loan collateral

The method for collateral valuation is selected by the Group and the Bank based on specifics of collateral and existing market conditions
on the day of valuation. Based on collateral characteristics and the purpose of its valuation the following valuation methods are used:
comparable sales price method or income capitalizatonmet hod. Fair values of the collateral
procedures.

If loan is secured by several different types of collateral, priority in their recognition is based on their liquidity. Cash deposits are treated
as having the highest liquidity followed by guarantees, residential real estate and then other real estate. Securities that have no active
market and other assets are treated as having the lowest liquidity.

Unsecured |l oans also include | oans secured by other typeascounts
(controlled by the Bank), third party warrantees, bills of exchange, etc.). The total amount of loans to individuals and business customers
secured by the above security measure but disclosed as unsecured as at 31 December 2023 amounted to EUR 54 million (2023: EUR
23 million). Totally unsecured loans comprise only consumer loans and loans issued by the Bank to its subsidiaries.

31 December 2024

Group loans to individuals (retail)
Consumer loans Mortgages Other Total
Unsecured loans 321,632 - - 321,632
Loans collateralized by: a7 917,935 215,209 1,133,191
residential real estate - - 917,935 11,130 929,065
other real estate - - - 6,518 6,518
securities - - - - -
guarantees - - - 159,294 159,294
cash deposits - - - - -
other assets - a7 - 38,267 38,314
Total 321,679 917 935 215,209 1,454,823
Group loans to business customers
SME Large corporates _ Fi_nar_]cial Central and local authorities and Total

institutions other
Unsecured loans - - - - -
Loans collateralized by: 1,418,742 219,248 20,313 54,303 1,712,606
residential real estate - 181,829 3,275 - 667 185,771
other real estate - 1,236,913 215,973 5,458 41,482 1,499,826
securities - - - - - -
guarantees - - - 6,555 2,487 9,042
cash deposits - - - - - -
other assets - - - 8,300 9,667 17,967
Total 1,418,742 219,248 20,313 54,303 1,712,606
Bank loans to individuals (retail)
Consumer loans Mortgages Other Total
Unsecured loans 1,962 - - 1,962
Loans collateralized by: a7 917,935 215,208 1,133,190
residential real estate - - 917,935 11,129 929,064
other real estate - - - 6,518 6,518
securities - - - - -
guarantees - - - 159,294 159,294
cash deposits - - - - -
other assets - a7 - 38,267 38,314
Total 2,009 917,935 215,208 1,135,152
Bank loans to business customers

Financial Central and local authorities and
SME Large corporates neiuifeme . Total
Unsecured loans - - 290,818 - 290,818
Loans collateralized by: 1,418,742 219,248 20,313 54,302 1,712,605
residential real estate - 181,829 3,275 - 667 185,771
other real estate - 1,236,913 215,973 5,458 41,481 1,499,825
securities - - - - - -
guarantees - - - 6,555 2,487 9,042
cash deposits - - - - - -
other assets - - - 8,300 9,667 17,967
Total 1,418,742 219,248 311,131 54,302 2,003,423

37

c



. P
SIAULIY =' BANKAS

31 December 2023

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

Group loans to individuals (retail)

Consumer loans Mortgages Other Total
Unsecured loans 273,916 - 67,266 341,182
Loans collateralized by: - 781,443 155,339 936,782
residential real estate - - 749,409 8,083 757,492
other real estate - - 32,034 8,776 40,810
securities - - - - -
guarantees - - - 123,556 123,556
cash deposits - - - 7 7
other assets - - - 14,917 14,917
Total 273,916 781,443 222,605 1,277,964
Group loans to business customers
SME Large corporates _ Fi_nancial Central and local authorities and Total

institutions other
Unsecured loans - - - 49,103 49,103
Loans collateralized by: 1,205,247 109,853 26,596 19,897 1,361,593
residential real estate - 138,606 2,633 - 457 141,696
other real estate - 1,066,641 107,220 26,596 18,971 1,219,428
securities - - - - 1 1
guarantees - - - - 468 468
cash deposits - - - - - -
other assets - - - - - -
Total 1,205,247 109,853 26,596 69,000 1,410,696

Bank loans to individuals (retail)

Consumer loans Mortgages Other Total
Unsecured loans 1,945 - 67,266 69,211
Loans collateralized by: - 781,443 155,339 936,782
residential real estate - - 749,409 8,083 757,492
other real estate - - 32,034 8,776 40,810
securities - - - - -
guarantees - - - 123,556 123,556
cash deposits - - - 7 7
other assets - - - 14,917 14,917
Total 1,945 781,443 222,605 1,005,993
Bank loans to business customers
SME Large corporates ) Fi_nar_lcial Central and local authorities and Total

institutions other
Unsecured loans - - 247,553 49,103 296,656
Loans collateralized by: 1,205,247 109,853 26,596 19,897 1,361,593
residential real estate - 138,606 2,633 - 457 141,696
other real estate - 1,066,641 107,220 26,596 18,971 1,219,428
securities - - - - 1 1
guarantees - - - - 468 468
cash deposits - - - - - -
other assets - - - - - -
Total 1,205,247 109,853 274,149 69,000 1,658,249
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

Following tables show the distribution of LTV (loan to collateral value)r at i os f or the Groupods oan
Group loans to customers i LTV distribution
2024 2023
LTV ratio: Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
lower than 50% 1,631,765 142,726 46,396 1,820,887 1,270,696 149,029 49,268 1,468,993
50% to 60% 140,192 7,204 1,954 149,350 150,592 14,578 2,835 168,005
60% to 70% 147,239 22,643 4,282 174,164 105,707 3,854 1,551 111,112
70% to 80% 168,178 5,320 1,405 174,903 173,230 2,396 1,555 177,181
80% to 90% 164,569 2,938 1,307 168,814 150,401 2,922 1,977 155,300
90% to 100% 3,718 136 533 4,387 13,704 838 85 14,627
higher than 100% 171,879 4,886 9,273 186,038 147,883 4,494 12,386 164,763
no collateral 456,645 21,706 10,532 488,883 397,973 22,629 8,081 428,683
[ ?éZﬁi 2,884,185 207,559 75,682 3,167,426 2,410,186 200,740 77,738 2,688,664
Bank loans to customers i LTV distribution
2024 2023
LTV ratio: Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
lower than 50% 1,631,765 142,725 46,391 1,820,881 1,270,696 149,029 49,268 1,468,993
50% to 60% 140,192 7,204 1,954 149,350 150,592 14,578 2,835 168,005
60% to 70% 147,239 22,643 4,282 174,164 105,707 3,854 1,551 111,112
70% to 80% 168,178 5,321 1,405 174,904 173,230 2,396 1,555 177,181
80% to 90% 164,569 2,938 1,307 168,814 150,401 2,922 1,977 155,300
90% to 100% 3,718 136 533 4,387 13,704 838 85 14,627
higher than 100% 171,877 4,886 9,274 186,037 147,883 4,494 12,386 164,763
no collateral 167,331 292,268 435 460,034 153,710 250,045 508 404,263
[t ?(;Zﬁi 2,594,869 478,121 65,581 3,138,571 2,165,923 428,156 70,165 2,664,244
Group loans to individuals (Retail) i LTV distribution
2024 2023
LTV ratio: Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
lower than 50% 296,540 15,718 6,232 318,490 246,967 8,578 5,671 261,216
50% to 60% 126,594 5,505 1,712 133,811 85,306 2,615 1,529 89,450
60% to 70% 114,659 3,866 1,558 120,083 98,834 3,261 1,250 103,345
70% to 80% 166,872 5,320 1,405 173,597 169,164 2,395 1,555 173,114
80% to 90% 164,508 2,938 1,307 168,753 149,520 2,849 1,962 154,331
90% to 100% 1,237 136 533 1,906 2,155 83 85 2,323
higher than 100% 145,459 4,294 8,916 158,669 138,356 4,494 11,659 154,509
no collateral 348,198 20,810 10,503 379,511 311,187 20,440 8,052 339,679
el ?Sgﬁz 1,364,067 58,587 32,166 1,454,820 1,201,489 44,715 31,763 1,277,967
Bank loans to individuals (Retail) i LTV distribution
2024 2023
LTV ratio: Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
lower than 50% 296,541 15,717 6,229 318,487 246,967 8,578 5,671 261,216
50% to 60% 126,594 5,505 1,712 133,811 85,306 2,615 1,529 89,450
60% to 70% 114,659 3,866 1,558 120,083 98,834 3,261 1,250 103,345
70% to 80% 166,872 5,320 1,405 173,597 169,164 2,395 1,555 173,114
80% to 90% 164,508 2,938 1,307 168,753 149,520 2,849 1,962 154,331
90% to 100% 1,237 136 533 1,906 2,155 83 85 2,323
higher than 100% 145,457 4,294 8,917 158,668 138,356 4,494 11,659 154,509
no collateral 58,884 554 406 59,844 66,924 303 479 67,706
el ?(;Zﬁz 1,074,752 38,330 22,067 1,135,149 957,226 24,578 24,190 1,005,994
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

Group loans to individuals (Retail) : Consumer loans i LTV distribution

2024 2023
LTV ratio: Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
lower than 50% - - - - - - 1 1
50% to 60% - - - - - - - -
60% to 70% - - - - - - - -
70% to 80% - - - - - - - -
80% to 90% - - - - - - - -
90% to 100% - - - - 16 2 1 19
higher than 100% - - - - 16 1 4 21
no collateral 290,986 20,404 10,289 321,679 245,843 20,286 7,746 273,875
e e 290,986 20,404 10,289 321,679 245,875 20,289 7,752 273,916
Bank loans to individuals (Retail) : Consumer loans i LTV distribution
2024 2023
LTV ratio: Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
lower than 50% - - - - - - 1 1
50% to 60% - - - - - - - -
60% to 70% - - - - - - - -
70% to 80% - - - - - - - -
80% to 90% - - - - - - - -
90% to 100% - - - - 16 2 1 19
higher than 100% - - - - 16 1 4 21
no collateral 1,670 147 192 2,009 1,581 150 173 1,904
UL EEss 1,670 147 192 2,009 1,613 153 179 1,945
loans
Group loans to individuals (Retail) : Mortgages i LTV distribution
2024 2023
LTV ratio: Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
lower than 50% 294,357 15,323 5,685 315,365 244,611 7,319 4,786 256,716
50% to 60% 126,505 5,502 1,682 133,689 85,242 2,459 1,363 89,064
60% to 70% 114,649 3,866 1,526 120,041 98,807 3,252 1,126 103,185
70% to 80% 166,869 5,320 1,377 173,566 169,158 2,395 1,549 173,102
80% to 90% 164,500 2,938 1,293 168,731 149,137 2,849 1,936 153,922
90% to 100% 1,160 136 533 1,829 2,101 81 84 2,266
higher than 100% 1,522 273 636 2,431 1,482 24 - 1,506
no collateral 1,943 315 23 2,281 1,597 - 85 1,682
Total gross
loans 871,505 33,673 12,755 917,933 752,135 18,379 10,929 781,443
Bank loans to individuals (Retail) : Mortgages i LTV distribution
2024 2023
LTV ratio: Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
lower than 50% 294,357 15,323 5,685 315,365 244,611 7,319 4,786 256,716
50% to 60% 126,505 5,502 1,682 133,689 85,242 2,459 1,363 89,064
60% to 70% 114,649 3,866 1,526 120,041 98,807 3,252 1,126 103,185
70% to 80% 166,869 5,320 1,377 173,566 169,158 2,395 1,549 173,102
80% to 90% 164,500 2,938 1,293 168,731 149,137 2,849 1,936 153,922
90% to 100% 1,160 136 533 1,829 2,101 81 84 2,266
higher than 100% 1,522 273 636 2,431 1,482 24 - 1,506
no collateral 1,943 315 23 2,281 1,597 - 85 1,682
Total gross
loans 871,505 33,673 12,755 917,933 752,135 18,379 10,929 781,443
Group loans to individuals (Retail) : Other i LTV distribution
2024 2023
LTV ratio: Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
lower than 50% 2,184 394 544 3,122 2,356 1,258 883 4,497
50% to 60% 89 3 30 122 64 156 166 386
60% to 70% 10 - 32 42 27 9 124 160
70% to 80% 3 - 28 31 6 - 6 12
80% to 90% 8 - 14 22 383 - 26 409
90% to 100% 77 - - 7 38 - - 38
higher than 100% 143,935 4,021 8,281 156,237 136,858 4,469 11,655 152,982
no collateral 55,271 92 191 55,554 63,747 153 221 64,121
fRte A 201,577 4,510 9,120 215,207 203,479 6,045 13,081 222,605
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Bank loans to individuals (Retail) : Other i LTV distribution
2024 2023
LTV ratio: Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
lower than 50% 2,184 394 544 3,122 2,356 1,258 883 4,497
50% to 60% 89 3 30 122 64 156 166 386
60% to 70% 10 - 32 42 27 9 124 160
70% to 80% 3 - 28 31 6 - 6 12
80% to 90% 8 - 14 22 383 - 26 409
90% to 100% 77 - - 77 38 - - 38
higher than 100% 143,935 4,021 8,281 156,237 136,858 4,469 11,655 152,982
no collateral 55,271 92 191 55,554 63,747 153 221 64,121
e e 201,577 4,510 9,120 215,207 203,479 6,045 13,081 222,605
Group loans to financial institutions 1 LTV distribution
2024 2023
LTV ratio: Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
lower than 50% 20,314 - - 20,314 19,716 - - 19,716
50% to 60% - - - - 1,054 - - 1,054
60% to 70% - - - - 5,826 - - 5,826
70% to 80% - - - - - - - -
80% to 90% - - - - - - - -
90% to 100% - - - - - - - -
higher than 100% - - - - - - - -
no collateral - - - - - - - -

Total gross
loans 20,314 - - 20,314 26,596 - - 26,596
Bank loans to financial institutions i LTV distribution
2024 2023
LTV ratio: Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
lower than 50% 20,314 - - 20,314 19,716 - - 19,716
50% to 60% - - - - 1,054 - - 1,054
60% to 70% - - - - 5,826 - - 5,826
70% to 80% - - - - - - - -
80% to 90% - - - - - - - -
90% to 100% - - - - - - - -
higher than 100% - - - - - - - -
no collateral - 290,818 - 290,818 - 247,553 - 247,553
Total oss 20,314 290,818 - 311,132 26,596 247,553 - 274,149
Group loans to business customers i LTV distribution
2024 2023
LTV ratio: Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
lower than 50% 1,314,912 127,008 40,164 1,482,084 1,004,012 140,451 43,597 1,188,060
50% to 60% 13,598 1,699 242 15,539 64,232 11,963 1,306 77,501
60% to 70% 32,580 18,777 2,724 54,081 1,047 593 301 1,941
70% to 80% 1,306 - - 1,306 4,066 1 - 4,067
80% to 90% 61 - - 61 881 73 15 969
90% to 100% 2,481 - - 2,481 11,549 755 - 12,304
higher than 100% 26,420 592 357 27,369 9,627 - 727 10,254
no collateral 108,447 896 29 109,372 86,785 2,190 29 89,004
1t oss 1,499,805 148,972 43,516 1,692,293 1,182,099 156,026 45,975 1,384,100
Bank loans to business customers i LTV distribution
2024 2023
LTV ratio: Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
lower than 50% 1,314,912 127,008 40,164 1,482,084 1,004,012 140,451 43,597 1,188,060
50% to 60% 13,598 1,699 242 15,539 64,232 11,963 1,306 77,501
60% to 70% 32,580 18,777 2,724 54,081 1,047 593 301 1,941
70% to 80% 1,306 - - 1,306 4,066 1 - 4,067
80% to 90% 61 - - 61 881 73 15 969
90% to 100% 2,481 - - 2,481 11,549 755 - 12,304
higher than 100% 26,420 592 357 27,369 9,627 - 727 10,254
no collateral 108,447 896 29 109,372 86,785 2,190 29 89,004
el Ak 1,499,805 148,972 43,516 1,692,293 1,182,099 156,026 45,975 1,384,100
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Group loans to business customers: Large corporates i LTV distribution
2024 2023
LTV ratio: Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
lower than 50% 173,195 5,450 16,262 194,907 78,684 3,057 17,209 98,950
50% to 60% - - - - 1,100 - - 1,100
60% to 70% 2,503 - - 2,503 - - - -
70% to 80% - 1 - 1 - 1 - 1
80% to 90% - - - - - - -
90% to 100% - - - - 9,776 - - 9,776
higher than 100% 21,838 - - 21,838 - - - -
no collateral - - - - 26 - - 26
e e 197,536 5,451 16,262 219,249 89,586 3,058 17,209 109,853
Bank loans to business customers: Large corporates i LTV distribution
2024 2023
LTV ratio: Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
lower than 50% 173,195 5,450 16,262 194,907 78,684 3,057 17,209 98,950
50% to 60% - - - - 1,100 - - 1,100
60% to 70% 2,503 - - 2,503 - - -
70% to 80% - 1 - 1 - 1 - 1
80% to 90% - - - - - - -
90% to 100% - - - - 9,776 - - 9,776
higher than 100% 21,838 - - 21,838 - = = =
no collateral - - - - 26 - - 26
e ?(;Zﬁi 197,536 5,451 16,262 219,249 89,586 3,058 17,209 109,853
Group loans to business customers: SME i LTV distribution
2024 2023
LTV ratio: Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
lower than 50% 1,129,962 121,548 22,603 1,274,113 916,238 135,614 25,045 1,076,897
50% to 60% 13,598 1,699 242 15,539 63,132 11,312 1,306 75,750
60% to 70% 29,535 18,777 2,724 51,036 1,047 593 301 1,941
70% to 80% 1,306 - - 1,306 4,066 - - 4,066
80% to 90% 61 - - 61 881 73 15 969
90% to 100% 2,481 - - 2,481 1,773 454 - 2,227
higher than 100% 4,582 592 357 5,531 9,527 - 727 10,254
no collateral 68,509 137 29 68,675 33,035 79 29 33,143
V] A 1,250,034 142,753 25,955 1,418,742 1,029,699 148,125 27,423 1,205,247
Bank loans to business customers: SME i LTV distribution
2024 2023
LTV ratio: Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
lower than 50% 1,129,962 121,548 22,603 1,274,113 916,238 135,614 25,045 1,076,897
50% to 60% 13,598 1,699 242 15,539 63,132 11,312 1,306 75,750
60% to 70% 29,535 18,777 2,724 51,036 1,047 593 301 1,941
70% to 80% 1,306 - - 1,306 4,066 - - 4,066
80% to 90% 61 - - 61 881 73 15 969
90% to 100% 2,481 - - 2,481 1,773 454 - 2,227
higher than 100% 4,582 592 357 5,531 9,527 - 727 10,254
no collateral 68,509 137 29 68,675 33,035 79 29 33,143
el A 1,250,034 142,753 25,955 1,418,742 1,029,699 148,125 27,423 1,205,247
Group loans to business customers: Central and local authorities, administrative bodies and other i LTV distribution
2024 2023
LTV ratio: Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
lower than 50% 11,755 10 1,299 13,064 9,090 1,780 1,343 12,213
50% to 60% - - - - - 651 - 651
60% to 70% 542 - - 542 - - - -
70% to 80% - - - - - - - -
80% to 90% - - - - - - - -
90% to 100% - - - - - 301 - 301
higher than 100% - - - - - - - -
no collateral 39,938 759 - 40,697 53,724 2,111 - 55,835

Total gross
loans 52,235 769 1,299 54,303 62,814 4,843 1,343 69,000
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Bank loans to business customers: Central and local authorities, administrative bodies and other i LTV distribution

LTV ratio: Stage 1 Stage 2

lower than 50% 11,755 10
50% to 60% - -

60% to 70% 542 -

70% to 80% - -

80% to 90% - -

90% to 100% - -
higher than 100% - -
no collateral 39,938 759

Total gross loans 52,235 769

Stage 3
1,299

1,299

2024
Total
13,064
542

40,697
54,303

e) Loans to customers against which no impairment loss allowance is recognized

Stage 1 Stage 2
9,090 1,780

- 651

- 301
53,724 2,111
62,814 4,843

Stage 3
1,343

2023
Total
12,213
651

301

55,835
69,000

Loans to customers contain loans against which no loss impairment loss allowance was recognized because of sufficiency of collateral.
Such loans are summarized in the following table (rounded to a whole number):

Group, as at 31 December 2024 Gross value
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total LTV
Loans to financial institutions - - - - 0%
Loans to individuals: 5,088 1,796 4 6,888 4%
Mortgages - - 1,487 - 1,487 15%
Other- 5,088 309 4 5,401 0%
Loans to business customers: 4,622 13,681 - 18,303 0%
Central and local authorities, administrative bodies and - - - - 0%
other -
Large corporates - - - - - 0%
SME - 4,622 13,681 - 18,303 0%
Total 9,710 15 477 4 25,191 2%
Group, as at 31 December 2023 Gross value
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total LTV
Loans to financial institutions - - - - 0%
Loans to individuals: 147 713 455 1,315 6%
Mortgages - 61 - - 61 5%
Other- 86 713 455 1,254 7%
Loans to business customers: 2,916 - 1,243 4,159 0%
Central and local authorities, administrative bodies and ) ) 0%
other -
Large corporates - - - - 0%
SME - 2,916 - 1,243 4,159 0%
Total 3,063 713 1,698 5,474 3%

f) Purchased or originated credit-impaired (POCI) loans to customers

Loans to customers contain POCI loans to customers. Major part of these loans were acquired under the transaction transfer of assets,

rights, transactions and

i abil

ties

of transfer. Details on POCI loans are summarized in the following table:

As at 31 December 2024

of Tkio

B a mpérfarmingustatdsearthedmed i s

As at 31 December 2023

Loans to financial institutions
Loans to individuals:

Consumer loans -
Mortgages -
Other-

Loans to business customers:

Central and local authorities, administrative bodies and
other -

Large corporates -

SME -

Total

Gross value

75

72

3
1,343

1.343
1,418

Impairment

@)

6)
M
(105)

(1055
(112)

R Gross value
value

68 87

66 82

2 5

1,238 1,472

1,238 1,472

1,306 1,559

Impairment

(18)

17)
M
(9)

(%)
(114)

Carrying

value

69

65
4
1,376

1,376
1,445
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

g) Modifications of loans to customers

Group follows legal treatment for loan contract amendments, i.e. amended loan contracts are accounted for as modifications.

The amortized cost before the modification of loans with lifetime ECL whose cash flows were modified during 2024 as part of Group
restructuring activities was EUR 51,353 thousand, these modifications resulted in a net loss of EUR 80 thousand. The amortized cost
before modification of loans with lifetime ECL whose cash flows were modified during 2022 as part of Group restructuring activities was
EUR 78,774 thousand, these modifications resulted in a net gain of EUR 13 thousand.

1.6. Finance lease receivables

Finance lease receivables are summarized as follows:

| 2024 2023

Group Bank Group Bank

Business customers 279 528 279 528 260,303 259,415

Individuals 44 056 44 056 33,804 33,804

Gross 323,584 323,584 294,107 293,219

Subtract: Allowance for impairment (6,687) (6,687) (7,574) (6,768)
Net 316,897 316,897 286,533 286,451

During the year ended 31 December 2024, finance lease receivables portfolio of the Group increased by 10.6% (2023: increased by
18.2%). Total impairment provisions for finance lease receivables of the Group amount to EUR 6,687 thousand (2023: EUR 7,574
thousand) and account for 2.07% of the respective portfolio (2023: 2.58%).

a) Credit grades of finance lease receivables

Group finance lease receivables

2024 2023

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total

Standard 266,927 2,939 - 269,866 239,174 1,177 - 240,351

Watch 35,704 3,291 - 38,995 28,248 3,002 - 31,250
Substandard 19 11,997 - 12,016 40 14,914 - 14,954
Problem - - 2,707 2,707 - - 7,552 7,552

Gross 302,650 18,227 2,707 323,584 267,462 19,093 7,552 294,107

Less: a”lom":)a;frf];z; (4,961) (720) (1,006) (6,687) (2,941) (1,077) (3,556) (7,574)
Net 297,689 17,507 1,701 316,897 264,521 18,016 3,996 286,533

Bank finance lease receivables

2024 2023

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total

Standard 266,927 2,939 - 269,866 239,174 1,177 - 240,351

Watch 35,704 3,291 - 38,995 28,248 3,002 - 31,250
Substandard 19 11,997 - 12,016 40 14,829 - 14,869
Problem - - 2,707 2,707 - - 6,750 6,750

Gross 302,650 18,227 2,707 323,584 267,462 19,008 6,750 293,220

Less: a”f’m":)a;f;ef‘r’]; (4,961) (720) (1,006) (6,687) (2,941) (1,074) (2,754) (6,769)
Net 297,689 17,507 1,701 316,897 264,521 17,934 3,996 286,451

Group finance lease receivables i business customers

2024 2023

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total

Standard 225,427 897 - 226,324 208,188 813 - 209,001

Watch 35,627 3,089 - 38,716 28,119 1,221 - 29,340
Substandard - 11,997 - 11,997 - 14,888 - 14,888
Problem - - 2,491 2,491 - - 7,074 7,074

Gross 261,054 15,983 2,491 279,528 236,307 16,922 7,074 260,303

Less: a"mﬁfniéﬂ; (4,174) (661) (921) (5,756) (2,609) (1,007) (3,435) (7,051)
Net 256,880 15,322 1,570 273,772 233,698 15,915 3,639 253,252

44



. P
SIAULIY =' BANKAS

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 DECEMBER 2024

(Al amounts are in EUR thousand, unless otherwise stated)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

Bank finance lease receivables i business customers
2024 2023
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
Standard 225,427 897 - 226,324 208,188 813 - 209,001
Watch 35,627 3,089 - 38,716 28,119 1,221 - 29,340
Substandard - 11,997 - 11,997 - 14,803 - 14,803
Problem - - 2,491 2,491 - - 6,272 6,272
Gross 261,054 15,983 2,491 279,528 236,307 16,837 6,272 259,416
Less: a"m)a;:f;;ﬂ; (4,174) (661) (921) (5,756) (2,609) (1,004) (2,633) (6,246)
Net 256,880 15,322 1,570 273,772 233,698 15,833 3,639 253,170
Group finance lease receivables i individuals
2024 2023
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
Standard 41,500 2,042 - 43,542 30,986 364 - 31,350
Watch 77 202 - 279 129 1,781 - 1,910
Substandard 19 - - 19 40 26 - 66
Problem - - 216 216 - - 478 478
Gross 41,596 2,244 216 44,056 31,155 2,171 478 33,804

Less: allowance for
impairment (787) (59) (85) (931) (332) (70) (121) (523)
Net 40,809 2,185 131 43,125 30,823 2,101 357 33,281
Bank finance lease receivables i individuals
2024 2023
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
Standard 41,500 2,042 - 43,542 30,986 364 - 31,350
Watch 77 202 - 279 129 1,781 - 1,910
Substandard 19 - - 19 40 26 - 66
Problem - - 216 216 - - 478 478
Gross 41,596 2,244 216 44,056 31,155 2,171 478 33,804

Less: allowance for
impairment (787) (59) (85) (931) (332) (70) (121) (523)
Net 40,809 2,185 131 43,125 30,823 2,101 357 33,281

b) Payment delays of finance lease receivables

Group finance lease receivables

2024 2023
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
Not past due 285,578 14,121 322 300,021 240,528 17,133 4,089 261,750
Past due up to 30 days 16,626 1,735 356 18,717 26,934 895 212 28,041
Past due 31-90 days 409 2,281 486 3,176 - 1,065 1,143 2,208
Past due more than 90 days 37 91 1,542 1,670 - - 2,108 2,108
Gross 302,650 18,228 2,706 323,584 267,462 19,093 7,552 294,107
Less: allowance for (4,961) (720) (1,006) (6,687)
impairment (2,941) (1,077) (3,556) (7,574)
Net 297,689 17,508 1,700 316,897 264,521 18,016 3,996 286,533
Bank finance lease receivables
2024 2023
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
Not past due 285,578 14,121 322 300,021 240,528 17,056 4,089 261,673
Past due up to 30 days 16,626 1,735 356 18,717 26,934 895 212 28,041
Past due 31-90 days 409 2,281 486 3,176 - 1,057 1,143 2,200
Past due more than 90 days 37 91 1,542 1,670 - - 1,306 1,306
Gross 302,650 18,228 2,706 323,584 267,462 19,008 6,750 293,220
Less: aII_owarpe for (4,961) (720) (1,006) (6,687) (2,941) (1,074) (2,754) (6,769)
impairment
Net 297,689 17,508 1,700 316,897 264,521 17,934 3,996 286,451
Group finance lease receivables i business customers
2024 2023
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
Not past due 245,800 12,404 290 258,494 210,277 15,198 3,894 229,369
Past due up to 30 days 14,997 1,604 269 16,870 26,030 761 184 26,975
Past due 31-90 days 220 1,885 463 2,568 - 963 1,112 2,075
Past due more than 90 days 37 90 1,469 1,596 - - 1,884 1,884
Gross 261,054 15,983 2,491 279,528 236,307 16,922 7,074 260,303
Less: aII_owar_]ce for (4,174) (661) (921) (5,756) (2,609) (1,007) (3,435) (7,051)
impairment
Net 256,880 15,322 1,570 273,772 233,698 15,915 3,639 253,252
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Bank finance lease receivables i business customers

2024 2023
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
Not past due 245,800 12,404 290 258,494 210,277 15,121 3,894 229,292
Past due up to 30 days 14,997 1,604 269 16,870 26,030 761 184 26,975
Past due 31-90 days 220 1,885 463 2,568 - 955 1,112 2,067
Past due more than 90 days 37 20 1,469 1,596 - - 1,082 1,082
Gross 261,054 15,983 2,491 279,528 236,307 16,837 6,272 259,416
Less: all_owance for (4,174) (661) (921) (5,756) (2,609) (1,004) (2,633) (6,246)
impairment
Net 256,880 15,322 1,570 273,772 233,698 15,833 3,639 253,170
Group finance lease receivables i individuals
2024 2023
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
Not past due 39,779 1,718 32 41,529 30,251 1,935 195 32,381
Past due up to 30 days 1,629 131 87 1,847 904 134 28 1,066
Past due 31-90 days 189 396 23 608 - 102 31 133
Past due more than 90 days - 1 73 74 - - 224 224
Gross 41,597 2,246 215 44,058 31,155 2,171 478 33,804
Less: allpwaqce for (789) (59) (85) (933) (332) (70) (121) (523)
impairment
Net 40,808 2,187 130 43,125 30,823 2,101 357 33,281
Bank finance lease receivables i individuals
2024 2023
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
Not past due 39,779 1,718 32 41,529 30,251 1,935 195 32,381
Past due up to 30 days 1,629 131 87 1,847 904 134 28 1,066
Past due 31-90 days 189 396 23 608 - 102 31 133
Past due more than 90 days - 1 73 74 - - 224 224
Gross 41,597 2,246 215 44,058 31,155 2,171 478 33,804
Less: allowance for (789) (59) (85) (933)
impairment (332) (70) (121) (523)
Net 40,808 2,187 130 43,125 30,823 2,101 357 33,281
c¢) Stage 3 Finance lease receivables
31 December 2024
Group Bank
Hleanes Fair value of Alenanes Fair value of
Gross value for Net value collateral Gross value for Net value collateral
impairment impairment
31 December 2024:
Business customers 2,491 (921) 1,570 13,110 2,491 (921) 1,570 13,110
Individuals 216 (85) 131 346 216 (85) 131 346
Total finance lease 2,707 (2,006) 1,701 13,456 2,707 (2,006) 1,701 13,456
receivables
31 December 2023
Group Bank
Hlerenes Fair value of AlETEnEs Fair value of
Gross value for Net value Gross value for Net value
. . collateral . . collateral
impairment impairment
31 December 2023:
Business customers 7,074 (3,435) 3,639 473 6,272 (2,633) 3,639 473
Individuals 478 (121) 357 6,181 478 (121) 357 6,181
T TIEED BIEE 7,552 (3,556) 3,996 6,653 6,750 (2,754) 3,996 6,653
receivables
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d) Information about risk mitigation measures for finance lease receivables

Upon initial recognition of financial lease receivables, the fair value of risk mitigation measures is based on valuation approaches
commonly used for the corresponding types of assets. Market values are used for real estate and movable assets serving as risk
mitigation measures. In subsequent periods, the fair value of risk mitigation measures is updated based on their depreciation rates.

If exposure is secured by several different types of risk mitigation measures, priority in their recognition is based on their liquidity.
Transport vehicles are treated as having highest liquidity followed by residential real estate and then other real estate. Equipment and
other assets are treated as having lowest liquidity.

The lender remains the owner of the leased object. Therefore, in case of customer default it is able to gain control on the risk mitigation
measures and realize them in rather short period.

Following tables present the lower of lease receivable and collateral amount per agreement.

The Group
2024 2023
Individuals Business Total| Individuals Business Total
customers customers
Unsecured finance lease receivables 4,805 - 4,805 5,960 - 5,960
Finance lease receivables secured by:
transport vehicles - 43,709 223,514 267,223 33,441 199,511 232,952
real estate - 1,266 15,777 17,043 626 18,822 19,448
equipment and other - 32 34,480 34,512 22 35,725 35,747
Total 49,812 273,771 323,583 40,049 254,058 294,107
The Bank
2024 2023
Individuals Business Total| Individuals Business Total
customers customers
Unsecured finance lease receivables 4,805 - 4,805 5,960 - 5,960
Finance lease receivables secured by:
transport vehicles - 43,709 223,514 267,223 33,441 199,511 232,952
real estate - 1,266 15,777 17,043 626 18,822 19,448
equipment and other - 32 34,480 34,512 22 34,837 34,859
Total 49,812 273,771 323,583 40,049 253,170 293,219

The following tables present the LTV distributions of finance lease receivables:

Group finance lease receivables i LTV distribution

2024 2023

LTV ratio: Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total

lower than 50% 42,783 3,779 324 46,886 155,913 6,736 5,278 167,927
50% to 60% 32,434 2,555 400 35,389 41,962 2,384 462 44,808

60% to 70% 21,422 1,675 220 23,317 28,933 1,772 323 31,028

70% to 80% 19,651 1,282 157 21,090 23,407 3,418 496 27,321

80% to 90% 2,714 161 128 3,003 13,961 4,139 95 18,195

90% to 100% 1,275 - - 1,275 1,937 491 - 2,428
higher than 100% 182,120 8,776 1,469 192,365 1,237 68 - 1,305
no collateral 251 - 8 259 112 85 898 1,095
Total gross loans 302,650 18,228 2,706 323,584 267,462 19,093 7,552 294,107
Bank finance lease receivables i LTV distribution

2024 2023

LTV ratio: Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total

lower than 50% 42,783 3,779 324 46,886 155,914 6,736 5,278 167,928
50% to 60% 32,434 2,555 400 35,389 41,962 2,384 462 44,808

60% to 70% 21,422 1,675 220 23,317 28,933 1,772 323 31,028

70% to 80% 19,651 1,282 157 21,090 23,407 3,418 496 27,321

80% to 90% 2,714 161 128 3,003 13,961 4,139 95 18,195

90% to 100% 1,275 - - 1,275 1,937 491 - 2,428
higher than 100% 182,120 8,776 1,469 192,365 1,237 68 - 1,305
no collateral 251 - 8 259 111 - 96 207
Total gross loans 302,650 18,228 2,706 323,584 267,462 19,008 6,750 293,220
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

Group finance lease receivables: Individuals T LTV distribution

2024 2023

LTV ratio: Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total

lower than 50% 3,480 175 26 3,681 21,514 1,392 269 23,175
50% to 60% 3,909 291 12 4,212 2,412 262 73 2,747

60% to 70% 3,984 92 32 4,108 2,660 170 5 2,835

70% to 80% 3,367 36 - 3,403 2,762 232 92 3,086

80% to 90% 542 83 25 650 1,312 84 34 1,430

90% to 100% 48 - - 48 335 28 - 363
higher than 100% 26,016 1,568 119 27,703 53 3 - 56
no collateral 250 - 1 251 107 - 5 112
Total gross loans 41,596 2,245 215 44,056 31,155 2,171 478 33,804
Bank finance lease receivables: Individuals i LTV distribution

2024 2023

LTV ratio: Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total

lower than 50% 3,480 175 26 3,681 21,514 1,392 269 23,175
50% to 60% 3,909 291 12 4,212 2,412 262 73 2,747

60% to 70% 3,984 92 32 4,108 2,660 170 5 2,835

70% to 80% 3,367 36 - 3,403 2,762 232 92 3,086

80% to 90% 542 83 25 650 1,312 84 34 1,430

90% to 100% 48 - - 48 335 28 - 363
higher than 100% 26,016 1,568 119 27,703 53 3 - 56
no collateral 250 - 1 251 107 - 5 112
Total gross loans 41,596 2,245 215 44,056 31,155 2,171 478 33,804
Group finance lease receivables: Business customers i LTV distribution

2024 2023

LTV ratio: Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total

lower than 50% 39,304 3,604 298 43,206 134,399 5,344 5,009 144,752
50% to 60% 28,526 2,264 388 31,178 39,550 2,122 389 42,061

60% to 70% 17,438 1,583 188 19,209 26,273 1,602 318 28,193

70% to 80% 16,284 1,246 157 17,687 20,645 3,186 404 24,235

80% to 90% 2,172 78 103 2,353 12,649 4,055 61 16,765

90% to 100% 1,227 - - 1,227 1,602 463 - 2,065
higher than 100% 156,102 7,208 1,350 164,660 1,184 65 - 1,249
no collateral 1 - 7 8 5 85 893 983
Total gross loans 261,054 15,983 2,491 279,528 236,307 16,922 7,074 260,303
Bank finance lease receivables: Business customers i LTV distribution

2024 2023

LTV ratio: Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total

lower than 50% 39,304 3,604 298 43,206 134,400 5,344 5,009 144,753
50% to 60% 28,526 2,264 388 31,178 39,550 2,122 389 42,061

60% to 70% 17,438 1,583 188 19,209 26,273 1,602 318 28,193

70% to 80% 16,284 1,246 157 17,687 20,645 3,186 404 24,235

80% to 90% 2,172 78 103 2,353 12,649 4,055 61 16,765

90% to 100% 1,227 - - 1,227 1,602 463 - 2,065
higher than 100% 156,102 7,208 1,350 164,660 1,184 65 - 1,249
no collateral 1 - 7 8 4 - 91 95
Total gross loans 261,054 15,983 2,491 279,528 236,307 16,837 6,272 259,416
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e) Finance lease receivables against which no impairment loss allowance is recognized

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31 DECEMBER 2024

(All amounts are in EUR thousand, unless otherwise stated)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

Finance lease receivables contain receivables against which no loss impairment loss allowance was recognized because of sufficiency
of collateral. Such receivables are summarized in the following table:

At 31 December 2024: | Gross value
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total LTV
Business customers 7 500 - 507 7%
Individuals 229 31 - 261 2%
Total 237 531 - 768 4%
At 31 December 2023: | Gross value
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total LTV
Business customers 1,217 - - 1,217 28%
Individuals 303 - - 303 15%
Total 1,519 - - 1,519 24%
1.7. Other financial assets
Other financial assets consist of amounts receivable. Their performance is monitored based on the past due status.
The Group
2024 2023
. Business . Business
Individuals customers Total| Individuals customers Total
Stage 1 731 7,502 8,233 1,010 7,458 8,468
Stage 2 - - - - - -
Stage 3 = = = = = =
Gross 731 7,502 8,233 1,010 7,458 8,468
Less: allowance for impairment - (975) (975) - (1,117) (1,117)
Net 731 6,527 7,258 1,010 6,341 7,351
The Bank
2024 2023
Individuals Business Total| Individuals Business Total
customers customers
Stage 1 730 6,804 7,534 1,009 8,381 9,390
Stage 2 - - - - - -
Stage 3 - - - - - -
Gross 730 6,804 7,534 1,009 8,381 9,390
Less: allowance for impairment - (975) (975) - (1,101) (1,101)
Net 730 5,829 6,559 1,009 7,280 8,289
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1.8. Concentration of risks of financial assets with credit risk exposure

Industry sectors

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

The following table breaks down the main credit exposures at their carrying amounts, as categorized by the industry sectors of our

counterparties.
o
o
g B g5 2 x
£ 2 25 o > E
Group £ < - € 53 g g 3
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s g £ E s 3z sz & £ . i
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At 31 December 2024:
Cash equivalents 267,305 - - - - - 48,294 - - - - 315,599
Loans and advances to banks 3,121 = = = = = = = = = 3,121
Loans and advances to customers: 142,308 173,943 253,294 459,133 147,226 91,894 37,968 41,377 62,398 1,431,482 276,677 3,117,700
Loans and advances to financial
institutions AR B ) B ) B B ) B B B AR
Loans to individuals (Retail): - - - - - - - - - 1,431,482 - 1,431,482
Consumer loans - - - - - - - - - - 305,329 - 305,329
Mortgages - - - - - - - - - - 915,760 - 915,760
Other - - - - - - - - - - 210,393 - 210,393
Loans to business customers: 122,021 173,943 253,294 459,133 147,226 91,894 37,968 41,377 62,398 - 276,677 1,665,931
Large corporates - - 1,692 123,779 - 19,162 - - 7,815 49,255 - 14,953 216,656
SME - 122,021 172,251 129,515 454,850 128,064 91,894 - 33,562 5,180 - 258,268 1,395,605
Central and local authorities,
administrative bodies and other - . B ) RS ) B Sl ) 758 B SEe ST
Finance lease receivables: 1,075 33,628 11,640 12,097 18,597 9,931 60,066 3,300 - 43,125 123,438 316,897
Individuals - - - - - - - - - - 43,125 - 43,125
Business customers - 1,075 33,628 11,640 12,097 18,597 9,931 60,066 3,300 - - 123,438 273,772
Securities in the trading book: 174,911 - - 1,507 - - 23,059 - - - 35,633 235,110
Debt securities - 7,939 - - 1,504 - - 23,059 - - - 24,115 56,617
Equity securities - 166,972 - - 3 - - - - - - 11,519 178,493
Derivative financial instruments 183 - - - - - - - - - 910 1,093
Investment securities at fair value: 7,677 527 = = = = 24,327 = = = 11,337 43,868
Equity securities - 2,396 - - - - - - - - - 478 2,874
Debt securities - 5,281 527 - - - - 24,327 - - - 10,859 40,994
nvestment securities atamortized) 19 247 - 8,585 - - - 695,622 - 1,202 - 11281 726,937
Debt securities - 10,247 - 8,585 = > = 695,622 > 1,202 = 11,281 726,937
Other financial assets 5,721 21 41 303 18 7 16 1 - 1,126 7,258
Credit risk exposures relating to off i
balance sheet items are as follows: B
Financial guarantees - 10,371 11,705 5,896 1,499 12,311 600 298 1,396 - 217 43,692 87,985
Letters of credit - - - 135 - - - - - - - - 135
Loan °°mm"me“‘fe?;‘i;"l'i“;gmc{izg'f 20216 38432 34,672 63469 47,240 7,979 160 8,741 1605 97,539 73435 393488
Total at 31 December 2024 647,370 258,256 314,263 538,008 225,392 110,408 889,801 54,830 65,206 1,572,363 573,294 5,249,191
At 31 December 2023:
Cash equivalents 608,675 - - - - - 71,135 - - - - 679,810
Loans and advances to banks 3,013 - - - - - - - - - - 3,013
Loans and advances to customers: 95,193 153,594 174,864 448,785 132,011 90,111 55,825 48,989 29,527 1,041,239 374,966 2,645,104
Loans and advances to financial
institutions AR B ) B ) B B ) B B B A5
Loans to individuals (Retail): - 14 - 55,928 1,852 369 - - - 1,041,239 158,801 1,258,203
Consumer loans - - - - - - - - - - 260,902 12 260,914
Mortgages - - 14 - - 25 - - - - 772,076 6,816 778,931
Other - - - - 55,928 1,827 369 - - - 8,261 151,973 218,358
Loans to business customers: 68,780 153,580 174,864 392,857 130,159 89,742 55,825 48,989 29,527 - 216,165 1,360,488
Large corporates - - - 58,945 2,018 7,825 - - 8,641 17,024 - 13,616 108,069
SME - 68,780 153,576 115,919 386,106 122,334 89,742 - 40,348 6,301 - 200,733 1,183,839
Central and local authorities,
administrative bodies and other - ) 4 ) RS ) B SR ) G B S ST
Finance lease receivables: 1,232 25,171 11,380 15,204 15,510 13,510 - 58,740 3,474 33,281 109,031 286,533
Individuals - - - - - - - - - - 33,281 - 33,281
Business customers - 1,232 25,171 11,380 15,204 15,510 13,510 - 58,740 3,474 - 109,031 253,252
Securities in the trading book: 132,717 204 24 12,125 403 - 9,604 32 - - 52,568 207,677
Debt securities - 3,492 204 - 12,120 403 - 9,604 - - - 39,938 65,761
Equity securities - 129,225 - 24 5 - - - 32 - - 12,630 141,916
Derivative financial instruments - - - - - - - - - - 251 251
Investment securities at fair value: 7,597 522 - 1,927 - - 53,949 - - - 10,505 74,500
Equity securities - 2,588 - - - - - - - - - 172 2,760
Debt securities - 5,009 522 - 1,927 - - 53,949 - - - 10,333 71,740
nvestment securities atamortized| 59 451 199 23,769 - - - 663211 - 3,211 - 31,386 751,227
Debt securities i 29,451 199 23,769 = > = 663,211 > 3,211 = 31,386 751,227
Other financial assets 3,732 116 47 271 20 6 16 1 42 3,096 7,351
Credit risk exposures relating to off i ~
balance sheet items are as follows:
Financial guarantees - 12,542 10,582 10,849 1,154 10,759 592 352 1,193 - 141 11,052 59,216
Letters of credit - - - 538 - - - - - - - - 538
Loan commitments and amer credit 25464 41871 82600 77,162 50,727 7575 2392 11,933 3493 21,442 157,368 482,027
Total at 31 December2023) 919,616 232,259 304,071 556,628 209,430 111,792 856,474 120,903 39,706 1,096,145 750,223 5,197,247

50



Y P
$1AULIY :, BANKAS

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 DECEMBER 2024

(All amounts are in EUR thousand, unless otherwise stated)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)
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At 31 December 2024:
Cash equivalents 258,887 - - - - 48,294 - - - 307,181
Loans and advances to banks 3,121 - - - - - - - - - 3,121
Loans and advances to customers: 433,125 173,943 253,294 459,133 147,226 91,894 37,968 41,377 62,398 1,127,971 276,678 3,105,007
Loans and advances to financial 311,104 } R } } R R } B : B 311,104
institutions
Loans to individuals (Retail): - - - - - - - - - 1,127,971 - 1,127,971
Consumer loans - - - - - - - - - - 1,818 - 1,818
Mortgages - - - - - - - - - - 915,760 - 915,760
Other - = = = = = = = = = 210,393 = 210,393
Loans to business customers: 122,021 173,943 253,294 459,133 147,226 91,894 37,968 41,377 62,398 - 276,678 1,665,932
Large corporates - - 1,692 123,779 - 19,162 - - 7,815 49,255 - 14,954 216,657
SME - 122,021 172,251 129,515 454,850 128,064 91,894 - 33,562 5,180 - 258,268 1,395,605
Central and local authorities,
administrative bodies and other - ) ) B s ) B iIE ) T ) e ST
Finance lease receivables: 1,075 33,628 11,640 12,097 18,597 9,931 60,066 3,300 - 43,125 123,438 316,897
Individuals - = = = = = = = = = 43,125 = 43,125
Business customers - 1,075 33,628 11,640 12,097 18,597 9,931 60,066 3,300 - - 123,438 273,772
Securities in the trading book: 7,959 - - 1,507 - - - - - - 4,077 13,543
Debt securities - 7,939 - - 1,504 - - - - - - 4,078 13,521
Equity securities - 19 - - 3 - - - - - - - 22
Derivative financial instruments 183 - - - - - - - - - 910 1,093
Investment securities at fair value: 7,677 527 - - - - 24,327 - - - 11,089 43,620
Equity securities - 2,396 - - - - - - - - - 230 2,626
Debt securities - 5,281 527 = = = = 24,327 = = = 10,859 40,994
nvestment securities at amortized 9,028 - 8,585 - - - 690,083 - 1,002 - 8166 716,864
debt securities - 9,028 - 8,585 - - - 690,083 - 1,002 - 8,166 716,864
Other financial assets 5,022 21 41 303 18 7 16 - 1,126 6,559
Credit risk exposures relating to off i
balance sheet items are as follows:
Financial guarantees - 10,371 11,705 5,896 1,499 12,311 600 298 1,396 - 217 43,692 87,985
Letters of credit - = = 135 = = = = = = = = 135
Loan commitments and arher credit 37,844 38432 34,672 63469 47,240 7,979 160 8,741 1605 97,540 66,029 403711
Total at 31 December 2024: 778,527 258,256 314,263 538,008 225,392 110,408 861,203 54,830 65,006 1,268,853 530,970 5,005,716
At 31 December 2023:
Cash equivalents 600,255 - - - - - 71,135 - - - - 671,390
Loans and advances to banks 3,013 - - - - - - - - - - 3,013
Loans and advances to customers: 342,746 153,594 174,864 448,785 132,011 90,111 55,825 48,989 29,527 782,065 374,965 2,633,482
Loans and advances to financial
oS 273,966 - - - - - - - - - - 273,966
Loans to individuals (Retail): - 14 - 55,928 1,852 369 - - - 782,065 158,800 999,028
Consumer loans - - - - - - - - - - 1,728 11 1,739
Mortgages - - 14 - - 25 - - - - 772,076 6,816 778,931
Other - - - = 55,928 1,827 369 = - = 8,261 151,973 218,358
Loans to business customers: 68,780 153,580 174,864 392,857 130,159 89,742 55,825 48,989 29,527 - 216,165 1,360,488
Large corporates - - - 58,945 2,018 7,825 - - 8,641 17,024 - 13,616 108,069
SME - 68,780 153,576 115,919 386,106 122,334 89,742 - 40,348 6,301 - 200,733 1,183,839
Cloite) ] (BEs) EHiEmiEs, - 4 - 4733 - - 55825 : 6,202 - 1816 68,580
administrative bodies and other -
Finance lease receivables: 1,232 25,171 11,380 15,204 15,510 13,510 - 58,740 3,474 33,281 108,949 286,451
Individuals - - - = - - = = - = 33,281 = 33,281
Business customers - 1,232 25,171 11,380 15,204 15,510 13,510 - 58,740 3,474 - 108,949 253,170
Securities in the trading book: 3,593 - 24 12,125 151 - 2,637 32 - - 1,840 20,402
Debt securities - 3,492 - - 12,120 151 - 2,637 - - - 1,840 20,240
Equity securities - 101 - 24 5 - - - 32 - - - 162
Derivative financial instruments - - - - - - - - - - 241 241
Investment securities at fair value: 7,597 522 - 1,927 - - 53,949 - - - 10,387 74,382
Equity securities - 2,588 - - - - - - - - - 54 2,642
Debt securities - 5,009 522 = 1,927 - = 53,949 - = = 10,333 71,740
nvestment securities atamortized| - 5q 639 - 23769 - - - 657,445 - 3,004 - 27012 739,869
debt securities - 28,639 - 23,769 - - = 657,445 - 3,004 = 27,012 739,869
Other financial assets 5,022 27 43 271 20 4 6 16 1 42 2,837 8,289
Credit risk exposures relating to off i
balance sheet items are as follows:
Financial guarantees - 12,582 10,582 10,849 1,154 10,759 592 352 1,193 - 141 11,052 59,256
Letters of credit - - - 538 - - - - - - - - 538
Loan commitments and aimer credit 41,103 41,871 82,600 77,162 50,727 7,575 2392 11,933 3493 21442 149,357 489,655
Total at 31 December 2023:| 1,045,782 231,767 304,067 556,628 209,178 111,792 843,741 120,903 39,499 836,971 686,640 4,986,968

As at 31 December 2024 and 31 December 2023 the Group and the Bank were compliant with the internal limits.

51



$IAULIY =; BANKAS NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 DECEMBER 2024

(Al amounts are in EUR thousand, unless otherwise stated)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

Concentration exposure

As at 31 December 2024, the largest single exposure comprising loans to several related borrowers treated as a single borrower
amounted to EUR 62,5 million, i.e. 11.3% o f t h e Ban Kiér§ capital (2@28: EUR 68 milionor13.2% of t he Bankés
Tier 1 capital).

2. MARKET RISK

The Group takes on exposure to market risk, which means the risk for the Group to incur losses due to the adverse fluctuations in the
market parameters such as currency exchange rates (foreign currency risk), interest rates (interest rate risk) or securities prices
(securities risk). Securities and interest rate risks are the most significant market risks for the Group while other market risks are of lower
significance.

2.1. Foreign exchange risk

The management of the currency exchange risk is regulated by th
the principles allowing the Group to reduce the incurred foreign currency fluctuation risk to minimum. The Group is not engaged in any
speculative transactions through which it could expect to earn profit from the open currency positions after changes in currency rate. The

limits are imposed by the Risk Management Committee and subject to review on demand.

The Group and the Bank monitors the foreign currency risk by calculating open currency position. Open currency position (OCP) is equal

to assets in the balance sheet and off-balance sheet less balance sheet and off-balance sheet liabilities in a single currency. There are

two types of OCP, i.e. long and short. Long position meansthat Gr oup6s assets exceed liabilities
means that liabilities exceed assets. The Group also calculates Overall net open position (ONOP), which is the higher of the total short

or total long positions. As at 31 December 2024t he Gr oup6s ONOP t 40%c2028:i0644d) ,r athieo Baa&k 668. ON
ratio was 0.03% (2023: 0.03%).
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Open positions

The Groupds open positions fliowsprevailing currencies were as
USD Other Total EUR Total
currencies currencies

At 31 December 2024:

Assets
Cash and cash equivalents 6,742 5,928 12,670 382,466 395,136
Due from other banks - - - 235,110 235,110
Securities in the trading book - - - 3,121 3,121
Derivative financial instruments - - - 1,093 1,093
Loans granted to customers, finance lease receivables - - - 3,434,597 3,434,597
Investment securities at fair value 3,780 229 4,009 39,859 43,868
Investment securities at amortized cost - - - 726,937 726,937
Investments in subsidiaries - - - 270 270
Intangible assets - - - 43,617 43,617
Property, plant and equipment and investment property - - - 15,261 15,261
Other assets 102 9 111 23,498 23,609
Total assets 10,624 6,166 16,790 4,905,829 4,922,619

Liabilities and s
Due to other banks and financial institutions 6,915 10 6,925 58,935 65,860
Derivative financial instruments - - - 123 123
Due to customers 65,963 11,598 77,561 3,460,411 3,537,972
Debt securities in issue - - - 448,159 448,159
Special and lending funds - - - 23,037 23,037
Liabilities related to insurance activities - - - 198,432 198,432
Other liabilities 4,037 85 4,122 59,742 63,864
Sharehol dg - - - 585,172 585,172
Total liabilities al 76,915 11,693 88,608 4,834,011 4,922,619
Net balance sheet position (66,291) (5,527) (71,818) 71,818 -
Open currency exchange transactions 67,783 6,929 74,712 (75,305) (593)
Net open position 1,492 1,402 2,894 (3,487) (593)

At 31 December 2023:

Assets
Cash and cash equivalents 16,452 9,121 25,573 725,926 751,499
Due from other banks 2,453 221 2,674 205,003 207,677
Securities in the trading book 95 95 2,918 3,013
Derivative financial instruments - - - 251 251
Loans granted to customers, finance lease receivables - - - 2,931,637 2,931,637
Investment securities at fair value 328 328 74,172 74,500
Investment securities at amortized cost - - - 751,227 751,227
Investments in subsidiaries - - - 100 100
Intangible assets - - - 45,138 45,138
Property, plant and equipment and investment property - - - 16,774 16,774
Other assets 3 9 12 27,493 27,505
Total assets 19,331 9,351 28,682 4,780,639 4,809,321

Liabilities and s
Due to other banks and financial institutions 8,690 6 8,696 561,298 569,994
Derivative financial instruments - - - 1,041 1,041
Due to customers 74,072 15,950 90,022 3,072,635 3,162,657
Debt securities in issue - - - 276,480 276,480
Special and lending funds - - - 15,718 15,718
Liabilities related to insurance activities - - - 179,318 179,318
Other liabilities 1,959 103 2,062 58,923 60,985
Sharehol dg - - - 543,128 543,128
Tot al l'iabilities al 84,721 16,059 100,780 4,708,541 4,809,321
Net balance sheet position (65,390) (6,708) (72,098) 72,098 -
Open currency exchange transactions 67,783 6,929 74,712 (75,305) (593)
Net open position 2,393 221 2,614 (3,207) (593)
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T he Ba n kgositions pf@ravailing currencies were as follows:

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31 DECEMBER 2024

(All amounts are in EUR thousand, unless otherwise stated)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

USD Other Total EUR Total
currencies currencies
At 31 December 2024:
Assets
Cash and cash equivalents 6,671 5,921 12,592 373,773 386,365
Due from other banks - - - 13,543 13,543
Securities in the trading book - - - 3,121 3,121
Derivative financial instruments - - - 1,093 1,093
Loans granted to customers, finance lease receivables - - - 3,421,904 3,421,904
Investment securities at fair value 236 236 43,384 43,620
Investment securities at amortized cost - - - 716,864 716,864
Investments in subsidiaries - - - 84,069 84,069
Intangible assets - - - 7,859 7,859
Property, plant and equipment and investment property - - - 14,689 14,689
Other assets 102 9 111 17,819 17,930
Total assets 7,009 5,930 12,939 4,698,118 4,711,057
Liabilities and s
Due to other banks and financial institutions 6,915 10 6,925 61,562 68,487
Derivative financial instruments - - - 123 123
Due to customers 65,963 11,598 77,561 3,465,730 3,543,291
Debt securities in issue - - - 448,159 448,159
Special and lending funds - - - 23,037 23,037
Other liabilities 2,545 85 2,630 38,326 40,956
Sharehol dg - - - 587,004 587,004
Totall i abilities and ¢ 75,423 11,693 87,116 4,623,941 4,711,057
Net balance sheet position (68,414) (5,763) (74,177) 74,177 -
Open currency exchange transactions 67,783 6,929 74,712 (75,305) (593)
Net open position (631) 1,166 535 (1,128) (593)
At 31 December 2023:
Assets
Cash and cash equivalents 16,413 9,117 25,530 717,439 742,969
Due from other banks - - - 20,402 20,402
Securities in the trading book 95 - 95 2,918 3,013
Derivative financial instruments - - - 241 241
Loans granted to customers, finance lease receivables - - - 2,919,933 2,919,933
Investment securities at fair value 328 328 74,054 74,382
Investment securities at amortized cost - - - 739,869 739,869
Investments in subsidiaries) - - - 76,672 76,672
Intangible assets - - - 8,149 8,149
Property, plant and equipment and investment property - - - 14,702 14,702
Other assets 3 9 12 22,766 22,778
Total assets 16,839 9,126 25,965 4,597,145 4,623,110
Liabilities and s
Due to other banks and financial institutions 8,690 6 8,696 567,620 576,316
Derivative financial instruments - - - 1,041 1,041
Due to customers 74,072 15,950 90,022 3,076,886 3,166,908
Debt securities in issue - - - 276,480 276,480
Special and lending funds - - - 15,718 15,718
Other liabilities 1,959 103 2,062 40,144 42,206
Sharehol dg¢ - - - 544,441 544,441
Tot al l'iabilities al 84,721 16,059 100,780 4,522,330 4,623,110
Net balance sheet position (67,882) (6,933) (74,815) 74,815 -
Open currency exchange transactions 67,783 6,929 74,712 (75,305) (593)
Net open position (99) 4) (103) (490) (593)

54



$IAULIY =; BANKAS NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 DECEMBER 2024

(Al amounts are in EUR thousand, unless otherwise stated)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

The Bank has also granted loans in foreign currency. Although they are usually financed in the same currency, depending on the main
currency of the debtordéds cash flows, the strengthening efdébter
ability to repay the loans, which increases the probability of future losses from loans.

2.2. Interest rate risk in the banking book

An interest rate risk is a risk to incur losses because of the mismatch ofre-eval uati on possibility betwee
assets and liabilities.

Cash flow interest rate risk is the risk that the future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market
interest rates. Fair value interest rate risk is the risk that the value of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market
interest rates. The Bank and the Group takes on exposure to the effects of fluctuations in the prevailing levels of market interest rates on
both its fair value and cash flow risks.

The risk management is regulated by the Procedures for Interest Rate Risk Management, which were updated in 2023. Bank uses a
system of internal risk limits and indicators, which establish methods of risk measurement and set up measures for risk management.
These procedures are approved by the Board of the Bank and define that:

1 the Bank observes the principle to avoid the speculation with future interest rates;

1 theriskis evaluated using a system of internal key risk indicator;

1 Risk Department provides the information on regular basis to Risk Management Committee about compliance with internal
risk limits.

. Sensitivity of interest rate risk

The table below summarizesGr oup6s i nterest rates sensitive assets and | iabil
interest rate risk is estimated.

Uptol Fromlto From3to From6to Morethan

month 3 months 6 months 12 months 1 year Total

Group| Overnight

31 December 2024
Total cashflow from interest rate sensitive assets 38,129 749,395 1,624,143 1,443,998 269,796 1,037,627 5,163,088
Total cashflow from interest rate sensitive liabilities 1,077,544 164,179 294,067 613,427 613,817 1,386,223 4,149,257

Net interest sensitivity gap at 31 December 2024| (1,039,415) 585,216 1,330,076 830,571 (344,021) (348,596) -

31 December 2023
Total cashflow from interest rate sensitive assets 121,316 1,611,282 1,746,334 1,423,568 162,463 872,890 5,937,853
Total cashflow from interest rate sensitive liabilities 1,055,306 121,331 259,950 491,233 1,558,071 990,553 4,476,444

Net interest sensitivity gap at 31 December 2023 (933,990) 1,489,951 1,486,384 932,335 (1,395,608) (117,663) -
Assessing the sensitivity of the Group's profit and other components of equity towards the change of interest rates, it has been assumed
that interest is to change by 2 percentage point.

The table below summarizes the effect on the Group's profit and other components of equity of interest rate risk in the banking book as
at 31 December 2024 and 31 December 2023.

31 December 2024 31 December 2023)
Pre-tax Pre-tax increase Pre-tax Pre-tax increase
increase (decrease)in other Total impact on increase  (decrease) in other  Total impact on
(decrease) in components of equity (post-tax)| (decrease)in components of equity (post-tax)
profit equity profit equity
Interest rate increase by 2 p.p. 38,408 (2,415) 35,993 31,866 (3,207) 28,659
Interest rate decrease t?)ypz (38,867) 2,650 (36,217) (31,867) 3,555 (28,312)
The shift of yield curve according to above mentioned parameters creates significanti mpact on Financi al Group

income and makes EUR 35,993 thousand in 2024 (2023: EUR 28,659 thousand) higher impact and EUR 36,217 thousand in 2024 (2023:
EUR 28,312 thousand) lower impact on comprehensive income.

The table below summarizest he Banko6s interest rates sensitive assets and | ia
interest rate risk is estimated.
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Bank| Overnight Uptol Fromlto From3to From6to Morethan
month 3 months 6 months 12 months 1 year

31 December 2024

Total cashflow from interest rate sensitive assets 38,091 737,290 1,600,832 1,411,361 213,726 817,713 4,819,013

Total cashflow from interest rate sensitive liabilities 1,077,551 164,181 293,940 613,902 613,902 1,386,233 4,149,709

Total

Net interest sensitivity gap at 31 December 2024| (1,039,460) 573,109 1,306,892 797,459 (400,176) (568,520) -

31 December 2023
Total cashflow from interest rate sensitive assets 121,282 1,601,042 1,726,659 1,396,374 116,178 690,087 5,651,622
Total cashflow from interest rate sensitive liabilities 1,055,306 121,618 260,066 490,961 1,558,047 990,552 4,476,550

Net interest sensitivity gap at 31 December 2023 (934,024) 1,479,424 1,466,593 905,413 (1,441,869) (300,465) -
Assessing the sensitivity of the Bank's profit and other components of equity towards the change of interest rates, it has been assumed
that interest is to change by 2 percentage point.

The table below summarizes the effect on the Bank's profit and other components of equity of interest rate risk in the banking book as at
31 December 2024 and 31 December 2023.

31 December 2024 31 December 2023)
Pre-tax Pre-tax increase Pre-tax Pre-tax increase
increase (decrease)in other Total impact on increase  (decrease) in other  Total impact on
(decrease) in components of equity (post-tax)| (decrease)in components of equity (post-tax)
profit equity profit equity
Interest rate increase by 2 p.p. 38,250 (2,360) 35,890 31,826 (3,207) 28,619
Interest rate decrease t?)ypZ (38,914) 2,592 (36,322) (31,826) 3555 (28,271)

The shift of yield curve according to above mentioned paomeadter
makes EUR 35,890 thousand in 2024 (2023: EUR 28,619 thousand) higher impact and EUR 36,322 thousand in 2024 (2023: EUR 28,271
thousand) lower impact on comprehensive income.

2.3. Securities risk

Securities risk is the risk to incur losses from the investment in securities.

The management of the securities risk is regulated by the Investment in Securities Limits Procedure. In order to properly manage the
debt securities portfolio risk, the Bank uses an internal limit system that combines maturity/rating limits, geographical region limits imposed
on total debt securities portfolio, VaR ratio limits imposed on debt securities at amortized cost portfolio, and VaR and capital requirements
amount limits imposed on other debt securities portfolios. For the equity portfolio risk management, a limit system that combines decision
taking limits, issuer limits, portfolio limits is used. The compliance with limits must be checked before taking the investment decisions,
monthly reports on the compliance with the limits set are submittedtot he Banko6s Ri sk Management Commi

Securities concentrations
Sector concentration of the securities portfolio is disclosed in Financial Risk Management disclosure, section 1.8. Maturities concentration
of securities portfolio is disclosed in Financial Risk Management disclosure, section 3.2. Credit quality of the securities portfolio is

disclosed in Notes 12 and Note 15. Geographical concentration of the debt securities portfolio is presented in tables below, which contain
Top 20 countries in which the Group and the Bank have exposures:
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Top 20 countries in which the Group has debt security exposures:

2024 2023

Name of the country Public Corporate Total[Name of the country Public Corporate Total
1.|Lithuania 654,785 24,264 679,049|Lithuania 609,795 30,916 640,711
2.|Netherlands - 6 453 6 453|Latvia 96,572 9,507 106,079
3.|Germany - 2077 2 077|Netherlands - 16,340 16,340
4.|USA - 5422 5 422|Poland 11,119 4,593 15,712
5.[Latvia 70 486 9 873 80 359|Germany 702 14,043 14,745
6.|Great Britain - 5574 5 574|France 496 13,903 14,399
7.|Estonia 478 677 1 155|{USA - 11,395 11,395
8.|France - 5678 5 678|Great Britain 211 9,890 10,101
9.|ltaly - 1189 1 189|Romania 6,034 2,813 8,847
10.|Poland 1910 3233 5 143|Czech Republic 211 6,429 6,640
11.|Romania 5 345 1461 6 806|Ireland - 5,251 5,251
12.|Sweden - - -|ltaly 2,050 3,198 5,248
13.|Ireland - 201 201|Luxembourg - 5,246 5,246
14.|Spain 505 442 947|Slovenia 3,252 1,481 4,733
15.|Czech Republic 209 4979 5 188|Sweden 2,067 1,012 3,079
16.|Luxembourg - 2 250 2 250|Estonia - 3,019 3,019
17.|Finland - 205 205(Finland 496 2,218 2,714
18.|Mexico 2025 - 2 025(Peru 2,160 - 2,160
19.|Slovenia 3123 - 3 123|Mexico 1,686 - 1,686
20.|Peru 2107 - 2 107|Spain 987 462 1,449
Other countries 3783 3963 7 746|Other countries 6,251 3,044 9,295
Total 744 756 77 941 822 697|Total 744,089 144,760 888,849
Top 20 countries in which the Bank has debt security exposures:

2024 2023

Name of the country Public Corporate Total[Name of the country Public Corporate Total
1.|Lithuania 636,140 22,686 658,826|Lithuania 595,133 25,764 620,897
2.|Netherlands - 4,967 4,967|Latvia 96,572 9,507 106,079
3.|Germany - 1,002 1,002 |Netherlands - 15,936 15,936
4.|USA - 5,013 5,013|Germany - 13,631 13,631
5.|Latvia 70,486 9,759 80,245|France - 13,081 13,081
6.|Great Britain - 4,941 4,941 {USA - 10,766 10,766
7.|Estonia - 472 472|Poland 9,261 - 9,261
8.|France - 5,065 5,065|Great Britain - 8,648 8,648
9.|ltaly - 1,189 1,189|Italy 2,050 3,198 5,248
10.|Poland - - -|Sweden - 5,050 5,050
11.|Romania 2,049 - 2,049|Luxembourg - 4,996 4,996
12.|Ireland - - -|Slovenia 3,191 - 3,191
13.|Sweden - - -|Romania 3,089 - 3,089
14.|Spain 505 - 505(Ireland 2,067 1,012 3,079
15.|Czech Republic - 2,090 2,090|Czech Republic - 2,163 2,163
16.|Luxembourg - 2,000 2,000|Peru 2,160 - 2,160
17.|Finland - - -|Finland - 2,012 2,012
18.|Austria - - -|Austria - 1,014 1,014
19.|Slovenia 3,123 - 3,123|Estonia - 692 692
20.|Peru 2,107 - 2,107|Spain 507 - 507
Other countries - 434 434|Other countries - 349 349
Total 714,410 59,618 774,028|Total 714,030 117,819 831,849
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The sensitivity of debt securities portfolio (at fair value through profit or loss i i.e. trading book is included in profit and at fair value through
other comprehensive income is included in other components of equity) to parallel shift of the interest rate curve by 2 percentage point

is presented in the table below:

31 December 2024 31 December 2023
Pre-tax Pre-tax increase Pre-tax Pre-tax increase
increase (decrease)in other Total impact on increase  (decrease) in other  Total impact on
(decrease) in components of equity (post-tax)| (decrease)in components of equity (post-tax)
profit equity profit equity
Group:
Interest rate increase by 2 p.p. (206) (2,415) (2,621) (283) (3,207) (3,490)
Interest rate decrease t;)ypz 203 2,650 3.848 293 3555 3.848
Bank:
Interest rate increase by 2 p.p. (206) (2,360) (2,566) (283) (3,207) (3,490)
Interest rate decrease t?)ypZ 203 2,592 2795 293 3555 3.848

3. LIQUIDITY RISK

Liquidity risk means the risk that the Bank is unable to meet its financial obligations in time or that it will not manage to receive financial
resources during a short time by borrowing or selling the assets.

3.1. Liquidity risk management process

The liquidity risk management depends on the Bankds abil iliqugdityt o
of the market itself. The Bank seeks not to depend on the ability to borrow in the market in case of liquidity problems and constructs its
liquidity strategy based on hypothetical scenario it does not have access to market funding. Due to that fact the Bank possesses a
significant debt securities portfolio, which is highly liquid and can be used either as collateral for borrowing by repos, or sold.

Liquidity risk management is regulated by the Procedur es yfriskis Li
evaluated by analyzing the dynamics of various liquidity ratios. A list of these ratios as well as recommended limits to their change are

defined inthe above-me nt i oned procedures. Decisions regarding |liquidity ma
Committeewi t h reference to the information submitted by the Bankos

information submitted by the Risk Management Committee. Current liquidity (up to 7 days) risk management is based on short-term cash
flow analysis and projections. The Market and Treasury Department is responsible for this.

The Group controls short-term and long-term liquidity risk through established ratios and limits.

Starting from 2015, the Bank is subject to regulatory Liquidity coverage ratio (LCR). The Bank complied with this ratio with a substantial
cushion (requirement for the LCR is set at 100%).

Internal liquidity limit system was updated in 2019. It includes normative, prospective, quality and concentration ratios.
3.2. Structure of assets and liabilities by maturity

The structure of the Groupbs assets and | iabilities byableraepresenti ty
maturities of assets and liabilities under most likely scenario, which is contractual maturities scenario adjusted for expectations. For
liabilities and assets with no payment breaches, contractual terms are used as the representation of most likely scenario unless
information indicating otherwise is available.

Past due part of the assets with payment breaches over 30 days and total amount of assets past due over 90 days are included in
AMaturity undefinedo band.
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At 31 December 2023:
Assets

Cash and cash equivalents 395,136 - - - - - - - 395,136

Due from other banks - 179 - 2,520 332 90 - - 3,121

Securities in the trading book - 5,193 1,164 2,130 8,503 15,200 24,427 178,493 235,110

Derivative financial instruments - 726 353 14 - - - - 1,093

Loans to customers, finance lease - 98,735 143,190 131,888 262,744 1,021,645 1,757,317 19,078 3,434,597
receivables

Investment securities at fair value - 144 615 76 1,530 14,808 23,950 2,745 43,868

Investment securities at amortized - 2,064 7,293 22,748 151,159 540,013 3,660 - 726,937
cost

Investments in subsidiaries - - - - - - - 270 270

Intangible assets - - - - - - - 43,617 43,617

Property, plant and equipment and - - - - - - - 15,261 15,261
investment property

Other assets 154 8,961 605 831 1,028 3,586 7 8,367 23,609

Total assets 395,290 116,002 153,220 160,207 425,296 1,595,342 1,809,431 267,831 4,922,619

Due to other banks and financial 27,918 7,500 2,726 11,676 774 2,014 13,252 - 65,860
institutions

Due to customers| 1,651,322 150,560 285,762 568,401 611,010 252,712 18,205 - 3,637,972

Special and lending funds 23,037 23,037

Debt securities in issue - (125) (251) (376) (738) (359) 450,008 - 448,159

Liabilities related to insurance 4,091 233 469 1,763 11,321 180,555 198,432
activities

Other liabilities 35,520 14,023 650 1,776 6,559 3,312 2,147 63,987

Sharehol dg - - - - - - - 585,172 585,172

Tot al l'iabilitie| 1,737,797 176,049 289,120 581,946 619,368 269,000 664,167 585,172 4,922,619
equity

Net liquidity gap|(1,342,507)  (60,047) (135,900) (421,739) (194,072) 1,326,342 1,145,264 (317,341) -

At 31 December 2022:

Assets
Cash and cash equivalents 751,499 - - - - - - - 751,499
Due from other banks - 393 2,520 4 5 90 1 - 3,013
Securities in the trading book - 577 1,733 13,771 1,201 13,433 35,046 141,916 207,677
Derivative financial instruments - 169 21 61 - - - - 251
Loans to customers, f'”ég‘;f\/f;: - 77529 125566 124,389 258,024 821,828 1,512,652 11,649 2,931,637
Investment securities at fair value - 133 17 19,712 13,513 13,448 25,035 2,642 74,500
Investment securities at amo”fjg - 62,396 13280 174,341 69,116 418,739 13,346 - 751,227
Investments in subsidiaries - - - - - - - 100 100
Intangible assets - - - - - - - 45,138 45,138
Property, plant_and equipment and ) ) ) } ) ) ) 16,774 16,774
investment property
Other assets 275 8,412 413 535 5,228 796 91 11,755 27,505

Total assets 751,774 149,609 143,559 332,813 347,087 1,268,334 1,586,171 229,974 4,809,321

Due to other banks and financial

institutions 31,783 7,869 8,783 14,599 492,553 3,097 11,310 - 569,994

Due to customers| 1,614,638 100,138 213,600 430,322 558,535 222,810 22,614 - 3,162,657

Special and lending funds 15,718 - - - - - - - 15,718

Debt securities in issue - - - - 203,617 - 72,863 - 276,480

Liabilities related to insurance 92,322 ) ) : 1,050 2366 83,580 ) 179,318
activities

Other liabilities 29,079 11,664 934 7,248 5,882 5171 2,048 - 62,026

Sharehol dg{ - - - - - - - 543,128 543,128

Jobal U0 akil: ;qiuney 1,783,540 119,671 223317 452,169 17261,637 233,444 102415 543128 4,809,321

Net liquidity gap|(1,031,766) 29,938  (79,758) (119,356) (914,550) 1,034,890 1,393,756 (313,154) -
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The Structure of the Bank's assets and liabilities by maturity was as follows:
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At 31 December 2024:
Assets
Cash and cash equivalents 386,365 - - - - - - - 386,365
Due from other banks - 179 - 2,520 332 90 - - 3,121
Securities in the trading book - 677 1,078 1,966 7,181 2,619 - 22 13,543
Derivative financial instruments - 726 353 14 - - - - 1,093
Loans to customers, finance lease - 89,808 414,469 106,240 218,560 908,373 1,676,938 7,516 3,421,904
receivables
Investment securities at fair value - 15 615 76 1,530 14,808 23,950 2,626 43,620
Investment securities at amortized - 2,063 7,074 22,687 150,373 533,643 1,024 - 716,864
cost
Investments in subsidiaries - - - - - - - 84,069 84,069
Intangible assets - - - - - - - 7,859 7,859
Property, plant and equipment and - - - - - - - 14,689 14,689
investment property
Other assets 154 8,106 605 829 938 204 7 7,017 17,930
Total assets 386,519 101,574 424,194 134,332 378,914 1,459,737 1,701,989 123,798 4,711,057
Due to other banks and financial 30,545 7,500 2,726 11,676 774 2,014 13,252 - 68,487
institutions
Due to customers| 1,651,441 150,560 285,762 573,601 611,010 252,712 18,205 - 3,543,291
Special and lending funds 23,037 - - - - - - - 23,037
Debt securities in issue - (125) (251) (376) (738) (359) 450,008 - 448,159
Other liabilities 31,087 1,211 588 1,322 1,917 3,062 1,892 - 41,079
Sharehol dg¢g - - - - - - - 587,004 587,004
Tot al l'iabilitie| 1,736,110 159,146 288,825 586,223 612,963 257,429 483,357 587,004 4,711,057
equity
Net liquidity gap|(1,349,591) (57,572) 135,369 (451,891) (234,049) 1,202,308 1,218,632 (463,206) -
At 31 December 2023:
Assets
Cash and cash equivalents 742,969 - - - - - - - 742,969
Due from other banks - 393 2,520 4 5 90 1 - 3,013
Securities in the trading book - 255 10 13,455 751 5,768 163 20,402
Derivative financial instruments - 169 21 51 241
Loans to customers, f'”rzgcefvf;: - 69,465 351,975 102,330 225087 727,726 1,442,278 1,072 2,919,933
Investment securities at fair value - 15 17 19,712 13,513 13,448 25,035 2,642 74,382
Investment securities at amortize - 62391 13270 173872 69,096 416212 5028 739,869
Investments in subsidiaries) - - - - - - - 76,672 76,672
Intangible assets - - - - - - - 8,149 8,149
Property, plant_and equipment and ) ) ) } ) ) ) 14,702 14,702
investment property
Other assets 275 9,190 398 526 5,227 268 90 6,804 22,778

Total assets 743,244 141,878 368,211 309,950 313,679 1,163,512 1,472,432 110,204 4,623,110

Due to other banks and financial

institutions| | 38105 7,869 8,783 14,599 492,553 3,097 11,310 . 576,316

Due to customers| 1,614,638 100,138 214,100 434,073 558,535 222,810 22,614 - 3,166,908

Special and lending funds 15,718 - - - - - - - 15,718

Debt securities in issue - - - - 203,617 - 72,863 - 276,480

Other liabilities| 28,797 886 795 7,165 1,155 2,693 1,756 - 43,247

Sharehol d¢d - - - - - - - 544,441 544,441

Total lawll éq'uitey 1,697,258 108,893 223,678 455837 1255860 228,600 108,543 544,441 4,623,110

Net liquidity gap| (954,014) 32,985 144,533 (145,887) (942,181) 934,912 1,363,889 (434,237) =
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Undiscounted cash flows in the table below describe contractual liability side outflows which are stated including nominal contract
amounts together with interest till the end of the contract.

Group
Maturity
31 December 2024 undefined Up to 1 month 1-3 months  3-12 months 1-5years  Over 5 years Total
Liabilities
Due to banks - 33,362 2,850 12,594 2,063 - 50,869
Due to customers - 1,826,442 285,777 1,209,543 277,652 4,698 3,604,112
Debt securities in issue - 2,329 4,449 20,686 477,934 87,528 592,926
Special and lending funds - 23,037 - - - - 23,037
Liabilities related to insurance - 4,091 233 2,232 22,434 169,442 198,432
activities
Total liabilities (contractual - 1,889,261 293,309 1,245,055 780,083 261,668 4,469,376
maturity dates)
Group
Maturity
31 December 2023 undefined Up to 1 month 1-3months  3-12 months 1-5years Over 5years Total
Liabilities
Due to banks - 34,792 5,981 524,368 3,316 811 569,268
Due to customers - 1,715,713 215,814 1,010,423 254,513 3,961 3,200,424
Debt securities in issue - 186 360 217,741 26,420 95,256 339,963
Special and lending funds - 15,718 - - - - 15,718
Liabilities related to insurance ) 92,331 ) 1,050 8,887 77,059 179,327
activities
Uotiel Jellliles (oo mee - 1,858,740 222,155 1,753,582 293,136 177,087 4,304,700
maturity dates)
Bank
Maturity
31 December 2024 undefined Up to 1 month 1-3months  3-12 months 1-5years  Over 5 years Total
Liabilities
Due to banks - 35,989 2,850 12,594 2,063 - 53,496
Due to customers - 1,826,576 289,497 1,211,044 277,652 4,698 3,609,467
Debt securities in issue - 2,329 4,449 20,686 477,934 87,528 592,926
Special and lending funds - 23,037 - - - - 23,037
Total liabilities (contractual - 1,887,931 296,796 1,244,324 757,649 92,226 4,278,926
maturity dates)
Bank
Maturity
31 December 2023 undefined Up to 1 month 1-3months  3-12 months 1-5years Over 5years Total
Liabilities
Due to banks - 41,114 5,981 524,368 3,316 811 575,590
Due to customers - 1,715,713 216,314 1,014,174 254,513 3,961 3,204,675
Debt securities in issue - 186 360 217,741 26,420 95,256 339,963
Special and lending funds - 15,718 - - - - 15,718
Total liabilities (contractual - 4772731 222,655 1,756,283 284,249 100,028 4,135,946

maturity dates)
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

3.4. Remaining contractual maturity off - balance sheet items

Analysis of off-balance sheet items by the remaining maturity is as follows:

Group
At 31 December 2024 Up to one From 1to 3 From3to6 From6to 12 From 1 Over 5 Total
month months months months to 5 years years
Loan commitments 393,325 - - - - - 393,325
Guarantees 87,985 - - - - - 87,985
Other commitments ,223 75 - - - - ,298
Total 481,533 75 - - - - 481,608
Group
At 31 December 2023 Up to one From 1to 3 From3to6 From 6to 12 From 1 Over 5 Total
month months months months to 5 years years
Loan commitments 476,294 - - - - - 476,294
Guarantees 59,216 - - - - - 59,216
Other commitments 2,235 1,020 2,458 335 223 - 6,271
Total 537,745 1,020 2,458 335 223 - 541,781
Bank
Up to one From 1to 3 From3to6 From 6to 12 From 1 Over 5
At 31 December 2024 month months months months to 5 years years Total
Loan commitments 403,548 - - - - - 403,548
Guarantees 87,985 - - - - - 87,985
Other commitments 223 75 - - - - 298
Total 491,756 75 - - - - 491,831
Bank
At 31 December 2023 Up to one From 1to 3 From3to6 From6to 12 From 1 Over 5 Total
month months months months to 5 years years
Loan commitments 483,922 - - - - - 483,922
Guarantees 59,256 - - - - - 59,256
Other commitments 2,235 1,020 2,458 335 223 - 6,271
Total 545,413 1,020 2,458 335 223 - 549,449
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4. FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

4.1. Financial assets and liabilities not measured at fair value

The table below summarizes the carrying amounts and fair values of those financial assets and liabilities not presented onthe Bank 6
and Groupb6s balance sheets at their fair value. The valuation m

a) Loans and advances to banks
The carrying amount of floating rate placements and overnight deposits is a reasonable approximation of fair value.

The fair value of fixed interest bearing deposits is estimated using valuation technique attributable to Level 3 in the fair value hierarchy,
based on discounted cash flows using prevailing money-market interest rates for debts with similar credit risk and remaining maturity.

b) Loans and advances to customers and finance lease receivables

Loans and advances and finance lease receivables are net of charges for impairment. The fair value of loans and advances to customers
and finance lease receivables is estimated using valuation technique attributable to Level 3 in the fair value hierarchy. The estimated fair
value of loans, advances and finance lease receivables represents the discounted amount of estimated future cash flows expected to be
received. Expected cash flows are discounted at current market rates (average interest rates on outstanding loans published by the Bank
of Lithuania) to determine fair value.

¢) Investment securities

The fair value for held-to-collect assets is based on market prices or broker/dealer price quotations i i.e. it is estimated using valuation
technique attributable to Level 1 in the fair value hierarchy.

d) Deposits from banks, due to customers, debt securities in issue and special lending funds

The estimated fair value of deposits with no stated maturity, which includes non-interest bearing deposits, is the amount repayable on
demand.

The fair value of fixed interest-bearing deposits, debt securities in issue and special and lending funds not quoted in an active market is
estimated using valuation technique attributable to Level 3 in the fair value hierarchy based on discounted cash flows using interest rates
for new debts with similar remaining maturity. I nt er est posestses
discount rates.

e) Other financial assets and other financial liabilities

The fair value of lease liabilities is estimated using valuation technique attributable to Level 3 in the fair value hierarchy based on
discounted cash flows using interest rates for new leases with similar remaining maturity. The estimated fair value of other financial
assets and liabilities is similar to the carrying value due to short maturities of these assets and liabilities.
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Group
As of 31 December 2024 As of 31 December 2023
iy Fair value ST Fair value
amount amount
Assets
Due from other banks 3,121 3,121 3,013 3,013
Loans 3,117,700 3,091,524 2,645,104 2,680,780
Loans to individuals: 1,431,482 1,437,497 1,258,203 1,284,883
Consumer loans - 305,329 319,420 260,914 272,531
Mortgages - 915,760 906,702 778,931 790,663
Other - 210,393 211,375 218,358 221,689
Loans to business customers 1,665,931 1,636,621 1,360,488 1,371,906
Central and other authorities - 53,670 51,174 68,580 66,991
Large corporates - 216,656 211,156 108,069 107,434
SME - 1,395,605 1,374,292 1,183,839 1,197,481
Loans and advances to financial institutions 20,287 17,405 26,413 23,991
Finance lease receivables 316,897 348,540 286,533 326,840
Investment securities at amortized cost 726,937 712,961 751,227 712,594
Government bonds - 695,622 686 774 663,211 633,163
Corporate bonds - 31,315 26 187 88,016 79,431
Other financial assets 7,258 7,258 7,351 7,351
Liabilities
Due to other banks and financial institutions 65,860 65,353 569,994 557,412
Due to customers 3,537,972 3,547,785 3,162,657 3,161,733
Due to individuals 2,187,936 2,196,105 1,912,137 1,910,526
Due to private companies 1,067,440 1,068,879 965,352 966,058
Due to other enterprises 282,596 282,801 285,168 285,149
Debt securities in issue 448,159 450,008 276,480 263,810
Special and lending funds 23,037 23,037 15,718 15,718
Other financial liabilities 46,426 47,228 40,017 40,317
Bank

As of 31 December 2024

As of 31 December 2023

Assets
Due from other banks
Loans
Loans to individuals:
Consumer loans -
Mortgages -
Other -
Loans to business customers
Central and other authorities -
Large corporates -
SME -
Loans and advances to financial institutions
Finance lease receivables
Investment securities at amortized cost
Government bonds -
Corporate bonds -
Other financial assets
Liabilities
Due to other banks and financial institutions
Due to customers
Due to individuals
Due to private companies
Other
Debt securities in issue
Special and lending funds
Other financial liabilities

Carrying
amount

3,121
3,105,007
1,127,971
1,818
915,760
210,393
1,665,932
53,670
216,657
1,395,605
311,104
316,897
716,864
690,083
26,781

6,559

68,487
3,543,291
2,187,936
1,072,759
282,596
448,159
23,037

39,245

Fair value

3,121
3,066,230
1,119,880
1,803
906,702
211,375
1,636,621
51,174
211,156
1,374,292
309,728
348,539
713,387
687 045
26 342

6,559

67,980
3,553,104
2,196,105
1,074,198
282,801
450,008
23,037

40,039

Carrying
amount

3,013
2,633,482
999,028
1,739
778,931
218,358
1,360,488
68,580
108,069
1,183,839
273,966
286,451
739,869
657,445
82,424
8,289

576,316
3,166,908
1,912,137

969,103

285,668

276,480

15,718
34,359

Fair value

3,013
2,658,814
1,014,079
1,727
790,663
221,689
1,371,906
66,991
107,434
1,197,481
272,829
326,754
713,437
633,642
79,795

8,289

563,734
3,165,984
1,910,526

969,809

285,649

263,810

15,718
34,687
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4.2. Financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value
a) Fair value hierarchy

The table below analyzes financial instruments carried at fair value, by a hierarchy of valuation techniques based on whether the inputs
to those valuation techniques are observable or unobservable. Observable inputs reflect market data obtained from independent sources;
unobservable inputs reflect the Gr oup Quitshaveanedied the falleving faipvalue bieraschy: T h e

1 Level 171 quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities. This level includes listed equity
securities and debt instruments on exchanges (for example, NASDAQ Stock Exchange, London Stock Exchange, Frankfurt
Stock Exchange) or public price quotations (for example, for Lithuanian government bonds, average price quotations from the
most active banks that participate in the primary placement auctions of the Lithuanian Government securities are used).

1 Level 217 inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly
(that is, as prices) or indirectly (that is, derived from prices). The Group uses fair value calculated based on Level 2 inputs for
accounting of currency derivatives and derivatives related to prices of equity instruments.

1 Level 31 inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs). This level

includes Groupds investments into unlisted equity seauritie
contracts and liabilities designated at fair value through profit or loss. Details on fair value measurement of these instruments
are described in subsection fiDetails on the main models use

Management disclosure, section 4.2.b), below.

b) Measurement of financial assets and liabilities according to the fair value hierarchy

2024 2023
Group Bank Group Bank
LEVEL |
Financial assets in the trading book
Listed equity securities 1,858 22 2,748 162
Units of investment funds 163,435 - 87,049 -
Government bonds 10,789 - 26,306 2,637
Corporate bonds 17,758 149 24,215 2,615
Investment securities at fair value
Government bonds - - 53,949 53,949
Corporate bonds 10,255 10,255 16,105 16,105
Investment fund units - - - -
Total Level | financial assets 204,095 10,426 210,372 75,468
LEVEL Il
Financial assets in the trading book
Derivative financial instruments 1,093 1,093 251 241
Corporate bonds 5,271 5,271
Investment securities at fair value
Government bonds 36,597 24,327
Corporate bonds 9,084 6,657
Investment fund units 1,169 -
Total Level Il financial assets 53,213 37,348 251 241
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
Derivative financial instruments 123 123 1,041 1,041
Total Level Il financial liabilities 123 123 1,041 1,041
LEVEL Il
Financial assets in the trading book
Corporate bonds 8,101 8,101 15,240 14,988
Units of investment funds 12,032 - 51,862 -
Unlisted equity securities - - 257 -
Investment securities at fair value
Corporate bonds - - 1,927 1,927
Unlisted equity securities 541 293 501 383
Investment fund units 2,088 2,088 2,018 2,018
Securitization related financial assets (see Notes 13, 16)
Unlisted equity securities 270 270 100 100
Loans granted 6,137 6,137 3,208 3,208
Total Level lll financial assets 29,169 16,889 75,113 22,624
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Following a review of asset valuation models and available information on the value of assets, reclassifications of the Bank's financial
assets took place during 2024, with EUR 33 694 thousand reclassified from level 1 to level 2 and EUR 2 561 thousand reclassified from
level 3 to level 2. Correspondingly, in the Group, EUR 48 391 thousand was reclassified from level 1 to level 2 and EUR 39 559 thousand
was reclassified from level 3 to level 1 (EUR 38 430 thousand) and to level 2 (EUR 1 169 thousand).

The following table presents the changes in Level Il instruments during 2024 and 2023:

The Group
Financial assets in the trading book Investment securities at fair value
. . . Corporate Unlisted|Investment fund
Corporate bonds| Investment fund units | Unlisted equities bonds equities units
2024 2023 2024 2023 2024 2023| 2024  2023| 2024 2023| 2024 2023
Value as of 1 January| 15,240 19,126 51,862 27,191 257 18| 1,927 1,935 501 243| 2,018 4,425
Additions / Recognition| 16,770 18,313 1,412 2,290 - 278 - - - - - -
Disposals| (20,223)  (19,416) (807) (22) (257) (48)| (1,927) -l (90) - - (2,058)
Obtained during business
acquisition transaction - - - 35,835 - - - - - - - -
(see Note 16)
Reclassification| (2,561) (983)| (39,599) (13,585) - - - - - - - -
Derecognition|  (1,111) - - - - - - - - - - -
Changes due to interest (165) 309 ) ) ) ) ) 56 ) ) ) )
accrued/paid
Revaluations through
profit o loss 151 (2,109) (836) 153 - 9 - (64) 130 258 70  (349)
Valueas of 31| g1 15240| 12082 51862 - 257 - 1927| 541 501 2088 2018
December
The Bank
Financial assets in the trading book Investment securities at fair value
Corporate bonds| Unlisted equities Corporate bonds Unlisted equities InvestmentJlrJ]?tg
2024 2023 2024 2023 2024 2023 2024 2023 2024 2023
Value as of 1 January 14,988 17,888 - 18 1,927 1,935 383 243 2,018 4,425
Additions / Recognition 16,770 18,313 - 21 - - - - - -
Disposals (29,973) (19,416) - (48) (2,927) - (90) - - (2,058)
Conversion to shares - - - - - - - - - -
Reclassification (2,561) - - - - - - - - -
Derecognition (1,112) - - - - - - - -
Changes due to interest
accrued/paid (158) 301 ) ) . 56 ) ) ) )
Revaluations through profll(tjssr 146 (2,098) ) 9 : (64) ) 140 (70) (349)
Value as of 31 December 8,101 14,988 - - - 1,927 293 383 2,088 2,018
2024 2023
Group Bank Group Bank
Total result from revaluation of Level Ill instruments included in the income statement 1,768 301 (2,102) (2,362)
from trading securities (corporate bonds) 146 146 (2,109) (2,098)
from investment securities at fair value (corporate bonds) (64) (64) (64) (64)
from trading securities (unlisted equities) 9 9 9 9
from investment securities at fair value (unlisted equities) 258 140 258 140
from trading securities (investment fund units) 1,349 - 153
from investment securities at fair value (investment fund units) 70 70 (349) (349)

Details on the main models used in valuation of Level lll instruments:

Unlisted debt securities. Most commonly used fair value measures in the Group are assessment of discounted cash flows from the
security carried out by employees of the Group.

Unlisted equity securities. Most commonly used fair value measures in the Group are valuations from external independent certified
appraisers or assessment of discounted cash flows from the security carried out by employees of the Group.
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Investments funds that are not publicly traded and/or whose net asset value or unit value is not determined daily are valued based on
the most recently determined net asset value or the last published/submitted unit value. This value may be adjusted to reflect changes,
such as significant events, capital calls, distributions of liabilities, income distributions, or other relevant factors. The Group's valuation is
based on information provided by asset managers regarding net asset value or unit price.

| 2024 2023
Unobservable Input Estimate Range  Estimate Range
Unlisted debt securities
Probability of Default (PD) 0.57 6% 057 8%
Discount Rate 47 14 % 51 15%
Unlisted equity securities
Discount Rate (WACC) 81 15% 81 16 %
Investments funds
Fund-reported NAV Investment based Investment based

4.3. Offsetting financial assets and financial liabilities

As of 31 December 2024 and 31 December 2023, only currency derivative instruments were subject to master netting arrangements and
similar arrangements. As of 31 December 2024, derivative financial instruments classified as assets in amount of EUR 123 thousand
and derivative financial instruments classified as liabilities in amount of EUR 1,093 thousand were subject to those agreements. As of 31
December 2023, derivative financial instruments classified as assets in amount of EUR 251 thousand and derivative financial instruments
classified as liabilities in amount of EUR 1,041 thousand were subject to those agreements.

The Group receives collateral in the form of marketable securities in respect of reverse repurchase agreements, which are included in
loans to customers. Gross amount of reverse repurchase agreements: 31 December 2024: EUR 30,189 thousand; 31 December 2023:
EUR 2,920 thousand. Securities received as a collateral for reverse repurchase agreements can be pledged or sold during the term of
transaction but have to be returned on maturity of the transaction. The Group did not pledge or sell any collateral received for reverse
repurchase agreements during 2024 and 2023.
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4.4, Classes of financial instruments

A table below provides reconciliation of items of financial assets and liabilities as presented in Statement of Financial Position to classes
of financial instruments:

31 December 2024 31 December 2023
Group Bank Group Bank

FINANCIAL ASSETS
Financial assets mandatorily measured at fair value through profit or loss: 245,214 23,399 213,896 26,493
Trading securities 76,517 13,543 63,190 20,402
trading debt securities: government bonds - 23,059 - 24,839 2,637
trading debt securities: corporate bonds - 33,558 13,521 38,189 17,603
trading equities - 19,900 22 162 162
Other trading book securities 158,593 - 144,487 -
other trading book debt securities: government bonds - - - 2,733 -
Investment funds - 149 863 - 138 790 -
other trading book equities - 8 730 - 2 964 =
Investment securities at fair value 2,874 2,626 2,760 2,642
non-trading equities - 2,874 2,626 2,760 2,642
Derivative financial instruments 1,093 1,093 251 241
Investment securities at fair value 6,137 6,137 3,208 3,208
loans granted - 6,137 6,137 3,208 3,208
Financial assets measured at fair value through other comprehensive income: 40,994 40,994 71,740 71,740
Debt securities at fair value through other comprehensive income 40,994 40,994 71,740 71,740
government bonds - 24,327 24,327 53,949 53,949
corporate bonds - 16,667 16,667 17,791 17,791
Financial assets measured at amortized cost: 4,244,015 4,211,779 4,154,986 4,124,414
Cash and cash equivalents 395,136 386,365 751,499 742,969
Due from other banks 3,121 3,121 3,013 3,013
Loans to customers 3,111,563 3,098,870 2,641,896 2,630,274
loans to financial institutions - 14,150 304,967 23,205 270,758
loans to individuals (retail): consumer loans - 305,329 1,818 260,914 1,739
loans to individuals (retail): mortgages - 915,760 915,760 778,931 778,931
loans to individuals (retail): other - 210,393 210,393 218,358 218,358
loans to business customers: SME - 1,395,605 1,395,605 1,183,839 1,183,839
loans to business customers: large corporates - 216,656 216,657 108,069 108,069
loans to business customers: central and local authorities and other - 53,670 53,670 68,580 68,580
Investment securities at amortized cost 726,937 716,864 751,227 739,869
government bonds - 695,622 690,083 663,211 657,445
corporate bonds - 31,315 26,781 88,016 82,424
Other financial assets 7,258 6,559 7,351 8,289
Finance lease receivables: 316,897 316,897 286,533 286,451
Finance lease receivables 316,897 316,897 286,533 286,451
individuals - 43,125 43,125 33,281 33,281
business customers - 273,772 273,772 253,252 253,170
TOTAL FINANCIAL ASSETS 4,847,120 4,593,069 4,727,155 4,509,098

FINANCIAL LIABILITIES
Financial liabilities mandatorily measured at fair value through profit or loss: 123 123 1,041 1,041
Derivative financial instruments 123 123 1,041 1,041
Financial liabilities measured at authorized cost: 4,121,454 4,122,219 4,064,866 4,069,781
Due to banks and financial institutions 65,860 68,487 569,994 576,316
Due to customers 3,537,972 3,543,291 3,162,657 3,166,908
due to individuals - 2,187,936 2,187,936 1,912,137 1,912,137
due to private companies - 1,067,440 1,072,759 965,352 969,103
other - 282,596 282,596 285,168 285,668
Special and lending funds 23,037 23,037 15,718 15,718
Debt securities in issue 448,159 448,159 276,480 276,480
Other financial liabilities 46,426 39,245 40,017 34,359
TOTAL FINANCIAL LIABILITIES 4,121,577 4,122,342 4,065,907 4,070,822
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5. THE RISK INHERENT IN INSURANCE ACTIVITIES

The Banko6s GB UABSB Draudimag (hereinafter - the Company) is engaged in life insurance business.
Insurance risk

An insurance risk is a loss risk, or a risk associated with adverse changes in the value of insurance obligations, which are caused by
improper pricing and provisioning assumptions. Based on the insurance contract, the Company assumes the protection of a person's
financial interests for the insurance premium in the event of insured events, therefore, there is a risk of incurring losses due to improper
assessment of the assumed insurance risk, calculated insurance premiums, which may not be sufficient to cover the actual insurance
benefits and expenses, in case of insurance risk assumed by the Company.

The Company assumes the risks of mortality, morbidity, survival, mortality and injuries due to accidents, termination, expenses,
catastrophes.

The risks of mortality, morbidity, injuries are due to optimistic assumptions about future mortality, morbidity, and frequency of injuries,
used in the calculations of insurance premiums, which would lead to the fact that future insurance premiums will be insufficient to cover
future benefits in case of death, illness, injury. The increase in the risk of mortality, morbidity can be influenced by epidemics (AIDS,
SARS), pandemics, lifestyle changes - a change in the habits of eating, smoking, moving. The risk of survival is due to longer life
expectancy than planned. This increase is due to the development of medical science, the improvement of the health care system, the
growing standard of living. The increase in the risk of injury can be influenced by non-compliance with occupational safety in workplaces,
the use of outdated technologies, increasing accident rates.

The Company manages the assumed insurance risks by assessing the state of health of the insured person, life habits, history of the
state of family health. The company has a multi-level risk assessment system, depending on the size of the risks assumed. This system
ensures that the insurance premium paid by the policyholder corresponds to the insured person's health.

Concentration of risk is measured by the insurance amount of the accepted risks:

Risk | 2024 2024 (%) 2023 2023 (%)
Death 545,553 0.27 545,586 0.27
Critical illness 368,154 0.17 341,672 0.17
Death due to accident 286,798 0.14 299,249 0.15
Trauma 880,049 0.42 822,483 0.41
Total 2,080,554 100 2,008,990 100

The Company manages these risks through its underwriting strategy and reinsurance arrangements.

The underwriting strategy is intended to ensure that the risks underwritten are well diversified in terms of type of risk and the level of
insured benefits.

The Company follows the principles of conservatism and prudence to settle the price for insurance risk therefore the increase in loss rate
of any insurance risk would not impact the result of the Group significantly.

Insurance risk sensitivity analysis

Sensitivity analysis is carried out by changing the corresponding assumption with the indicated value, leaving the sizes of other variables
unchanged. The reinsurance effect on the performed sensitivity analysis is immaterial.

The Company's sensitivity to changes in variables that have a significant impact on December 31, 2024:

Change Contractual
In thousand EUR Change in variables service margin Change in Profit or loss Change in Equity
Mortality rates +10% (1,395) (827) 827
Mortality rates -10% 1,324 756 (756)
Disability/Morbidity +10% (1,714) (689) 689
Disability/Morbidity -10% 1,717 690 (690)
Lapse rates +10% (4,286) (530) 530
Lapse rates -10% 5,416 727 (727)
Expenses +10% (2,751) (1,303) 1,303
Expenses -10% 2,781 1,272 1,272)

69



$IAULIY =; BANKAS NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 DECEMBER 2024

(Al amounts are in EUR thousand, unless otherwise stated)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

The Company's sensitivity to changes in variables that have a significant impact on 31 December 2023:

Change Contractual
In thousand EUR Change in variables service margin Change in Profit or loss Change in Equity
Mortality rates +10% (1,961) (162) 162
Mortality rates -10% 1,849 160 (160)
Disability/Morbidity +10% (1,830) (207) 207
Disability/Morbidity -10% 1,831 207 (207)
Lapse rates +10% (2,723) (59) 59
Lapse rates -10% 3,085 60 (60)
Expenses +10% (3,120) (695) 695
Expenses -10% 3,130 684 (684)

6. OPERATIONAL RISK

Operational risk is the risk of experiencing losses due to improper or unimplemented internal control processes, employee errors and/or
illegal actions, disruptions in information system operations, or the influence of external events. Operational risk, unlike other types of
risks (credit, market, liquidity), is not intentionally assumed with the expectation of gaining benefits; it arises naturally in the course of
the Bank's activities.

In 2024, the Bank focused on strengthening the operational and reputational risk culture across the entire Bank Group. At the
beginning of the year, the operational risk management e-learning modules were updated for all Group companies.

A significant emphasis was also placed on improving the management processes for outsourced services. These processes were
extended to all Group companies, and the process was updated in accordance with the requirements for ICT services set out in the
Digital Operational Resilience Act (DORA) for the financial sector.

Business continuity management remains one of the Bank's key areas. In 2024, a Comprehensive business continuity test was
successfully conducted, and no significant shortcomings in ensuring business continuity were identified.

To enhance resilience and ensure operational stability, the Bank will continue to improve and comprehensively ensure business
continuity, management of critical outsourced services, and the strengthening of operational and reputational risk culture across the
entire Group in the coming year.

7. ICT RISK

Information and communication technology (ICT) risk means any reasonably identifiable circumstance in relation to the use of network
and information systems which, if materialized, may compromise the security of the network and information systems, of any
technology dependent tool or process, of operations and processes, or of the provision of services by producing adverse effects in the
digital or physical environment.

Mai n goal of Bankosi tb&@Jessprobahility of passblp bssesnbalance risk and investments to ICT risk

management, to detect and manage weak points early, ensure effectiveness of ICT risk management measures (in line with appetite of

I CT risk of Bankés group and | egal requirements) and permanent
Bankds group. I CT risk management goal is accomplished by emplo
implementation of ICT risk management functions, processes and management measures, monitoring system of ICT risk management
indicators and set limits, also ICT risk identification, monitoring and risk management internal control. Risk management and control

system is permanently improved according to best practices of the world and experience gained while implementing and exercising
monitoring of this system.

Digital technologies not only increase efficiency of operational processes and improve experience of users of financial services but also
contribute to increase in ICT risk therefore the Bank reacting to changes in digital environment and trends improves and develops
processand systems continuously ensuring Bankés digital resilience
organizational and technical ICT and information security including cyber security risk management measures (preventive, detective

and corrective) installation and reinforcement. Effectiveness of these measures is regularly reviewed by organizing tests of operational
continuity of critical systems, cyber resilience tests, performing other reviews, looking for high availability, safety and continuous
improvement of data handled and systems used.

ICT risks arise from vulnerabilities in networks and systems that can affect the security and stability of operations. The Group continuously
strengthens its cyber resilience, invests in preventive and corrective security measures, carries out regular testing and assesses the
robustness of systems. The Digital Operational Resilience Act (DORA) strategy implemented in 2024 continued to improve the availability
of systems, the continuous monitoring of the operational and security status of systems and the response to security threats.
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8. COMPLIANCE RISK

Compliance Riski ther i sk t hat the Bankés activities or inaction may fail
applicable legal acts, and/or the guidelines and positions of the Bank of Lithuania and/or other supervisory authorities, as well as internal
regulations and conduct standards. Such non-compliance may result in enforcement measures, financial losses, or reputational and
credibility damage to the Bank. The Bank ensures compliance oversight and aims to prevent legal violations that could harm the interests

of the Bank and its clients, damage the Bankds reputati bonotherr e s
losses for the Bank.

The scope of compliance functions within the Bank is determined based on the scale of operations, the complexity of activities, the nature
of transactions conducted, and their associated risk levels. The compliance function conducts an annual compliance risk assessment
usingarisk-based approach and informs the Bankds management about i de

In 2024, the compliance function continued to play an active role in the areas of anti-money laundering (AML) and counter-terrorist
financing (CTF), sanctions screening, data protection, financial markets regulation, anti-corruption, and market abuse prevention, among
others. Particular focus was placed on strengthening the compliance control function and implementing a training program to ensure
adherence to compliance requirements across various areas.

Within the structure of the Legal, Compliance, and Prevention Division, the compliance function is divided into two departments: the
Compliance Department and the Anti-Money Laundering Compliance Department. The Compliance Department performs second-line
(compliance assurance) functions in the areas of general regulatory compliance and investment services compliance. The Anti-Money
Laundering Compliance Department performs second-line (compliance assurance) functions in the areas of AML/CTF and the
implementation of international sanctions areas.

Compliance risk arises if the Group's activities do not comply with legal or regulatory requirements. To mitigate this risk, the Group carries
out ongoing supervision, assessments and training of its employees, and ensures the prevention of money laundering and terrorist
financing and compliance with international sanctions.

9. MODEL RISK

The Bank defines model risk as the risk to incur a financial loss or to make incorrect business decisions, publish false reporting

disclosures because of the usage of models. Model risk management is regulated by model risk policy which is regularly reviewed and
enhanced. Model risk is managed within the Bank using risk-based approach - the Bank maintains a model inventory and performs
assessment of model 6s i mportance based on which independeaft val
model risk is defined in risk appetite statement. Use of unsatisfactory models is not tolerated in the Bank, timely remediation of

identified deficiencies is ensured.

Model risk can lead to incorrect decisions or financial losses due to inappropriate application of models. The Group systematically
assesses the robustness of its models using risk-based methodologies and independent verification procedures.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

10. ESG RISK

ESG (Environmental, social and governance) risks are the risks of any negative financial impact on the Bank stemming from the current
or prospective impacts of ESG factors on its counterparties or invested assets. The Environmental risk is further mainly defined as
Climate-related and environmental risk, consisting of physical and transition risk:

A Physical risk, which is the risks of any negative fiiweanpact afl i
the physical effects of environmental factors on its counterparties or invested assets.

A Transition risk, which is the risks of any negati ve ctivdimpacsofi al
the transition to an environmentally sustainable economy on its counterparties or invested assets. Detailed information on ESG risk and
its management in the Group is provided in Sustainability Report.

11. STRESS TESTS

The Group develops test scenarios and assesses the solvency position under the identified stress scenarios, taking into account possible
internal and external environmental changes, historical data, market forecasts and other relevant criteria. The results of the testing shalll
be analyzed, documented and used for risk and strategy review as well as business plan development.

Stress testing is an integral part of the Bank's Internal Capital Adequacy Assessment Process (ICAAP), covering risks identified as
material. It assesses whether the Group's capital would be sufficient to absorb potential losses in the event of a deterioration in its financial
condition. In accordance with supervisory requirements, all risks are tested once a year.

The Group also employs the Own Risk and Solvency Assessment (ORSA) process as part of its risk management system. This process
determines the projected solvency position of the Company, as well as the amount of own funds required to ensure that overall solvency
needs are met throughout the planning period. It takes into account the nature, scale, and complexity of the risks inherent to the business.

The ORSA process begins with business planning. Based on the
performance, and projected asset and insurance liability volumes, a forward-looking solvency capital assessment is conducted.
Additionally, adverse scenario testing is performed, considering potential internal and external environmental changes, historical data,
market forecasts, and other relevant factors for the Company, to evaluate solvency under predefined stress test.

Ad hoc stress tests for separate risks are performed in case there is a need to understand the possible impacts of underlying factors.

12. CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

The capital of the Bank and its subsidiaries in the prudential scope of calculation (Financial Group, please see Note 31) is calculated and
allocated for the risk coverage following the Capital requirements regulation and directive i CRR/ CRD | V. dbjectivesBrdenk 6 s
managing own funds are as follows:

1 to comply with the own funds requirements set by the European Parliament and the Council of the European Union as well as
the internal target capital requirements;

T to safeguard the Bankdés and the Financi al Groupbs ability t
shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders;

T to support the development of the Groupbs business with the

Information regarding capital adequacy is submitted to the supervising authority quarterly in accordance with the CRR/CRD IV
requirements.

During the years ended 31 December 2024 and 31 December 2023, the Bank and the Financial Group complied with capital requirements
to which it was subject.

According to Solvency |1l directive Bankds subsidiary SB [Rhigherdi m
than Solvency Capital Requirement and Minimum Capital Requirement, which enables the company to cover potential losses and
reasonably assure policyholders that payables will be paid out. Solvency Il ratio is being calculated and reported quarterly to supervisory
authority, the Bank of Lithuania. During the years ended 31 December 2024 and 31 December 2023, Company complied with the
Solvency Il ratio requirements to which it was subject.

Capital requirement applicable also to UAB "SB Assets Management" has been approved by the Bank of Lithuania. According to this
requirement, the capital ratio cannot be lower than 1.4.
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12. CAPITAL MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

Other companies comprising the Group are not subject to supervisory requirements on a company level. General principles stipulated in

the Republic of Lithuania Law on Limited Liability Companies apply i i.e. share capital of the company cannot be less than EUR 2.5
thousand, it the companyds shareholdersé equity becomes lompany t h
has to remediate the situation over the prescribed period of time.

During the years ended 31 December 2024 and 31 December 2023, the Group and the Bank complied with prudential requirements to
which it was subject.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS

Impairment losses on loans and finance lease receivables. The Bank and the Group review their loan and finance lease portfolios to
assess impairment at least on a quarterly basis. In determining the impairment loss amount, the Group makes multiple judgements and
estimates, including forward looking assumptions. When making expected credit loss estimate, the Bank and the Group analyze financial
information received from a client and clientds perfor mancragit i n
rating of the client; usage of low credit risk exemption for the loans that have 'standard' internal ratings; the recoverability ratio applied;
di scounted market value of pledged assets) for assessmemndtimifg cl
of future cash flows are reviewed regularly to reduce any difference between loss estimates and actual loss experience. However due to
inherent limitations of the methodology, the calculated impairment loss as at 31 December 2024 may be inadequate to reflect the losses

of the loan portfolio. Please see section 1.3.b of Financial risk management disclosure for the impairment loss sensitivity analysis.

Impairment losses on investments in subsidiaries. The Bank tests investments in its subsidiaries for impairment when impairment
indicators are identified. The Bank establishes recoverable amount of investments in subsidiary companies based on discounted future
estimated net cash flows to be earned by a subsidiary. Future net cash flows to be earned by funds management and real estate
development subsidiaries are based on estimated inflow from management and sales of financial and other assets held by these
subsidiaries less estimated cash outflow related to management and development costs. Future net cash flows from subsidiary involved
in leasing operations are estimated based on future expected interest income to be earned on lease portfolio less cash outflows related
to financing activities and administration costs. Discount rates are based on current cost of capital used for investments in these
subsidiaries. The Groupdés management applies judgemamenttesting. est i m

Impairment of goodwill. Goodwill is tested for impairment annually. In order to determine if the value of goodwill has been impaired, the
cash-generating unit to which goodwill has been allocated is valued using present value techniques, which are further described in Note
17.The Groupb6s management applies judgement in estimating cash f
these judgements and estimates can significantly affect the assessed value of goodwill. An increase of 2% in the discount rate used for
impairment testing in 2023 and 2024, assuming all other factors remain constant, would not result in any additional impairment of
goodwill..

Liabilities related to insurance activities. The value of liabilities related to insurance activities is determined by making assumptions and
estimates that have impact on the reported amounts. These estimates and assumptions are regularly reviewed and based on historic
experience and other factors, including expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. Please
see section 5. of Financial risk management disclosure for the liabilities related to insurance activities sensitivity analysis.

Fair value measurements for Level 3 assets or liabilities. Measurement of the fair value of assets or liabilities assigned to Level 3 requires
usage of inputs that are not based on observable mar ket datim (1
choosing appropriate methodology, estimating cash flows, discount rates and other parameters used in such valuations. Please see
section 4. of Financial risk management disclosure for the fair value approaches used.

Taxes. The tax authorities may at any time inspect the books and records within 5 years subsequent to the reported tax year and may
impose additional tax assessments and penalties. The Bank's management is not aware of any circumstances which may give rise to a
potential material liability in this respect. The deferred tax assets recognized at 31 December 2024 have been based on future profitability
assumptions of the Bank over a five-year horizon. In the event of changes to these profitability assumptions, the tax assets recognized
may be adjusted.

Non-consolidated entities. In 2024, the Bank established a subsidiary, UAB "SB modernizavimo fondas 2" in which it holds a 100% share.

The operating principles of this entity do not significantly differ from those of UAB " SB modernizavimo fondas" a subsidiary established

by the Bank in 2022, where the Bank also holds a 100% share. Both of these Group entities (hereinafter i the Funds) are not consolidated

in the Group consolidated Financial Statements. The Bank©&és management has determined t he
Funds' activities under the Cooperation Agreement concluded between the Bank and the European Investment Bank (hereinafter i EIB),

as well as agreements with investors investing in the Funds' activities, the Bank does not receive variable returns in its capacity as a
shareholder of the Funds. The Bank acts as an agent for the EIB and other investors rather than as a principal in the operations of the
Funds, and therefore, it is not required to consolidate these subsidiaries. Further information on activities related to the Funds and
transactions with UAB " SB modernizavimo fondas" and UAB "SB modernizavimo fondas 2" is provided in Notes 13, 16, and 30.
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Business combinations. During year 2023 Group companies have acquired two separate business units (see Note 16). Both business
units were acquired during single transaction. Group management has applied judgement in defining if business units acquired meet
definition of business as described in IFRS 3 also if from Group perspective separate business units acquisition should be accounted as
one transaction. Significant inputs and assumptions were applied to perform purchase price allocation and calculate fair value of net
assets acquired during business combination. Changes in these judgements and estimates can significantly affect amounts accounted
because of this business combination. Decrease of discount rate used in fair value assessment of assets and liabilities acquired through
business combination by 0.5% (other factors held constant) would decrease goodwill accounted from the business combination in 2023
by EUR 2,131 thousand.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

In relation to adjusted strategy of the Bank, business model and strategic decisions are divided into three business lines i corporate,
private and investment. Due to such reasons Groupds s e\gouseperiods
starting from 1 January 2024. Comparable segmentation information for 2023 is also provided using new form.

A summary of major indicators for the main business segments of the Group included in the Statement of financial position as at 31
December 2024 and in the Statement of comprehensive income for 2024 period then ended is presented in the table below.

2024-12-31

Segmentation by profit centers
Corporate Private Investment Total
Net interest income 90,664 54,065 15,479 160,209
Net fee and commission income 13,742 9,373 5,965 29,080
Net gain from insurance activities - 1,078 4,572 5,650
Other income 2,912 1,416 3,699 8,027
Salaries and related expenses (21,651) (20,305) (7,551) (49,507)
Other expenses (16,911) (22,842) (6,364) (46,117)
Impairment expenses (5,092) (5,926) 122 (10,896)
Profit before income tax 63,665 16,859 15,922 96,446
Income tax (17,659)
Net profit center result 78,786
Total segment assets 2,113,076 1,314,491 1,495,053 4,922,619

A summary of major indicators (restated) for the main business segments of the Group included in the Statement of financial position as
at 31 December 2023 and in the Statement of comprehensive income for 2023 period then ended is presented in the table below.

2023-12-31

Segmentation by profit centers
Corporate Private Investment Total
Net interest income 66,435 38,011 52,407 156,853
Net fee and commission income 11,799 5,105 3,348 20,251
Net gain from insurance activities - (8) (1,464) (2,472)
Other income 2,733 2,830 2,614 8,177
Salaries and related expenses (16,218) (15,680) (4,328) (36,226)
Other expenses (12,010) (19,645) (4,955) (36,610)
Impairment expenses (6,610) (8,614) 9) (15,232)
Profit before income tax 46,129 2,000 47,613 95,742
Income tax (20,367)
Net profit center result 75,375
Total segment assets 1,782,081 1,089,423 1,937,826 4,809,331
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NOTE 1
NET INTEREST INCOME

2024 2023
Group Bank Group Bank
Interest revenue calculated using the effective interest method (on financial
assets at amortized cost and fair value through other comprehensive 243,478 227,237 195,726 181,049
income):
on loans to other banks and financial institutions and plac_emer_]ts ywth 21,001 35,202 13,022 22.124
credit institutions
on loans to customers 208,163 177,861 173,748 150,290
on debt securities at amortized cost 13,933 13,793 8,265 8,080
on debt securities at fair value through other comprehensive income 381 381 691 555
Other similar income: 26,735 24,953 21,242 21,070
on debt securities at fair value through profit or loss 3,072 1,292 1,887 1,741
on loans at fair value through profit or loss - 374 374
on finance leases 22,829 22,827 18,981 18,955
other interest income 834 - -
Total interest income 270,213 252,190 216,968 202,119
Interest expense:
on financial liabilities designated at fair value through profit or loss - - - -
on financial liabilities measured at authorized cost (109,985) (110,138) (60,083) (60,172)
on other liabilities (29) (8) (32) a7
Total interest expense (110,004) (110,146) (60,115) (60,189)
Net interest income 160,209 142,044 156,853 141,930
NOTE 2
NET FEE AND COMMISSION INCOME
2024 2023
Group Bank Group Bank
Fee and commission income:
for administration of loans of third parties 7,526 7,526 5,249 5,249
for settlement services 5,144 5,146 5,428 5,443
for cash operations 4,097 4,097 4,750 4,750
for account administration 6,545 6,545 6,271 6,271
for guarantees, letters of credit, documentary collection 1,072 1,072 888 888
for collection of utility and similar payments 254 254 259 259
for services related to securities 4,896 4,947 3,978 3,980
for services related to pension and investment funds management 7,548 - 795 290
other fee and commission income 939 3,000 992 1,838
Total fee and commission income 38,021 32,587 28,610 28,968
Fee and commission expense:
for payment cards (5,435) (5,434) (5,126) (5,126)
for cash operations (632) (632) (838) (838)
for correspondent bank and payment system fees (619) (483) (583) (458)
for services of financial data vendors - - (304) (304)
for services related to securities (2,027) (1,027) (888) (938)
for services related to pension and investment funds management (65) - (49) -
other fee and commission expenses (1,163) (468) (570) (450)
Total fee and commission expense (8,941) (8,044) (8,358) (8,114)
Net fee and commission income 29,080 24,543 20,252 20,854
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2024 2023
Group Bank Group Bank
Net gain (losses) from operations with securities 13,708 551 4,471 (1,738)
Net gain from foreign exchange and related derivatives 421 404 8,574 8,567
Net gain (loss) from other derivatives 5,293 5,293 (1,097) (1,097)
Total net gain from trading activities 19,422 6,248 11,948 5,732
NET GAIN FROM OPERATIONS WITH SECURITIES
2024 2023
Group Bank Group Bank
Securities in the trading book:
Realized gain (loss) on equity securities 6,152 (67) 161 (135)
Unrealized gain (loss) on equity securities 5,170 7 5,481 16
Realized gain on debt securities 880 290 148 98
Unrealized gain (loss) on debt securities 1,026 31 (1,229) (1,628)
Dividend and other income from equity securities in the trading book 2 3 2 3
Net gain (loss) on securities in the trading book 13,230 264 4,563 (1,646)
Investment securities: -
Realized gain (loss) on investment equities at fair value through profit or loss 253 253 158 158
Unrealized gain on investment equities at fair value through profit or loss 23 23 (249) (249)
Realized gain on debt securities at fair value through other comprehensive
income ) . (13) (13)
Realized gain on debt securities at amortized cost - - - -
Dividend and other income from investment equities 202 11 12 12
Net gain on investment securities 478 287 (92) (92)
Total 13,708 551 4,471 (1,738)

Bank's internal policy allows frequent, but strictly limited in scale and infrequent but larger scale sales of debt securities at amortized cost.

NET GAIN FROM FOREIGN EXCHANGE AND RELATED DERIVATIVES

| 2024] 2023

Group Bank Group Bank

Net gain from foreign exchange 421 404 8,574 8,567

Net gain (loss) from derivatives related with foreign exchange 5,293 5,293 (2,097) (2,097)
Total 5,714 5,697 7,477 7,470
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NOTE 4
OTHER OPERATING EXPENSES

2024 2023

Group Bank el Bank

Rent of buildings and premises (411) (394) (300) (304)

Utility services for buildings and premises (1,294) (1,274) (1,292) (1,252)
Other expenses related to buildings and premises (812) (809) (781) (781)
Transportation expenses (447) (366) (391) (309)

Legal costs (117) (117) (703) (703)

Personnel and training expenses (2,047) (1,995) (1,414) (1,344)

IT and communication expenses (16,697) (14,864) (11,987) (10,983)
Marketing and charity expenses (6,434) (4,086) (5,331) (2,524)

Service organization expenses (4,761) (4,389) (4,099) (3,611)
Non-income taxes, fines (2,862) (2,220) (2,404) (1,803)

Costs incurred due to debt recovery (862) (576) (923) (675)
Other expenses (1,367) (1,312) (1,622) (1,268)

Total (38,111) (32,402) (31,247) (25,557)

NOTE 5

REVENUE AND EXPENSES RELATED TO INSURANCE ACTIVITIES

Bankds subsidiary SB

expenses from main activities of this company are presented in the tables below.

REVENUE RELATED TO INSURANCE ACTIVITIES

Dr a u dinsoranse c@ripany) & Bngggddarr like iinsuaahce business. Revenue and

2024 2023
Amounts relating to changes in LFRC Group Group
- Expected benefits incurred 3,017 1,661
- Expected expenses incurred 3,390 1,766
- Change in the risk adjustment 268 (236)
- CSM recognized 2,780 835
Recovery of acquisition cash flows 996 919
Other insurance related revenue 2,639 739
Total 13,090 5,684
EXPENSES RELATED TO INSURANCE ACTIVITIES
2024 2023
Group Bank Group Bank
Expenses related to insurance activities:

Incurred claims expenses (2472) (2,186)

Losses on onerous contracts and reversal of those losses (354) (927)

Insurance acquisition costs (435) (519)

Other expenses (3652) (1,878)
Interest accrued to insurance contracts (2762) - (1,018) -
Change in financial assumptions through P&L (10 092) - (4,972) -
Changes related to effect of discount rates applied on initial recognition 32 - 122 -
Change in financial liabilities 11 - (35) -
Commissions for investment contracts (1 023) - (1,200) -
Costs of insurance policies - - Q) -
Total (20 747) - (12,514) -
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NOTE 5

REVENUE AND EXPENSES RELATED TO INSURANCE ACTIVITIES (CONTINUED)

RESULT FROM REINSURANCE CONTRACTS HELD

2024 2023
Group Group
Amounts relating to changes in LFRC
- Expected recovery of claims and other expenses (133) (196)
- Change in the risk adjustment 2) 5)
- CSM recognized (@) 26
Allocation of reinsurer premium (142) (175)
Amounts recovered for claims and other expenses 41 95
Incurred directly attributable expenses - -
Changes that relate to past service - recoverable claims and other expenses 17 (68)
Amounts recoverable from reinsurer and incurred expenses 58 27
Total (84) (148)
INSURANCE FINANCE RESULT
2024 2023
Group Group
Interest accrued to insurance contracts (2,762) (1,018)
Change in financial assumptions through P&L (10,092) (4,972)
Effect of unlocking CSM at locked-in rates and FCF at current rates 32 122
Change in assets covering insurance contract liabilities 13,616 6,027
Insurance finance result 794 159
2024 2023
Group Group
Interest accrued to insurance contracts 1 1
Change in financial assumptions through P&L - -
Effect of unlocking CSM at locked-in rates and FCF at current rates - -
Change in assets covering reinsurance contract liabilities

Reinsurance finance result 1 1

Expenses related to insurance activities
| 2024| 2023
Group Bank Bank

Part of the change of insurance contract liabilities that covers the result of
investment of assets under unit-linked contracts* (13,307) . (7.738) .
Other changes of insurance contract liabilities and other expenses relat_eq_ to (7,440) : (4,776) }
insurance activities

Total expenses related to insurance activities (20,747) - (12,514) -

* The investment result of the insurance company assets under unit-linked contracts is included in the following income statement lines:

| 2024| 2023

Group Bank Group Bank

Interest and similar income 1,602 - 136 -

Net gain (loss) from operations with securities 11,705 - 7,602 -
Net gain (loss) from foreign exchange - - - -

Total 13,307 - 7,738 -
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NOTE 6
OTHER INCOME

NET GAIN FROM DISPOSAL OF TANGIBLE ASSETS

In 2023 net gain on disposal of tangible assets (mostly real estate, accounted for as Property, plant and equipment, Investment property
or Inventories in the statement of financial position) at the Group amounted to EUR 593 thousand (Bank: net gain of EUR 141 thousand).
In 2023 net gain on disposal of tangible assets (mostly real estate, accounted for as Property, plant and equipment, Investment property
or Inventories in the statement of financial position) at the Group amounted to EUR 864 thousand (Bank: net gain of EUR 97 thousand).

NET GAIN FROM DERECOGNITION OF FINANCIAL ASSETS

Net gain from derecognition of financial assets (for the year ended 31 December 2024: Group EUR 544 thousand, Bank EUR 778
thousand; for the year ended 31 December 2023: Group EUR 809 thousand, Bank EUR 532 thousand) is based on the difference of the
carrying value of loans to customers (accounted at amortized cost) at the moment of sale and the proceeds from sale. Loans to customers
facing credit difficulties sold as part of the Group's problem loan recovery activities comprise the major part of loans sold.

Net gain from sale of debt securities at amortized cost as well as from other securities in included in trading income (Note 3).

OTHER OPERATING INCOME

2024 2023
Group Bank Group Bank
Income from rent of investment property and other income from investment
property 108 - 171 -
Income from rent of other assets 672 819 92 286
Net gain (loss) from modification of financial assets (40) - (11) (20)
Other income 35 565 (211) 1,456
Total 775 1,384 41 1,722
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2024 2023
Group Bank Group Bank
Impairment losses on loans:
Impairment charge for the year, net (see Note 13) 11,575 5,187 13,198 5,745
Recoveries of loans previously written off (176) (161) (210) (208)
Total impairment losses (reversals) on loans 11,399 5,026 12,988 5,537
Impairment losses on finance lease receivables:
Impairment charge for the year, net (see Note 14) (82) (81) 2,273 2,274
Recovered previously written-off finance lease receivables - - - -
Total impairment losses (reversals) on finance lease receivables (82) (81) 2,273 2,274
Total impairment losses (reversals) on loans and flnanc_e lease 11,317 4,945 15,261 7811
receivables
Impairment losses on financial assets other than loans and finance
lease receivables:
Due from other banks: impairment charge, net (see Note 10) (42) (42) 8 8
Debt securities: impairment charge, net (see Note 15) (150) (148) (369) (378)
Other financial assets: impairment charge, net (see Note 19) (120) (120) 618 618
Total impairment losses on financial assets other than loans and
finance lease receivables: (Enz) (€19 &l e
Non-financial assets:
Goodwill: impairment charge - - - -
Non-financial assets other than goodwill: impairment charge - - - -
Non-financial assets other than goodwill: reversal of impairment charge - - - -
Total impairment losses on non-financial assets: - - - -
Provisions (see Note 25):
Provisions for pending legal issues: charge - - - -
Provisions for commitments and guarantees given: charge / (reversal) (109) - (286) -
Total provisions: (109) - (286) -
Total impairment losses on other assets (421) (310) (29) 248
Impairment losses on subsidiaries (see Note 16):
Investments in subsidiaries: impairment charge - - - -
Investments in subsidiaries: reversal of impairment charge - - - -
Total impairment losses on subsidiaries > = = =
Total 10,896 4,635 15,232 8,059

The Bank and the Group held no significant direct loan positions in Russia, Belarus and Ukraine. However, in 2022, the Bank carried out
an additional customer analysis due to geopolitical risks and the indirect impact of the Russia/Ukraine war. Since then financial position
of part of clients improved and risks related to geopolitical circumstances were managed therefore carrying value of loans still in Watch
List decreased to EUR 406 thousand as at 31 December 2023. Due to NPE status removal or partial repayment of loans there were no
loans included in NPE list as at 31 December. 31 December 2024, the positions that were included in the Watch List decreased to EUR
8 thousand, No new clients were added to Watchlist during year 2024 because of geopolitical situation. Of the impairment losses of EUR
390 thousand recognized, an impairment reversal for the full amount of the impairment charge was recognized at 31 December 2024.

Impairment losses on other non-financial assets other than goodwill include impairment of investment properties (Note 26), investments

classified as held for sale and other non-financial assets (Note 19).

80



. P
SIAULIY =' BANKAS

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 DECEMBER 2024

(All amounts are in EUR thousand, unless otherwise stated)

2024 2023
Group Bank Group Bank
Current tax 17,403 16,078 19,662 18,608
Deferred taxes 857 333 984 905
Deferred tax adjustment due to change in tax rate - - - -
Adjustment of previous year income tax (601) (601) (279) (279)
Total 17,659 15,810 20,367 19,234
The tax on the Bankds and the Groupbés profit before t axtaxddtefas
follows:
2024 2023
Group Bank Group Bank
Profit before income tax from continuing operations 96,447 95,096 95,742 94,854
Tax calculated at a tax rate of 15% 14,467 14,264 14,361 14,228
Tax calculated at a tax rate of 5% 4,755 4,755 4,346 4,346
Income not subject to tax (10,506) (1,410) (2,866) (300)
Expenses not deductible for tax purposes 10,905 163 4,971 1,405
Additional deduction of film, charity expenses (1,361) (1,361) (166) (166)
Adjustments of previous year income tax (601) (601) (279) (279)
Unrecognized deferred tax assets for recognized tax losses - - - -
Income tax charge 17,659 15,810 20,367 19,234
Deferred tax assets
Group Bank
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At 1 January 2023 4,326 208 902 7 - 215 5,658 900 7 4,326 5,233
To be credited/ (Ch?]regtesr)otfﬁ (776) @ (126) . - @1y  @s) @ 776)  (904)
To be credited/ (charged) to
other comprehensive (671) - - - 3,501 - 2,830 - - (671) (671)
income
At 31 December 2023 2,879 206 776 7 3,501 208 7,577 775 4 2,879 3,658
Tobe credited/ (Ch?]gesr)otfﬁ (979) (118) 380 33 - (208) (892) 615 31 ©79)  (333)
To be credited/ (charged) to
other comprehensive (609) - - - - - (609) - (609) (609)
income
At 31 December 2024 1,291 88 1,156 40 3,501 - 6,076 1,390 35 1,291 2,716
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NOTE 8
INCOME TAX (CONTINUED)

Deferred tax liabilities

Group |
Funds management Revaluation of financial
h instruments and other Total
rights (see Note 16)
assets
At 1 January 2023 - (1,463) (1,463)
To be credited/(charged) to net profit (4,574) (88) (4,662)
To be credited/ (charged) to other comprehensive income - - -
At 31 December 2023 (4,574) (1,551) (6,125)
To be credited/(charged) to net profit 183 (199) (16)
To be credited/ (charged) to other comprehensive income - - -
At 31 December 2024 (4,391) (1,750) (6,141)

Taxable losses of the Group and the Bank are carried forward for indefinite term through the use of future taxable profits. Management
of the Bank has estimated that future taxable profits of the Bank and the Group will be sufficient to realize the accumulated tax losses.
Therefore deferred tax asset from the accumulated tax losses was recognized.

Projected terms of expected utilization of deferred tax assets, netted with projected payment of deferred tax liabilities, are presented in
the table below:

| 2024| 2023

Group Bank Group Bank

Up to 1 year (65) 2,168 1,225 3,227
2-5 years - 548 227 431
Total (65) 2,716 1,452 3,658

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets against current
tax liabilities. In Group DTL and DTA not be offset due to differences in their origin. The following amounts are shown in the balance
sheet:

| 2024] 2023

Group Bank Group Bank

Deferred tax assets 6,076 2,716 7,577 3,658
Deferred tax liabilities (6,141) - (6,125) -
NOTE 9

EARNINGS PER SHARE

Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing the net profit for the period by the weighted average number of ordinary shares in
issue during the period. There were no potential ordinary shares at 31 December 2024 and 31 December 2023, therefore the Group had
no dilutive potential ordinary shares and diluted earnings per share are equal to basic earnings per share.

The number of shares in issue for the year ended 31 December 2024 was 662.997 and for the year ended 31 December 2023 was
662,997 thousand. Weighted average number of shares in issue for the year ended 31 December 2023 was 662.318 thousand (2023:
602,693 thousand).

Basic earnings per share

Group
2024 2023
Net profit from continuing operations attributable to equity holders 78,787 75 375
Net profit (loss) from discontinued operations attributable to equity holders - -
Net profit attributable to equity holders 78,787 75 375
Weighted average number of shares in issue during the period (thousand units) 662 318 602 693
Basic earnings per share (EUR) 0.12 0,13
Basic earnings per share (EUR) from continuing operations 0.12 0,13
Basic earnings per share (EUR) from discontinued operations - -
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NOTE 10
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

2024 2023

Group Bank Group Bank

Cash and other valuables 79,537 79,184 71,689 71,579
Balances in bank correspondent accounts:

Gross value 267,311 258,891 608,719 600,299

Allowance for impairment (6) 4) (44) (44)

Total balances in bank correspondent accounts, net value 267,305 258,887 608,675 600,255
Placements with Central Bank:

Correspondent account with Central Bank 28,106 28,106 40,519 40,519

Mandatory reserves in local currency, gross value 20,190 20,190 30,618 30,618

Mandatory reserves in local currency, allowance for impairment 2) 2) 2) 2)

Total placements with Central Bank, net value 48,294 48,294 71,135 71,135

Total 395,136 386,365 751,499 742,969

The compulsory reserves held in the Bank of Lithuania are estimated on a monthly basis based on the value of indicated liabilities using
the established compulsory reserve rate. With effect from 1 January 2015, the compulsory reserve rate was set at 1%. The mandatory
reserves are held with the Bank of Lithuania in the form of current deposits. The Bank is free to use the funds held in the current account
with the Bank of Lithuania, the average monthly amount of which may be not less than the estimated compulsory reserves.

The balances in bank correspondent accounts and placements with Central Bank are classified as Stage 1 financial assets. Breakdown
of balances in bank correspondent accounts by credit rating is presented in the table below:

Rating *
2024 2023
Group Bank Group Bank
From AA- to AA+ 12,030 4,296 9,981 2,727
From A- to A+ 9,096 8,458 27,051 25,890
From BBB- to BBB+ - - 1,935 1,935
Lower than BBB- 2 2 10 10
No external credit rating (Standard internal rating) 109 109 209 209
No external rating (Substandard internal rating) a7 1 332 327
Total 21,284 12,866 39,518 31,098

* for local banks that are subsidiaries of foreign banks, credit rating of the parent institution is used in case no credit rating of the local

institution is available.

Reconciliation of allowance for impairment of cash and cash equivalents (including due from banks presented in Note 11) is presented

in the table below:

Group Bank

Allowance for impairment of cash equivalents and due from banks as of 1 January 2023: 38 38
Change in allowance for impairment 8 8

FX and other movements - -

Allowance for impairment of cash equivalents and due from banks as of 31 December 2023: 46 46
Change in allowance for impairment (38) (40)

FX and other movements - -

Allowance for impairment of cash equivalents and due from banks as of 31 December 2024: 8 6

As of 31 December 2024, balances in correspondent accounts in amount of EUR 585 thousand (as of 31 December 2023 - EUR 1,199

thousand) were pledged for derivatives contracts.

Liabilities from financing activities

The table below sets out movements in the Groupbs | i abi ¢éiteihsoé s
these liabilities are those that are reported as financing activities in the statement of cash flows.
2024 2023
Dividends . _De_bt Lease Dividends . .Debt Lease
securities in o Total securitiesin . - Total
payable . liabilities payable . liabilities
issue issue
As at 1 January 94 283,312 7,224 290,630 94 180,422 7,603 188,119
Dividends declared 32,095 - - 32,095 15,919 - - 15,919
Issuance in cash - 375,000 - 375,000 - 100,000 - 100,000
Contract additions / terminations - (210,000) 1,063 (208,937) - - 653 653
Payment in cash (32,159) - (1,039) (33,198) (15,919) - (1,066) (16,985)
Redemption in cash - - - - - - - -
Accrued interest - 13,166 41 13,207 - 5,795 34 5,829
Coupon payments in cash - (13,387) - (13,387) - (2,905) - (2,905)
As at of 31 December 30 448,091 7,289 455,410 94 283,312 7,224 290,630
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NOTE 10
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (CONTINUED)

The table below sets out movements n the Bankés | i abi ltemsoftbese
liabilities are those that are reported as financing activities in the statement of cash flows.
2024 2023
Dividends . _Dept Lease Dividends . _De_bt Lease
securities in T Total securitiesin . - Total
payable . liabilities payable . liabilities
issue issue
As at 1 January 94 283,312 6,393 289,799 94 180,422 7,328 187,844
Dividends declared 32,095 - - 32,095 15,919 - - 15,919
Issuance in cash - 375,000 - 375,000 - 100,000 - 100,000
Contract additions / terminations - (210,000) 2,063 (207,937) - - 559 559
Payment in cash (32,159) - (2,038) (34,197) (15,919) - (1,524) (17,443)
Redemption in cash - - - - - - - -
Accrued interest - 13,166 35 13,201 - 5,795 30 5,825
Coupon payments in cash - (13,387) - (13,387) - (2,905) - (2,905)
As at of 31 December 30 448,091 6,453 454,574 94 283,312 6,393 289,799
NOTE 11
DUE FROM OTHER BANKS
2024 2023
Group Bank Group Bank
Pledged deposits 2,520 2,520 2,520 2,520
Term deposits 97 97 109 109
Loans 504 504 384 384
Gross value 3,121 3,121 3,013 3,013
Allowance for impairment - - - -
Net value 3,121 3,121 3,013 3,013
Breakdown due from other banks by the maturity:
Short-term (up to 1 year) 3,031 3,031 2,922 2,922
Long-term (over 1 year) 90 20 91 91
Total 3,121 3,121 3,013 3,013

As of 31 December 2024 pledged deposits consisted of funds pledged for derivatives contracts. As of 31 December 2024, term deposits
amounting to EUR 90 thousandwer e pl edged for the guarantees or | etters of cr
2023, term deposits amounting to EUR 109 thousandwer e pl edged for the guarantees or | ett

All amounts due from banks are classified as Stage 1 financial assets. Breakdown of balances due from banks by credit rating is presented
in the table below:

Rating *
| 2024| 2023
Group Bank Group Bank
From AA- to AA+ 90 90 99 99
From A- to A+ 2,870 2,870 2,787 2,787
From BBB- to BBB+ 161 161 127 127
Total 3,121 3,121 3,013 3,013

* for local banks that are subsidiaries of foreign banks, credit rating of the parent institution is used in case no credit rating of the local
institution.
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NOTE 12

FINANCIAL ASSETS AND LIABILITIES IN THE TRADING BOOK

Total balances of financial assets and liabilities in the trading book are presented in the table below:

2024 2023

Group Bank Group Bank
Assets:

Derivatives: 1,093 1,093 251 241

1,093 1.093 251 241

Securities in the trading book 235,110 13,543 207,677 20,402
Liabilities:

Derivatives: (123) (123) (1,041) (1,041)

(123) (123) (1,041) (1,041)

Derivative Financial Instruments i Currency Derivatives

As of 31 December 2024 and 31 December 2023, the Group and the Bank had exposure to currency forwards, which represent

commitments to purchase and/or sell foreign and local currency in the future at a fixed price.

2024 2023
Group Bank Group Bank
Currency forwards:
Assets 1,093 1,093 251 241
Liabilities (123) (123) (1,041) (1,041)
Notional amount 93,434 93,434 127,829 127,799
Net gain (loss) from currency derivatives in profit or loss 5,293 5,293 (1,097) (1,097)
Securities in the Trading Book
2024 2023
Group Bank Group Bank
Trading debt securities: 56,617 13,521 65 761 20 240
Government bonds 23,059 - 24 839 2 637
Corporate bonds 33,558 13,521 40 922 17 603
Trading equity securities 19,900 22 162 162
Units of investment funds 158,593 - 141,754 -
Total securities in the trading book 235,110 13,543 207 677 20 402

Securities in the trading book are comprised of trading securities and other securities that cover technical insurance provisions under
unit-linked insurance contracts of life insurance subsidiary. These securities are measured at fair value through profit or loss.

Securities in the trading book have not been pledged as at 31 December 2024 and 2023.

All of the securities in the trading book, except for unlisted securities, are accounted at fair value that is determined using level 1
requirements as described in fair value hierarchy in Section 4.2 of Financial Risk Management, i.e. fair value is based on quoted prices
in active markets for identical assets and liabilities. Unlisted securities are accounted at fair value that is determined using level 3
requirements.
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NOTE 12

FINANCIAL ASSETS AND LIABILITIES IN THE TRADING BOOK (CONTINUED)

Breakdown of securities in the trading book as at 31 December 2024 and 2023:

2024 2023
Group Bank Group Bank
Trading securities:
Debt securities 28,828 13,521 27,663 20,240
from AA- to AAA 3,492 - 1,588 -
from A- to A+ 9,571 - 8,016 2,637
from BBB- to BBB+ 1,812 - 204 -
from BB- to BB+ 580 148 - -
lower than BB- - - - -
no rating 13,373 13,373 17,855 17,603
Equity securities 22 22 162 162
listed 22 22 162 162
unlisted - - - -
units of investment funds 19,878 - - -
Total trading securities 48,728 13,543 27,825 20,402
Other trading book securities:
Debt securities 27,789 - 38,098 -
from AA- to AAA - - 106 -
from A- to A+ 10,210 - 12,296 -
from BBB- to BBB+ 10,591 - 17,826 -
from BB- to BB+ 6,454 - 7,804 -
lower than BB- 384 - - -
no rating 150 - 66 -
Equity securities 8,730 - 2.964 -
listed - 2,843 -
unlisted 8,730 - 121 -
Total other trading book securities 36,519 - 41,062 -
units of investment funds 149,863 - 138,790 -
TOTAL 235,110 13,543 207,677 20,402
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NOTE 13
LOANS TO CUSTOMERS

2023 2022

Group Bank Group Bank

Gross loans to customers 3,161,288 3,132,437 2,685,454 2,661,035

Allowance for loan impairment (49,725) (33,567) (43,558) (30,761)

Net loans at amortized cost 3,111,563 3,098,870 2,641,896 2,630,274

Loans at fair value 6,137 6,137 3,208 3,208

NET LOANS TO CUSTOMERS 3,117,700 3,105,007 2,645,104 2,633,482

Breakdown of loans to customers according to maturity

Short-term (up to 1 year) 533,451 725,971 490,392 653,801

Long-term (over 1 year) 2,584,249 2,379,036 2,154,712 1,979,681

Total 3,117,700 3,105,007 2,645,104 2,633,482
Due to the macroeconomic situation, the Group maintained a cautious approach to lendingin2024it he Gr oupés | oan p
18% in 2024, primarily driven by strong demand for retail loans, particulartly housi ng and consumer | oans (

portfolio increased by 11%). Despite the accelerated growth, the main focus remained on maintaining the quality of the loan portfolio,
ensuring that the share of Stage 2 and Stage 3 loans increased only marginally.

The Ba

nk has
SB Modernizavimo Fondas 2 UABf o r
provided in several tranches to different investment layers bearing different risk levels.

provided | oans as
financing

invest ment

mul tiapartment buildings

Reconciliation of the gross loan amount is presented in the following tables.

iesoSB dMaedernizavinto iFandas WAB andv e h

renovati

Group gross |l oan
202 20z
St ag St ag St ag Tot St ag St ag St ag Tot
Gross carrying amou|2410,184 200,739 77,737 2,688,660 2,182,994 175,801 67,067 2,425,862
Transfer bet
from Stage 1| (87,951) 87,951 - - (113,847) 113,847 -
from Stage 1| (12,880) - 12,880 - (15,963) - 15,963
from Stage 2 46,910 (46,910) - - 69,792 (69,792) -
from Stage 2 - (15,575) 15,575 - - (22,264) 22,264
from Stage 3 8,724 - (8,724) - 1,849 - (1,849)
from Stage 3 - 3,336 (3,336) - - 13,642  (13,642) -
New | oans originated 01,127,742 38,395 5539 1,171,676 918,841 48,687 13,939 981,467
Locgns dereceg [‘ b ﬁ d OM?_ (608,537)  (60,289)  (18,682) (687,508) (633,478)  (59,131)  (22,190) (714,799)
Loans wifift tdeimi n 4 (84) (5,311) (5,399) 4) (51) (3,815) (3,870)
Recl assi FXcanhdoashenr - 4) 4 - - - - -
Gross carrying amouni{2884,188 207,559 75,682 3,167,429 2,410,184 200,739 77,737 2,688,660
Bankross |l oans t
202 20z
St ag St ag St ag Tot St ag St ag St ag Tot
Gross carrying amoul2/165922 428,156 70,164 2,664,242 1,986,715 349,388 61,368 2,397,471
Transfer sbat
from Stage 1 (78,855) 78,855 - - (101,434) 101,434 -
from Stage 1 (8,864) - 8,864 - (11,657) - 11,657
from Stage 2 40,380  (40,380) - - 69,074  (69,074) -
from Stage 2 - (12,635) 12,635 - - (21,357) 21,357
from Stage 3 7,586 - (7,586) - 1,200 - (1,200)
from Stage 3 - 2,467 (2,467) - - 13,118 (13,118) -
New | oans origmoanes ig 977,242 73,523 3,117 1,053,882 775,147 109,289 12,347 896,783
Loans derecog A d—omf?' (508,541)  (51,866) (16,770) (577,177) (553,123) (54,642)  (20,556) (628,321
Loawsi totfdn durin - - (2,372) (2,372) - - (1,690) (1,690)
Recl assi FXcahdoasthenr - - - - - - Q) Q)
Gross carrying amoun{2594870 478,120 65,585 3,138,575 2,165,922 428,156 70,164 2,664,242
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NOTE 13
LOANS TO CUSTOMERS (CONTINUED)

Group gross loans t.
202 202
St ag St ag St ag Tot St ag St ag St ag Tot
Gross carrying amoull,201,489 44,713 31,762 1,277,964 1,091,641 18,135 15,721 1,125,497
Transfer bet
from Stage 1| (34270) 34,270 - (24,011) 24,011 -
from Stage 1| (11,150) - 11,150 - (15,003) - 15,003
from Stage 2 15,882 (15,882) - - 4,486 (4,486) -
from Stage 2 - (5,542) 5,542 - - (4,168) 4,168
from Stage 3 8,672 - (8,672) - 1,771 - (1,771)
fré®&mhage 3 to - 3,211 (3,211) - - 1,808 (1,808) -
New | oans originated q 415324 11,054 4,656 431,034 387,341 16,058 6,881 410,280
Loans derecog R d_(wf?. (231,874)  (13,148)  (5937) (250,959) (244,732)  (6,594)  (4,239) (255,565)
Loans wrfift tdeim i n (@) (84) (3,128) (3,216) (4) (51) (2,193) (2,248)
Recl assi FXcanhdoasher - (4) 4 - - - - -
Gross carrying amouni{1,364,069 58,588 32,166 1,454,823 1,201,489 44,713 31,762 1,277,964
Bank gross |l oans to
202 20z
St ag Stag St ag Tot Stag Stag Stag Tot
Gross carrying amoul 957227 24,577 24,189 1,005,993 895,362 14,449 10,022 919,833
Transfer bet
from Stage 1 (25,174) 25,174 - - (11,598) 11,598 -
fr®mage 1 tol| (7,134 - 7,134 - (10,697) - 10,697
from Stage 2 9,352 (9,352) - - 3,768 (3,768) -
from Stage 2 - (2,602) 2,602 - - (3,261) 3,261
from Stage 3 7,534 - (7,534) - 1,122 - (1,122)
from Stage 3 - 2,342 (2,342) - - 1,284 (1,284) -
New | oans originated q 264,824 2,917 2,233 269,974 243,647 6,380 5,289 255,316
Leapar e 1l 2 © ﬂ . ﬂ UralasLeTr)  (4725)  (4025) (140,627) (164377)  (2105)  (2605) (169,087)
Loans wirfift tdeim i n - - (189) (189) - - (68) (68)
Recl assi FXcahdoasher - - - - - - Q) Q)
Gross carrying amoun/{1,074,752 38,331 22,068 1,135,151 957,227 24,577 24,189 1,005,993
Group gross | oans t oCoannsduinveird
202 202
St ag Stag St ag Tot Stag Stag St ag Tot
Gross carrying amou|l 245875 20,289 7,752 273,916 199,202 3,767 5,886 208,855
Transfer bet
from Stage 1 (9,153) 9,153 - - (12,533) 12,533 -
from Stage 1 (4,081) - 4,081 - (4,429) - 4,429
from Stage 2 6,565 (6,565) - - 728 (728) -
from Stage 2 - (2,997) 2,997 - - (946) 946
from Stage 3 1,146 - (1,146) - 650 - (650)
from Stage 3 - 872 (872) - - 528 (528) -
New | oans originated 9 151,393 8,206 2,464 162,063 144,610 9,749 1,627 155,986
Loans derecog Chan d-om?- (100,755)  (8,466)  (2,041) (111,262) (82,349)  (4,563)  (1,796)  (88,708)
Loans wrfift tdeim i n @) (84) (2,950) (3,038) (4) (51) (2,162) (2,217)
Recl assi FXcanhdoashenr - 4) 4 - - - - -
Gross carrying amouni 290986 20,404 10,289 321,679 245,875 20,289 7,752 273,916
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NOTE 13
LOANS TO CUSTOMERS (CONTINUED)
Bank gross loans to individ
202z 20z
St ag St ag St ag Tot St ag St ag St ag Tot
Gross carrying amou 1,613 153 179 1,945 2,924 81 186 3,191
Transfer bet
from Stage 1 (57) 57 - (120) 120 -
from Stage 1 (65) - 65 (123) - 123
from Stage 2 35 (35) - 10 (10) -
from St&gage - (57) 57 - (39) 39
from Stage 3 8 - (8) 1 - 1)
from Stage 3 - 8 3) - - 4 4) -
New | oans originated ¢ 893 69 43 1,005 915 71 35 1,021
Loans derecognized d (5 43)  (130) 930)  (1,994) (74) (162)  (2,230)
Loans wirfift tdeaim i n - - (11) (11) - - (37) (37)
Recl assi FXcahdoaosher - - - - - - - -
Gross carrying amouni 1,670 147 192 2,009 1,613 153 179 1,945
Group gross |l oans to indi
202 20z
St ag St ag St ag Tot St ag St ag St ag Tot
Grog@arrying amount 752,135 18,379 10,929 781,443 649,660 9,828 5,762 665,250
Transfer bet
from Stage 1 (23,237) 23,237 - (9,904) 9,904 -
from Stage 1 (4,686) - 4,686 (5,462) - 5,462
from Stage 2 5,874 (5,874) - 2,890 (2,890) -
from Stage 2 - (1,831) 1,831 - (1,073) 1,073
from Stage 3 1,843 - (1,843) 392 - (392)
from Stage 3 - 1,402 (1,402) - - 1,063 (1,063) -
New | oans originated q 217,890 1,754 420 220,064 179,876 3,120 997 183,993
Leans el 2oL nize di-ot fde (78,315)  (3,393)  (1,762) (83.470) (65317)  (1,573) (910)  (67,800)
Loans wirfift tdeim i n - - (102) (102) - - - -
Recl assifications, H - - - - - - - -
Gr oss carntoyinng as at 871,504 33,674 12,757 917,935 752,135 18,379 10,929 781,443
Bank gross loans to indi\
202 20z
St ag Stag St ag Tot Stag Stag St ag Tot
Grog@arrying amount 752,135 18,379 10,929 781,443 649,660 9,828 5,762 665,250
Transfer bet
from Stage 1 (23,237) 23,237 - (9,904) 9,904 -
from Stage 1 (4,686) - 4,686 (5,462) - 5,462
from Stage 2 5,874 (5,874) - 2,890 (2,890) -
from Stage 2 - (1,831) 1,831 - (1,073) 1,073
from Stage 3 1,843 - (1,843) 392 - (392)
from Stage 3 - 1,402 (1,402) - - 1,063 (1,063) -
New | oans originated 9 217,890 1,754 419 220,063 179,876 3,120 997 183,993
Leans Cei2Eon nze qmt fde (78,315)  (3393)  (L762) (83.470) (65317)  (1,573) (910)  (67,800)
Loans wifift tdeimi n - - (102) (102) - - - -
Recl assi FXcahdoaosher - - - - - - - -
Gr oss carntoyinitg as at 871,504 33,674 12,756 917,934 752,135 18,379 10,929 781,443
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NOTE 13
LOANS TO CUSTOMERS (CONTINUED)

Group gross |l oans to ir
202z 20z
St ag St ag St ag Tot St ag St ag St ag Tot
Gross carrying amou|l 203479 6,045 13,081 222,605 242,779 4,540 4,073 251,392
Transfer bet
from Stage 1 (1,880) 1,880 - (1,574) 1,574 -
from Stage 1 (2,383) - 2,383 (5,112) - 5,112
from Stage 2 3,443 (3,443) - - 868 (868) -
from Stage 2 - (714) 714 - - (2,149) 2,149
from Stage 3 5,683 - (5,683) 729 - (729)
from Stage 3 - 937 (937) - - 217 (217) -
New | oans originated 9 46041 1,094 1,772 48,907 62,855 3,189 4,257 70,301
Loans derecog Chan d_(wf?_ (52,804)  (1,289)  (2,134)  (56,227)  (97,066) 458)  (1,533)  (99,057)
Loans wirfift tdeaim i n - - (76) (76) - - (31) (31)
Recl assifications, H - - - - - - - -
Grog®@arrying amount a| 201,579 4,510 9,120 215,209 203,479 6,045 13,081 222,605
Bank gross |l oans to in
202 20z
St ag St ag St ag Tot St ag St ag St ag Tot
Grog®arrying amount 203,479 6,045 13,081 222,605 242,779 4,540 4,073 251,392
Transfer bet
from Stage 1 (1,880) 1,880 - (1,574) 1,574 -
from Stage 1 (2,383) - 2,383 (5,112) - 5112
from Stage 2 3,443 (3,443) - - 868 (868) -
from Stage 2 - (714) 714 - - (2,149) 2,149
from Stage 3 5,683 - (5,683) 729 - (729)
from Stage 3 - 937 (937) - - 217 (217) -
New | oans originated q 46,041 1,094 1,771 48,906 62,855 3,189 4,257 70,301
Leans el 2oL nize d OM‘:, (52,805)  (1,289)  (2133) (56,227)  (97,066) (458)  (1,533)  (99,057)
Loans wifift tdeim i n - - (76) (76) - - (31) (31)
Recl assi FXcanhdoosher - - - - - - - -
Gross carrying ®mecem| 201,578 4,510 9,120 215,208 203,479 6,045 13,081 222,605
Group gross |l oans to
20z 20z
St ag Stag St ag Tot Stag Stag St ag Tot
Gross carrying amou 26,596 - - 26,596 18,088 - - 18,088
Transfer bet
from Stage 1 - - - - - - -
from Stage 1 - - - - - - -
from Stage 2 - - - - - - -
from Stage 2 - - - - - - -
from Stage 3 - - - - - - -
from Stage 3 - - - - - - -
New | oans originated d 20314 1) - 20,313 26,596 - - 26,596
Loans derecognized d
t han -oMr (26,596) - - (26,596) (18,088) - - (18,088)
Loans wifift tdeimi n - - - - - - -
Recl assifications, f - - - - - - - -
Gross carrying amounit 20,314 (2) - 20,313 26,596 - - 26,596
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NOTE 13
LOANS TO CUSTOMERS (CONTINUED)

Bank gross |l oans to
202z 20z
St ag St ag St ag Tot St ag St ag St ag Tot
Gross carrying amou 26,596 247,553 - 274,149 18,088 177,273 - 195,361
Transfer bet
from Stage 1 - - - - - - -
from Stage 1 - - - - - - -
from Stage 2 - - - - - - -
from Stage 2 - - - - - - -
from Stage 3 - - - - - - -
from Stage 3 = = = = = = o
New | oans originatadrg 20,314 43,264 - 63,578 26,596 70,280 - 96,876
Loans derecognized d
e 1 (26,596) - - (26,596) (18,088) - - (18,088)
Loans wirfift tdeim i n - - - - - - -
Recl assifications, f - - - - - - - -
Gross carrying amouni 20,314 290,817 - 311,131 26,596 247,553 - 274,149
Group gross |l oans to
202 20z
St ag Stag St ag Tot St ag St ag St ag Tot
Gross carrying amouf1,182,099 156,026 45,975 1,384,100 1,073,265 157,666 51,346 1,282,277
Transfer bet
from Stage 1| (53681) 53,681 - (89,836) 89,836 -
from Stage 1 (1,730) - 1,730 - (960) - 960
from Stage 2 31,028  (31,028) - 65,306  (65,306) -
from Stage 2 - (10,033) 10,033 - - (18,096) 18,096
from Stage 3 52 - (52) - 78 - (78)
from Stage 3 - 125 (125) - - 11,834  (11,834) -
New | oans originated q 692,104 27,342 883 720,329 504,904 32,629 7,058 544,591
SEUETIE IR S Chan d_(wf?_ (350,067)  (47,141)  (12,745) (409,953) (370,658) (52,537)  (17,951) (441,146)
Loans wirfift tdeim i n - - (2,183) (2,183) - - (1,622) (1,622)
Recl assifications, H - - - - - - - -
Gross carrying amoun{21,4993805 148,972 43,516 1,692,293 1,182,099 156,026 45,975 1,384,100
Bank gross |l oans to
202 20z
St ag Stag St ag Tot Stag Stag St ag Tot
Gross carrying amoull,182,099 156,026 45,975 1,384,100 1,073,265 157,666 51,346 1,282,277
Transfer bet
from St 8geagt| (53681) 53,681 - (89,836) 89,836 -
from Stage 1 (1,730) - 1,730 - (960) - 960
from Stage 2 31,028  (31,028) - 65,306  (65,306) -
from Stage 2 - (10,033) 10,033 - - (18,096) 18,096
from Stage 3 52 - (52) - 78 - (78)
from Stage 3 - 125 (125) - - 11,834 (11,834) -
New | oans originated d 692104 27,342 884 720,330 504,904 32,629 7,058 544,591
Loans derecog Chan d_cwf?. (350,068)  (47,141)  (12,745) (409,954) (370,658) (52,537)  (17,951) (441,146)
Loans wifift tdeimi n - - (2,183) (2,183) - - (1,622) (1,622)
Recl assi FXcanhdoaosher - - - - - - - -
Gross carrying amoun{1,499804 148,972 43,517 1,692,293 1,182,099 156,026 45,975 1,384,100
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NOTE 13
LOANS TO CUSTOMERS (CONTINUED)

Group gross |l oans to business
202z 20z
St ag St ag St ag Tot St ag St ag St ag Tot
Gross carrying amou 89,586 3,058 17,209 109,853 74,257 29,964 1,596 105,817
Transfer bet
from Stage 1 (1,771) 1,771 (4,808) 4,808
from Stage 1 - - - -
from Stage 2 1,768 (1,768) 8,005 (8,005) -
from Stage 2 - - - (15,558) 15,558
from Stage 3 - - - - -
from Stage 3 = = = = = = = =
New | oans originated q 156,440 3,457 97 159,994 52,549 - 1,575 54,124
Loans derecog R d_(wff'_ (48,487)  (1,068) (120)  (49,675) (40,417)  (8,151)  (1,520)  (50,088)
Loans wirfift tdeim i n - - (924) (924) - - - -
Recl assifications, H - - - - - - - -
Gross carrying amouni{ 197536 5,450 16,262 219,248 89,586 3,058 17,209 109,853
Bank gross |l oans to business
202 20z
St ag Stag St ag Tot St ag St ag St ag Tot
Gross carrying amou 89,586 3,058 17,209 109,853 74,257 29,964 1,596 105,817
Transfer bet
from Stage 1 (1,771) 1,771 (4,808) 4,808
from Stage 1 - - - -
from Stage 2 1,768 (1,768) 8,005 (8,005) -
from Stage 2 - - - (15,558) 15,558
from St&geage - - - - -
from Stage 3 = = = = o ° = =
New | oans originated d 156,440 3,457 97 159,994 52,549 - 1,575 54,124
Leans el 2oL nize di-ot fde (48,487)  (1,068) (120) (49,675 (40,417)  (8151)  (1520)  (50,088)
Loans wirfift tdeim i n - - (924) (924) - - - -
Recl assi FXcahdoosher - - - - - - - -
Gr oss carntoyinitg as at 197,536 5,450 16,262 219,248 89,586 3,058 17,209 109,853
Group gross |l oans to bu
202 20z
Stag St ag St ag Tot St ag St ag St ag Tot
Gross carrying Jaamowl 1,029,699 148,125 27,423 1,205,247 918,608 125,779 48,308 1,092,695
Transfer bet
from Stage 1 (51,451) 51,451 - (81,238) 81,238 -
from Stage 1 (1,730) - 1,730 (960) - 960
from Stage 2 25,405 (25,405) - 57,301 (57,301) -
from Stage 2 - (10,033) 10,033 - - (2,538) 2,538
from Stage 3 52 - (52) - 78 - (78)
from Stag8t 8/ - 125 (125) - - 11,834  (11,834) -
New | oans originated d 527,750 23,885 786 552,421 433,108 32,321 5,483 470,912
Leans Cei2Eon [‘ 'h 2 re] d (Wf?_ (279,691)  (45,395)  (12,581) (337,667) (297,198)  (43,208)  (16,332) (356,738)
Loans wifift tdeimi n - - (1,259) (1,259) - - (1,622) (1,622)
Recl assifications, H§ - - - - - - - -
Gr oss carnmrowinntg as at 1,250,034 142,753 25,955 1,418,742 1,029,699 148,125 27,423 1,205,247
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NOTE 13
LOANS TO CUSTOMERS (CONTINUED)

Bank

gross |l oans to bus
202z 20z
St ag St ag St ag Tot St ag St ag St ag Tot
Gross carrying amo u|1,029,699 148,125 27,423 1,205,247 918,608 125,779 48,308 1,092,695
Transfer bet
from Stage 1| (51,451) 51,451 - (81,238) 81,238 -
from Stage 1 (1,730) - 1,730 (960) - 960
from Stage 2 25,405 (25,405) - 57,301 (57,301) -
from Stage 2 - (10,033) 10,033 - - (2,538) 2,538
frédémage 3 to 52 - (52) - 78 - (78)
from Stage 3 - 125 (125) - - 11,834  (11,834) -
New | oans originated q 527,750 23,885 787 552,422 433,108 32,321 5,483 470,912
Loadsrecogniz . ﬂ a ?‘ U] 279.691)  (45395)  (12581) (337,667) (207,198) (43208)  (16,332) (356,738)
Loans wirfift tdeim i n - - (1,259) (1,259) - - (1,622) (1,622)
Recl assi FXcanhdoaosher - - - - - - - -
Gross carrying amouni{1,250034 142,753 25,956 1,418,743 1,029,699 148,125 27,423 1,205,247
Group gross | oans to busi ndsost adu satua rheorrs
202 20z
St ag Stag St ag Tot St ag St ag St ag Tot
Gross carrying amou 62,814 4,843 1,343 69,000 80,400 1,923 1,442 83,765
Transfer bet
from Stage 1 (459) 459 (3,790) 3,790
from Stage 1 - - - - - -
from Stage 2 3,855 (3,855) - - - -
from Stage 2 - - - - - -
from Stag8t &, - - - -
from Stage 3 = = = = o ° = =
New | oans originated o 7,914 - - 7,914 19,247 308 - 19,555
Loans derecognized d
t h avm rotfe (21,889) (678) (44) (22,611) (33,043) (1,178) (99) (34,320)
Loans wirfift tdeim i n - - - - - - - -
Recl assifications, H§ - - - - - - - -
Gross carrying ®mcem, 52,235 769 1,299 54,303 62,814 4,843 1,343 69,000
Bank gross |l oans to business customer s:
204 202
Stag St ag St ag Tot St ag St ag St ag Tot
Grog@arrying amount 62,814 4,843 1,343 69,000 80,400 1,923 1,442 83,765
Transfer bet
from Stage 1 (459) 459 (3,790) 3,790
from Stage 1 - - - - - -
from Stage 2 3,855 (3,855) - - - -
from Stage 2 - - - - - -
from Stage 3 - - - -
from Stage 3 - = = = - - = =
New | oans olroagn nameun tg 7,914 - - 7,914 19,247 308 - 19,555
Leans Cei2Eon nLze d (Wf?_ (21,890) (678) (44)  (22612) (33,043)  (1,178) ©@9)  (34,320)
Loans wifift tdeimi n - - - - - - - -
Recl assi FXcahdoaosher - - - - - - - -
Gross carrying amounit 52,234 769 1,299 54,302 62,814 4,843 1,343 69,000
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NOTE 13
LOANS TO CUSTOMERS (CONTINUED)

Movements in allowance for loan impairment by separate class are provided below:

Group |l oss all owance aga
20z 202
Stag Stag Stag Tot Stag Stag Stag Tot
Loss all owance 21,262 6,284 16,010 43,556 13,539 2,412 18,282 34,233
Movements with i mpagd
New | oans 16,095 1,408 598 18,101 10,088 1,220 122 11,430
toaderecognized during A o715) (1239 (5376) (9.327) (L683) (1L043) (4548) (7.274)
Changes due to chan| (9583 (865) 10,667 219  (6,107) 1,041 6,929 1,863
Updattehe nmet hodol ogy for | 297 (174) 2,465 2,588 5,429 2,705 (960) 7,174
Total movements with i 4,097 (870) 8,354 11,581 7,727 3,923 1,543 13,193
Movements without i mp
Loans wirfift tdeimi n (@) (84) (5,311) (5,399) (@) (51) (3,815) (3,870)
Recl assi FXcanhdoaosther (6) ) - 9) - - - -
Tot al movements without (20) (87) (5,311) (5,408) (4) (51) (3,815) (3,870)
Amount as at 25,349 5,327 19,053 49,729 21,262 6,284 16,010 43,556
Bank hbbkewance against |
20z 202
Stag Stag Stag Tot Stag Stag Stag Tot
Loss all owance 15,954 2,279 12,527 30,760 9,427 1,676 15,606 26,709
Movement s mpmath to p
New | oans 12,289 45 468 12,802 7,162 585 31 7,778
Loans derecognized duri MOl woer)  (183) (3126) (5306) (L158)  (503) (2931)  (4,592)
Changes due to chan| (7,342 (741) 4,454 (3,629) (4,903) 131 2,868 (1,904)
Update in the methodol ogy (506) (602) 2,431 1,323 5,427 390 (1,357) 4,460
Totmdvements with i mpaq 2444 (1,481) 4,227 5,190 6,528 603 (2,389) 5,742
Movements without i mp
Loans wrfift tdaim i n - - (2,372) (2,372) - - (1,690) (1,690)
Recl assi FXcanhdoashe ©) 3) - (20) (2) - - Q)
Total movements without @) ?3) (2,372) (2,382) 1) - (1,690) (1,691)
Amount abeatm| 18391 795 14,382 33,568 15,954 2,279 12,527 30,760
Group |l oss allowance against |l oans to
20z 202z
Stag Stag Stag Tot Stag Stag Stag Tot
Losasl | owance as 8,968 4,195 6,598 19,761 5,964 814 4,750 11,528
Movements with i mpagd
New | oans 4,172 1,389 173 5,734 3,969 671 106 4,746
Loans derecognized duri M8l (756)  (L069) (2725) (4550)  (573)  (543) (1821)  (2937)
Changes due to chan| (3335 (137) 6,336 2,864 (2,183) 1,020 6,796 5,633
Update in the methodol ogy 1,136 373 1,243 2,752 1,794 2,284 (1,040) 3,038
Total movements with i 1,217 556 5,027 6,800 3,007 3,432 4,041 10,480
Movements without i mp
Loans wirfift tdeim i n 4 (84) (3,128) (3,216) (@) (51) (2,193) (2,248)
Recl assi FXcanhdoaoshe 2) 2) - (4) 1 - - 1
Total movements without (6) (86) (3,128) (3,220) ?3) (51) (2,193) (2,247)
Amount as at 10,179 4,665 8,497 23,341 8,968 4,195 6,598 19,761
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NOTE 13
LOANS TO CUSTOMERS (CONTINUED)

Bank |l oss allowance against |l oans to
20z 202z
Stag Stag Stag Tot Stag Stag Stag Tot
Loss all owance 3,660 190 3,115 6,965 1,852 78 2,074 4,004
Movements with i mpagd
New | oans 365 26 43 434 1,043 36 15 1,094
Loans derecognized duri onfg (41) (13) (475) (529) (48) @A) (204) (255)
Changes due to chan| (1,094) (13) 125 (982) (979) 110 2,735 1,866
Update in the methodol ogy 333 (55) 1,209 1,487 1,792 (31) (1,437) 324
Tot al movements with i (437) (55) 902 410 1,808 112 1,109 3,029
Movements without i mp
Loans wrfift tdaim i n - - (189) (189) - - (68) (68)
Recl assi FXcanhdoaosther 3) 2) - (5) - - - -
Tot al movements without 3) ) (189) (194) - - (68) (68)
Amount 3als ecd 3,220 133 3,828 7,181 3,660 190 3,115 6,965
Group l oss allowance against |l oans to '|'cC1105ntsounneerrs|
20z 202
Stag Stag Stag Tot Stag Stag Stag Tot
Loss all owance 5,370 4,026 3,606 13,002 4,169 739 2,795 7,703
Movements with i mpag
New | oans 3,823 1,364 136 5,323 2,936 636 99 3,671
Loans derecognized duri o] (728)  (1,058)  (2:308)  (4,094) (535) (541)  (L,701)  (2,777)
Changes due to chan| (2242 (227) 6,248 3,879 (1,221) 922 4,174 3,875
Update in the methodol ogy 815 430 34 1,279 24 2,321 401 2,746
Total movements with i 1,668 609 4,110 6,387 1,204 3,338 2,973 7,515
Movements without i mp
Loans wifift tdeimi n 4 (84) (2,950) (3,038) 4) (51) (2,162) (2,217)
Recl assi FXcanhdoasther - Q) - (2) 1 - - 1
Totmdvements without i mp 4 (85) (2,950) (3,039) ?3) (51) (2,162) (2,216)
Amount as at 7,034 4,550 4,766 16,350 5,370 4,026 3,606 13,002

Bank | oss abhowahckoans to customers:iComnssmeén]|
20z 202z
Stag Stag Stag Tot Stag Stag Stag Tot
Loss all owance 62 21 123 206 57 3 119 179
Movements with i mpag
New | oans 17 1 6 24 10 1 8 19
Loans derecognized durin
g JO @ @ (68 (72) (10) o 69 (95)
Changes cchhwmergteo i n ¢ 1) 3) 36 32 a7) 12 113 108
Update in the methodol ogy 11 2 1 14 22 6 4 32
Tot al movements with i 15 2) (15) 2) 5 18 41 64
Movements without i mp
Loans wifift tdeim i n - - (11) (11) - - (37) (37)
Recl assi FXcanhdoasther (2) 1) - 2) - - - -
Tot al movements without 1) (1) (11) (13) - - (37) (37)
Amount as at 76 18 97 191 62 21 123 206
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NOTE 13
LOANS TO CUSTOMERS (CONTINUED)

Group dlolssswance against |l oans 0 customMdost gl

20z 202z

Stag Stag Stag Tot Stag Stag Stag Tot

Loss all owance 177 45 2,290 2,512 759 37 1,126 1,922
Movements with i mpagd

New | oans 116 2 35 153 329 2 7 338

Loans derecognized dur |Onfg ®) (10) (353) @371) (29) @ (109) (140)

Changes due to chan (109) Q) 10 (100) (183) 111 1,254 1,182

Update in the methodol ogy 20 7 71 84 (699) (103) 12 (790)

Tot al movements with i 19 (16) (237) (234) (582) 8 1,164 590
Movements without i mp

Loans wifift tdeim i n - - (102) (102) - - - -

Recl assi FXcahd oot bk ey (2) - - (2) - - - -

Tot al movements without 1) - (102) (103) - - - -

Amount as at 195 29 1,951 2,175 177 45 2,290 2,512

Bank hbbkewance against |l oans 0 custor‘hMostgl

202z 202

Stag Stag Stag Tot Stag Stag Stag Tot

Loss all owance 177 45 2,290 2,512 759 37 1,126 1,922
Movements with i mpag

New | oans 116 2 5] 153 329 2 7 338

Loans derecognized dur |Onfg ®) (10) (353) @371) (29) @ (109) (140)

Changes due to chan (109) Q) 11 (99) (183) 111 1,254 1,182

Update in the methodol ogy 20 (@) 70 83 (699) (103) 12 (790)

Tot al movements with i 19 (16) (237) (234) (582) 8 1,164 590
Movements without i mp

Loans wifift tdeimi n - - (102) (102) - - - -

Recl assi FXcahdmog bk eag (2) - - (2) - - - -

Total movements without 1) - (102) (103) - - - -

Amount as at 195 29 1,951 2,175 177 45 2,290 2,512

Group dlolssswance against |l oans t cCustoim®t B

20z 202z

Stag Stag Stag Tot Stag Stag Stag Tot

Loss all owance 3,421 124 702 4,247 1,036 38 829 1,903
Movements with i mpag

New | oans 233 23 2 258 704 33 - 737
Loans derecognized durin

¢ P ) @ 6 (85) ©) - @ (20)

Changeg odednange in (984) 9) 78 (915) (779) (13) 1,368 576

Update in the methodol ogy 301 (50) 1,138 1,389 2,469 66 (1,453) 1,082

Tot al movements with i (470) (37) 1,154 647 2,385 86 (96) 2,375
Movements without i mp

Loans wirfift tdeim i n - - (76) (76) - - (31) (31)

Recl assi FXcanhdoasther (2) 1) - 2) - - - -

Total movements without 1) (1) (76) (78) - - (31) (31)

Amount as at 2,950 86 1,780 4,816 3,421 124 702 4,247
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LOANS TO CUSTOMERS (CONTINUED)

Bank |l oss allowance against |l oans to &Oth]

20z 202z

Stag Stag Stag Tot Stag Stag Stag Tot

Loss all owadaau 3,421 124 702 4,247 1,036 38 829 1,903
Movements with i mpagd

New | oans 232 23 2 257 704 33 - 737
Loans derecognized dur iwng

¢ AP AN @ 69 (86) ©) S CEN (20)

Changes due to chan (984) 9) 78 (915) (779) (13) 1,368 576

Update in the methodol ogy 302 (50) 1,138 1,390 2,469 66 (1,453) 1,082

Tot al movements with i (471) (37) 1,154 646 2,385 86 (96) 2,375
Movements without i mp

Loans wirfift tdeimpien - - (76) (76) - - (31) (31)

Recl assi FXcanhdoasther (2) Q) - 2) - - - -

Tot al movements without 1) 1) (76) (78) - - (31) (31)

Amountatas3l Deg 2,949 86 1,780 4,815 3,421 124 702 4,247

Group |l oss all owance against |l oans to d

20z 20z

Stag Stag Stag Tot Stag Stag Stag Tot

Losasl | owance as 183 - - 183 9 - - 9
Movements with i mpag

New | oans 27 - - 27 15 54 - 69

Loans derecogni zed durlvvomfg (154) ) ) (154) ®) o ) ©)

Changes due to chan 11 - - 11 22 (53) - (31)

Update in the methodol ogy (40) - - (40) 145 - - 145

Totmdvements with i mpagd (156) - - (156) 174 - - 174
Movements without i mp

Loans wrfift tdam i n - - - - - - - -

Recl assi FXcanhdoaosher Q) - - Q) - - - -

Total movements without 1) - - 1) - - - -

Amount as at 26 - - 26 183 - - 183

Bank hbbkewance against | oans to custom|

20z 20z

Stag Stag Stag Tot Stag Stag Stag Tot

Loss all owance 183 - - 183 9 - - 9
Movements with i mpag

New | oans 28 - - 28 15 54 - 69
Loans derecognized durin

9 o as4 - - (154) (® @ - ©

Changes due ¢toedhtan 11 - - 11 22 (53) - (31)

Update in the methodol ogy (40) - - (40) 145 - - 145

Total movements with i (155) - - (155) 174 - - 174
Movements without i mp

Loans wifift tdeim i n - - - - - - - -

Recl assi FXcanhdoasther (2) - - (2) - - - -

Tot al mo vwei ntehnotust | mpact (1) - - (2) - - - -

Amount as at 27 - - 27 183 - - 183
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NOTE 13
LOANS TO CUSTOMERS (CONTINUED)

Group loss allowance against buosainnmse stso cd
20z 202z
Stag Stag Stag Tot Stag Stag Stag Tot
Loss all owance 12,111 2,089 9,412 23,612 7,566 1,598 13,532 22,696
Movements witgmr ofmipta
New | oans 11,896 19 425 12,340 6,104 495 16 6,615
Loans derecognized duri o] @802) (170)  (2.651) (4.623) (1,102 (499)  (2.727)  (4,328)
Changes due to chan| (6259 (728) 4331  (2,656)  (3,946) 74 133 (3,739)
Update in the methodol ogy (799) (547) 1,222 (124) 3,490 421 80 3,991
Tot al movements pwiotfhi ti 3,036 (1,426) 3,327 4,937 4,546 491 (2,498) 2,539
Movements without i mp
Loans wifift tdeim i n - - (2,183) (2,183) - - (1,622) (1,622)
Recl assi FXcanhdoasther 3) Q) - (4) (2) - - Q)
Tot al movements without 3) 1) (2,183) (2,187) 1) - (1,622) (1,623)
Amount abeatm| 15144 662 10,556 26,362 12,111 2,089 9,412 23,612
Bank |l oss all owance against oans to c
20z 202
Stag Stag Stag Tot Stag Stag Stag Tot
Losasl | owance as 12,111 2,089 9,412 23,612 7,566 1,598 13,532 22,696
Movements with i mpag
New | oans 11,896 19 425 12,340 6,104 495 16 6,615
Loans derecognized duri o”fg (1,802) (170)  (2,651)  (4,623)  (1,102) (499)  (2,727)  (4,328)
Changes due to chan| (6259) (728) 4,329 (2,658) (3,946) 74 133 (3,739)
Update in the methodol ogy (799) (547) 1,222 (124) 3,490 421 80 3,991
Total movements with i 3,036 (1,426) 3,325 4,935 4,546 491 (2,498) 2,539
Movements without i mp
Loans wifift tdeimi n - - (2,183) (2,183) - - (1,622) (1,622)
Recl assi FXcanhdoasther ?3) Q) - 4) (2) - - Q)
Total movements without 3) 1) (2,183) (2,187) 1) - (1,622) (1,623)
Amount as at 15,144 662 10,554 26,360 12,111 2,089 9,412 23,612
Group dlolssswance against |l oans to customéargdoamy
20z 202z
Stag Stag Stag Tot Stag Stag Stag Tot
Loss all owance 651 6 1,127 1,784 301 273 1,596 2,170
Movements with i mpag
New | oans 148 - 347 495 385 221 16 622
Loans derecognized duri onfg (133) o (1,086) (1,220) (39) 272) @ (312)
Changes due to chan (81) (8) 2,602 2,513 292 (214) (581) (503)
Update in the methodol ogy (90) 6 29 (55) (288) 2) 97 (193)
Tot al movement s pwiotfhi ti (156) 3) 1,892 1,733 350 (267) (469) (386)
Movements without i mp
Loans wifift tdeim i n - - (924) (924) - - - -
Recl assi FXcanhdoasther (2) - - (2) - - - -
Tot al movements without (2) - (924) (925) - - - -
Amount as at 494 3 2,095 2,592 651 6 1,127 1,784
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NOTE 13
LOANS TO CUSTOMERS (CONTINUED)

Bank |l oss allowance against |loans to cillsarognersolf
20z 202z
Stag Stag Stag Tot Stag Stag Stag Tot
Loss all owadaau 651 6 1,127 1,784 301 273 1,596 2,170
Movements with i mpagd
New | oans 148 - 347 495 385 221 16 622
Loans derecognized dur lwomfg (133) o (1,087) (1,221) (39) 272) o (312)
Changes due to chan (81) (8) 2,602 2,513 292 (214) (581) (503)
Update in the methodol ogy (90) 6 29 (55) (288) 2) 97 (193)
Tot al movements with i (156) 3) 1,891 1,732 350 (267) (469) (386)
Movements without i mp
Loans wifift tdehrei np - - (924) (924) - - - -
Recl assi FXcanhdoasther (2) - - (2) - - - -
Tot al movements without (2) - (924) (925) - - - -
Amount abBeatm 494 3 2,094 2,501 651 6 1,127 1,784
Group loss allowance against |l oans to c'|'LSthI1
202z 202z
Stag Stag Stag Tot Stag Stag Stag Tot
Loss all owadaeaau| 11,312 2,069 8,027 21,408 7,200 1,312 10,917 19,429
Movements with i mpagd
New | oans 11,626 19 78 11,723 5,603 274 - 5,877
Loans derecognpeedoduf oohfb (1,665) (114) (1,565)  (3,344)  (1,059) (227) (2,726) (4,012)
Changes due to chan| (6128) (755) 1,771 (5,112) (4,234) 303 1,496 (2,435)
Update in the medlhlodwd mge (669) (560) 952 277) 3,802 407 (38) 4,171
Total movements with i 3,164 (1,410) 1,236 2,990 4,112 757 (1,268) 3,601
Movements without ilnopg
Loans wrhift tdami n - - (1,259) (1,259) - - (1,622) (1,622)
Recl assi FXcanhdoashe (2) (2) - 2) - - - -
Total movements without 1) 1) (1,259) (1,261) - - (1,622) (1,622)
Amount as at 14,475 658 8,004 23,137 11,312 2,069 8,027 21,408
Bank | oss allowance against |l oans to cuSM{
20z 202z
Stag Stag Stag Tot Stag Stag Stag Tot
Loss all owance 11,312 2,069 8,027 21,408 7,200 1,312 10,917 19,429
Movements with i mpag
New | oans 11,626 19 78 11,723 5,603 274 - 5,877
Loans derecognized during (e  (114) (1564) (3343) (L059)  (227) (2726) (4,012)
Changes due t o c h(anng (6,128) (755) 1,770 (5,113) (4,234) 303 1,496 (2,435)
Update in the methodol ogy (669) (560) 952 277) 3,802 407 (38) 4,171
Tot al movements with i 3,164 (1,410) 1,236 2,990 4,112 757 (1,268) 3,601
Movements without i mp
Loans wifift tdeim i n - - (1,259) (1,259) - - (1,622) (1,622)
Recl assi FXcanhdoasther (2) 1) - 2) - - -
Total movements without 1) (1) (1,259) (1,261) - - (1,622) (1,622)
Amount as at 14,475 658 8,004 23,137 11,312 2,069 8,027 21,408
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NOTE 13
LOANS TO CUSTOMERS (CONTINUED)

Group loss allowance against loans to cilCetndmars:anldodms atlo 4

20z 202z

Stag Stag Stag Tot Stag Stag Stag Tot

Loss all owance 148 14 258 420 65 13 1,019 1,097
Movements with 1 mpagq

New | oans 122 - - 122 116 - - 116
Loans derecognized durin

¢ JO @ e - (9 () - - @

Changes due to chan (50) 35 (42) (57) 4) (15) (782) (801)

Update in the medlhlodwd mge (40) 7 241 208 (24) 16 21 13

Tot al movements with i 28 (13) 199 214 84 1 (761) (676)
Movements without i mp

Loans wrfift tdaim i n - - - - - - - -

Recl assi FXcahdoasher 1) - - (1) 1) > = (1)

Tot al movements without 1) - - 1) 1) - - 1)

Amount as at 175 1 457 633 148 14 258 420

Bank loss allowance against loans to cuGemtmeals:andalnscdlo 4

2 04 202

Stag Stag Stag Tot Stag Stag Stag Tot

Loss all owance 148 14 258 420 65 13 1,019 1,097
Movements with i mpag

New | oans 122 - - 122 116 - - 116
Loadserecognized durin t h

g 9 o @ (5 - (59 ) - - @

Changes due to chan (50) 35 (43) (58) (4) (15) (782) (801)

Update in the met hodocelsagyn (40) 7 241 208 (24) 16 21 13

Tot al movements with i 28 (13) 198 213 84 1 (761) (676)
Movements without i mp

Loawsi totfdn durin - - - - - - - -

Recl assi FXcahdoashenrm ) - - (1) (1) ° = (1)

Total movements without 1) - - 1) 1) - - 1)

Amount as at 175 1 456 632 148 14 258 420
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NOTE 14
FINANCE LEASE RECEIVABLES

As part of its lending services, the Bank offers its customers various types of finance lease contracts. Main finance lease model of the
Bank is to finance goods or services sold by vendors to the customers. The Bank acts as a lender, although legally it is the owner of the
assets leased.

No other material income except for the finance income (included in net interest income - see Note 1) is earned by the Bank from the
finance lease. The Bank does not provide any buy-back guarantees or residual value guarantees at its own risk. In some cases when
such guarantees are offered to customers that use Bankds fh
guarantees. I n such cases the Bank additionally assesses the

Risk profile of finance lease contracts is described in detail in part 1.6. of the Financial Risk Management disclosure.

The Group
Up to 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years 3-4 years 4-5years Over 5years Total
Gross investments in leasing:
Balance at 31 December 2023 116,565 84,125 66,276 41,377 22,029 3,313 333,685
Change during 2024 5,593 11,932 3,123 4,360 415 1,129 26,552
Balance at 31 December 2024 122,158 96,057 69,399 45,737 22,444 4,442 360,237
Unearned finance income on finance
leases:
Balance at 31 December 2023 (17,646) (11,317) (6,575) (2,979) (894) (167) (39,578)
Change during 2024 1,066 835 680 204 159 (29) 2,925
Balance at 31 December 2024 (16,580) (10,482) (5,895) (2,775) (735) (186) (36,653)
Net investments in leasing before
provisions:
At 31 December 2023 98,919 72,808 59,701 38,398 21,135 3,146 294,107
At 31 December 2024 105,578 85,575 63,504 42,962 21,709 4,256 323,584
Changes in provisions:
Balance at 31 December 2023 (3,034) (1,629) (1,336) (854) (470) (251) (7,574)
Provisions reversed / (additional provisions
charged) 1,035 63 174 73 75 (533) 887
Provisions for finance lease debts written ) ) ) ) ) ) )
off
Balance at 31 December 2024 (1,999) (1,566) (1,162) (781) (395) (784) (6,687)
Net investments in leasing after provisions:
At 31 December 2023 95,885 71,179 58,365 37,544 20,665 2,895 286,533
At 31 December 2024 103,579 84,009 62,342 42,181 21,314 3,472 316,897

101

nan



$IAULIY :; BANKAS NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 DECEMBER 2024
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NOTE 14
FINANCE LEASE RECEIVABLES (CONTINUED)

The Bank
Up to 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years 3-4 years 4-5years Over 5years Total
Gross investments in leasing:
Balance at 31 December 2023 115,673 84,125 66,276 41,377 22,029 3,313 332,793
Change during 2024 6,484 11,932 3,123 4,360 415 1,129 27,443
Balance at 31 December 2024 122,157 96,057 69,399 45,737 22,444 4,442 360,236
Unearned finance income on finance
leases:
Balance at 31 December 2023 (17,642) (11,317) (6,575) (2,979) (894) (167) (39,574)
Change during 2024 1,063 835 680 204 159 (29) 2,922
Balance at 31 December 2024 (16,579) (10,482) (5,895) (2,775) (735) (186) (36,652)
Net investments in leasing before
provisions:
At 31 December 2023 98,031 72,808 59,701 38,398 21,135 3,146 293,219
At 31 December 2024 105,578 85,575 63,504 42,962 21,709 4,256 323,584
Changes in provisions:
Balance at 31 December 2023 (2,225) (1,629) (1,336) (854) (470) (254) (6,768)
Provisions reversed / (additional provisions 209 63 174 73 75 (533) 81
charged)
Provisions for finance lease debts written ) ) ) ) ) ) )
off
Balance at 31 December 2024 (1,996) (1,566) (1,162) (781) (395) (787) (6,687)
Net investments in leasing after provisions:
At 31 December 2023 95,806 71,179 58,365 37,544 20,665 2,892 286,451
At 31 December 2024 103,582 84,009 62,342 42,181 21,314 3,469 316,897
Movements in provision for impairment of finance lease receivables by class are as follows:
Group loss allowance against finance lease receivables
2024 2023
Stagel Stage2 Stage3 Total| Stagel Stage2 Stage3 Total
Loss allowance as at 1 January 2,941 1,077 3,556 7,574 1,881 285 3,134 5,300
Movements with impact to profit or loss:
New loans originated 2,182 66 30 2,278 2,734 474 171 3,379
Loans derecognized during the period (other than w(;:ctfg (500) (236) (3,841) (4.577) (1,385) (89) (297) a,771)
Changes due to change in credit risk (net) (548) (157) 1,670 965 (757) 304 1,257 804
Update in the methodology for loss allowance estimation 886 (30) 396 1,252 468 103 (709) (138)
Total movements with impact to profit or loss: 2,020 (357) (1,745) (82) 1,060 792 422 2,274
Movements without impact to profit or loss:
Loans written-off during the period - - (805) (805) - - - -
Recl assi FXcahdoaosher - - - - - - - -
Total movements without impact to profit or loss: - - (805) (805) - - - -
Loss allowance as at 31 December 4,961 720 1,006 6,687 2,941 1,077 3,556 7,574
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NOTE 14
FINANCE LEASE RECEIVABLES (CONTINUED)

Bank loss allowance against finance lease receivables

2024 2023
Stagel Stage?2 Stage3 Total| Stagel Stage2 Stage3 Total
Loss allowance as at 1 January 2,941 1,074 2,754 6,769 1,881 280 2,333 4,494
Movements with impact to profit or loss:
New loans originated 2,183 66 29 2,278 2,733 465 170 3,368
Loans derecognized during the period (other than Wc::"tf; (501) (235) (3,039) (3,775) (1,385) 88) 297) (1,770)
Changes due to change in credit risk (net) (548) (155) 866 163 (756) 308 1,257 809
Update in the methodology for loss allowance estimation 886 (30) 396 1,252 468 109 (709) (132)
Total movements with impact to profit or loss: 2,020 (354) (1,748) (82) 1,060 794 421 2,275
Movements without impact to profit or loss:
Loans written-off during the period - - - - - - - -
Recl assi FXcahidmotkeg - - - - - - - -
Total movements without impact to profit or loss: - - - - - - - -
Loss allowance as at 31 December 4,961 720 1,006 6,687 2,941 1,074 2,754 6,769

Group loss allowance against finance lease receivables - individuals

2024 2023
Stagel Stage2 Stage3 Total Stagel Stage2 Stage3 Total
Loss allowance as at 1 January 332 70 121 523 82 22 98 202
Movements with impact to profit or loss:
New loans originated 277 5 - 282 247 39 78 364
Loans derecognized during the period (other than w(;:’_tf; (33) ©) (39) (78) (114) (16) (74) (204)
Changes due to change in credit risk (net) 203 (15) (34) 154 (130) (23) 46 (207)
Update in the methodology for loss allowance estimation 8 5 37 50 247 48 27) 268
Total movements with impact to profit or loss: 455 (11) (36) 408 250 48 23 321
Movements without impact to profit or loss:
Loans written-off during the period - - - - - - - -
Recl assi FXcahdoaosher - - - - - - - -
Total movements without impact to profit or loss: - - - - - - - -
Loss allowance as at 31 December 787 59 85 931 332 70 121 523
Bank loss allowance against finance lease receivables i individuals
2024 2023
Stage 1l Stage?2 Stage 3 Total| Stagel Stage2 Stage3 Total
Loss allowance as at 1 January 332 70 121 523 82 22 98 202
Movements with impact to profit or loss:
_ . New loans originated 278 5 - 283 247 39 78 364
Loans derecognized during the period (other than Wc::}fg (34) ©) (39) (79) (114) (16) (74) (204)
Changes due to change in credit risk (net) 203 (15) (34) 154 (130) (23) 46 (207)
Update in the methodology for loss allowance estimation 8 5 37 50 247 48 27) 268
Total movements with impact to profit or loss: 455 (11) (36) 408 250 48 23 321
Movements without impact to profit or loss:
Loans written-off during the period - - - - - - - -
Recl assi FXcanhdoasther - - - - - - - -
Total movements without impact to profit or loss: - - - - - - - -
Loss allowance as at 31 December 787 59 85 931 332 70 121 523
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NOTE 14
FINANCE LEASE RECEIVABLES (CONTINUED)

2024 2023
Stagel Stage?2 Stage3 Total| Stagel Stage2 Stage3 Total
Loss allowance as at 1 January 2,609 1,007 3,435 7,051 1,799 263 3,036 5,098
Movements with impact to profit or loss:
New loans originated 1,905 61 30 1,996 2,487 435 93 3,015
Loans derecognized during the period (other than Wc::ff; (467) (230) (3,802) (4,499) (1,271) (73) (223) (1,567)
Changes due to change in credit risk (net) (751) (142) 1,704 811 (627) 327 1,211 911
Update in the methodology for loss allowance estimation 878 (35) 359 1,202 221 55 (682) (406)
Total movements with impact to profit or loss: 1,565 (346) (1,709) (490) 810 744 399 1,953
Movements without impact to profit or loss:
Loans written-off during the period - - (805) (805) - - - -
Recl assi FXcahdoaosher - - - - - - - -
Total movements without impact to profit or loss: - - (805) (805) - - - -
Loss allowance as at 31 December 4,174 661 921 5,756 2,609 1,007 3,435 7,051
Bank loss allowance against finance lease receivables i business customers
2024 2023
Stagel Stage?2 Stage3 Total| Stagel Stage?2 Stage3 Total
Loss allowance as at 1 January 2,609 1,004 2,633 6,246 1,799 258 2,235 4,292
Movements with impact to profit or loss:
New loans originated 1,905 61 29 1,995 2,486 426 92 3,004
Loans derecognized during the period (other than w(;:’_tf(; (467) (229) (3,000) (3,696) (1.271) (72) (223) (1,566)
Changes due to change in credit risk (net) (751) (140) 900 9 (626) 331 1,211 916
Update in the methodology for loss allowance estimation 878 (35) 359 1,202 221 61 (682) (400)
Total movements with impact to profit or loss: 1,565 (343) (1,712) (490) 810 746 398 1,954
Movements without impact to profit or loss:
Loans written-off during the period - - - - - - - -
Recl assi FXcahdoasher - - - - - - - -
Total movements without impact to profit or loss: - - - - - - - -
Loss allowance as at 31 December 4,174 661 921 5,756 2,609 1,004 2,633 6,246
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31 DECEMBER 2024

(All amounts are in EUR thousand, unless otherwise stated)

NOTE 15
INVESTMENT SECURITIES

1 non-trading equities. The Group chose to measure these securities at fair value through profit or loss;
1 Investments in units of funds;
f Investments in alternative fund units;
1 debt securities at fair value through other comprehensive income;
1  debt securities at amortized cost (held to collect cash flows).
2024 2023
Group Bank Group Bank
INVESTMENT SECURITIES AT FAIR VALUE:
Non-trading securities at fair value:
Debt securities at fair value through other comprehensive income: 40,994 40,994 71,740 71,740
Government bonds 24,327 24,327 53,949 53,949
Corporate bonds 16,667 16,667 17,791 17,791
Non-trading equity securities at fair value through profit or loss 2,874 2,626 2,760 2,642
Total non-trading securities at fair value 43,868 43,620 74,500 74,382
TOTAL INVESTMENT SECURITIES AT FAIR VALUE 43,868 43,620 74,500 74,382
INVESTMENT SECURITIES AT AMORTIZED COST:
Securities at amortized cost:
Debt securities: 726,937 716,864 751,227 739,869
Government bonds 695,622 690,083 663,211 657,445
Corporate bonds 31,315 26,781 88,016 82,424
Total securities at amortized cost 726,937 716,864 751,227 739,869
TOTAL INVESTMENT SECURITIES AT AMORTIZED COST 726,937 716,864 751,227 739,869
Breakdown of debt securities by time remaining to maturity:
Debt securities at fair value through other comprehensive income:
Short-term (up to 1 year) 11,770 11,770 11,770 11,770
Long-term (over 1 year) 29,224 29,224 59,970 59,970
Total debt securities at fair value through other comprehensive income 40,994 40,994 71,740 71,740
Debt securities at amortized cost:
Short-term (up to 1 year) 196,312 195,334 274,369 273,965
Long-term (over 1 year) 530,625 521,530 476,858 465,904
Total debt securities at amortized cost 726,937 716,864 751,227 739,869

There were no pledged bonds as of December 31, 2024. As at 31 December 2023 government bonds at amortized cost with a carrying
value of EUR 517,148 thousand were pledged for the borrowing under third series of the targeted longer-term refinancing operations

(TLTRO-III) program of the European Central Bank (see Note 20).

Staging and i mpairment of the Groupds/ Bankés investment debt se
Group investment debt securities at fair value through other comprehensive income |
2024 2023
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
Government bonds, gross 24,327 - - 24,327 53,949 - - 53,949
Less: allowance for impairment - - - - - - - -
Government bonds, net 24,327 - - 24,327 53,949 - - 53,949
Corporate bonds, gross 15,756 964 - 16,720 14,986 2,969 - 17,955
Less: allowance for impairment (18) (35) - (53) (29) (145) - (164)
Corporate bonds, net 15,738 929 - 16,667 14,967 2,824 - 17,791
Total, gross 40,083 964 - 41,047 68,935 2,969 - 71,904
Less: allowance for impairment (18) (35) - (53) (29) (145) - (164)
Total, net 40,065 929 - 40,994 68,916 2,824 - 71,740
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NOTE 15
INVESTMENT SECURITIES (CONTINUED)

Bank investment debt securities at fair value through other comprehensive income |

2024 2023
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
Government bonds, gross 24,327 - - 24,327 53,949 - - 53,949
Less: allowance for impairment - - - - - - - -
Government bonds, net 24,327 - - 24,327 53,949 - - 53,949
Corporate bonds, gross 15,756 964 - 16,720 14,986 2,969 - 17,955
Less: allowance for impairment (18) (35) - (53) (29) (145) - (164)
Corporate bonds, net 15,738 929 - 16,667 14,967 2,824 - 17,791
Total, gross 40,083 964 - 41,047 68,935 2,969 - 71,904
Less: allowance for impairment (18) (35) - (53) (29) (145) - (164)
Total, net 40,065 929 - 40,994 68,916 2,824 - 71,740
Group investment debt securities at amortized cost
2024 2023
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
Government bonds, gross 695,628 - - 695,628 663,221 - - 663,221
Less: allowance for impairment (6) - - (6) (20) - - (20)
Government bonds, net 695,622 - - 695,622 663,211 - - 663,211
Corporate bonds, gross 31,335 - 1,023 32,358 88,071 - 1,020 89,091
Less: allowance for impairment (20) - (2,023) (1,043) (55) - (1,020) (2,075)
Corporate bonds, net 31,315 - - 31,315 88,016 - - 88,016
Total, gross 726,963 - 1,023 727,986 751,292 - 1,020 752,312
Less: allowance for impairment (26) - (2,023) (1,049) (65) - (1,020) (1,085)
Total, net 726,937 - - 726,937 751,227 - = 751,227
Bank investment debt securities at amortized cost
2024 2023
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
Government bonds, gross 690,087 - - 690,087 657,451 - - 657,451
Less: allowance for impairment 4 - - 4 (6) - - (6)
Government bonds, net 690,083 - - 690,083 657,445 - - 657,445
Corporate bonds, gross 26,796 - - 26,796 82,474 - - 82,474
Less: allowance for impairment (15) - - (15) (50) - - (50)
Corporate bonds, net 26,781 - - 26,781 82,424 - - 82,424
Total, gross 716,883 - - 716,883 739,925 - - 739,925
Less: allowance for impairment (29) - - (29) (56) - - (56)
Total, net 716,864 - - 716,864 739,869 - - 739,869
Reconciliation of allowance for impairment of investment debt securities is presented in the table below:
2024 2023
Group Bank Group Bank
Allowance for impairment of investment debt securltle‘]s as of 1 1,249 220 1,629 509
anuary:
Change in allowance for impairment (247) (247) (379) (379)
Update in the methodology for loss allowance estimation - - - -
Change in FX rates - Q) -
Impact of IFRS 9 application together with IFRS 17 - -
Allowance for impairment of investment debt securities as of 31. 1,102 73 1,249 220
December:
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NOTE 15

INVESTMENT SECURITIES (CONTINUED)

Breakdown of the Groupds/Bankds i n202dand®®@ht securities as at
2024 2023
Group Bank Group Bank
Investment securities at fair value:
Debt securities 40,994 40,994 71,740 71,740
AAA - - - -
from AA- to AA+ - - - -
from A- to A+ 29,517 29,517 58,981 58,981
from BBB- to BBB+ 5,854 5,854 5,591 5,591
from BB- to BB+ 4,695 4,695 4,345 4,345
lower than BB- - - - -
no rating 928 928 2,823 2,823
Equities 2,874 2,626 2,760 2,642
listed 246 246 241 241
unlisted 540 292 501 383
units of investment funds 2,088 2,088 2,018 2,018
Total investment securities at fair value 43,868 43,620 74,500 74,382
Investment securities at amortized cost:
Debt securities 726,937 716,864 751,227 739,869
AAA - - - -
from AA- to AA+ 203 - 2,271 2,067
from A- to A+ 699,217 694,562 670,920 664,946
from BBB- to BBB+ 26,402 22,302 76,919 72,856
from BB- to BB+ 1,115 - 1,117 -
lower than BB- - - - -
no rating - - - -
Total investment securities at amortized cost 726,937 716,864 751,227 739,869
No material reclassifications between securities portfolios were performed during 2024 and 2023.
Movements in the financial instruments revaluation reserve:
The Group The Bank
Financial Financial Financial Financial
instruments Deferred income instruments instruments Deferred income instruments
revaluation tax asset revaluation revaluation tax asset revaluation
reserve, before (liabilities) reserve, after| reserve, before (liabilities) reserve, after
taxes taxes taxes taxes
1 January 2023 (10,139) 2,028 (8,111) (10,139) 2,028 (8,111)
Revaluation 716 - 716 716 - 716
Sale or redemption of securities 2,640 - 2,640 2,640 - 2,640
Deferred income tax - (671) (671) - (671) (671)
31 December 2023 (6,783) 1,357 (5,426) (6,783) 1,357 (5,426)
Revaluation 3,026 - 3,026 3,026 - 3,026
Sale or redemption of securities 20 - 20 20 - 20
Deferred income tax - (609) (609) - (609) (609)
31 December 2024 (3,737) 748 (2,989) (3,737) 748 (2,989)
Banldhgd Gr aashfiodvs and other movements of investment securities at amortized cost:
2024 2023
Group Bank Group Bank
As at 1 January 751,227 739,869 969,036 956,332
Acquisitions 438,515 316,044 91,408 64,157
Redemptions (430,154) (313,350) (292,941) (279,209)
Disposals (22,591) (21,781) - -
Accrued interest 14,042 13,820 8,343 8,090
Received coupon payment (19,620) (17,776) (10,082) (9,777)
Foreign currency exchange rate impact - - - -
Impairment (22) 38 277 276
Reclassifications (4,460) - (14,814) -
As at 31 December 726,937 716,864 751,227 739,869
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NOTE 16
INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

The Group consists of the Bank and its subsidiaries listed below in this note. All of the entities comprising the Group operate in Lithuania,
except for SB Draudimas GD UAB which operates in Latvia and Estonia through branches.

Carrying amount
SR 31 December 2024 31 December 2023
equity
Bank Gross amount Impairment Net carrying Gross amount Impairment Net carrying
amount amount
Investments in consolidated directly controlled
subsidiaries:
SB Draudimas GD UAB 100.00 % 37,910 - 37,910 32,528 - 32,528
SB Lizingas UAB 100.00 % 3,106 - 3,106 2,964 - 2,964
SB Asset Management UAB 100.00 % 37,458 37,458 35,997 - 35,997
SB Turto Fondas UAB 100.00 % 5,325 - 5,325 5,083 - 5,083
Total investments in subsidiaries usmganee(zrt:loté/ 83,799 ) 83,799 76,572 : 76,572
Investment in non-consolidated subsidiaries
SB Modernizavimo Fondas UAB 100.00 % 170 - 170 100 - 100
SB Modernizavimo Fondas 2 UAB 100.00 % 100 - 100 - - -
Total investments in subsidiaries at fair value 270 - 270 100 - 100
Total investments in subsidiaries 84,069 - 84,069 76,672 - 76,672
Reconciliation of Bankds investment in subsidiary amounts is pr
2024 2023
Net book value at 1 January 76,672 32,668
Share of the profit or loss of investments in subsidiaries accounted for using the equity method 7,227 (4,267)
Establishment of subsidiary 100 400
Dividends paid by the subsidiaries - (10,000)
Increase of share capital in subsidiaries in cash 70 17,706
Il ncrease of share capital in subsidiaries due t - 40,165
Net book value at 31 December 84,069 76,672

Business combination transaction

On 1 December 2023 the Group has completed merger of retail businesses with Invalda INVL. After completion of this transaction Group
entities have acquired parts of insurance and pension f wmth&ldea nd
INVL. Gr oupb6s management durirg this erangattiondeeodomit hesotirces, processes and possibility to generate
economic benefits using economic resources and processes were obtained therefore according to criteria set in IFRS 3 it is considered

that during transaction businesses meeting business definition in IFRS 3 were acquired. Transaction price i EUR 41,760 thousand. From

this amount EUR 40,165 thousand was paid using new 62,270,383 units share emission issued by the Bank (see Note 27), remaining

part (EUR 1,595 thousand) was paidincash. Af t er thi s transaction Banko6s subsidiary SB
andthird-pi I | ar pension funds and investment funds in Lithuania and I
its life insurance business in Baltic countries (operating in Latvia and Estonia through its own branches). The Bank has capitalized
liabilities of subsidiaries arising from the transaction during December 2023, also due to regulatory requirements share capitals of these
subsidiaries were increased by cash as well, because of these reasons value of subsidiariesi n B a n k @lsne finanaial statements

have increased significantly as the Bank is accounting subsidiaries at equity method. The business combination was accounted using
acquisition method. Minority interest has not originated because of this transaction. Acquisition costs directly attributable with the
transaction amounting to EUR 2,500 thousand, wer e expensed and accounted within Groupos
expensesbo.

108



$IAULIY =; BANKAS NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 DECEMBER 2024

(Al amounts are in EUR thousand, unless otherwise stated)

NOTE 16
INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)

According to clauses in |IFRS 3 6Business combinatiioms@Gr ¢ hgd Groarm
financial statements and measure two separate businesses acquired as one transaction. Fair values of assets, liabilities and net assets
of this business acquisition transaction are provided in table below.

In thousand EUR
Acquisition date for consolidation purposes 1 December 2023
. . Funds management .
Fair value Group Insurance business . Retail support
business
Funds management rights 30,598 - 30,598 -
Intangible assets 196 73 123 -
Property, plant and equipment 105 76 26 3
Identified deferred tax assets 3,501 - 3,501 -
Financial assets_ accounted at fair 133,240 133,126 114 }
value through profit and loss
Reinsurance assets 4 4 - -
Trade amounts receivable 63 54 9 -
Prepayments 46 38 8 -
Cash and cash equivalents 7,203 6,652 551 -
Total assets 174,956 140,023 34,930 3
Liabilities for remaining coverage 47,775 47,775 -
Liabilities for incurred claims 1,148 1,148 - -
Investments contracts liabilities 82,983 82,983 - -
Identified deferred tax liabilities 4,589 - 4,589 -
Trade accounts payable 66 43 23 -
Other amounts payable 914 255 659 -
Accrued expenses 11 11 - -
Total liabilities 137,486 132,215 5,271 -
Total net assets 37,470 7,808 29,659 &
Goodwill 4,290 1,147 3,143 -
Total consideration paid 41,760 8,955 32,802 3
Consideration paid in cash 1,595 1,595 - -
Other nettings of mutual transactions 40,165 7,360 32,802 -
Less: cash acquired (7,203) (6,652) (551)
Total consideration paid in cash less (5.608) (5,057) (551) }
cash acquired

Groupb6s management deeodwdl ansing from thicbusinass tomiination transaction in its financial statements as
significant synergies and increased efficiency is expected from the transaction through usage of broad retail outlets network of the Group
for distribution of products which were previously not distributed proposing broader product portfolio to existing and new clients, using
possibilities of cross-selling, using knowledge and experience of employees, joining Group from Invalda INVL, using increased scale of
activities of subsidiary distributing insurance products. Funds management rights recognized from this transaction include pensions funds
and investment funds management rights accounted on funds management business acquisition moment. Funds management rights
acquired during business combination transaction were capitalized at fair value determined on acquisition date and allocated to intangible
assets. After initial recognition funds management rights are accounted at acquisition cost less amortization and impairment losses
accrued. Funds management rights are amortized over 25 years based on average time left till pension age for existing client base.

Methods used to determine fair value of assets acquired and liabilities assumed during the business combination are described in table
below:

Assets acquired and liabilities assumed Valuation

Financial assets were assessed based on quoted prices in active markets. Price of financial
assets was determined in sell and buy prices range calculating average price.

Due to insignificance and/or nature of other assets it was considered that carrying values of
other assets acquired approximate their fair values.

For valuation of theses liabilities Solvency Il technical provision valuation methodology was
Liabilities for remaining coverage used with some corrections (limits for contributions not used, different capital cost rate and
increased target solvency ratio used)

These liabilities were assessed based on future expected cashflows and in addition
increased by risk adjustment calculated based on technics of solvency level.

For valuation of theses liabilities Solvency Il technical provision valuation methodology was
Investments contracts liabilities used with some corrections (limits for contributions not used, different capital cost rate and
increased target solvency ratio used)

Due to insignificance and/or nature of other liabilities it was considered that carrying values
of other liabilities assumed approximate their fair values.

Financial assets

Other assets

Liabilities for damage incurred

Other liabilities
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NOTE 16
INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)

In tables below information on revenue of insurance business acquired and revenue and profit (loss) of funds management business
during period after business acquisition transaction is disclosed. Operating results of insurance business after the business combination
and revenue as well as operating results before the business combination together with revenue and operating results of funds
management business before the business combination are not disclosed as due to technical and administrative limitations it is not
possible to obtain such information without disproportionately large costs.

In thousand EUR 2023.12.01-2023.12.31
Amounts relating to changes in LFRC

- Expected benefits incurred 258
- Expected expenses incurred 328
- Change in the risk adjustment (623)
- CSM recognized 172
Recovery of acquisition cash flows 3
Total insurance revenue for portfolio acquired on 1 December 2023 138
In thousand EUR |  2023.12.01-2023.12.31
Revenue of fund management business 505
The business combination costs attributed to fund management business (1 016)
Net losses of fund management business (1 230)
Net losses of fund management business less the business combination costs (214)

Special purpose entity - securitization

On April 5, 2022, the Bank established a special purpose entity i UAB "SB Modernization Fund," and on February 21, 2024, a second
special purpose entity i the Securitization UAB "SB Modernization Fund 2" (hereinafter collectively referred to as the SBMF Funds). The
purpose of establishing both special purpose entities, the SBMF Funds, is to manage financing funds for multi-apartment building
renovation projects, which lend the attracted funds from commercial and institutional investors to energy efficiency improvement projects
for multi-apartment buildings in Lithuania. As the leading financier of multi-apartment building renovations in the country, the Bank is the
founder of the SBMF Funds and the administrator of renovation loans, while the SBMF Funds act as legal managers. The Bank earns
revenue from its participation in this activity through administration fees for loans (claims) transferred to the SBMF Funds, as well as
interest income from loans granted to the SBMF Funds. According to agreements with investors and the provisions of IFRS 10, the Bank
does not have control over the SBMF Funds; therefore, these entities are not consolidated in the Group's consolidated financial
statements.

The table below represents maximum credit risk exposure of Bank at 31 December 2024 related to securitization project for which
implementation SB Modernizavimo Fondas UAB was established without taking into account any collateral held or other credit
enhancements attached. For on-balance sheet assets, the exposures presented above are net carrying amount as reported in the balance
sheet. In addition to items disclosed in table below, SB Modernizavimo Fondas UAB together with SB Modernizavimo Fondas 2, UAB
held deposits in amount of EUR 52 665t housand at Bank as Bankés liabilities di
c ust ome3l Patembhar 2024. For more information on SB Modernizavimo Fondas UAB and SB Modernizavimo Fondas 2, UAB
balances please see also Notes 13 and 30.

Statement of financial position line Carrying value
Shares in equity of subsidiary Investments in subsidiaries and associates 270
Loans to subsidiary Loans to customers 6,137
Off-balance commitments to grant loans to - 12,000
subsidiary
Off-balance commitments to grant loans to users - 76,458
of renovation loans

During years 2024 and 2023 the Group has sold claims rights to multi-apartment buildings renovation loans (retaining loans servicing
rights) to unconsolidated special purpose entity SB Modernizavimo Fondas UAB. Carrying value of such claim rights on sale date
amounted to EUR 198,471 thousand in 2024 (in 2023 1 EUR 142,196 thousand). Due to sale of these claim rights no gain or loss was
recognized. For the year ended 31 December 2024 the Group has generated management fees of EUR 4,264 thousand for management
of transferred claim rights portfolios (in 2023 7 EUR 1,742 thousand). Fair value of managed claim rights portfolios amounted to EUR
350,830 thousand as at 31 December 2024 (as at 31 December 2023 i EUR 185,028 thousand). In 2024 the Group recognized EUR
2,761 thousand interest income from loans granted to SB Modernizavimo Fondas UAB (in 2023 7 EUR 925 thousand).
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NOTE 16
INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)

Changes in Group structure

Following strategy to optimize Group's structure Sandworks UAB was liquidated in first quarter of 2022, Gi aul i o) Banko
Valdymas UAB was liquidated in first quarter of 2023.In2024subsi di ary of the Bank wasliquiddtedO banko

Tests of subsidiaries impairment

Bankdéds subsidiary SB Draudi mas GD UAB was tested for i m@@Réand3hent
December 2023. No impairment was determined at these dates. Embedded value equals to the value of in-force business plus the value

of the free capital. Value of in-force business is calculated using management estimations of the cash flows from the insurance portfolio

and the income from capital-in-lock discounted to net present value using the discount rate (2024: 9.40%, 2023: 9.58%) that reflects
current market assessment of the time value of money and the related risks. The assumption used is that inflation will be 2% throughout

the entire forecast period. When performing a sensitivity analysis on the discount rate and testing the asset value with a 2% increased
discount rate, no indications of impairment were identified, and the calculated value remained reasonable and economically justified. This
analysis confirms that the asset value remains stable despite changes in the discount rate, ensuring that there is no need to recognize

an impairment loss.

Bankds subsidiary SB Asset Management UAB was tested for impai.:
2024. No impairment was determined at this date. For the sensitivity analysis for individual cash generating units, a discount rate of 2%

was applied. The analysis did not reveal any signs of depreciation, and the estimated value remained reasonable and without loss of
economic rationale. Cash flows used in the calculation were based on forecasts in budget for 2025-2030 appr oved by t he
senior management. The long-term growth rate used is 2% but reducing it to 1% or even zero does not show indications of impairment.
Forecasted cash flows were discounted to net present value using the discount rate equal 13% (2023: 16.88%) that reflects current
market assessment of the time value of money and the related risks.

No impairment triggers were identified regarding other subsidiaries.
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Softwarlei caen Fundnanagement Goodv Tot
Group Bank Gr o1 Ban Gr o1 Ban Gr o1 Ban

As at 1202
Cost 15,452 14,360 - - 1,352 - 16,804 14,360
Accumubambedi za|l (8521) (7,910) - - - - (8,521) (7,910)
Nebook \ 6,931 6,450 - - 1,352 - 8,283 6,450

Year ended 3203
Net book value 6,931 6,450 - - 1,352 - 8,283 6,450
Acqui sit 5,356 5,029 - - - - 5,356 5,029
Acquisitions (from business 196 ) 30,508 ) 4,290 35,084 )

combination, see Note 16)

Wr i-a fef s | (1,952) (2,931) - - - - (1,952) (1,931)
Amorticechan @o¢g (1,531) (2,399) (102) - - - (1,633) (1,399)
Net book3tabDee( 9000 8,149 30,496 - 5,642 - 45,138 8,149
As at 31 Dez
Cost 19,052 17,458 30,598 - 5,642 - 55,292 17,458
Accumubambedi zal| (10,052) (9,309) (102) - - - (10,154) (9,309)
Net bool 9,000 8,149 30,496 - 5,642 - 45,138 8,149
Year ended 3204
Net book value 9,000 8,149 30,496 - 5,642 - 45,138 8,149
Acqui sit 4,524 4,032 - - - - 4,524 4,032

Acquisitions (from business
combination, see Note 16)

Wr i-d fef s | (2,167) (2,163) - - - - (2,167) (2,163)

Amortichai @o¢ (2,655) (2,159) (1,223) - - - (3,878) (2,159)

Net book vDeelcueem 8,702 7,859 29,273 - 5,642 - 43,617 7,859
As at 31 Dez2

Cost 21,409 19,327 30,598 - 5,642 - 57,649 19,327

Accumubabedi zal (12,707) (11,468) (1,325) - - - (14,032) (11,468)

Nebook | 8,702 7,859 29,273 - 5,642 - 43,617 7,859

Economic | 3i9 3i9 28
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NOTE 17
INTANGIBLE ASSETS (CONTINUED)
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Goodwill and funds management rights impairment test

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill and fund management rights are allocated to two cash generating units - subsidiaries of
the Bank GD SB Draudimas UAB and SB Asset Management UAB. Recoverable amount of GD SB Draudimas UAB is determined by
applying the embedded value calculations. Embedded value equals to the value of in-force business plus the value of the free capital.
Value of in-force business is calculated using management estimations of the cash flows from the insurance portfolio and the income
from capital-in-lock discounted to net present value using the discount rate of 9.40% (2023: 9.58%) that reflects current market
assessment of the time value of money and the risks related to this cash generating unit.

Recoverable amount of SB Draudimas UAB is determined by applying the discounted cash flows calculations. Cash flows used in the
calculation were based on forecasts in budget for 2025-2030 approved by the s u b s i dsengor nyadagement. Forecasted cash flows
were discounted to net present value using the discount rate equal 13% (2023: 16.88%) that reflects current market assessment of the
time value of money and the risks related to this cash generating unit.

No impairment loss for goodwill and funds management rights was identified in 2024 and 2023 as a result of the impairment test.

NOTE 18
PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
Buildings, . L
Group premiseslgﬂg Vehicles equiporLf(Ie(;met Constrgrc;lgorréslg Total
As at 1 January 2023:
Cost 7,580 2,709 6,634 76 16,999
Accumulated depreciation (2,608) (1,125) (4,782) - (8,515)
Net book value 4,972 1,584 1,852 76 8,484
Year ended 31 December 2023:
Net book value at 1 January 4,972 1,584 1,852 76 8,484
Acquisitions 279 756 592 - 1,627
Acquisitions (from business combination, ) ) 12 ) 12
see Note 16)
Reclassifications - (29) - - (19)
Disposals and write-offs (11) (383) (442) (76) (912)
Depreciation charge (166) (380) (768) - (1,314)
Net book value at 31 December 5,074 1,558 1,246 - 7,878
As at 31 December 2023:
Cost 7,848 3,063 6,796 - 17,707
Accumulated depreciation (2,774) (1,505) (5,550) - (9,829)
Net book value 5,074 1,558 1,246 - 7,878
Year ended 31 December 2024:
Net book value at 1 January 5,074 1,558 1246 - 7,878
Acquisitions - 86 811 - 897
Acquisitions (from business combination,
see Note 16) ) ) ) ) )
Reclassifications - 12 - - 12
Disposals and write-offs - (279) (299) - (478)
Depreciation charge (166) (244) (335) - (745)
Net book value at 31 December 4,908 1,233 1423 - 7,564
As at 31 December 2024:
Cost 7,848 2,982 7,308 - 18,138
Accumulated depreciation (2,940) (1,749) (5,885) - (10,574)
Net book value 4,908 1,233 1,423 - 7,564
Economic life (in years) 15-50 5-12 3-20 - -
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NOTE 18
PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (CONTINUED)
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Right-of-use assets and lease liabilities

From 1 January 2019, leases are recognized as a right-of-use asset and a corresponding liability at the date at which the leased asset
is available for use by the Group. The Group leases various offices, equipment and vehicles. Lease terms are negotiated on an individual
basis and contain a wide range of different terms and conditions. Rental contracts are typically made for fixed periods of 4 months to 8
years but may have extension options. The terminations of agreements by lessee mostly from 3 to 6 months notice. The lease agreements
do not impose any covenants other than the security interests in the leased assets that are held by the lessor. Leased assets may not

be used as security for borrowing purposes.

Group: right-of-use assets Buildings, premises Vehicles ‘Offlce Total
and land equipment
As at 1 January 2024
Cost 16,063 511 1,597 18,171
Accumulated depreciation (9,271) (183) (814) (10,268)
Net book value 6,792 328 783 7,903
Year ended 31 December 2024:
Net book value at 1 January 6,792 328 783 7,903
Contract additions 3,115 3 315 3,433
Contract terminations (584) - - (584)
Depreciation charge (2,178) (74) (803) (3,055)
Net book value at 31 December 7,145 257 295 7,697
As at 31 December 2024:
Cost 18,594 514 1,912 21,020
Accumulated depreciation (11,449) (257) (1,617) (13,323)
Net book value 7,145 257 295 7,697
Economic life (in years) 2-20 2-7 3 -
Amounts of |l ease l|liabilities recognized in Groupb6s statement
31 December 2024 31 December 2023
Lease liabilities before prepayments 8,060 7,923
Short-term (up to 1 year) 3,121 2,965
Long-term (2-5 years) 4,918 4,958
Long-term (over 5 years) 21 -
Prepayments paid (771) (699)
Lease liabilities, carrying value 7,289 7,224
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NOTE 18

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (CONTINUED)

Bank Bqulngs_and Vehicles Office equipment Construction in Total
premises progress
As at 1 January 2023:
Cost 7,580 2,079 6,220 76 15,955
Accumulated depreciation (2,608) (772) (4,484) - (7,864)
Net book value 4,972 1,307 1,736 76 8,091
Year ended 31 December 2023:
Net book value at 1 January 4,972 1,307 1,736 76 8,091
Acquisitions 279 676 535 - 1,490
Disposals and write-offs - (29) - - (19)
Depreciation charge (11) (222) (437) (76) (746)
Reclassification to assets held for sale (166) (308) (725) - (1,199)
Net book value at 31 December 5,074 1,434 1,109 - 7,617
As at 31 December 2023:
Cost 7,848 2,514 6,318 - 16,680
Accumulated depreciation (2,774) (1,080) (5,209) - (9,063)
Net book value 5,074 1,434 1,109 - 7,617
Year ended 31 December 2024:
Net book value at 1 January 5,074 1,434 1,109 - 7,617
Acquisitions - 86 776 - 862
Disposals and write-offs - 12 - - 12
Depreciation charge - (159) (189) - (348)
Reclassifications (166) (210) (373) - (749)
Net book value at 31 December 4,908 1,163 1,323 - 7,394
As at 31 December 2024:
Cost 7,848 2,453 6,905 - 17,206
Accumulated depreciation (2,940) (2,290) (5,582) - (9,812)
Net book value 4,908 1,163 1,323 - 7,394
Economic life (in years) 15-50 5-12 3-20 - -
Bank: right-of-use assets Buildings, premises Vehicles Office equipment Total
and land
As at 1 January 2024:
Cost 14,322 511 1,597 16,430
Accumulated depreciation (8,348) (183) (814) (9,345)
Net book value 5,974 328 783 7,085
Year ended 31 December 2024:
Net book value at 1 January 5,974 328 783 7,085
Contract additions 2,864 3 315 3,182
Contract terminations - = - -
Depreciation charge (2,095) (74) (803) (2,972)
Net book value at 31 December 6,743 257 295 7,295
As at 31 December 2024:
Cost 17,186 514 1,912 19,612
Accumulated depreciation (10,443) (257) (1,617) (12,317)
Net book value 6,743 257 295 7,295
Economic life (in years) 2-20 2-7 - -
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NOTE 18
PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (CONTINUED)

Amounts of |l ease |iabilities recognized in Bankdés statement
31 December 2024 31 December 2023
Lease liabilities before prepayments 7,229 7,085
Short-term (up to 1 year) 2,800 2,611
Long-term (2-5 years) 4,429 4,474
Long-term (over 5 years) - -
Prepayments received (776) (692)
Lease liabilities, carrying value 6,453 6,393

Please see Note 10 for reconciliation of movements lease liabilities.
As at 31 December 2024 and 31 December 2023, there were no property, plant and equipment pledged to third parties.

Future minimum lease payments to be received under non-cancellable lease agreements for the Bank and the Group were as follows
(this includes investment property disclosed in Note 26):

| 2024 2023
up to 1 year 1-5 years over 5 years up to 1 year 1-5 years over 5 years
Group 149 370 27 161 128 5
Bank 149 370 27 157 482 97
NOTE 19
OTHER ASSETS
2024 2023
Group Bank Group Bank
Financial assets:
Amounts receivable 7,258 6,559 7,351 8,289
Breakdown of financial assets according to maturity
Short-term (up to 1 year) 4,922 4,223 5,517 6,455
Long-term (over 1 year) 2,336 2,336 1,834 1,834
Non-financial assets: 10,043 8,505 12,392 10,681
Breakdown of non-financial assets according to maturity
Short-term (up to 1 year) 7,565 6,232 10,261 8,685
Long-term (over 1 year) 2,478 2,273 2,131 1,996
Inventories 114 - 114 -
Deferred charges 4,222 3,674 3,529 3,424
Assets under reinsurance and insurance contracts 121 - 153 -
Prepayments 1,533 782 2,225 1,000
Foreclosed assets 228 224 168 164
Other 3,825 3,825 6,203 6,093
TOTAL OTHER ASSETS 17,301 15,064 19,743 18,970

Balances of other financial assets include impairment. Reconciliation of allowance for impairment of other financial assets is presented
in the table below:

Group Bank

Allowance for impairment of other financial assets as of 1 January 2023: 506 489
Change in allowance for impairment 618 618

Other financial assets written-off during the period (12) (12)

Reclassifications and other movements 6 6

Allowance for impairment of other financial assets as of 31 December 2023 1,118 1,101
Change in allowance for impairment (120) (120)

Other financial assets written-off during the period (23) (6)

Reclassifications and other movements - -

Allowance for impairment of other financial assets as of 31 December 2024: 975 975
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NOTE 19
OTHER ASSETS (CONTINUED)

I nventories relate to real estate projects under devel dopdarUAB.
All inventories are accounted at lower of cost and net realizable value. Inventories are not pledged.

Assets held for sale and liabilities related to assets held for sale

Assets held for sale consist of:

| 2024] 2023

Group Bank Group Bank

Assets related to subsidiaries classified as held for sale - - - -
Real estate classified as held for sale 150 150 150 150

Total assets classified as held for sale 150 150 150 150

Liabilities attributable to subsidiaries classified as held for sale - - - -

Real estate properties that are planned to be sold within one year are included in assets classified as held for sale. They are included in
Traditional banking operations and lending segment. As of 31 December 2024, such real estate assets consisted of one property with a
fair value of EUR 180 thousand (as of 31 December 2023: one property with a fair value of EUR 180 thousand). No impairment expense
related to the revaluation these properties down to the realizable value was recognized in 2024 (2023: no impairment expense was
recognized). No income or expenses related to these properties were recorded in profit or loss of discontinued operations. Valuations

performed by Groupbés employees are used t o raparatieespace indtheds,ni.e aludtiana b |

techniques attributable to Level 3 are mostly used valuation techniques.

2024 2023
Group Bank Group Bank
Correspondent accounts and deposits of other banks and financial institutions:
Correspondent accounts and demand deposits 27,918 30,545 27,572 33,894
Term deposits 18,729 18,729 25,047 25,047
Total correspondent accounts and deposits of other banks ar_]d f|_nan0|a| 46,647 49,274 52,619 58,941
institutions
Due to central bank - - 491,757 491,757
Loans received from:
Other organizations 4,315 4,315 8,106 8,106
International organizations 14,898 14,898 17,512 17,512
Total loans received 19,213 19,213 25,618 25,618
Total 65,860 68,487 569,994 576,316
Breakdown of due to other banks and financial institutions according to maturity
Short-term (up to 1 year) 50,596 53,223 555,587 561,909
Long-term (over 1 year) 15,264 15,264 14,407 14,407
Total 65,860 68,487 569,994 576,316

On 28th June 2023 the Bank has repaid a EUR 150 million loan borrowed under the ECB's TLTRO Il program. After this repayment the
outstanding borrowing on the balance sheet under third series of the targeted longer-term refinancing operations (TLTRO-III) program of
the European Central Bank as at 31 December 2023 amounted to EUR 479 million. All obligations related to the TLTRO Il program are
set to be fulfilled by December 31, 2024. As of December 31, 2023, Securities with a carrying value of EUR 517,148 thousand were
placed as a collateral for these borrowings.
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2024 2023
Group Bank Group Bank
Demand deposits:
National government institutions 52,292 52,292 56,135 56,135
Local government institutions 125,605 125,605 121,886 121,886
Governmental and municipal companies 25,049 25,049 38,209 38,209
Corporate entities 693,342 693,461 628,408 632,159
Non-profit organizations 34,370 34,370 35,780 35,780
Individuals 707,909 707,909 711,184 711,184
Unallocated amounts due to customers 9,421 9,421 16,214 16,714
Total demand deposits 1,647,988 1,648,107 1,607,816 1,612,067
Term deposits:
National government institutions 8,879 8,879 2,519 2,519
Local government institutions 2,436 2,436 2,316 2,316
Governmental and municipality companies 6,657 6,657 3,831 3,831
Corporate entities 374,098 379,298 336,944 336,944
Non-profit organizations 17,887 17,887 8,278 8,278
Individuals 1,480,027 1,480,027 1,200,953 1,200,953
Total term deposits 1,889,984 1,895,184 1,554,841 1,554,841
Total 3,537,972 3,543,291 3,162,657 3,166,908
Breakdown of due to customers according to maturity
Short-term (up to 1 year) 3,267,055 3,272,374 2,917,233 2,921,484
Long-term (over 1 year) 270,917 270,917 245,424 245,424
Total 3,637,972 3,543,291 3,162,657 3,166,908
2024 2023
Group Bank Group Bank
Special funds 23,037 23,037 15,718 15,718
Lending funds - - - -
Total 23,037 23,037 15,718 15,718
Breakdown of special and lending funds according to maturity
Short-term (up to 1 year) 23,037 23,037 15,718 15,718
Long-term (over 1 year) - - - -
23,037 23,037 15,718 15,718

The special funds consist of the funds from the mandatory social and health insurance funds. The special funds have to be returned to
the institutions which have placed them upon the first requirement of the latter.
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NOTE 23
DEBT SECURITIES IN ISSUE

As of 31 December 2020 Bank had 10 year bond issue of EUR 20,000 thousand (ISIN code LT0000404287). The bonds were issued on
23 December 2019, annual interest rate is 6.15%. The Bank has a right to call the bonds after 5 years. From 29 April 2020 this issue was
listed on Nasdaq Baltic Bond List.

On 29 September 2021 Bank has issued EUR 75,000 thousand senior preferred debt securities (ISIN code LT0000405771) with maturity
term of 4 years and annual interest rate of 1.05%. The Bank has a right to call the bonds after 3 years. From 8 October 2021 these bonds
are listed on Nasdaq Baltic Bonds List.

On 29 November 2022 Bank has completed a tap issue of EUR 85,000 thousand senior preferred debt bonds (ISIN code LTO000405771).
A tap issue was placed with yield to maturity of 6.4%. Bonds maturity date is 7th October 2025. From 9 December 2022 these bonds are
listed on Nasdaq Baltic Bonds List.

On 15 June 2023 Bank has successfully completed a 10-year subordinated bond issue (ISIN code LT0000407751) with a nominal value
of EUR 50 million in the international financial markets, which bear a coupon of 10.75%. Subordinated bonds are included into the bank's
Tier 2 capital. The bonds maturity date is on 22 June 2033. The bonds were issued with the issuer's right of early redemption after five
years, on 22 June 2028. On this date, the Bank will have two options: to redeem the issued bonds early or to set a new coupon consisting
of a fixed and a floating part (750bps + 5-year Mid-Swap Rate). From 27 June 2023 these bonds are listed on Nasdaq Baltic Bonds List.

On 16 November 2023 Bank has successfully concluded a tap issue of EUR 50 million of senior preferred bonds (ISIN code
LT0000405771) in the international financial markets. With a tap issue the amount of the total outstanding bonds increased from EUR
160 million to EUR 210 million. The bonds were issued with the aim of meeting future minimum requirement for own funds and eligible
liabilities (MREL requirements) set by the Bank's supervisory authorities. The additional bonds were issued at a yield to maturity of 6.7%.
Maturity date of these bonds is 7 October 2025. From 27 November 2023 these bonds are listed on Nasdaq Baltic Bonds List. This bond
was fully redeemed in 2024.

On May 22, 2024, Giauli® Bankas successfully issued (25 mi ha
financial markets. This issuance aims to strengthen the bank's capital base and support future growth initiatives. The bonds carry an
annual interest rate of 7.7%, with interest payments scheduled quarterly. The maturity date for these bonds is May 22, 2034. Starting
from May 28, 2024, these bonds are listed on the Nasdaq Baltic Bond List. OnSe pt ember 5, 2024, Gi aul i
senior preferred bonds fixed rate reset bonds (ISIN code XS2887816564) in the international financial markets. This issuance was
conducted to meet the future Minimum Requirement for Own Funds and Eligible Liabilities (MREL) as set by the bank's supervisory
authorities. The annual fixed rate coupon on the notes up to the reset date will be 4.853 %. The maturity date for these bonds is December
5, 2028. From September 5, 2024, these bonds are listed on the Euronext Dublin.

@)

or

B

On 7 October 2024 Giauli ® Bankas has redeemed 0210 million rdn 04"

7 October 2024 these bonds are removed from Nasdaq Vilnius Bond List and deleted from Nasdag CSD central securities depository.

OnOctober 2024, Giauli © Bankas successfully completed the idsua

(AT1) Temporary Write Down Notes (ISIN code XS2922133363) in the international financial markets. The bonds bear a coupon of
8.75% per annum and are structured as perpetual instruments with a fixed rate reset mechanism. The notes are listed on Euronext

Dublin"s Gl obal Exchange Market and qualify as Addi ti onhelssuanceer

includes an issuer call option after 5 years, allowing the bank to either redeem the bonds early or reset the coupon rate. The purpose of
this issuance was to further strengthen the bank's capital structure in line with regulatory requirements. Starting from November 8, 2024,
these bonds are admitted to the official list of Euronext Dublin and to trading on the Global Exchange Market of Euronext Dublin
administered by the Irish Stock Exchange pilc.

Cash flows and other movements of issued debt securities:

2024 2023

Group Bank Group Bank

As at 1 January 276,480 276,480 171,231 171,231
Issuance 375,000 375,000 100,000 100,000
Redemptions (210,000) (210,000) - -
Accrued interest 13,166 13,166 5,795 5,795
Coupon payments (13,387) (13,387) (2,905) (2,905)
Discount 6,900 6,900 2,359 2,359

As at 31 December 448,159 448,159 276,480 276,480
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NOTE 24

ASSETS AND LIABILITIES RELATED TO INSURANCE ACTIVITIES

Bankds subsidiary SB Draudi mas
and investment contracts liabilities and their changes were as follows:

UAB i s

engaged in

2024 agd 20238 msunareen ¢ e

Estimate of present Advances
value of future cash Risk adjustment for non-  Contractual service Investment paid by
flows financial risks margin units policyholders Total
Gross:
At 1 January 2023 23,025 2,571 4,360 6,229 - 36,185
Change during period 16,697 14,443 25,899 86,093 - 143,132
At 31 December 2023 39,722 17,014 30,259 92,322 - 179,317
Change during period 10,997 1,509 2,157 4,364 88 19,115
At 31 December 2024 50,719 18,523 32,416 96,686 88 198,432
Reinsurance share:
At 1 January 2023 - - - - - -
Change during period 1 - - - - 1
At 31 December 2023 1 - - - - 1
Change during period 1) - - - - Q)
At 31 December 2024 - - - - - -
Net value
At 31 December 2023 39,723 17,014 30,259 92,322 - 179,318
At 31 December 2024 50,719 18,523 32,416 96,686 88 198,432
Reconciliation of the components of insurance contract assets and liabilities
In table below liabilities are disclosed with opposite signs than shown in the balance sheet.
2023-12-31
EUR Best Risk Contractl_JaI
estimate Adjustment Service Total
liability Margin
Opening insurance contract assets 8,731 (2,095) (3,144) 4,492
Opening insurance contract liabilities (48,453) (15,919) (27,115) (91,487)
Net opening position of insurance contracts (39,722) (17,014) (30,259) (86,995)
Changes related to current services
- CSM recognized in profit and loss - - 2,780 2,780
- Risk Adjustment recognized in profit and loss - 289 - 289
- Experience adjustments 1,349 (1,563) - (214)
Changes related to future services
- Contracts initially recognized in the period 6,272 (2,174) (4,587) (489),
- Changes in estimates that adjust CSM (263) 354 91) -
- Changes in estimates that result in onerous contracts or reversal of losses (338) 34 - (304)
Changes that relate to past service
Changes that relate to past service - adjustments to LIC (571) 1,551 - 980
Insurance finance expenses through profit and loss (12,563) - (259) (12,822)
Total changes in statement of profit and loss and OCI (6,114) (1,509) (2,157) (9,780)
Premiums received (25,861) - - (25,861)
Claims paid 12,332 - - 12,332
Directly attributable expenses paid 3,652 - - 3,652
Acquisition cost paid 4,994 - - 4,994
Total cash flows (4,883) - - (4,883)
Closing insurance contract assets 15,745 (3,042) (6,642) 6,061
Closing insurance contract liabilities (66,464) (15,481) (25,774) (107,719)
Net closing position of insurance contracts (50,719) (18,523) (32,416) (101,658)
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NOTE 24

ASSETS AND LIABILITIES RELATED TO INSURANCE ACTIVITIES (COTINUED)

Liability for Remaining

LIC for contracts measured

2024-12-31 Coverage under GM/VFA Total

Excl. LC LC
Opening insurance contract assets 5,019 (342) (185) 4,492
Opening insurance contract liabilities (87,798) (2,306) (1,383) (91,487)
Net opening position of insurance contracts (82,779) (2,648) (1,568) (86,995)
Insurance revenue 10,516 - - 10,516
Insurance service expenses
- Incurred benefits and expenses - - (7,104) (7,104)
- Changes that relate to past service - adjustments to LIC - - 979 979
- Losses on onerous contracts and reversal of those losses - (354) - (354)
- Amortization of insurance acquisition cash flows (995) - - (995)
Insurance finance expenses through profit and loss (12,770) (41) (11) (12,822)
Investment components 10,080 - (10,080) -
Total changes in statement of profit and loss 6,831 (395) (16,216) (9,780)
Premiums received (25,861) - - (25,861)
Claims paid - - 12,332 12,332
Directly attributable expenses paid - - 3,652 3,652
Acquisition cost paid 4,994 - - 4,994
Total cash flows (20,867) - 15,984 (4,883)
Closing insurance contract assets 7,085 (800) (223) 6,062
Closing insurance contract liabilities (103,900) (2,243) (1,577) (107,720)
Net closing position of insurance contracts (96,815) (3,043) (1,800) (101,658)

Liability for Remaining LIC for contracts measured

2023-12-31 Coverage under GM/VFA Total

Excl. LC LC
Opening insurance contract assets 1634 (573) 16 1,077
Opening insurance contract liabilities (29,181) (1,121) (731) (31,033)
Net opening position of insurance contracts (27,547) (1,694) (715) (29 956)
Insurance revenue 4,945 - - 4,945
Insurance service expenses
- Incurred benefits and expenses - - (1,097) (1,097)
- Changes that relate to past service - adjustments to LIC - - (2,967) (2,967)
- Losses on onerous contracts and reversal of those losses - (927) - (927)
- Amortization of insurance acquisition cash flows (919) - - (919)
Insurance finance expenses through profit and loss (5,817) 27) (23) (5,867)
Investment components 3,032 - (3,032) -
Total changes in statement of profit and loss 1,241 (954) (7,119) (6,832)
Premiums received (58,589) - - (58,589)
Claims paid - - 4,388 4,388
Directly attributable expenses paid - - 1,878 1,878
Acquisition cost paid 2,116 - - 2,116
Total cash flows (56,473) - 6,266 (50,207)
Closing insurance contract assets 5,019 (342) (185) 4,492
Closing insurance contract liabilities (87,798) (2,306) (1,383) (91,487)
Net closing position of insurance contracts (82,779) (2,648) (1,568) (86,995)
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NOTE 25
OTHER LIABILITIES
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2024 2023
Group Bank Group Bank
Financial liabilities:
Trade payables 3,462 - 4,034 1,424
Accrued charges 36,256 32,792 28,849 26,542
Lease liabilities (see Note 18) 6,708 6,453 7,224 6,393
Total financial liabilities 46,426 39,245 40,107 34,359
Breakdown of other financial liabilities according to maturity
Short-term (up to 1 year) 41,425 34,530 35,156 30,149
Long-term (over 1 year) 5,001 4,715 4,951 4,210
Non-financial liabilities:
Advance amounts received from the buyers of assets 5,702 - 5,887 -
Deferred income 4,033 719 1,534 698
Provisions 74 - 183 -
Other liabilities 1,185 944 737 737
Total non-financial liabilities 10,994 1,663 8,341 1,435
Breakdown of other non-financial liabilities according to maturity
Short-term (up to 1 year) 9,858 1,424 7,622 1,195
Long-term (over 1 year) 1,136 239 719 240
Total non-financial liabilities 10,994 1,663 8,341 1,435
Provisions are recognized as the Groupédés subsidiaries iempropertiese d

they develop and sell or for pending legal issues against the Group companies. The movement of provisions is presented in the table

below:

2024 2023

Group Bank Group Bank

Provisions at 1 January 183 - 469 -

Additions/(reversals), including increases (decreases) in ex_is_ting (109) ) (286) }
provisions

Amounts used - - - -

Other movements (reclassifications) - - - -

Provisions at 31 December 74 - 183 -
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NOTE 26
INVESTMENT PROPERTY

Investment property

Group Bank
Year ended 31 December 2023:
Carrying amount at 1 January 1,827
Acquisitions - -
Reclassifications - -
Impairment - -
Depreciation charge (39)
Disposals and write-offs (795) -
Carrying amount at 31 December 2023 993 -
As at 31 December 2023:
Cost 2,530 -
Accumulated depreciation (1,537) -
Net carrying amount 993 -
Estimated fair value at 31 December 2023 1,203 =
Year ended 31 December 2024:
Carrying amount at 1 January 993 -
Acquisitions - -
Reclassifications - -
Impairment - -
Depreciation charge 27) -
Disposals and write-offs (966) -
Carrying amount at 31 December 2024 - -
As at 31 December 2024:
Cost 1,564 -
Accumulated depreciation (1,564) -
Net carrying amount - -
Estimated fair value at 31 December 2024 - -
Economic life (in years) 20-50

The Group tests the investment property for impairment mainly using valuations from external independent certified appraisers or
val uations perf or me d(abof31 Bacambgr 2023 1@0h pflthe gapying value of the investment property was tested
for impairment using valuations from external independent certified appraisers). Income or comparative price methods, i.e. valuation
techniques attributable to Level 3 (income method or comparative price method) are mostly used valuation techniques to test the
investment property for impairment both by external and internal valuators.

NOTE 27
CAPITAL

As of 31 December 2022 share capital of the Bank amounted to EUR 174,211 thousand, it comprised 600,726,263 ordinary registered
shares with par value of EUR 0.29 each.

On 22 November the Bank and Invalda INVL signed an agreement according which segments of their retail businesses were merged on
1 December 2023. After closing the transaction, 62,270,383 newly issued shares of the Bank which represents 9,39% of the Bank
shareholding were transferred to Invalda INVL on 15 December 2023. After this issue of shares as of 31 December 2023 share capital
of the Bank amounted to EUR 192,269 thousand , it comprised 662,996,646 ordinary registered shares with par value of EUR 0.29 each.

At 31 May 2024 The European Bank for Reconstruction and Development (EBRD), together with asset management group Invalda INVL,
Tesonet Global, a member of the Tesonet group of companies, and Willgrow, the holding company that manages Girteka Logistics, have
finalizeda series of planned transactions, which together dispose
2020 The European Bank for Reconstruction and Development (EBRD) held 26.02% of the Bank's share capital and votes. On 22
December 2021, the EBRD announced its decision to sell its 18% stake in the Bank. The EBRD has signed 3 separate agreements for
the sale of the Bank's shares: with the asset management group Invalda INVL, Tesonet Global belonging to the Tesonet group of
companies, and Willgrow, a holding company managed by Girteka Logistics. The respective shareholdings to be sold are 5,87 %, 5,87
% and 6,29 %. The acquisition process was carried out through a series of transactions which lasted until June 2024. 29 December 2021.
"Willgrow announced the acquisition of a 5.71% stake in the Bank. On 30 June 2024, following the completion of the transaction
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milestones, Invalda INVL Groupd s har ehol di ng in Gi aul i9%, Bigiok'a ® 8.97% and dessnetdslokals to1 9 .

5.32%. As a result of these transactions, the EBRD owns 7.25% of the Bank's share capital and voting rights..

NOTE 27
CAPITAL (CONTINUED)

As of 31 December 2023 share capital of the Bank amounted to EUR 192,269 thousand it comprised 662,996,646 ordinary registered
shares with par value of EUR 0.29 each. During the year 2024 there were no additional share capital increase.

As at 31 December 2024, the Bank had 18,774 shareholders (as at 31 December 2023: 19,087).
Share premium

The share premium represents the difference between the issue price and nominal value of the shares issued by the Bank. Share
premium can be used tauthorized shaeacamtal. inh2618, Bha shiaré premium of EUR 3,428 thousand was
recognized in the subordinated loan conversion process. In 2023 share premium has increased to EUR 25,534 due to business
combination in more detail described in section above of this note and Note 16. During the year 2024 there were no additional share
premium increase.

Reserve capital

The reserve capital is formed from the Bankds profit arehdlderstmay p u

decide to use the reserve capital to cover losses incurred.
Statutory reserve

According to the Law of the Republic of Lithuania on Banks, allocations to the statutory reserve shall be compulsory and shall not be less
than 1/20 of the profit available for appropriation. The statutory reserve may, by a decision of extraordinary general or annual meeting of
the shareholders, be used only to cover losses of the activities.

Reserve for acquisition of own shares

On 30 March 2022, at the annual general meeting of shareholders, a decision was made to increase the reserve for the repurchase of
the Bank's own shares by EUR 10,000 thousand (the reserve was established on March 28, 2019, by a decision of the general meeting
of shareholders). The reserve formed amounts to EUR 20,000 thousand. It can be used for two purposes: to support the Bank's share
price and to purchase shares that will be transferred to Group employees as part of variable remuneration. As of December 31, 2024,
the carrying value of the reserve for the repurchase of own shares is EUR 20,000 thousand (as of December 31, 2023 - EUR 20,000
thousand).

On 15 August 2024, the Bank received authorization from the European Central Bank (ECB) to repurchase up to 13,745 thousand of its
own shares. According to the Bank's share buyback program, announced on October 31, 2024, the Bank had acquired 3,093 thousand
shares by December 31, 2024, paying EUR 2,555 thousand for them. The sole purpose of the program is to reduce the Bank's share
capital.

During twelve months period ended 31 December 2024 the Bank acquired 10,343 thousand units of own shares for EUR 8,375 thousand.
2,273 thousand units of own shares acquired in 2023 were granted to the employees of the Bank and its subsidiaries as a deferred part
of variable remuneration for 2020. As of 31 December 2024 the Bank held 10,343 thousand own shares with carrying value of EUR 8,375
thousand.

During twelve months period ended 31 December 2023 the Bank acquired 4,764 thousand units of own shares for EUR 3,368 thousand.
Part of acquired shares were granted to the employees of the Bank and its subsidiaries as a deferred part of variable remuneration for
2019. As of 31 December 2023 the Bank held 2,273 thousand own shares with carrying value of EUR 1,500 thousand.

Other equity

Other equity consists of amount that corresponds to the obligationtopr esent Bankdés shares to Groupos

remuneration.

The Groupb6s remuneration policy pr es tiixedoemsnerationoandwariabte reenuneratienpnang o f
various additional benefits. Employees whose professional activities and/or decisions might have a significant impact on the risk accepted

by the Group, receive deferred variable remuneration. The remuneration amounts are accrued as staff expenses in income statement.

Unt il 2018, Groupbds incentive scheme included def err eedrempreemtiore nt s

being paid in equal instalments during three-year period. From 2019 under the Group's incentive scheme employees whose professional
activities and/or decisions may have a significant impact on the risk assumed be the Group receive 50% of the annual long term incentive
program in cash and 50% in form of Bank's shares options executable after 3 years. The number of share options is based on the
currency value of the achieved results divided by the weighted average price at which the Bank's shares are traded on Nasdaq Vilnius
during the period of five months prior the approval of renumeration. Each option is convertible into one ordinary share.
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NOTE 27
CAPITAL (CONTINUED)

The Group has assessed fair value of shares option by the Black-Scholes model which is attributable to Level 3 in fair value hierarchy.
The model inputs include:

. P
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1 For the option granted 31 March 2024: grant date (31 March 2023), expiry days (14 April 2028 and 29 April 2029), share price
0.71 on grant day, exercise price 0.58, expected price volatility of the bank's shares 25%, risk free interest rates i 3,5% and
2.3%;

1 For the option granted 31 March 2023: grant date (31 March 2023), expiry days (9 April 2027 and 14 April 2028), share price
0.747 on grant day, exercise price 0.65, expected price volatility of the bank's shares 26%, risk free interest rates - 5% and
2.3%;

1 For the option granted 30 March 2022: grant date (30 March 2022), expiry day (11 April 2025), share price 0.66 on grant day,
exercise price 0.59, expected price volatility of the bank's shares 28%, risk free interest rate i 0.1%;

1 For the option granted 31 March 2021: grant date (31 March 2021), expiry day (12 April 2024), share price 0.54 on grant day,
expected price volatility of the bank's shares 25%, risk free interest rate - 0.1%.

The value of the option is included in other equity line in the statement of financial position. Other equity consists of.

| 2024| 2023

Group Bank Group Bank

Options 1,480 1,019 1,697 1,209

Shares distributable to the employees - - - -
Total 1,480 1,019 1,697 1,209

No options were forfeited or expired during years ended 31 December 2024 and 31 December 2023. During 12 months period ended 31
December 2024 2,273t housand wunits of share options were exercised for
defined employees i 1,991 thousand units) on exercise date at weighted average share price of 0.66 EUR.

NOTE 28
CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND COMMITMENTS

Contingent tax liabilities

The Tax Authorities have not carried out a full-scope tax audit of the Bank for the period from 2020 to 2024. The Tax Authorities may at
any time during 5 successive years after the end of
records and impose additional taxes or fines. Management is not aware of any circumstances that might result in a potential material

liability in this respect.

Guarantees issued, letters of credit, commitments to grant loans and other commitments

2024 2023

Group Bank Group Bank

Financial guarantees issued 87,985 87,985 59,216 59,256
Letters of credit 135 135 538 538
Commitments to grant loans 393,190 403,413 473,095 480,723
Other commitments 298 298 8,932 8,932

Total 481,608 491,831 541,781 549,449

Fair value of the guarantees amounts to EUR 511 thousand at 31 December 2024 (31 December 2023: EUR 418 thousand). It is
estimated as the amount of the guarantee fee to be paid by the customers less amortization over the contract period.

Staging of guarantees issued, letters of credit, commitments to grant loans and other commitments:

2024 2023

Group Bank Group Bank

Financial guarantees issued: 87,985 87,985 59,216 59,256
Stage 1 87,985 87,985 59,216 59,256

Letters of credit: 135 135 538 538

Stage 1 135 135 538 538

Commitments to grant loans: 393,190 403,413 473,095 480,723
Stage 1 371,314 363,909 466,672 458,661

Stage 2 19,570 37,198 6,115 21,754

Stage 3 2,306 2,306 308 308

Other commitments: 298 298 8,932 8,932

Stage 1 298 298 8,932 8,932

Total 481,608 491,831 541,781 549,449
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NOTE 28
CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND COMMITMENTS (CONTINUED)

As the guarantees and letters of credit are either 100% secured by cash collaterals pledged by the customers to the Bank, or are issued
using the credit line that the Bank has granted to the customer (which has its own collaterals and impairment is calculated for the credit
line), no ECL impairment provisions are formed against these obligations. Commitments to grant loans are included in the EAD model in
loan ECL calculations and the impairment is calculated for the whole instrument that includes both on-balance and off-balance sheet
amounts, therefore the impairment for commitments to grant loans is included in the loan impairment amount.

The Groupods | iabilities include provisions for other c mvisionsarge nt
disclosed in Note 25.

NOTE 29
DIVIDENDS

Dividends are declared during the annual general meeting of shareholders of the Bank when appropriation of profit for the reporting
period is performed.

On 29 March 2024 ordinary general meeting of shareholders made a decision to pay EUR 0.0485 (i.e. 16.72%) dividends per one ordinary
registered share with EUR 0.29 nominal value each.

On 31 March 2023 ordinary general meeting of shareholders made a decision to pay EUR 0.0265 (i.e. 9.1%) dividends per one ordinary
registered share with EUR 0.29 nominal value each.

The table below demonstrates movements in dividends for the years 2024 and 2023:

| 2024 2023

Unpaid dividend amount at 1 January: 94 84
Dividends declared 32,095 15,919

Dividends paid (32,159) (15,909)

Unpaid dividend amount at 31 December: 30 94
NOTE 30

RELATED-PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Related parties with the Bank are classified as follows:

a members of the Bankés Supervi sory @anuacisionl makens df th8 Graup)dtheif elosd ¢ h
family members and companies that are controlled, jointly controlled over by these related parties;

b) subsidiaries of the Bank, includes SB draudimas GD UAB, SB Lizingas UAB, SB turto fondas UAB, SB modernizavimo fondas
UAB, SB Asset Management UAB;

c) the shareholders holding over 20% of the Bankd6s share owmpit :
20% of voting rights therefore presumed to have a significant influence over the Group.

During 2024 and 2023, a certain number of banking transactions were entered into with related parties in the ordinary course of business.
These transactions include settlements, loans, deposits and foreign currency transactions.
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NOTE 30
RELATED-PARTY TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED)

The year-end balances of loans (incl.of-fb al ance sheet commitments) granted to and
except for subsidiaries, and ranges of annual interest rates were as follows (data of the Bank):

Deposits, at the Range of annual Loans, at the Range of annual Off-_balance sheet

. } commitments, at the

year-end interest rates, % year-end interest rates, % year-end

2024 2023 2024 2023 2024 2023 2023 2023 2024 2023

Members of the Council and 576 424| 0,00-4,30 0,00-4,30 765 274 4,37-4,66 5,63 44 25
the Board

Other related parties 708 225| 0,00-4,75 0,00-4,30 8,722 9171| 0,69-5,343 0,69-6,80 1 1
(excluding subsidiaries of
the Bank)

Total 1,284 649 - - 9,487 9 445 - - 45 26

% of regulatory capital 0,00% 0,00% 0,01% 0,02% 0,00% 0,00%

In 2024 EUR 42 thousand interest income were generated from transactions with related parties (except for subsidiaries, in 20237 EUR
55 thousand).

As at 31 December 2024 loans to related parties (except for subsidiaries) with gross value before impairment provisions of EUR 9,487
thousand (31 December 2023: EUR 9,455 thousand) had collaterals.

At 31 December 2024 and 2023 Bank6s subsidiaries had no materi al transacti
subsidiaries.

Transactions with subsidiaries:

Bal ances of Bankés transactions with the subsidiaries are gi

‘ Off-balance sheet

Deposits, at the Range of annual Loans, at the Range of annual commitments, at the

year-end interest rates, % year-end interest rates, % year-end

2024 2023 2024 2023 2024 2023 2024 2023 2024 2023

Non-financial institutions 60 598 35,155 0-3.750 0.00-4.15 63 211 30,070 4.55-15.40 5.28-16.13 12 000 13,750
Financial institutions 13 52 0.00 0.00f 290817 247,553 2,6 4.35-5.80 17 628 15,639

No collateral is obtained on loans to subsidiaries.

Increase of balances of loans in table above in 2024 if compared to 2023 is related with transactions with UAB SB modernizavimo fondas
2 established in 2024 operations. This entity is not consolidated due to IFRS 10 requirements however considered as related party under
IAS 24 requirements.

Bankds total bal ances with subsidiaries (see Note 16 for det
2024 2023
Assets
Loans 354,028 277,623
Other assets - -
Bankds investment 84,069 76,672
Liabilities
Term deposits 540
Demand deposits 60,611 34,667
Other liabilities - -

Income and expenses arising from transactions with subsidiaries:

2024 2023
Income
Interest 16,898 10,314
Commission income 6,432 2,711
Income (losses) from foreign exchange operations - -
Share of the profit or loss of investments in subsidiaries accounted for using the equity method 7,227 (4,267)
Other income 785 2,001
Expenses
Interest (153) (88)
Operating expenses 940 155
Impairment (reversal of impairment) of loans 150 (162)
Impairment of an investment to subsidiaries - -
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NOTE 30
RELATED-PARTY TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED)

Remuneration of the management of the Group/Bank

According to the Bank's Remuneration Policy, the members of the management bodies are paid a fixed and annual variable remuneration.
The annual variable remuneration fund is formed based on the Bank's performance, taking into account current and future risks. During
2024t he tot al amount of fixed and annual variable renumerati e
Board members amounted to EUR 2,033 thousand (2023: EUR 1,598 thousand).

| 2024 2023

Fixed renumeration in cash 1,428 1,122

Variable renumeration in cash - 52

Variable renumeration in shares of Bank 605 424
Total 2,033 1,598

No other post-employment benefit or long-term benefit were paid to members of Board (including management).

Liabilities related to long term benefits related to remuneration are presented in the table below:

| 2024 2023
Short-term (up to 1 year) 597 678
Long-term (over 1 year) 1,543 1,172
Total 2,140 1,850
Paymentin cash due in: Payment in shares due in: Total
Uptol From1lto From 2to Uptol From1lto From 2to
year 2 years 3years Vel year 2 years 3years Tl
31 December 2023:
for year 2020 salaries and bonuses - - - - 678 - - 678 678
for year 2021 salaries and bonuses - - - - - 597 - 597 597
for year 2022 salaries and bonuses - - - - - - 575 575 575
Total liability at 31 December 2023 - - - - 678 597 575 1850 1,850
31 December 2024:
for year 2021 salaries and bonuses - - - - 597 - - 597 597
for year 2022 salaries and bonuses - - - - - 573 - 573 573
for year 2023 salaries and bonuses - - - - - - 970 970 970
Total liability at 31 December 2024 - - - - 597 573 970 2,140 2,140
NOTE 31

FINANCIAL GROUP INFORMATION

According to local legislation the Bank is required to disclose certain information for the Financial group. As of 31 December 2024 the
Bank owned the following controlled subsidiaries included in the prudential scope of consolidation (the Bank and four subsidiaries
comprised the Financial group, all of the entities attributable to Financial Group operate in Lithuania):

1. SB Turto Fondas UAB (real estate management activities),
2. SB Lizingas UAB (consumer financing activities),
3. SB Asset Management UAB (fund management activities).

As of 31 December 2023 the Bank owned the following subsidiaries included in the prudential scope of consolidation (the Bank and four
subsidiaries comprised the Financial group, all of the entities attributable to Financial Group operate in Lithuania):

1. Gi aul i © Banko Lizingas UAB (
2. Giauli ® Banko InvesticijO®O Va
3. SB Turto Fondas UAB (real estate management activities),

4. SB Lizingas UAB (consumer financing activities).

| eas cti i es),
|l dymas UAB nvest ment manage

In the Financial Group financial statements, the subsidiaries of the Bank that are not included in the Financial Group are not consolidated
in full as would be required by IFRS 10 but presented on the consolidated balance sheet of the Financial Group as investments in
subsidiaries at cost less impairment, in the same way as presented on the balance sheet of the Bank. This presentation is consistent
with the regulatory reporting made by the Bank according to the Regulation (EU) No 575/2013 on prudential requirements for credit
institutions and investment firms (CRR).
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NOTE 31
FINANCIAL GROUP INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

31 December 2024 31 December 2023
Fin. Group Bank Fin. Group Bank
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents 387,680 386,365 743,733 742,969
Securities in the trading book 18,020 13,543 20,522 20,402
Due from other banks 3,121 3,121 3,013 3,013
Derivative financial instruments 1,093 1,093 241 241
Loans to customers 3,117,700 3,105,007 2,645,104 2,633,482
Finance lease receivables 316,897 316,897 286,533 286,451
Investment securities at fair value 43,868 43,620 74,500 74,382
Investment securities at amortized cost 716,864 716,864 739,869 739,869
Investments in subsidiaries 38,180 84,069 32,628 76,672
Intangible assets 40,569 7,859 41,919 8,149
Property, plant and equipment 15,070 14,689 15,116 14,702
Investment property - - 993 -
Current income tax prepayment 82 - 9 -
Deferred income tax asset 6,074 2,716 7,575 3,658
Other financial assets 7,403 6,559 7,780 8,289
Other non-financial assets 9,790 8,505 12,084 10,681
Assets classified as held for sale 150 150 150 150
Total assets 4,722,561 4,711,057 4,631,769 4,623,110
LIABILITIES
Due to other banks and financial institutions 67,926 68,487 571,750 576,316
Derivative financial instruments 123 123 1,041 1,041
Due to customers 3,637,972 3,543,291 3,163,157 3,166,908
Special and lending funds 23,037 23,037 15,718 15,718
Debt securities in issue 448,159 448,159 276,480 276,480
Current income tax liabilities 206 48 6,412 6,412
Deferred income tax liabilities 6,141 - 6,125 -
Other financial liabilities 43,812 39,245 38,217 34,359
Other non-financial liabilities 8,680 1,663 8,386 1,435
Total liabilities 4,136,056 4,124,053 4,087,286 4,078,669
EQUITY
Capital and reserves attributable to owners of the Bank
Share capital 192,269 192,269 192,269 192,269
Share premium 25,534 25,534 25,534 25,534
Treasury shares (-) (8,375) (8,375) (1,500) (1,500)
Reserve capital 756 756 756 756
Statutory reserve 60,903 60,805 47,681 47,605
Reserve for acquisition of own shares 20,000 20,000 20,000 20,000
Financial instruments revaluation reserve (2,989) (2,989) (5,426) (5,426)
Other equity 1,404 1,019 1,603 1,209
Retained earnings 297,003 297,985 263,566 263,994
Total equity 586,505 587,004 544,483 544,441
Total liabilities and equity 4,722,561 4,711,057 4,631,769 4,623,110
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NOTE 31
FINANCIAL GROUP INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

INCOME STATEMENT

2024 2023
Fin. Group Bank Fin. Group Bank
Continuing operations
Interest revenue calculated using the effective interest method 243,291 227,237 195,477 181,049
Other similar income 24,955 24,953 21,096 21,070
Interest expense and similar charges (110,002) (110,146) (60,113) (60,189)
Net interest income 158,244 142,044 156,460 141,930
Fee and commission income 38,442 32,587 28,642 28,968
Fee and commission expense (8,871) (8,044) (8,207) (8,114)
Net fee and commission income 29,571 24,543 20,435 20,854
Net gain from trading activities 6,304 6,248 5,481 5,358
Net gain (loss) from derecognition of financial assets 544 778 809 532
Net gain (loss) from disposal of tangible assets 593 141 864 97
Other operating income 982 1,384 881 2,096
Salaries and related expenses (48,844) (43,840) (35,531) (33,004)
Depreciation and amortization expenses (7,893) (6,392) (5,386) (5,126)
Other operating expenses (37,674) (32,402) (30,569) (25,557)
Operating profit before impairment losses 101,827 92,504 113,444 107,180
Allowance for impairment losses on loans and other assets (10,898) (4,635) (15,509) (8,059)
(Allowance for)/ reversal of allowance for impairment losses on other assets - - 286 -
Allowance for impairment losses on investments in subsidiaries - - - -
Share of the profit or loss of investments in subsidiaries accounteq for using 5429 7.227 2,471) (4,267)
the equity method
Profit from continuing operations before income tax 96,358 95,096 95,750 94,854
Income tax expense (17,608) (15,810) (20,366) (19,234)
Net profit from continuing operations for the year 78,750 79,286 75,384 75,620
Profit (loss) from discontinued operations, net of tax - - - -
Net profit for the year 78,750 79,286 75,384 75,620
Net profit attributable to:
Owners of the Bank 78,750 79,286 75,384 75,620
From continuing operations 78,750 79,286 75,384 75,620
From discontinued operations - - - -
Non-controlling interest - - - -
STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
2024 2023
Fin. Group Bank Fin. Group Bank
Profit for the year 78,750 79,286 75,384 75,620
Other comprehensive income (loss):
Items that may be subsequently reclassified to profit or loss:
Financial assets valuation gains taken to other comprehensive income 3,026 3,026 716 716
Financial assets valuation result transferred to profit or loss 20 20 2,640 2,640
Deferred income tax on gain (loss) from revaluation of financial asset (609) (609) (671) (671)
Items that may not be subsequently reclassified to profit or loss:
Fair value changes of financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss > = : :
attributable to changes in their credit risk
Other comprehensive income (loss), net of deferred tax 2,437 2,437 2,685 2,685
Total comprehensive income 81,187 81,723 78,069 78,305
Total comprehensive income (loss) attributable to:
Owners of the Bank 81,187 81,723 78,069 78,305
Non-controlling interest - - - -
81,187 81,723 78,069 78,305

130



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 DECEMBER 2024

(All amounts are in EUR thousand, unless otherwise stated)

NOTE 31
FINANCIAL GROUP INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

Y P
$1AULIY :, BANKAS

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

| Year ended
31 December 2024] 31 December 2023]
Fin. Group Bank Fin. Group Bank
Operating activities
Interest received on loans and advances 225,951 209,897 177,561 163,133
Interest received on finance leases 22,958 22,956 18,678 18,652
Interest received on debt securities in the trading book 1,292 1,292 1,741 1,741
Interest paid (103,744) (104,419) (29,587) (29,633)
Fees and commissions received 38,442 32,587 28,642 28,968
Fees and commissions paid (8,871) (8,044) (8,207) (8,114)
Net cash inflows from trade in securities in the trading book 7,172 7,116 1,725 1,602
Net inflows from foreign exchange trading 5,218 5,218 6,975 6,975
Net inflows from derecognition of financial assets 544 779 809 532
Net inflows from disposal of tangible assets 593 141 864 97
Cash inflows related to other activities of Group companies 983 1,384 882 2,096
Recoveries on loans previously written off 285 161 210 208
Salaries and related payments to and on behalf of employees (44,956) (39,952) (33,677) (31,150)
Payments related to operating and other expenses (37,674) (32,402) (30,631) (25,557)
Income tax (paid) (23,581) (22,442) (17,563) (16,200)
Net cash flow from operating activities before chan_g_e_ in 84.612 74.272 118,422 113,350
operating assets and liabilities
Change in operating assets and liabilities:
Decrease in due from other banks (108) (108) (280) (280)
Increase in loans to customers (483,005) (475,529) (256,841) (263,910)
Increase in finance lease receivable (30,412) (30,494) (47,511) (47,685)
Decrease (increase) in other financial assets 377 1,730 8,622 (2,669)
Decrease (increase) in other non-financial assets 16,543 16,894 860 9,743
Increase in due to banks and financial institutions (487,134) (491,139) (128,349) (124,862)
Increase in due to customers 362,470 364,038 361,761 361,653
Increase (decrease) in special and lending funds 6,679 7,319 1,534 1,534
Increase (decrease) in other financial liabilities 5,452 4,743 12,620 10,203
Increase (decrease) in other non-financial liabilities (6,968) (3,655) (13,910) (3,155)
Change (616,106) (606,201) (61,494) (59,428)
Net cash flow from operating activities (531,494) (531,929) 56,928 53,922
Investing activities
(Acquisition) of property, plant and equipment, investment property and (5,179) (4,893)
intangible assets (7 522) (722E)
Disposal of property, plant and equipment, investment property and 207 187 3796 2215
intangible assets
(Acquisition) of investment securities at amortized cost (316,044) (316,044) (64,157) (64,157)
Proceeds from redemption or sale of investment sec_urltles at 335,131 335,131 279,209 279.209
amortized cost
Interest received on investment securities at amortized cost 17,776 17,776 9,777 9,777
Dividends received 13 13 14 10,014
(Acquisition) of investment securities at fair value 382 - 547 -
Sale or redemption of investment securities at fair value 33,645 33,645 16,824 16,824
Interest received on investment securities at fair value 639 639 758 758
Business acquired net of cash acquired during transaction 16 - - 551 -
Establishment of subsidiaries 16 (200) (100) - (400)
Increase in share capital of subsidiaries in cash 16 (70) (70) (13,206) (17,706)
Net cash flow from (used in) investing activities 66,400 66,284 226,720 229,235
Financing activities
Payment of dividends (32,159) (32,159) (15,909) (15,909)
Acquisition of own shares (8,375) (8,375) (3,368) (3,368)
Interest on debt securities in issue (13,387) (13,387) (2,905) (2,905)
Issue of debt securities 375,000 375,000 100,000 100,000
Redemption of debt securities issued (210,000) (210,000) - -
Principal elements of lease payments (2,038) (2,038) (1,567) (1,524)
Net cash flow (used in) from financing activities 109,041 109,041 76,251 76,294
|
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalent (356,053) (356,604) 359,899 359,451
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January 743,733 742,969 383,834 383,518
Cash and cash equivalents at 31 December 387,680 386,365 743,733 742,969
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NOTE 31
FINANCIAL GROUP INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

FI NANCI AL CHMOEMENS OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
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31 December 2022| 174,211 3,42 - 75 (8,111) 36,990 20,000 2,287 214,704 444,265
Impact of change in accounting principles - - - - - - - - - -
1 January 2023| 174,211 3,428 - 756 (8,111) 36,990 20,000 2,287 214,704 444,265
Transfer to/from statutory reserve - - - - - 10,691 - - (10,691) -
Transfer to/from share acquisition reserve| 18,058 22,106 - - - - - - - 40,164
Acquisition of own shares - - (3,368) - - - - - - (3,368)
Share-based payment - - 1,868 - - - - (684) 88 1,272
Payment of dividends - - - - - - - - (15,919) (15,919)
Total comprehensive income - - - - 2,685 - - - 75,384 78,069
- - = = - - = - 75,384 75,384
- - - - 2,685 - - - - 2,685
31 December 2023| 192,269 25,534 (1,500) 756 (5,426) 47,681 20,000 1,603 263,566 544,483
Transfer to statutory reserve - - - - - 13,222 - - (13,222) -
Transfer to reserve for acquisition of own shares - - - - - - - - - -
Acquisition of own shares - - (8,375) - - - - - (8,375)
Share-based payment - - 1,500 - - - (199) 4 1,305
Payment of dividends - - - - - - - (32,095) (32,095)

Total comprehensive income - - - - 2,437 - - - 78,750 81,187

31 December 2024| 192,269 25,534 (8,375) 756 (2,989) 60,903 20,000 1,404 297,003 586,505
COMPLIANCE WITH PRUDENTIAL REQUIREMENTS

During the years ended 31 December 2024 and 31 December 2023, the Financial group and the Bank complied with prudential requirements to which it
was subject.

NOTE 32
EVENTS AFTER BALANCE SHEET DATE

In January 2025, the Bank purchased 2 million of its own shares, for which a payment of 1.8 million EUR was made. The purpose of acquisition of own
shares is to reduce the authorized capital of the Bank by cancelling the shares purchased by the Bank.

After end of reporting period there were no other significant events which would have impact to these financial statements.
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The consolidated report of Giauli ® Bankas AB 20Rdega3e Decemnber 2024. ° t he

The description of alternative performance indicators is available on the Bank's website at:
Homepage G Bank Investors 4 Financi al Information U0 Alternative

ANNUAL ACTIVITY RESULTS

1 Financial targets.Gi aul i O Bankas Group demonstrated strong performanc
for 2024, delivering on its guidance
1 Profit.Gi aul i © Bankas Group earned a record net profit of (G78.38
1 Loan portfolio. The loan portfolio grew by 17% year-on-y ear t o over (3.4 billion
M1 Deposits.The deposit portfolio grew by 12% over the year to al ma
1 Fee & commission income. Net fee and commission income grew by 44% year-ony ear t o over 029 milli
1 Dividends.Gi aul i & Bankas Group intends to propose a distribution
1 Share buybacks. Will allocate up to 5% of the 2024 net profit for own share buybacks
1 Rebranding.A rebranding of Giauli ® Bankas will be proposed for t
EURm
100 78.8
75.4 : = |mpairment
85
67.4 losses
70 55.2
55 43.0
40 Net profit before
impairment
25
10 55.0 59.3 72.4 90.6 89.7 Net orofit
—i— Net profi
5 g e == T P
-20

2020 2021 2022 2023 2024

Overview of the key performance indicators

Ailn 2024, we have successfully integrated | NVL' s -term vision &nd dirategy, n e s
and initiated a business transformation that we believe will bring greater value to our customers, shareholders, and society.

While launching strategic projects such as the replacement of the core banking platform and rebranding preparation, we maintained high
profitability and service quality, effectively managing risk and costs.

The successful implementation of our first international bond issuances and the updated dividend policy demonstrate our commitment to
efficient capital utilization and delivering high returns to shareholders during the transformation period," says Vytautas Sinius, CEO of
Gi auli © Bankas.

Giauli © Bankas Group earned an unaudited net profit of 78for8 mi
all owance for i mpairment |l osses and incomecomparmendbuind edpéeoatiilmc
million in 2023. Increased operating expenses reflect larger group size post-merger with INVL Retail in 2023 and ongoing business
investments.

EURmM
ggg 0] m Other expenses
170 BRI
140 m ® Salary and related
80 m 156.9 160.2 m Other income
50 75.7 80.9 s
20 Net gain from trading
-10 -30.7 -36.2 activities
-40 -24.7 -29.1 -30.2 ¢ d .
70 -49.3 u Net fee and commission
-100 income
-130 Net interest income
2020 2021 2022 2023 2024
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Net interest income grew by 2% year-on-y ear to 0U160.2 million, while net fee and conm
The latter increased 11% in the last quarter of 2024 alone, compared to Q3 2024.

Al | | oan book segments grew during the year, with the tNewaddt | os¢
agreements worth (01.5 billion were signed during the year, 14%
EURmM
3 600
3 200 +17%
2 800 +11%
2 400 +25% m Loan and
2 000 +19% finance lease
1 portfolio
1
1761 2104 2634 2932 3435
2020-12-31 2021-12-31 2022-12-31 2023-12-31 2024-12-31
The quality of the | oan portfolio remains28624png4 wilthipnobeéesso

Risk (CoR) of the loan portfolio for year 2024 was 0.35% (0.54% for the 2023).

The deposit portfolio grew by 12% since the beginning ofyeat The ye
amount of term deposits grew by 22% (U348 million) t o sitpertfoliotd 1.
increased by 5 percentage points to 54%.

EUR m
4 000
3 500 +12%
3 000 +4% +14% m Deposit
2 500 +14% portfolio
2 00O
1 500
1 00O

500 2 353 2 685 2799 3178 3561
0
2020-12-31 2021-12-31 2022-12-31 2023-12-31 2024-12-31
The bank's capital structure was enhancedby an addi ti onal issue of Tier 1 (AT1) bonds

made in 2024 have significantly strengthened and diversified the capital base, which allows for continued rapid growth while ensuring
high returns for investors.

The Bankés Management Board, taking into the account the mpustat e
capital position, and the favorable outlook for the operating environment, has decided to propose a dividend of 50% of the 2024 net profit
(u0.061 per share) for approval at the Bankds Annual Gener al Me

Gi auli © Bankas has repurchased own shares worth prog@ms2in limé with theo n
existing the European Central Bank's (ECB's) authorization granted on 15th August 2024. The bank will also propose to allocate up to

5% of its 2024 net profit for the share buybacks for the capital reduction purpose, and to grant shares as part of the deferred variable
remuneration for the employees of the Giauli ® Bankas Group.

The group's cost/income ratio (C/l) was 49.0%?* (41.2%% in 2023) and the return on equity (RoE) was 14.0% (15.5% in 2023) at the end
of the year. The capital and liquidity position remained strong and prudential ratios are being met by a wide margin. The capital adequacy
ratio (CAR) stood at 22.8%?2 and the liquidity coverage ratio (LCR) at 232%?2.

L after eliminating the impact of the client portfolio of SB Draudimas
2 preliminary data

Overview of Business Segments

Corporate Client Segment

Giauli O Bankas has significantly increas e d intlhmonthsméwicorgorate financirgr p o
agreements worth of 0960 million were signed in 2024, 29%ownbycr e
20% (0308 million) to over -Ailersified dcross lsevarahsirateGic seciots hinclhdang mahudaeturingyretdil,|

and renewable energy. A favorable business environment has encouraged investment and created additional opportunities for expansion.
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Gi auli ®© Bankas continued its commitments to pr dimocingandGomstingantloaab i |
agreements with the European I nvestment Bank (EIB) concl ud@d95n
million T to finance the modernization program of multi-apartment buildings in Lithuania.

Private Client Segment

In 2024, Gi auli © Bankas has successfully implemented key mdrat
sustainable growth. The successful integration of INVL retail business was a major accomplishment, which enabled the bank to expand

its service offering and provide customers with even more opportunities. The implementation of new core banking platform is on track,
promising a greater efficiency and an improves customer experience.

To strengthen its image and further me et the expectationsthef i
rebranding. A rebranding of Giauli® Bankas wil/l be proposed for

The volume of new mortgage contracts in 2024 increased by 21% year-ony ear t o 0213 million. I n 2024 t
by 17% (G136 million) reaching 00.9 billion. The woy aar todilion23v2
Since the beginning of 2024, the consumer | oan portfolio has gr

Investment Client Segment

The bank has remained active in the | ocal corporate bondestomitsk et
clients in Q4 2024. Total corporate bondi ssuance for the year reached 0227 million.
leading security issuer in Lithuania and the Baltic States and maintains the largest share of securities trading on the Lithuanian stock
exchange.

Giauli © Bankas demonstrated strong performance in asset manage
reached 01.46 billion an-nyear. Swwthbwas diZ i By newi cliehtiinvestmenteflaws and investment

performanc e . In 2024, Giauli ® Bankas asset management company, earn
million for Tier 111l c¢clients. In total, the profit generated fo

SB Alternative Investment Fund Ill, providing new investment opportunities for Lithuanian retail investors, has enjoyed a successful
launch, attracting over 06 million in 2024. Distribution of wuni

The Life Insurance segment also showed steady growth, Risk Under Management (RUM) reaching EUR 1.7 billion in the fourth quarter,
EUR 174 million more than a year ago.

REGARDING EXTERNAL ENVIRONMENT FACTORS

The Bank monitors the tense geopolitical situation in order to properly and timely assess and identify the potential impact of Russi a
invasion of Ukraine on the Bankés operations and t Baekhgswmadpdrations o f
in Russia, Belarus or Ukraine and does not have significant direct exposures in these countries. The Bank considers the secondary risk

of direct insolvency of clients operating in Lithuania due to the geopolitical situationtobelow: t he Bankés | argest cl
threats, the number of clients dependent on business relations with Ukraine and Russia is low, and clients with business relations in the
countries mentioned above are reducing their dependence of their income on business transactions. To identify in a timely manner a
potenti al increase in the risk of its clients, t he BandordseEpriy! i e
Warning Indicators (EWI) for the impact of the geopolitical situation on the clients that have a moderate or greater dependence on the
aforementioned countries through their supply or sales chains, or through their shareholding structure, and, in the event of a potentially
significant risk, puts the client on the Watch List and implements enhanced monitoring for these clients, and approves action plans for

the mitigation of risk. The greatest uncertainties and potential negative impacts arise from tertiary effects, i.e., the impact o f Rus
invasion of Ukraine on the overall state of the economy. The Bank uses scenario assessments and stress testing to assess these impacts.
These assessments indicate that the Bankds capital posi ttislooks i s
related to economic downturns.

The increased monitoring is not limited to credit risk, but also includes a stronger monitoring of the bank's liquidity position (except for
the increased cash withdrawals a few days after the start of the invasion, there were no negative trends related to the invasion), increased
focus on business continuity and IT security (business continuity plans have been updated with a number of additional scenarios,
cybersecurity status is constantly being monitored, additional cyber-protection measures have been implemented, and testing of
measures and plans is ongoing). Also, due to the rapidly changing situation and the introduction of new sanction packages, the processes
and procedures for complying with the sanctions for clients and payments are under considerable scrutiny, which may in some cases
lead to longer process time.

The Russian invasion of Ukraine may further contribute to increased market volatility. The Bank has no direct investments (securities or
other financial instruments) in Russia, Belarus or Ukraine. The Bank has no or close to zero open currency exposure in these countries.

The Bank is closely monitoring the situation regarding other geopolitical factors and is in position to quickly react in case of material
changes.
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RATINGS

On June 7 2023 the international rating agency loWeentdegdosit ratingsifrers t o r
Baa2 to Baal. The outlook onthelong-t er m deposit ratings is affirmed as stalbbedyds
has also upgraded the long-term Counterparty Risk Ratings from Baal to A3. The long-term Counterparty Risk Assessments (CR
Assessments) were upgraded from Baal(tcear)m tde pAds(ictr )r. a tMomglgabdthehGisa
short-term CR Assessments at P-2(cr). The Baseline Credit Assessment has also been upgraded from Bal to Baa3.

RISK MANAGEMENT, COMPLIANCE WITH PRUDENTIAL REQUIREMENTS

A complete disclosure of all significant risks incurred by the Group is provided in the chapter Financial Risk Management of the
explanatory note of the financial statement for 2024.

Capital and liquidity position remain robust - prudential requirements are implemented with adequate reserve. According to the data as
of 31 December 2024 the Bank complied with all the prudential requirements set out by the supervisory authority.

The main financial indicators of the Group:

| 31/12/2020 31/12/2021 31/12/2022 31/12/2023 31/12/2024
ROAA, % 15 1.6 1.7 1.7 1.6
ROAE, % 12.7 14.3 16.1 15.5 14.0
Cost to income ratio, % 42.7 44.1 41.7 435 52.0
Cost to income ratio (adjusted due to the impact of
the SB draudimas clients' portfolio), % 42.9 428 434 412 49.0
Loan to deposit ratio, % 75.0 78.6 94.6 92.7 97.1

At the end of Q4 2024 were effective MREL requirements determined in February, 2024 at Financial group level, which shall be met from
1 January 2025:

1 The minimum requirement for own funds and eligible liabilities of the resolution entity with which the Financial group shall comply
is 22,67% of total risk exposure (MREL-TREA) and 7.09% of leverage ratio exposure (MREL-LRE);
1  Subordinated instruments shall comprise 13.50% of total risk exposure (MREL-TREA, subordinated) and 5.95% of leverage
ratio exposures (MREL-LRE, subordinated).
In September 2024, Gi aul i O Ba n k apglacetl B the intermagoras finandial ryarkets, new 300 million euros nominal value

MREL eligible bond issue and redeemed 210 million euros of MREL eligible bonds issued earlier. In May 2024, the Bank successfully
placed a 10-year subordinated bond issue of EUR 25 million in the Baltic financial markets, which attracted more investor attention than
expected. In October 2024, 50 million Euros Fixed Rate Reset Perpetual Additional Tier 1 Temporary Write Down Notes was issued in
international markets. The funds raised will help the Bank to maintain its lending volumes to Lithuanian businesses, to achieve an efficient
capital structure, to meet the requirements (including MREL) of the supervisory authority and to maintain the continuity of its dividend

policy.

Data on indicators are also available on the website of Giauli 6
- on operating profitability indicators:
Ho me p aBaek InestorsiFi nanci al IProfftabilityrRatios o n U
- prudential requirements:
Ho me p aBaek InestorsiFi nanci al IPrudemtial 8tantarde n U
- the description of alternative performance indicators:
Homepage U Bank I nvestors U Financi al I nformation U Alterna

ACTIVITY PLANS AND FORECASTS

The Bank Group aims to become a new generation financial services provider, offering broader services, flexibility and unique solutions.
Having implemented the retail business merger transaction, it expanded the range of services provided, including second and third pillar
pension and investment funds as well as wider life insurance services.

Having identified the Bank's long-term vision, we looked for a way to express an intermediate ambitious goal that would unite the entire
newly created organization after the retail business merger. To this end, we set an ambitious goal - to become the best bank in Lithuania
by 2029.

Having assessed all the circumstances and assumptions of future scenarios, in 2024 the Bank Group's strategy was updated for the
period 20251 2027, in which the foundation of the Bank's strategy remains continuous in achieving long-term goals. The direction to
actively shape the future of financial services, taking into account the needs and expectations of customers, remains relevant.

As a bank with Lithuanian roots, we have been building on our bold and character since our founding day and are even more firmly
articulating our core purpose - our mission is Banking that empowers. We understand and create modern banking as progressive,
close, human, nurturing and, above all, allowing to make dreams come true.
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During this strategic planning exercise, we have also renewed our focus on the vision, which includes perspectives on customer
relationship, reputation and visibility, and the bank's performance. Our vision - A bank one wants to grow with. For us, this means
realizing our ambition to be a bank that is loved and recognized by our customers, employees, and investors, and that encourages (and
helps) financial and professional growth.

Strategic ambition and objectives

Having identified a longer-term vision for the Bank, we also looked for a way to express an intermediate, ambitious goal of bringing
together the entire, newly created organization after the merger of the retail businesses. To this end, we have set ourselves the ambitious
goal of becoming the Best Bank in Lithuania by 2029. Achievements (desired results) that detail this ambition:

From a customer perspective, to become No.1 in customer satisfaction in the banking sector;

In terms of growth, to grow faster than the market in terms of number of active clients and loan portfolio;
From an employee's perspective, the goal is to become a TOP3 employer in the financial sector;

In terms of awareness, to become the first brand in the minds of consumers in the banking sector;
From the investors' perspective, to deliver a 20% rate of return to investors.

> > >

In a fast-growing bank, risk management plays a crucial role in balancing ambitious growth with stability and compliance. While pursuing
expansion, the bank must ensure adherence to regulatory requirements, ethical standards, and internal controls to prevent financial and
operational risks. A systematic risk management approach involves continuous monitoring, stress testing, and proactive mitigation
strategies to safeguard assets and maintain trust. By integrating risk awareness into decision-making, the bank can achieve sustainable
growth while maintaining resilience against potential threats .

Strategic areas and objectives

In line with the Bank's business context, assumptions and market potential identified at the time of strategy development, and its stated
ambition and objectives, the Bank's strategy is shaped in three horizontal (cross-functional) and four vertical areas:

The horizontal strategic areas are essential and fundamental elements for the realization of this strategy, without which the strategic
objectives would be impossible to achieve or would be fundamentally changed:

/f\ Compliance assurance, risk management and ESG implementation;
A Changing the technology platform;
A Rebranding.

The vertical strategic areas are breakthrough goals and strategic initiatives in specific perspectives:

A Customer perspective (divided into three business lines: corporate clients, private clients and investment clients);

A Employee perspective;

A Public (awareness) perspective;

A Investor perspective.
Summarizing the Bank's planned strategic period 2025-2027, it is necessary to emphasize that, taking into account market trends,
changing customer expectations, intensifying competitive environment, the Bank's strengths and weaknesses and other factors relevant
to the Bank's operations, this phase is considered to be a period of fundamental transformation for the Bank.

AUTHORIZED CAPITAL, SHAREHOLDERS

As of 31 December 2024, the authorized capital of the Bank totaled to EUR 192,269,027.34 and is divided into 662,996,646 units of
ordinary registered shares with a nominal value of EUR 0.29 each (ISIN LT0000102253 Nasdag CSD Lithuanian branch). The Charter
of the Bank were registered in the Register of Legal Entities on 15 December 2023 after the last increase of the authorized capital by
additional contributions.

The rights granted by the Bank's shares are specified in the Bank's Charter, which is available on the Bank's website at:
Ho me p aAbeut Ws tlmportant Documents

Authorized capital:]| 01/06/2018 13/12/2018 15/12/2023
Capital, EUR| 157,639,187.74 174,210,616.27 192,269,027.34

As of 31 December 2024 the number if the Bank's shareholders was 18,774 (as of 31 December 20231 19,087). All issued shares grant
the shareholders equal rights foreseen by the Law on Companies of the Republic of Lithuania of Lithuania and the Charter of the Bank:
Ho me p aAbeut Us Glmportant Documents

138


https://sb.lt/en/about/important-documents
https://sb.lt/en/about/important-documents

siauLiy $p sanKas CONSOLIDATED MANAGEMENT REPORT FOR 2024

Shareholders by type Shareholders by residence

Foreign
investors
28%

Natural
33%

LT investors

2%

Sharehol ders owning more than 5% of the BanWkdés shares and votes

Share of shares and votes, %

Invalda INVL AB, c.c. 121304349 19.93*
UAB Willgrow, c.c.. 302489393 8.97
EBRD, LEI code 549300HTGDOVDU60GK19 7.25
Tesonet Global, UAB, c.c.. 305475420 5.32
Algirdas Butkus 5.06**

* Pursuant to the Law on Securities of the Republic of Lithuania, the shareholder's votes are counted together with the controlled company: INVL Asset Management UAB, c.c.
126263073 - 0.30% of the votes

**\/otes are counted together with controlled companies: Prekybos namai AIVA UAB, c.c. 144031190 i 1.81%, Mintaka UAB, c.c. 144725916 - 0.79%

Restrictions on the transfer of securities apply. Employees who receive Bank shares as part of their annual variable remuneration, the
shares received have a retention period. Shares may be transferred, pledged or otherwise disposed of only one year after the date of
grant.

Information on shares:

2020 2021 2022 2023 2024

Capitalization, M EUR 299.2 457.2 412.1 459.5 546.3

Turnover, M Eur 84.5 134.8 101.9 52.0 53.1

Share price on the last trading session day 0.498 0.761 0.686 0.693 0.824
Lowest share price during the reporting period 0.320 0.493 0.511 0.606 0.658
Highest share price during the reporting period 0.558 0.890 0.794 0.754 0.833
Average share price during the reporting period 0.442 0.663 0.624 0.667 0.738
Share book value 0.592 0.678 0.739 0.822 0.885

P/BV 0.8 1.1 0.9 0.8 0.9

P/E 7.0 8.3 6.1 6.1 6.9

Capital increase from retained earnings, % - - - - -

* description of indicators is provided on the Bank's website: Homepage G Bank |l nvestors U Financi al Information U Alternative

Turnover and price of the Bank's shares 2022-2024:
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As one of the most traded stocks in the Baltic market, the Bank's shares are included in the following Nasdaq indices:

1 OMX Baltic Benchmark (OMXBBGI, OMXBBPI, OMXBBCAPGI, OMXBBCAPPI) - the Baltic benchmark index consists of the
largest and most traded stocks on the Nasdaq Baltic Market representing all sectors;

1 OMX Baltic 10 (OMXB10) - is a tradable index of the Baltic states consisting of the 10 most actively traded stocks on the Baltic
exchanges;

T OMX Baltic (OMXBGI, OMXBPI) i is an all-share index consisting of all the shares listed on the Main and Secondary lists of
the Baltic exchanges with exception of the shares of the companies where a single shareholder controls at least 90% of the
outstanding shares;

T OMX Vilnius (OMXVGI) i is an all-share index which includes all the shares listed on the Main and Secondary lists on the
Nasdag Vilnius with exception of the shares of the companies where a single shareholder controls at least 90% of the
outstanding shares;

1 OMX Baltic Financials (B8000GI, B800OOPI, B40PI) i an index of the Baltic financial institutions;

1 OMX Baltic Banks (B300GI, B8300PI) - an index of the Baltic banks.

Return indices (RIs) represent the total return on the shares included in the index and reflect not only stock price movements but also
the dividends paid, making these indices a more complete measure of market performance than price indices. Price indices (PIs) only
reflect changes in the price of shares included in the index, regardless of dividends. There is a cap on the weight of the shares (CAP)
forming indices of a limited number of shares above which the number of shares included in the index is reduced to a cap.

Besides, the Bank's shares are included into such indices as STOXX All Europe Total Market, STOXX EU Enlarged TMI, STOXX Eastern
Europe 300, STOXX Eastern Europe 300 Banks, STOXX Eastern Europe Mid 100, STOXX Eastern Europe TMI, STOXX Eastern Europe
TMI Small, STOXX Global Total Market, STOXX Lithuania Total Market, Bloomberg ESG Data Index, Bloomberg ESG Coverage Index,
S&P Frontier BMI Index, MSCI Frontier and Emerging Markets Select Index, FCI EMU MIDSMALLCAP MKTCAP-CONSTRAINED
(FREE-FLOAT UNADJUSTED) 400 (NET) Index and in some FTSE Russell Frontier indices.

ACQUISITION OF OWN SHARES

On 15 August 2024, the Bank received permission from the European Central Bank (ECB) to buy back up to 13,745,114 of its own
shares. As at 31 December 2024, the Bank had 10,342,927 uninm s
announced on 31 October 2024, the Bank purchased 3,092,927 units of its own shares for EUR 2,554,962.75. The sole purpose of the
program is to reduce the Bank's capital.

DIVIDENDS

30th of September 2024 Supervisory Council approved new Dividend Policyoft he Bank. According to the n
bankas undertakes to pay out at least 50% of the previous year's net profit. Dividends would be paid under the following assumptions:

1 Bank meets external and internal capital and liquidity and other regulatory requirements on a sustainable basis.
1 Level of capital, after payment of the proposed dividends, remains sufficient for investments, expansion plans and other
capital-intensive activities.

The General Meeting of Shareholders held on 29 March 2024 decided on the allocation of the Bank's profits. Dividends of EUR 0.0485
per ordinary registered share with a nominal value of EUR 0.29.

Information on the dividends paid:

| 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023

Per cent from nominal value - 1.90 11.72 9.14 16.72

Dividend amount per share, Eur - 0.0055 0.034 0.0265 0.0485
Dividend amount, Eur - 3,303,994 20,424,693 15,919,246 32,094,273

Yields from dividends, % - 11 4.5 3.9 7.0

Dividends to Group net profit, per cent - 7.7 37.0 25.0 37.3

The description of alternative performance indicators is available on the Bank's website at:
Homepage U0 Bank I nvestors 0 Financi al Information 0O Alternative

AGREEMENTS WITH SECURITIES
PUBLIC TRADING INTERMEDIARIES
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Agreements with public circulation intermediaries regarding the accounting of securities issued by the Bank are, not concluded, this
accounting is managed by the Bank's Securities Accounting Department. The Bank has not entered into market-making agreements with
respect to securities issued by the Bank.

According to data as of 31 December 2024 the Bank itself, as an intermediary of public trading, under agreements with the companies
issuing securities conducted accounting of 800 companies which totaled to 1255 securities issues (including shares of public and private
companies, debt securities, investment fund units). The Bank also conducts market making on the Nasdaq Baltic under a market making
program and under agreements with issuers. As of the end of 2024, the Bank was the market maker of 4 securities issues.

MANAGEMENT OF THE BANK

The Management Board bodies of the Bank are as follows: the General Meeting of the Shareholders of the Bank, Supervisory Council
of the Bank, Management Board of the Bank and Chief Executive Officer (CEO).

The General Meeting of Shareholders shall be convened annually, at the latest within 3 months after the end of the financial year. The
Board of the Bank, the Supervisory Council and the shareholders having at least 1/10 of all votes have the right to convene the Meeting.
The General Meeting of Shareholders is organized, voting is carried out at it, decisions are made in accordance with the procedure
established by the Law on Companies. More information on the rights of the General Meeting of Shareholders is provided in the annex
fGover Rapoet o t o t hmanagemensraportifod2024e d

The Supervisory Council of the Bank is a collegial body supervising the activities of the Bank. The Supervisory Council is chaired by
the Chairperson. The Bank's Supervisory Council, consisting of eight members, is elected by the General Meeting of Shareholders for a
term of four years. The members of the Supervisory Council are nominated for the meeting by the initiators of the meeting or shareholders
holding 1/20 of the bank's shares. The Charter of the Bank provide that the number of terms of office of a member of the Supervisory
Council is not limited.

More information on the functions of the Supervisory Counci
management report for 2024.

29 March 2024 The General Meeting of Shareholders of Giaulfouw Ba
year term of office (2024-2 02 8 ) . Val das Vitkauskas, Susan Gai l Buyske, Tomas
Kateivawerere-e | ect ed to the Supervisory Council of Giauli® Bankas and
Nachyga was elected, and took up her duties on 26 June OAt) %aldas af f

Vitkauskas was elected Chairman of the newly elected Supervisory Council. The selection of the eighth member of the Supervisory
Council continues.

The Bankés Supervisory Council, whose term of office expires
the Bank in 2028, composition and other information for 31/12/2024 date was:

Share of capital Share of votes
Name, Surname Duties at the Superwsory Other current leading positions under the rlg_ht of together with the
Council ownership, % related persons, %
(31/12/2024) (31/12/2024)
. Independent member since 2022
Gelar LR R Chairman since 05/08/2022
Gintaras Kateiva Member since 2008 LITAGRAUAB 30456 44 7 &r. 578, Witnios 4.89 4.91*

(Chairman of the Board)
I nvalda | NVL AB 121304349 (
I NVL Asset Management WskB4,
Vilnius (Chairman of the Board),
LITAGRAUAB 304564478 Savanct
Dari us Member since 2016 (Board member); - 19.93**
FERN Group 306110392 Granito str. 3-101, Vilnius (Chair of
the Supervisory Council)
UAB AGaNoilBtds 6 8 1 3 5, str. BECj Kaunasi
(member of the Board)
Susan Gail Buyske| Independent member since 2020 America for Bulgaria Foundation (Chair of the Board)
UAB AHostingerfd 302710386 Jo
member)
Tesonetg !l obal , UAB 305475420 C
(Board member and CEO )

Tesonet Ventures, UAB 305600

Tomas Okmanas| Independent member since 2023 Hypervisor X, UAB 3054494209 (gs?) 5.32%**
(CEO)
Nord Security Group (Board member and CEO)
DATAQUAKE B.V. (Oxylabs
Group) (member of the Founding Board)
VU TSPMI Board of Trustees Vi
of the Board of Trustees)
Willgrow UAB, 302489393 Vilniaus str. 18, Vilnius
Mindaugas Raila Member since 2023 (Chairman of the Board) 8.97+x*

ME Holding NT , UAB 302636473 A. Vivulskio str. 7-1 Vilnius
(Chairman of the Board)
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Stichting Pinetree Family Foundation

(member of the Board)

Orange Polska S.A.(member of the Supervisory Council and

Independent member since Audit Committee)
26/06/2024 Abris Capital Partners (Partner and member of the

Management Committee)

MonikaNa ¢ h

* Pursuant to the Law on Securities of the Republic of Lithuania, votes are counted together with the votes held by the spouse

¥k Mro. Gulnis is the CEO and indirect shareholder of Inva%dafl NVie ABarbdsderf tGh @ ultl i
together with the controlled company INVL Asset Management UAB it holds 19.93% of the sharesand voting rights of Giauli O Bankas AB
*** Mr. Okmanas is member of the Management Board, CEO and indirects har ehol der of Tesonet Gl obal UAB, which owns 5. 3
rights

*+% Pyrsuant to the Law on Securities of the Republic of Lithuania, votes are counted together with the votes held by the controlled company Willgrow UAB

The Management Board of the Bank is a collegial management body of the Bank consisting of 8 members. The rules of procedure of
the Management Board shall determine the Rules of Procedure of the Management Board. The Management Board of the Bank is elected
for four years. The members of the Management Board are elected, recalled and supervised by the Bank's Supervisory Council. The
term of office of the Management Board shall be four years and the number of terms is not limited. If individual members of the
Management Board are elected, they are elected until the end of the term of office of the existing Management Board. The General
Meeting of Shareholders approved amendments to the Bank's Articles of Association according to which the Bank's Management Board
will consist of 8 members instead of 7, as before.

At the first meeting of the newly elected Supervisory Council on 29 March 2024, a new Management Board was also elected for a new
four-year term of office (2024-2028).

Vytautas Sinius, Mi ndaugas Rudys, Donatas Savickas, D &lectedito B r | ¢
Giauli O bankas Management Board. Two new member sTomaswarenbetgaspHedde e n

of the Bank's Investment Management Division, who took up his duties on 4 June 2024, after obtaining permission from the Bank's

Supervisory Authority, and Laura Kriginauskiena, Head of , aftee Pr
obtaining permission from the Supervisory Authority.

Vytautas Sinius was elected Chairman of the newly elected Management Board.

More information on the functions of the Management Boar d i s provided in the annex @fAGove

management report for 2024.

T h e B ahtakagesnent Board, whose term of office expires on the day of the Ordinary General Meeting of Shareholders of
the Bank in 2028, composition for 31/12/2024 date was:

Other current leading positions at the Share of capital under the Share of votes together with

Name, Surname Duties at the Board gp Bank right of ownership, % the related persons, %

(31/12/2024) (31/12/2024)

Vytautas Sinius Chairman since 19/08/2022 Chief Executive Officer 0.30 0.30

Donatas Savickas Deputy Chairman since 1995 Deput{'g:éegflzéﬁlzl;]té\;egagﬁg 0.13 0.13

Daiva Gorien S‘Member since 2005 DUy Cilfsl Exec_:utlve O_ff_lc_er, 0.07 0.07
Head of Corporate Clients Division

Mindaugas Rudys Member since 2020 Head of Service Development Division 0.07 0.07

Algimantas Gaulia Member since 2021 Head of Risk Management Division 0.02 0.02
Agniuksi ena Member since 2023 Head of the Leggléesgnmtg:?g?\?iggg

Tomas Varenbergas Member since 04/06/2024 Head of Investments Management Division 0.01 0.01
Laura Kri gi |Membersince 07/06/2024 Head of Private Clients Division

THE COMMITTEES FORMED WITHIN THE BANK,
AREAS OF THEIR ACTIVITIES

Functions, procedures of formation and the policy of activities of the bank's committees are defined by the legal acts of the Republic of
Lithuania, legal acts of the Bank of Lithuania as well as provisions of the certain committees approved by the Management Board or
Supervisory Council of the Bank.

COMMITTEES UNDER AUTHORITY OF THE BANK'S SUPERVISORY COUNCIL

For the effective exercise of the functions and duties of the Supervisory Council, the Bank shall establish standing committees of the
Supervisory Council: (i) the Risk Committee; (ii) the Audit Committee; (iii) the Nomination Committee; (iv) the Remuneration Committee,
the members whereof shall be appointed by decision of the Supervisory Council. A new committee of the Supervisory Council i Corporate
Affairs Committee, has been established and started its activity as of 1 January 2024. Following the election of the Council in 2024 for a
new term of office from 2024 to 2028, the composition of the Supervisory Council Committees was also updated (effective from 29 March
2024)
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Information on the committee members as of 31 December 2024:

The Risk Committee advises the management bodies of the Bank on the overall current and future risk acceptable to the Bank and
strategy and assist in overseeing the implementation of the strategy at the Bank, verifies whether prices of liabilities and assets offered

toclient s take fully into account the Bankds business model arindts ri s
provisions.
|Name, surname
Chairman|Susan Gail Buyske Independent member of the Supervisory Council
Members:|Dar i us Gul ni s Member of the Supervisory Council
Valdas Vitkauskas Independent member of the Supervisory Council

The Audit Committee main role in ensuring financial integrity and compliance under the Law on the Audit of Financial Statements. It is
responsible for overseeing financial reporting processes, ensuring compliance with accounting standards, and monitoring the
effectiveness of internal control and risk management systems. The committee also supervises the financial statements audit and
sustainability report limited assurance audit process, ensuring auditor independence, and provides opinions on related party transactions

as required by the Law on Companies of the Republic of Lithuania. By performing these functions, the Audit Committee enhances
transparency, accountability, and stake hol der confi dence i n the olngpaplianz avithithe tegakact$ af n a n
supervisory authorities, the audit committee shall be formed, its competence and performance shall be defined, regulations approved

and performance supervised by the Council.

|[Name, surname

Chairwoman|MonikaNa c hy g a Independent member of the Supervisory Council
Members:|Valdas Vitkauskas Independent member of the Supervisory Council
Susan Gail Buyske Independent member of the Supervisory Council

The Nomination Committee shall nominate and recommend, for the approval of the bodies of the Bank or for the approval of the General
Meeting of Shareholders, candi dates to fil!]l t h eshall evalaate the lealsince ofithetskille, evBlaate khé targeb o d i
number of the underrepresent e knogledgedapdrexperienceof the mernbers d& thenblodies of theoBarnke s
and suitability for the position, shall submit respective comments and findings, shall assess the structure, size, composition, performance
results and shall carry out other functions provided for in its regulations.

|[Name, surname

Chairman|Valdas Vitkauskas Independent member of the Supervisory Council
Members:(Dar i us Gul ni s Member of the Supervisory Council
MonikaNac hy § a Independent member of the Supervisory Council

The Remuneration Committee shall assess the variable remuneration policy, practices and incentives established for the management
of t he B acafitél and liquiditfk supervise the independent control functions including remuneration to managers in charge of
risk management and compliance function, draft resolutions on variable remuneration, advise the Council on the gender neutrality of
remuneration policies and perform other functions provided for in its regulations.

|[Name, surname

Chairman|Valdas Vitkauskas Independent member of the Supervisory Council
Members:|Gintaras Kateiva Member of the Supervisory Council
Tomas Okmanas Independent member of the Supervisory Council

The Corporate Affairs Committee shall participate in the development/review of the annual objectives of the Group, also participate in
the preparation/review of the strategy of the Group and provide comments and proposals to the Council and perform other functions
provided for in its regulations.

|[Name, surname

ChairmanDar i us Gul ni s Member of the Supervisory Council
Members:|Mindaugas Raila Member of the Supervisory Council
Tomas Okmanas Independent member of the Supervisory Council
Valdas Vitkauskas Independent member of the Supervisory Council

COMIMITTEES UNDER AUTHORITY OF THE BANK'S MANAGEMENT BOARD

Information on the committee members as of 31 December 2024:

The Loan Committee evaluates loan granting material / documents and loan risk, approves / rejects lending decisions and / or
amendments to terms and conditions, suggests regarding loan granting, loan interest rates, improvement of loan administration
procedures and performs other functions foreseen by its provisions.

|Name, surname Position
Chairman|Edas Mirijauskas Director of Credit Department
DeputylDi ana Leonaviliena Director of Regional Lending Unit
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Members:IDomi nykas Gesevilius Director of Corporate Clients management Department
Denis Zubovas Director of Credit Risk Management and Control Department
Raminas Degukas Director of the Special Assets Department
Aurelija Gelegilina Director of the Legal Department

The Risk Management Committee performs functions related to the organization, coordination and control of the Bank's risk
management system, determines and controls risk measurement indicators corresponding to the risk appetite acceptable to the Bank,
as well as performs other functions provided for in its regulations:

Name, surname Position
Chairman|Algimantas Gaulia Head of Risk Management Division
DeputylDal i a Udri end Director of Risk Department
Members:| Tomas Dautoras Director of Non-Financial Risk Department
Agnliuksi ena Head of Legal, Compliance and Prevention Division
Edas Mirijauskas Director of Credit Department
Donatas Savickas Head of Finance Division
Daiva Goriena Head of Corporate Clients Division
Denis Zubovas Director of Credit Risk Management & Control Department
The Asset and Liability Man awpesaésnd ensGre sustairtattleeneabagement of the Bank's and its
subsidiaries assets, liabilities, and capital, implementing the Bank's Group strategic business plan.
Name, surname Position
Chairman|Donatas Savickas Head of Finance Division
Deputy| Vaidotas Head of Treasury Unit
Members:[Dal i a Udri ena Director of Risk Department
Algimantas Gaulia Head of Risk Management Division
Mantas Valukonis Head of Financial Risk Management Unit
Kristina Lazdaus Director of Management Reporting & Planning Department
Tomas Varenbergas Head of Investments Management Division

NPE (Non-Performing Exposures) Co mmi t tmaie f@ugose is to address issues related to NPE restructuring, additional funding,
recovery, etc., to ensure the proper implementation of tcAagouNPE
other functions set out in its regulations.

Name, surname Position

ChairmanlRami nas Degukas Director of the Special Assets Department

DeputyyAugra Lauri navi | Headof Debt Recovery Unit
Members:(Dai va Gori ené Head of Corporate Clients Division
Denis Zubovas Director of Credit Risk Management and Control Department
Edas Mirijauskas Director of Credit Department
Justina St ukni en HeadofAsset Restructuring & Realization Unit
Asta Rasi ul i end DeputyDirector of the Special Assets Department

INTERNAL CONTROL ASSESSMENT

The risk management and internal control process in the Bank is based on a three-level defense model. The first level of defense includes
the entire risk management activities of the Bank group, carried out directly by the units serving customers and their managers. The
second level of defense in the Bank is ensured by the Bank's Risk Management Division units and employees performing risk control
functions and Compliance assurance and risk control functions. In the Bank group's companies, this involves the Bank group's company
branches and employees working in risk management, compliance, and actuarial functions. The third level of defense is carried out by
the Internal Audit Division, which conducts periodic independent audits of the Bank group's governance and internal control.

The Bank has approved the Internal Control Organization Procedure, which regulates the objectives and principles of internal control,
the structure of the internal control system, its elements, and the organization of their implementation across the Bank Group. The Bank
Group continues to pay special attention to fostering a culture of risk management and compliance, as well as strengthening the second
line of defense.

EXTERNAL AUDIT

In 2024, the Bank was audited by KPMG Baltics UAB (company address: Lvivo str. 101, LT-08104 Vilnius, tel. (8 5) 2102 600, fax (8 5)
2012 659, the company was registered on June 24, 1994, company code 111494971).
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The General Meeting of Shareholders of the Bank held on 29 March 2024 adopted a resolution to elect KPMG Baltics UAB for auditing
the consolidated annual financial statements of the Bank for 2024 and 2025 and the consolidated management report.

EUR thousands (excluding VAT costs)| Group The Bank
2024 2023 2024 2023

Contractual auditing of financial statements 401 360 150 114
Cost for assurance and other related services 223 60 127 60
Costs for tax advice issues - - - -

Costs for other services 90 - 88 -

Total 634 420 365 174

EMPLOYEES

As of 31 December 2024, the Bank had 1 090 employees and the Group had 1 239 employees (including those working under fixed-term
and open-ended employment contracts, as well as employees on maternity, paternity, and parental leave). Compared to 31 December
2023, the number of employees in the Bank increased by 10%, while in the Group, the number of employees grew by 8.2%. As of 31
December 2024, women accounted for 78.4% and men for 21.6% of the Group's workforce. The gender distribution remains similar to
the previous year, with a slight increase in the number of men.

Distribution of the Group's employees Distribution of the Group's employees
by education, per cent by age, per cent
4%
15% AL

27%
= Higher Post-secondary <30 years =31-40 years = 41-50 years
Professional Secondary 51-60 years = >61 years

HR Strateqy

Taking into account the newly appr ov eah29Gnvestorlamnbiionsand dbjactives) thepotentials s

of existing empl oyuique positoomid thetfihaacialGecomni prd\dding the freedom to create solutions and influence
decision-making i the HR management strategy for the next six years will focus on expanding professional development opportunities.
Our goal is to becomethebest pl ace for professional growth in Lithuaniads

Relationships with employees

The Bank fosters long-term employment relationships with its staff. As of 31 December 2024, 25.7% of Bank employees had been with
the company for 10 years or more. In 2024, the overall employee turnover rate in the Bank was 13.69% (compared to 9.8% in 2023).

As a Group-wide initiative, employees are granted additional leave for continuous service within the Bank Group. This leave is awarded
after one year of service and continues to accrue thereafter (1 day after 1 year of service, 2 days after 2 years, 3 days after 3 years, 4
days after 4 years, and 5 days after 5 or more years of service). These additional leave days are cumulative and may be carried over to
subsequent years; however, in the event of employment termination, any unused balance is not compensated. Employees may use these
additional leave days if they have accrued fewer than 30 days of annual leave.

In 2024, a new Bank Employee Council was elected by secret ballot, consisting of 11 Bank employees holding various positions within

<

the organization. The Employee Council operates in accordance with the
coll aborates with the Bankés HR and other departments, prowi di
employees.

Performance evaluation

Once a year, the Bank conducts a formal annual employee performance evaluation process. To ensure the successful implementation

of the Bankds strategic objectives and a fair, ef fecti venicatmmd
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and cascading within the Bank were strengthened through various actions and measures. This helped employees better understand how

their daily activities contribute to achieving the Bankds strat

During the performance evaluation process, managers and employees discuss and assess the achievement of annual goals, completed
projects, and competencies, highlighting strengths and areas for development. Specific development measures are agreed upon, and
career opportunities are discussed. The conversation encourages mutual feedback, fostering open and value-driven communication and
coll aboration. To ensure that every employee feel s t heihatallweffontsk
are aligned in the same direction, annual goals are set by mutual agreement between the manager and the employee. These goals
contribute to the Bankbés overall objectives and performance r

In addition, the Bank organizes semi-annual performance review meetings to assess the progress of annual goals, identify additional
measures if needed, and take actions to ensure goal achievement.

In 2024, the Bank introduced a new performance evaluation platform to meet the expectations of both managers and employees, digitize
the process, ensure timely analysis of performance evaluations, and integrate additional assessment tools into a single platform. The
new performance evaluation platform will enable the efficient organization and optimization of the performance evaluation process,
ensuring the smooth execution of evaluation stages, timely and accurate data integration, and opportunities to further develop and
enhance the process.

Engagement

The Bank strives to engage employees and their representatives in decision-making on various important matters. As in previous years,
in 2024, an employee engagement process was carried out to ensure that employees have the opportunity to actively participate and
express their opinions. This process allows the Bank to consider employees' perspectives in decision-making, ensuring that their voices
are heard and taken into account.

One of the engagement methods used in the Bank is the real-time feedback tool "Pulse” surveys, which allow for regular (monthly)
assessments of employee job satisfaction and team well-being. This tool helps monitor whether employees receive sufficient
communication from both the organization and their managers, identify the prevailing mood within teams, and respond quickly to any
arising situations. Through these surveys, employees can provide direct feedback, and the organization can react promptly without having
to wait for annual survey results.

The annual employee engagement survey plays a crucial role in the sustainable growth of the Bank.

In 2024, the Bank conducted its annual employee engagement survey, which serves as a key tool for improving organizational
performance. It helps not only to monitor employee engagement levels but also to identify strengths and areas for improvement to support
long-term growth.

Structure and objectives of the survey

The annual employee engagement survey was conducted for the fifth consecutive year to gather employee insights on organizational
changes and the work environment. The survey consisted of two main parts:

A Organizational perspective: Four key elements were assessed i engagement culture, strategic alignment, motivation, and

_ relationships, along with change implementation.

A Employee perspective: Engagement levels were analyzed based on three categories: Engaged, in-between, and disengaged
employees.

The objective of the 2024 survey was to assess employee sentiment, identify organizational strengths, and determine areas for
improvement to create a more effective and employee-friendly work environment.

Results of the 2024 survey

An impressive 90% of Bank employees participated in the 2024 survey. This demonstrates a high level of interest and willingness to
contribute to the organizatondés gr owt h. Key insights: Empl oyees value the

c

es

m

responsibilities, and the organization 6s f ocus on customer needs. Manager s t r-makihg, t he

and provide valuable feedback. Job roles encourage problem-solving, foster creativity, and promote accountability. Additionally, the
flexibility to work both in the office and remotely remains one of the organizaton 6s key strengt hs.

At the same time, the survey highlighted areas for improvement. The organizaton 6s goal s and priorities
ensure better alignment across teams. More attention is needed to workload balance and employee well-being, while cross-functional
collaboration should be enhanced to facilitate better knowledge sharing among teams. Furthermore, career management processes
should be more transparent and consistent to provide employees with greater opportunities for structured professional growth.

Based on the survey results and identified areas for improvement, the Bank has refined and approved action plans and implementation
tasks aimed at addressing these areas. The first change initiatives have already been launched, with implementation planned until the
first quarter of 2025. Regular quarterly performance reviews are scheduled to monitor progress and adjust actions accordingly.

Employee Emotional Well-being.
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Amid the ongoing war in Ukraine and the organizational changes resulting from the merger of two businesses, in 2024, we continued to
actively discuss and educate employees on emotional well-being, aiming to raise awareness and care for their psychological health.
fLabas po pi edt(Ghod Afeenood,rCo-wdrkiers) addressed various relevant topics such as "How to strengthen personal
psychological safety and stress resilience," "What does our body want to tell us?" "Summer 'Vitamins' i how to dose them when returning
to ensure they last long?" and "How to effectively manage your energy levels in the modern hybrid work and life environment." These
lectures were held remotely, allowing all employees in the organization to join the sessions on Friday afternoons. The lectures provided
not only theoretical knowledge but also practical advice on how to take better care of oneself. We also shared podcasts from the Tech
Kinship community, which delve into the importance of emotional health. Additionally, employees were reminded about the website "Self
Help i Towards Emotional Health", which is dedicated to recognising and helping find the right ways to feel better. Similarly to last year,
psychological consultations were included in the employee health insurance. These initiatives encouraged employees to pay more
attention to their emotional health. In the autumn, we encouraged employees to make time for physical activity by inviting everyone to
participate in the Sustainable Business League 2024 step challenge. Together, we walked almost 30 million steps! In December, we held
numerous Christmas initiatives, with Christmas events for employees and their children, and gifts were presented to everyone. Each
year, we also encourage Bank employee teams to engage in joint activities, allocating a budget for this purpose.

Organizational structure

In 2024, to enhance the synergy and efficiency of the Bankties u
interchangeability of existing competencies, and the consolidation of related functions, as well as to manage and improve the quality of
operations, the Bank's organizational structure was updated. To achieve these objectives, structural changes were made to the Bank's
business units:

A a new Real-Time Monitoring Unit was established within the Legal, Compliance, and Prevention Di v i sFinangidl €rime
Prevention Department. This unit is responsible for monitoring client operations and transactions in real time for sanctions and
money laundering risk management, ensuring the full process from warning analysis to investigation and decision-making
regarding the execution of the transaction and reporting to the Financial Crime Investigation Service, as well as competency
development in sanctions, money laundering, and terrorist financing prevention.

A A new Retrospective Monitoring Unit was established within the Legal, Compliance, and Prevention Di v i sFinannid Grime
Prevention Department. This unit is responsible for retrospectively monitoring client operations and transactions for sanctions
and money laundering risk management, transferring the functions of the existing Retrospective Group, aiming to more clearly
distinguish between competencies for regular monitoring (scenarios) and case investigations based on situations identified from
external sources.

In 2024, considering the launch of the core banking system change project and aiming to ensure focused and specialized attention to
the management of this project, which goes beyond the scope of usual IT updates or typical project management teams, compatibility,
data integrity, and the uninterrupted functionality of all platforms.

A A new Strategic Technology Development Department was established within the Business Development Division. This
department is responsible for the implementation of the core banking system change.

A The Daily Banking Department was abolished in order to consolidate all the functions related to the development, support,
documentation preparation, monitoring, and regulatory compliance of daily banking products into a single department. The
functions of t he Daily Banking Departmentods daily banking producHt
monitoring, and regulatory compliance were transferred to the Financing Services Development Department, which was
renamed to the Product Development Department.

Structural changes within the Bank were only implemented after assessing their impact on the Bank's operations and the effectiveness
of risk management processes. Before the Bank's Boardmaded e ci si ons r egar di ngorgahizatiogaessucttre ariskh e E
assessment was conducted involving individuals responsible for internal control functions.

Professional development of employees

2024 at the Bank was marked by an intensive and consistent development process, which, as in previous years, was closely linked to the
organizaton6s strategic goals and empl oyee n éfeothsraditiona ta electiomcgrairing ank self-1 a c
directed knowledge enhancement. This flexible and diverse approach to development ensured that every employee could find the most
suitable way to grow and improve.

To meet ambitious strategic goals and strengthen the organization's leadership, special attention was given to leadership development
this year. Strengthening leadership competencies became a key link, enabling not only more effective implementation of the Bank's
strategy but also creating added value for the organization and its employees. The training provided was based on the latest educational
trends in the market and globally, with a focus on the measurable happiness index results, engagement survey data, and the needs
expressed by the leaders.

Taking into account the collective assessments of the Banéaténal Bo
needs, it was decided to allow members of the Bank's Board and Supervisory Council to independently plan their individual development

147


https://pagalbasau.lt/
https://pagalbasau.lt/

SIAULIY =; BANKAS CONSOLIDATED MANAGEMENT REPORT FOR 2024

plan according to their specific needs. Additionally, training was organized for members of the Bank's Board and service leaders on topics
such as PPTF prevention, competition and lobbying, client centrism, and the provisions of the Code of Conduct.

In 2024, we continued the Leadership Clubs program for middle management. The Leadership Clubs format allowed us to successfully
create and maintain strong interpersonal relationships between leaders, encouraging club members to share acquired knowledge, best
practices, and daily challenges with each other; to create a safe environment where, through discussions and reflections, each individual
could analyze and assess their experiences, achievements, reconsider their assumptions, and deepen learning. Within the club, group
coaching was used to strengthen the | eadership competencies ' 'of
resilience during organizational changes and reinforced self-confidence, team trust, and confidence in the organizaton 6s di rect i
Leadership Club meetings were held throughout the year, with four leader groups meeting 3-4 times per year. Each meeting lasted a full
workday. A total of 67 leaders participated in the club. The first 2024 Leadership Club meetings began with a theme of trust, which was
crucial in the context of change. Then, each Leadership Club group, within their team framework, agreed on which theme(s) they would

like to develop in the subsequent club meetings. The topics varied: team management, internal communication, resilience in uncertainty,

my leadership philosophy and recipes, DISC methodology and its practical application, etc. However, the majority of the time in the club
meetings was dedicated to sharing experiences, discussions, and seeking effective solutions.

All newly joined employees or newly appointed leaders to managerial positions were invited to participate in Situational Leadership
training, designed for all Bank leaders. This training helps leaders work more effectively with teams, apply an individual approach to each
employee, and strengthen one-on-one communication to foster greater engagement and collective results. In the autumn, the heads of
the Bankés departments, groups, and client servicing wer etraimingv i t
lasted for two days and was attended by more than 100 leaders. Before the live training, the leaders were also required to complete
homework, i.e. to review the Feedback e-learning course, in which they learned about providing appropriate and supportive feedback,
how to offer it to each team member, and how to give constructive comments that would allow employees to improve. During the live
training, the leaders learned about developmental conversations, the benefits they can bring, and the GROW model was also introduced.
The leaders also got acquainted with the One-on-One conversation and discussed the practical part of the Feedback e-learning course.

As in 2023, in 2024, we aimed to strengthen leadership competencies and invited leaders of all levels to two Leadership Breakfast
sessions. The first breakfast topic was Trust. During the training, the five key waves for strengthening trust were presented: personal
trust, relationships, the organization, the market, and society. Each wave was examined, discussing how to build trust and create positive
relationships and reputation both personally and professionally. The second breakfast topic was "How to Create Psychological Safety in
a Team?"

Since the team leader plays a crucial role in creating psychological safety, the concept of psychological safety was discussed during the
meeting, along with the |l eader's role in influencing hheletotrea mo s
psychological safety within a team, and the four key leader practices for ensuring psychological safety were presented.

In accordance with the 2024 development plan aimed at strengthening knowledge in the prevention of money laundering and terrorist
financing (AML/CFT), internal and external experts were engaged to conduct more than one training session for target groups on the
topics outlined in the plan. Targeted employees were invited to attend training, such as: "Financial Crime Prevention and Sanctions (FNS)
T Current Issues and Trends," "Sanctions Training: Practices and Case Analysis." During the latter training, employees examined the
most relevant case law in sanctions cases. During case analysis, based on anonymized and real examples from our work, participants
had the opportunity to ask relevant questions, consult with the lawyer, and practically apply the acquired knowledge in daily operations,
thus strengthening their competencies and abilities to handle real-life situations. As every year, in order to enhance the competencies of
compliance specialists, employees working in the areas of money laundering and prevention, customer due diligence, and financial
settlements, we provided them with the opportunity to acquire appropriate knowledge and best global practices on how to manage risk,
fight money laundering, and apply financial crime prevention in practice. We ensured that some of them could obtain ICA, CFA, and
CAMS certifications, which are recognized as the highest level of competency standards worldwide, and also participate in AML Centre
training sessions and conferences.

In 2024, the Bank implemented the first pilot project of this kind by acquiring access to the Udemy online learning platform. 20 licenses
were purchased. The target audience of the project was the Service Development Department, whose employees had the opportunity to
voluntarily study on this platform for 3 months or more. The objective of the project was to strengthen the learning culture within the
organization and expand the availability of professional training, i.e. to enhance employee competencies. Udemy is an online learning
platform that provides access to thousands of courses in various fields. It offers over 155,000 courses on a wide range of topics and
languages, taught by subject matter experts. This project garnered significant employee interest as it allowed them to individually choose
courses according to their interests and professional goals, promoting continuous learning and personal growth. The project is not yet
complete and will continue until June 2025, but employees already dedicated over 200 hours to learning in the first half of the year.

Bank employees were also invited to take advantage of the opportunity to strengthen their competencies and develop professionally by
choosing to participate in Turing College programs funded by the Employment Service. The selected programs 1 Data Analytics, Data
Science, Business Analytics & Al, etc. i provided the opportunity to deepen knowledge and develop practical skills in the fields of data
analysis, artificial intelligence, and business analytics. These initiatives contributed to the growth of employee competencies, encouraging
them to apply the latest technologies and methodologies in daily operations.

In 2024, we took a significant step in developing a competency model for sales teams, which enables more effective usage of employee
potential, strengthens motivation, and ensures a purposeful investment in training. Over the year, the competencies for the sales team
positions were established, described in detail, an evaluation tool was created, and a successful pilot testing was carried out. Based on
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the analysis, a further action plan was developed, with the main focus being the integration of competency measurement into the employee
evaluation system.

An important part of the sales team development was the "Sales Success Formula" i a two-day practical training program focused on
mastering the sales process, persuasive communication, and addressing customer needs. The program was created based on the Bank's
customer service standards and external experts' knowledge. During the program, participants deepened their understanding of the sales
stages, learned from real-life situations, and strengthened their influencing skills. The training started in November 2024, and all sales
team employees will complete the program in the first quarter of 2025. Once this phase is completed, the training will become periodic i
with employees joining the sales team at the Bank receiving it consistently, based on a chosen frequency.

Employees from the Bank's headquarters and network branches enhanced their competencies by participating in external conferences
(e.g.: LOGIN 2024, HR Week, Digital Product Conference, Sales Formula, Vmware, Turning Point, LIMA DAY'24: ANNUAL (OUT) SALES,
Big Data CONFERENCE Europe 2025, etc.) and various seminars covering topics relevant to their job functions.

To further devel op t hietheG@igital ledriing platfdra, skmardatendtmining courses were created and launched
in 2024 to strengthen employee competencies and ensure compliance with regulatory requirements. Fire safety training was aimed at
increasing employee awareness of fire prevention measures and behavioral rules during emergencies, in order to ensure their own and
others' safety. Conflict of interest training was designed to develop the ability to recognize and manage situations where personal interests
may conflict with the organization's interests, thus ensuring transparency. Insider information training focused on the responsible handling
of confidential information and its protection from potential misuse. Data quality and management training aimed at promoting responsible
data management and ensuring their accuracy. Finally, customer due diligence and identity verification training strengthened employees'
ability to carry out customer data verification and identity checks, in order to comply with anti-money laundering standards and ensure
safe financial transactions. The implementation of these trainings contributed to the professionalism and confidence in the Bank's
operations.

The continuous update of already released e-learning courses is crucial to ensure that employees have access to the most relevant and
up-to-date information that meets current requirements. The Digital Security e-learning courses were updated, with an increased focus
on the latest cybersecurity challenges and preventive measures. The Operational Risk e-learning courses were improved by incorporating
new cases and methodologies to help employees effectively identify and manage risks. Additionally, the PPPTF training was updated to
further expand employees' knowledge in the field of money laundering and terrorism financing prevention.

The New Employee Orientation Program i Tumas was updated, which has been successfully greeting newcomers and guiding each new
employee through the first three months of their probationary period throughout the year. This program aims to ensure smoother

integration of newcomers into the organization, provi di nlges,tadde m
core processes. The program became even more comprehensive and informative with the addition of 11 new videos that provide more

detailed insight into the Giauliai Bank Group. I n t hes e itswliedt® 0 s,
products,andservi ces. They also introduce the Bankds ambitious strategy

and the importance of compliance and risk management. Furthermore, the newcomer adaptation program was refreshed with the Bank
Group's values, which were created and approved in 2024. The first value is Closer to People, the second is Act Rationally, the third is
Surpass Yourself, and the fourth is Trust Each Other.

In 2024, the Bank's unique program Financing Solutions Forum continued, aimed at strengthening the functional and generic
competences of credit professionals. During the program, employees also participated in a training segment on personal development,
titted " Who am | becoming in the process? Personal Growth at Work", which encouraged deeper self-awareness, emotional intelligence
development, more effective problem-solving, enhanced collaboration skills, and active pursuit of professional and personal growth goals.

In 2024, we continued the monthly lecture series for employees titled "Good Afternoon, Fellow". During these lectures, we aimed to
discuss various topics that are important to the entire organization. One of the most relevant topics today is artificial intelligence (Al), so
we paid special attention to this area. We invited an Al and ChatGPT expert to give an inspiring and informative lecture titled "Artificial
Intelligence i Everything You Need to Know About Al" for the entire organization. During this time, employees had the opportunity to
familiarize themselves with the fundamentals of Al, its applications in the financial sector, challenges, and ethical issues. The lecture
encouraged deeper reflection on the significance of Al in our daily activities, as well as revealed how we can utilize this technology for
everyday tasks. This initiative was a great opportunity to expand knowledge and promote dialogue on the importance of future
technologies.

The war in Ukraine also remained a relevant topic, so we invited employees to the Chameleon 2024 lecture, during which they were
introduced to updated information about the military actions in Ukraine, Israel, and the Red Sea, and the security situation in the Baltic
region, as Sweden and Finland became NATO members. The lecture reminded employees about the importance of war and the
dissemination of proper information, emphasizing responsible behavior and the importance of verifying sources to avoid the spread of
misinformation.

Employee recruitment

In 2024, to attract highly skilled employees in various fields, including prevention, compliance, risk management, and leadership positions,
we partnered with external recruitment agencies and actively expanded our employee search channels.
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To ensure the quality and efficiency of recruitment, recruitment processes were standardized, and recruitment measurement standards
were implemented, enabling objective assessment of candidates' suitability for the requirements and improving the accuracy of
recruitment.

Significant attention was also given to talent market monitoring and analysis. These efforts ensured that the Bank could quickly respond
to changes in the labor market, remain competitive, and attract highly qualified specialists.

These initiatives helped ensure high-quality recruitment of employees and strengthened the Bank's position as an attractive employer in
the market.

Internship opportunities

In 2024, the Bank continued its collaboration with Lithuanian higher education institutions, creating opportunities for students to undertake
various types of internships within the Bank.

In 2024, a total of 12 students undertook mandatory or voluntary internships in various Bank departments. The students had the chance
to gain practical work experience at the Bank and establish professional connections crucial for their future careers. After completing the
internship, the Bank provides opportunities for students to be employed and begin their professional careers.

Employee motivation

For the majority of the Bank's employees, quarterly and/or annual bonuses can be awarded for the achievement of departmental and
personal goals, paid in cash. In 2024, new principles for awarding bonuses were reviewed and implemented, providing quarterly and/or
annual bonuses for performance results, which depend on the employee's personal and departmental results, evaluating not only financial
but also non-financial criteria. The approved goal evaluation scale and bonus brackets define the amount of bonus (quarterly/annual)
based on the achieved goal results. Employees can also be rewarded with one-off bonuses for exceptional results, participation in
significant Bank projects, etc.

Annual variable compensation, awarded in cash and Bank shares, can only be granted to Designated Employees. Designated Employees
are the Bank's and certain Group companies' executives and board members, as well as other Bank employees whose professional
activities have a significant impact on the nature of the Bank's and Group's risks, and who, under the applicable laws of the Republic of
Lithuania and the European Union, as well as the Bank's internal documents, are considered eligible for annual variable compensation.
More information about the compensation of Designated Employees is provided in the Compensation Policy section of this report.

Additional benefits offered within the Group are not based on employee performance and are provided to all employees under the same
conditions. In 2024, as a socially responsible employer, the Bank continued to provide health insurance to all employees. Health
insurance is one of the most relevant additional motivation tools. It allows insured employees to access health-related services more
quickly, such as receiving treatment at chosen healthcare institutions, visiting specialists, undergoing various tests, purchasing medicines,
and using other health improvement services. In 2024, employees were given the option to choose between Health Insurance and a free
limit in the newly introduced MELP additional benefits app used by the Bank. Using this digital tool, employees can purchase various
services related to professional development, wellness, healthy living, and quality leisure activities. However, the majority of Bank
employees continue to use Health Insurance.

Bank employees have the opportunity to contribute to their pension savings by choosing between two products i a pension fund or
investment life insurance, where part of the contribution is paid by the employee and part is provided by the employer. Approximately
26% of employees patrticipate in these programs.

Other additional benefits offered to the Bank employees, which are not based on performance, include:

Telework;

Flexible working hours;

Additional leave days for certain managerial positions and for uninterrupted service;
Additional days off in case of illness or bereavement;

Welcome kits, gifts for employees and their children during major holidays;

One-off payments in the event of the death of an employee's family member, a significant accident, or the diagnosis of a critical
illness, etc.;

Higher compensation for the first two days of employee sickness;

Free flu vaccines and other discounts provided by the bank's partners;
Team-building events;

Opportunities to participate in interbank and other sports tournaments.

oI I I I I

0 N

REMUNERATION POLICY

The information has been prepared and is provided in accordance with the Description of the Minimum Requirements for Remuneration
Policy of the Board of the Bank of Lithuania, the provisions of Article 450 of Regulation (EU) No. 575/2013 of the European Parliament
and of the Council, the Bankodés Articles of Association, &l hots
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regulating the requirements for the Remuneration Policy of the Bank, as a financial institution and a stock company whose shares are
admitted to trading in the regulated market.

Information relating to the decision-making process used to determine the Remuneration Policy, including the number of
meetings held by the main body overseeing remuneration during the financial year

In 2024, the Remuneration Policy was reviewed and updated a&sdesd
Supervisory Counci |, the Bankds Management Boar d, and the rrecor
Policy was submitted to the Board of the Bank and the Remuneration Committee for consideration in accordance with internal legislation.
The Remuneration Policy, together with the feedback fr om sChief Ba
Compliance Officer (CCO), has been submitted to the Bankds f@upe
approval . The version of the Remuneration Policy approve2dstaly tt
enter into force from the date of its approval and shall apply when awarding, approving, granting and paying remuneration to Nominated
Employees for their work/performance in 2023 and/or subsequent years. The version of the Remuneration Policy approved on 29 March
2024 shall apply to the approval and granting of deferred portions of the annual variable remuneration to Nominated Employees for their

wor k/ performance in 2022. The version of the Remuygofé&hasehoidersion Bl | i «
March 2022 applied when awarding remuneration to Nominated Employees for their work/performance in 2022. The version of the
Remuneration Policy approved by the Bankdés Gener al M edeng, epprgving f S

and granting remuneration to Nominated Employees for their work/performance up to 2022.

The version of the Remuneration Policy approved by the Banrdadds G
applicable to the Bank and Group companies. The Group companies that are subject to special remuneration requirements under other

laws shall draw up and approve their own remuneration policy that applies jointly with this Remuneration Policy. The approved
Remuneration Policy is published on the website of the Bank.

The Remuneration Policy is in compliance with the operational and risk strategy of the Group as well as its objectives, including those in
relation to the environmental, social and governance (ESG) risk, the values and culture of the organization as well as the long-term
interests of continuing operations aimed atincreasingthelong-t er m val ue of the Bankés shares of,
sound and efficient risk management as well as reliable and effective management of money laundering and terrorist financing risks, and
lays down the processes and principles followed in paying remuneration. The Remuneration Policy is an integral component of the risk
management framework of the Bank.

The Remuneration Policy of the Bank is gender-neutral, i.e., it is based on the principal of equal pay for equal work or work of equal value
for workers of either gender.

The responsibility for the setting of the principles of the Remuneration Policy and remuneration framework models, the maintenance of
the Remuneration Policy, the supervision of the implementation and the periodic review of the Remuneration Policy at least once per
year shall be with the Supervisory Council of the Bank; the Management Board of the Bank shall be responsible for the impleme ntation
of the Remuneration Policy. The Internal Audit Service of the Bank shall audit the implementation of the Remuneration Policy; the audits
shall be conducted on a regular basis but at least once per year.

External consultants were consulted in the preparation of the draft Remuneration Policy.

The Bank has formed a Remuneration Committee that carries out competent and independent assessments of variable remuneration

policy and practice, and ensures that the remuneration framework takes into account all types of risk, capital and liquidity, and is
compatible with sound and effective risk management as well as with the business strategy, objectives and the long-term interests of
continuing operations of the Bank or the Group company, and provides an opinion on the gender neutrality of the Remuneration Policy.

The composition of the Remuneration Committee, the procedure for its formation, its functions, rights and responsibilities are set out in

the Rules of Procedure of the Bankds Remuner ati on [ oheoompositoreof a p p
the Remuneration Committee is approved by the Supervisory Council of the Bank, and the list and functions of the committee members

are set out in the section of the Management Report entitl ed ACommitteeseierstarhbdds hefd am
Remuneration Committee held seven (7) meetings in 2024.

Information on the link between remuneration and performance

The remuneration system is a complex of remuneration package elements used by the Group to attract, motivate and retain the best
employees who would help implement the long-term objectives and the business strategy of the Group.

The Bank and Group companies have fixed remuneration and variable remuneration.

Fixed remuneration shall be established, calculated and paid on the terms and conditions and in accordance with the procedure set out
in the Remuneration Policy and internal documents of the Bank. Fixed remuneration represents a sufficiently high proportion of total
remuneration to ensure that employees are not dependent on variable remuneration and that the Bank and Group companies are able
to pursue a flexible remuneration policy, including the possibility of non-payment of variable remuneration. Competence, experience,
qualifications, specific knowledge, external and internal equity, market trends, etc. are all taken into account when determining the
remuneration of a given employee. Additional benefits apply regardless of the individual performance of the employees, without providing
an incentive to take risks, and therefore they are not considered to be a remuneration for the work or functions performed. Additional
benefits are based on predefined criteria, they reflect the professional experience of the employees and are irrevocable for the stated
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effective term of the benefits and/or until the employee holds a specific job position with assigned certain additional benefits in accordance
with the internal documents of the Bank and the additional benefits, limits and/or rates set therein.

Variable remuneration is paid to link the individual performance targets of employees to the long-term interests of the Group in order to
ensure sustainable business development and to encourage employees to act in and respectful, honest, transparent and professional
manner, respecting the rights and interests of customers.

The amount of variable remuneration is based on the assessment of the Bank, the Group, individual Group companies, divisions, specific
groups of activities, and the pre-set objectives and results achieved by the employee. The variable remuneration awarded to an employee

may depend on the job position of the employee, the importance of his/her decisions that may have a significant effect on the risk taken

by the Group. When assessing individual emp !l oy e enargial edult azlieved bt s a
also non-financiallnon-quanti tati ve contributions (e.g., adherence to the Co
clients/colleagues, adherence to the standards, fulfilment of the requirements set out in the internal documents, taking initiative,
leadership, participation in the project activities, performance improvement) are considered. Methods for calculating variable
remuneration are designed to meet t he G ngfetnsinteestsaf comisusg opdratiangd, e g y
and promote sound and effective risk management, help avoid conflicts of interest, ensure compliance with the Code of Ethics and
discourage employees from taking excessive risks that are unacceptable to the Group, also ensure the principles of investor and customer
protection in the provision of services by the Group and not harming the interests of customers.

A variable remuneration fund is formed only after asses skscgstst he
of the capital employed and liquidity support needs. The variable remuneration fund and its size must not limit the ability of the Group to
strengthen its capital base. Where the persons performing risk management and compliance control functions of the Bank are in doubt

as to the effect on customer behavior and operational risk exposure, they provide input within their respective competences during the
setting-up of variable remuneration budgets, establishing performance criteria and awarding variable remuneration.

The Remuneration Policy seeks to promote responsible business, fair dealing with customers and avoiding conflicts of interest in relations
with customers, so that the monetary/non-monetary rewards do not become an incentive for employees to pursue their own interests,
the interests of the Bank or any other company of the Group to

Key features of the remuneration structure, including information on the criteria used to assess performance, and risk
adjustment, deferral policies and award criteria. The ratio between fixed and variable remuneration.

The Bank and the Group companies, depending on their size, the nature, scale and complexity of their operations and the risks they
take, are subject to fixed remuneration and variable remuneration (remuneration components):

Fixed remuneration for employees consists of (i) official remuneration and other related benefits (e.g., holiday pay, compensation
for unused leave, sick pay, overtime, etc.) and (i) fringe benefits.

Fixed remuneration for the Supervisory Council members who are not employees consists of (i) official remuneration (ii)
supplement to the official remuneration.

Variable remuneration of employees includes (i) annual variable remuneration, (ii) supplements, (iii) one-time bonuses, (iv) other
benefits that are considered variable remuneration by law (e.g., non-compete payment, severance pay or relevant part thereof,
etc.).

> > >

No variable remuneration is granted to members of the Supervisory Council of the Bank.

Detailed information on the components of remuneration at the Bank and Group companies is provided in the Remuneration Policy,
which is published on the Bankés website.

Variable remuneration may be granted to all employees, while maintaining an appropriate balance between fixed and variable
remuneration components and the possibility of a flexible policy regarding variable remuneration components, i.e., the variable
remuneration awarded shall not exceed 100% of the sum of the fixed remuneration elements earned during the same one (1) calendar

year for which the variable remuneration was awarded in order to promote sound and effective risk management, unless the Banké s
Gener a | Meeting of Shareholders (applicable only to the Bankds N
shareholder of the Group companies (applicable to the executives and members of the Management Board of the Group companies,

who are Nominated Employees), in accordance with the statutory requirements, increases the maximum ratio of variable to fixed
remuneration to 200%.

The Group does not offer guaranteed variable remuneration.

The actual ratio between variable and fixed remuneration in the Group is calculated by adding up all components of the variable
remuneration awarded over a certain period and dividing their sum by the amount of the components of fixed remuneration awarded
during the same period.

I n accordance with the Bankos Remuneration Policy, the memimer s
consisting of an official remuneration and a bonus to the official remuneration. The official remuneration and the bonus to the official
remuneration of the members of the Bankoés Supervisory Co u nafity, | a

experience, and are paid on a pro rata basis for the preceding month, quarter, or at such other periodicity as may be determined in the
contract with a member of the Bankds Supervisory Council
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For the performance of their duties as members of the Banhkailse Su,
paid an annual official remuneration of EUR 50,000 (before applicable taxes).

The amounts of the supplements to the official remuner ati 020240 f
and approved by the Bankds Gener al Meeting of Sharehol ders ion t |
the official remuneration of a member of the Bankds SupssmwyQouibr y
is EUR 200,000 (before applicable taxes), for the position of chairperson of one committee is EUR 18,000 (before applicable taxes), and

for the position of a member of one committee is EUR 10, 00#xil ( be

receiving a supplement for the position of chairperson of a committee does not receive a supplement for the position of a member of the
same committee.

The amounts of the official remuneration and suppl ement syCoancit he
have been fixed for the full term of office of a memberetingdfthe h e
Bankdéds General Meeting of Sharehol ders approving the Remumeuaht i C

variable remuneration may only be granted to Nominated Employees, except for members of the Supervisory Council of the Bank.

Nominated Employees are the members of the Supervisory Council of the Bank, managers and members of the Board of the Bank and
part of the Group companies, as well as other employees of the Bank whose professional activities have material impact on the risk
profile of the Bank and the Group, due to which such employees are considered to be recipients of variable annual remuneration for the
purpose of the applicable laws of the Republic of Lithuanian and the European Union and internal documents of the Bank.

Group companies, with due regard to the applicable special regulatory requirements, designate the nominated employees of a specific
Group company. Such nominated employees are not considered to be the Nominated Employees. Group companies that are subject to
special remuneration requirements under other legislation shall determine the principles of variable remuneration applicable to Nominated
Employees of Group companies and shall award and pay variable remuneration to them in accordance with the procedures set out in
the Group companyds internal documents.

Nominated Employees shall be designated in accordance with the criteria set out in the Resolution of the Board of the Bank of Lithuania
on the Approval of the Description of the Minimum Requirements for Remuneration Policy and the qualitative and quantitative criteria set
out in Commission Delegated Regulation (EU) No. 2021/923.

Representatives from independent risk management, compliance, legal, human resources and other departments, as appropriate, are
involved in the designation of Nominated Employees, as well as the Remuneration Committee and other committees of the Council (Risk,
Nomination and/or Audit), within the scope of their responsibilities in relation to remuneration decisions. The list of Nominated Employees
shall be reviewed annually, or more frequently if necessary, e.g., in the event of significant changes in the structure of the Bank/Group,
in accordance with the criteria set out in the legislation, and taking into account any additional criteria that may be applicable (if
appropriate), reflecting the | evel o f r impakt ofiemplogeeseomthe nature of riske  Gr o u

The list of Nominated Employees shall be approved by the Management Board of the Bank, subject to the designation report. TheBa n k 6 s
Supervisory Council shall be informed of the report on the designation of the Nominated Employees and the list of Nominated Employees.

The Bankds Supervisory Council approves alll exceptions to tihe
impact and, if necessary, approves exceptions in the designation of Nominated Employees. In 2024, the Nominated Employees were
awarded an annual variable remuneration for their performance in 2023. It has been determined that the award and payment of the
annual variable remuneration to the Nominated Empl oy eabilgytofmaintaint h e i
an adequate capital base and would not place undue pressure on liquidity ratios. It has also been established that the payment of the
annual variable remuneration should not affect the risk level of the behavior and activities of the Nominated Employees. In 2024, in
awarding the annual variable remuneration to the Nominated Employees in respect of their performance in 2023, the Nominated
Employees were assessed, and no instances were identified where the Nominated Employees acted dishonestly or where their
performance has resulted in a loss to the Bank or a Group company.

I'n calculating annual variable remuneration to members of tehe I
Executive Officers, Heads of Divisions, Heads of significant business units of the Bank, except where the individuals referred to herein
are also the Heads of internal control functions (i .e., m&aBeQs C (
given more weight than the performance of a unit/line of business/individual. For other Nominated Employees, including heads of internal
control functions, the Bankds/ Groupbs performance i s weidygdalead I

the Group companyo6s performance for the purpose of calculating

The variable remuneration of employees performing risk management, compliance and internal audit functions is awarded for the work
performed and the results obtained in connection with the performance of their assigned functions; the performance of the units under
their control is not taken into account. It may be linked, however, to the overall performance of the Bank/Group/Group company or the
performance of certain lines of business unrelated to the business units under their control.

The amount of the annual variable remuneration for Nominated Employees shall be determined taking into account the financial and non-
financi al performance, i . e., the results of the assessmedithe of
achievement by the Nominated Employee of the objectives of the Group company/division/certain group of activities/personal objectives,

and the weight assigned to these objectives, the coefficients of the annual variable remuneration approved by the respective body of the
Bank, and possible adjustments to the calcul ated c o e ffihanaal/nem t
guantitative contribution. The annual variable remuneration is linked to the risk taken by the unit/employee and to the performance of the
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Group/Group company and the unit/certain lines of business/employee. The criteria for calculating annual variable remuneration and
target ratios are affected by the job position and responsibility, the effect on operating performance as well as the existing and future
risks. The relative weighting of the performance criteria of each level (group of posts) is established by the respective body of the Bank
that sets the exact proportions/weightings of the targets.

Pursuant to the version of the Remuneration Policy approvedeby
annual variable remuneration of the Nominated Employees for their performance in 2023 has been awarded and may be awarded in the
future in one of the following ways:

A by awarding the full annual variable remuneration in Bank shares, with a deferral period of 5 or 4 years.

A by awarding 50% of the annual variable remuneration in cash, to be paid immediately, and 50% of the annual variable
remuneration in Bank shares, with a deferral period of 4 years.

A by awarding the full annual variable remuneration in cash, to be paid immediately; this method may be used where the annual
variable remuneration awarded for a given performance year does not exceed EUR 50,000 (gross) and does not represent more
than one third (1/3) of the total annual remuneration of the Nominated Employee to whom the annual variable remuneration is
awarded, and where such option is provided for by law.

The deferral period for the annual variable remuneration shall be determined taking into account the potential risk associated with the
outcome of the annual performance review of the Nominated Employee:

A for members of the Bankds Management Boar d, the Chief Execu
(5) years from the date of award of the annual variable remuneration to the date of granting the deferred portion.

A for other Nominated Employees, including those performing internal control functions (other than those serving as members of
the Bankds Management Board), the deferral period is four (-
to the date of granting the deferred portion, unless 100% of the annual variable remuneration is awarded and paid in cash, if
the amount awarded for a given year of work does not exceed EUR 50,000 (gross) and does not represent more than one third
(1/3) of the total annual remuneration of the Nominated Employee to whom the annual variable remuneration is awarded, and,
where applicable, where the law so provides.

The awarded annual variable remuneration or parts thereof that are deferred shall be confirmed. The approval of the first deferred portion
shall take place one year after the award of the annual variable remuneration by approving the specific deferred portion of the annual
variable remuneration awarded, and the other deferred portions of the annual variable remuneration shall be approved pro rata on an
annual basis, taking into account the length of the deferral period. The deferred portion awarded at the time of approval may be adjusted
downwards (with the right to reduce to zero) by applying ex post adjustments (where applicable), and in compliance with legal
requirements.

For Nominated Employees, the annual variable remuneration is awarded only after an annual performance review and based on the
results of the most recent yeards performance review, i . eofthe t h
Nomi nated Employeeds performance reviews of at | east the 3iponost
the contract with a Nominated Employee is less than 3 years, account is taken of the available performance review data of the employee.

Pursuant to the Remuneration Policy, the Group does not have a pension scheme and agreements for early retirement are not concluded.
The Group does not generally conclude prior agreements about the amount of severance pay and non-compete compensation.

In case of expiry of an employment contract with a Nominated Employee, an agreement on the procedure for the payment of annual
variable remuneration and/or outstanding portions thereof must be made. Any portions of variable remuneration unpaid/not awarded as

at the redundancy date of the Nominated Employee shall be thai d/
period set by the Bank or Group company, his/her period of service during that year, and in such way that the employee is not remunerated

if his/her actions resulted in a loss to the Bank or the Group, except for statutory payments under the law. The award/approval of annual
variable remuneration takes place under the same procedure and at the same time as the award/approval of variable remuneration for

ot her employees, regardless of the date on which the empl owneebds:s
agreement can be reached with the dismissed Nominated Employee as provided for herein.

In 2024, the Remuneration Policy was supplemented with provisions on the amounts and notice periods for benefits and compensation
(hereinafter, the Severance Pay) in connection with the termination of the employment relationship/term of office, which are determined
in accordance with the statutory mandatory amounts and/or notice periods for such payments and the Remuneration Policy. Maximum
Severance Pay for a Nominated Employee is the amount of his/her average salary for a period of twelve (12) months. In exceptional
circumstances, the maximum possible Severance Pay may be increa
for a period of up to eighteen (18) months. In all cases, the Severance Pay to the Nominated Employee shall not exceed the ratio of
variable to fixed remuneration set out in the Remuneration Policy. Severance Pay shall be linked to performance over the performance
period and shall be set so as not to reward failure to fulfil obligations or misconduct and/or underperformance. Severance Pay to members
of the Bankdés Management Board holding other positions i gatdlne B
the Head of the Internal Audit Division and other key function holders shall be subject to the prior decision/approval of the Council.
Severance Pay is considered to be variable remuneration. The Severance Pay shall be granted in accordance with the method of granting
the annual variable remuneration applicable to the Nominated Employee and applying the same principles of approval, award and
withholding as those applicable to the deferred portion of the annual variable remuneration in accordance with the Remuneration Policy
and other internal documents of the Bank. The amount of severance pay, and the procedure for awarding it, is set out in the internal
documents of the Bank. In accordance with the provisions of the Guidelines on Sound Remuneration Policies of 2 July 2021
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(EBA/GL/2021/04; hereinafter, the Guidelines), Severance Pay is considered to be variable remuneration. For the calculation of the ratio
between variable and fixed remuneration, exceptions apply, subject to the provisions of the Guidelines on severance pay/compensation.

In the event of resignation or removal of a member of t hoHiceBfank 6
member of the Bankds Supervisory Council ends before tllepayalemi ry
connection with the termination of the contract of the member of the Supervisory Council of the Bank. In such a case, the member of the
Bankdéds Supervisory Council is paid a porti on radeashhe sigmber or chaipaersom e r ¢
of the Bankdéds Supervisory Council and/ or a member/chairpereson o
paid.

Information on the performance assessment criteria on which the entitlement to shares, options or variable remuneration is
based. The main criteria and reasons for the variable remuneration system and other fringe benefits.

The annual variable remuneration, including the deferred portion thereof, may be awarded, approved, granted and/or paid only provided
the financial position of the Bank/Group is sustainable, upon application of ex ante and ex post adjustments (where applicable) and

without prejudice to the requirements of other | aws. T h eSGBigkn k 0 ¢
arising from, or directly related to, the payment enfofcuantitatve bndv a r
gualitative criteria. Quantitative criteria are the&OBamk&s nespi t
risk management indicators. Annual variable remuneration must be reduced or not paid at al | upon moti o

management/supervisory bodies/Remuneration Committee, if the performance of the Bank/Group fails to meet the indicators set out in
the strategy, or where losses are recorded, where the Nominated Employee has acted in bad faith or where his/her actions resulted in a
loss to the Bank or the Group. The annual variable remuneration may be withheld if the Nominated Employee has not completed a full
calendar year.

In accordance with the Remuneration Policy, the deferred portions of the annual variable remuneration shall be made available to the
Nominated Employee in line with the deferral period of the annual variable remuneration applicable to the position of Nominated
Employee:

A where a 5-year deferral period applies, 3/5 of the deferred portion shall be granted 3 years after the award of the annual variable
remuneration, 1/5 of the deferred portion shall be granted 4 years after the award of the annual variable remuneration, and the
remaining 1/5 of the deferred portion shall be granted 5 years after the award of the annual variable remuneration.

A where a 4-year deferral period applies, 3/4 of the deferred portion shall be granted 3 years after the award of the annual variable
remuneration, and the remaining 1/4 of the deferred portion shall be granted 4 years after the award of the annual variable
remuneration.

The deferred portion may be released to the Nominated Employee under an option agreement (option contract) between the Bank and

the Nominated Employee whereby the Bank grants the Nominat eah Em
the expiry of the deferment period, or other method established by the Management Board of the Bank may be used. The annual variable
remuneration, or part thereof, granted in Bank shares shall be subject to a one-year restriction period for the right of transfer (retention
period) from the date of granting the shares, during which time the Nominated Employee may not transfer, pledge, otherwise encumber

or otherwise dispose of the shares granted.

The Bank6és shares as a portion of the annual variable remunithr at
the Rules for Awarding Shares approved by the General Meeting of Shareholders of the Bank; they are awarded to ensure the interest

of the Group in increasing employee engagement, promoting long-term employment with the Group and pursuing its long-term strategic
objectives. Employees are prohibited from personally ensuring themselves under insurance strategies or by taking out insurance cover
against a decrease of their variable remuneration in order to mitigate the risk determined through the application of the principles for
calculating their variable remuneration.

GENERAL QUANTITATIVE INFORMATION ON REMUNERATION

Average monthly remuneration of the Bank's and the Group's employees before taxes

|Bank Group
Management personnel Other employees Management personnel Other employees
Average Average monthly Average Average Average number Average monthly Average Average monthly
number Ofsalary, EUR number of monthly salary, of employees salary, EUR number of salary, EUR
employees employees EUR employees

2023 72 9,616 746 2,571 93 8,951 825 2,534

2024 81 9,933 914 2,788 114 9,063 1,009 2,562

Information on the remuneration of Nominated Employees of the Bank and the Group in 2024, before tax

As at 31 December 2024, the Group had 34 Nominated Employees, of whom: 30 at the Bank, 4 at SB Lizingas UAB, holding the
Nominated Positions, whose professional activities have a significant impact on the risk profile of the Group, and that have been
determined by the Board of the Bank in accordance with the applicable legislation of the Republic of Lithuania and European Union, and
the internal documents of the Bank.
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In view of the changes in the organizational structure of the Bank in 2024 and the identified business lines in the Group context, an

assessment of the Nominated Positions has been carried o wardaaca d

with the qualitative and quantitative criteria set out in Directive 2013/36/EU and Commission Delegated Regulation (EU) No. 2021/923.
The tables below provide aggregate quantitative information for the Bank and the Group:

A The data for the Nominated Employees are based on the positions identified on 31 December 2024. Remuneration information
for 2024 is presented including employees who were in the position of a Nominated Employee in 2024. For the Nominated
Employees who became members of a management body exercising the management function in 2024, the information for the
relevant period is presented separately, by position, in the relevant columns for both the Business Area and the members of the
management body.

A Fixed remuneration includes payments made in the respective year: main salary, payments for leave, payments for sick leave,
income in kind, fringe benefits (e.g., pension insurance and accumulation, health insurance contributions, gratuities/cash
benefits, prizes, funeral allowances, etc.).

A Variable remuneration includes payments made in the respective year: bonuses and premiums; cash portion of the annual
variable remuneration awarded (deferred portion of the annual variable remuneration awarded in shares is excluded); deferred
share-based components of annual variable remuneration paid.

A Deferred variable remuneration for prior periods i annual variable remuneration data on the recipients who hold and have held
the position of a Nominated Employee and who have been awarded an annual variable remuneration for the relevant previous
periods.

A Fixed remuneration of members of the Bankés management body

t

is paid to members of the Bankdés management body performing

for members of the Bankds and the Groupbés management body
A The members of the management body exercising the management function shall be understood as the members of the
Management Board and the Chief Executive Officer of the Bank, the members of the Management Board and the Chief
Executive Officer of SB Lizingas UAB. Information on members of the management body exercising the management function
is presented separately and is not repeated in the Business Area data, unless the Nominated Employee became a member of
the Banko6s Management Board in the current year.

> >

The Nominated Employees performing investment banking functions are responsible for the investment services business
functions, which include the provision of investment services to clients in the areas of corporate finance advisory services,
private equity, capital markets, trading and sales.

The Nominated Employees performing retail banking functions are responsible for corporate and private client transactions and
lending activities.

The Nominated Employees performing asset management functions are responsible for portfolio management, UCITS
management and other forms of asset management.

The Nominated Employees performing the operational functions are responsible for information technology, information security,
human resources, outsourcing of essential or critical operational functions.

The Nominated Employees performing the independent internal control functions are those performing an independent risk
management function, a compliance function or an internal audit function.

Values in the Total column are calculated by adding together information under Members of the management body performing
the supervisory function, Members of the management body performing the management function and under Business areas.

> > > >

>

In 2024, no Nominated Employee in the Bank and the Group was paid total remuneration (fixed and variable) in the range of EUR 1
million to EUR 1.5 million
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Employees bearing significant risks (Nominated
Employees)

c
oD 2 Business areas
£ 0~ 0O >
0o c 00 g
K S c g’e = .8 = g g’ 2 = =0
= Y= = c s
Bank, 2024 SEEZCSEPES §o = _g g SEg o
2852 2eES58 EE § 5 82 E28¢ ®©
E%“:-ng,_mc ‘J,'é o 80‘; © O G)Et; <
Cc g 20 S3 0 = <® §E 8= O
=¢as FEFET 25 8 Tg& g2 53
E 2= ga = & g O £2
Number of members of the Supervisory Council and the
7 8 - - - - - 15
Management Board, pcs.
Number of recipients acting as Nominated Employees, pcs. - - 1 9 - 1 4 5 20
Number of recipients performing senior management functions, ) ) ) ) ) 1 1 } 2
pcs.
FIXED REMUNERATION in 2024, EUR thousand 744 1409 157 1109 - 180 598 491 4 688
Number of recipients, pcs. 8 8 2 10 - 2 6 5 41
ANNUAL VARIABLE REMUNERATION FOR 2023, AWARDED ) 834 94 594 } 88 105 116 1831

IN 2024, in EUR thousands

Number of recipients, pcs. - 9 8 8 - 2 8 5 &
Non-deferred annual variable remuneration for 2023 awarded in

cash in 2024 (paid in 2024), in EUR thousands ) ) 52 297 ) - 105 90 544
Deferred annual variable remuneration for 2023 awarded in
shares in 2024 (not paid), in EUR thousands

Deferred (not paid) annual variable remuneration for 2023
awarded in shares in 2024, number of shares

= 834 42 297 = 88 = 26 1287

- 1246 63 444 - 132 - 39 1924

Variable remuneration as a percentage of fixed remuneration

(awarded for 2023), %

Guaranteed variable remuneration in 2024, EUR thousand - - - - - - - - -

Number of recipients, pcs. - - - - - - - - -

Payments related to termination in 2024, in EUR thousands - - - - - - 45 - -

Number of recipients, pcs. - - - - - - 1 - -
Of whom: maximum amount per person -

Deferred variable remuneration for prior periods - 1365 116 585 - 108 137 241 2552
Deferred annual variable remuneration for 2020 awarded in
shares in 2021 and paid in 2024, in EUR thousands

Deferred annual variable remuneration for 2021 awarded in
shares in 2022 outstanding at 31/12/2024, in EUR thousands

> 59% 60% 54% - 49% 18% 24% 39%

> 450 38 241 = 33 48 69 879

Deferred annual variable remuneration for 2022 awarded in

shares in 2023 outstanding at 31/12/2024, in thousands euro ) 38 34 316 ) 43 53 o1 915
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Employees bearing significant risks (Nominated
- Employees)
0B .2 Areas of business
col2% >
O3S Cc 00 g
Sgo2 S8S5E = T ]
Group, 2024 &“E"EE‘“SEE’ES So = s 8. 8‘Eg Total
LT 0o =05 3= [ TE ©0 TAgs &
EQ2s ¢5ERE 2% 28 28 ®T ©o% <
5852 2%5c5S 35 — 2«5 s 282 §
Sgaol EFETE > T c 85 9c
E S o8cocE e° z € §F Tg2
"=gs g F £E
Number of members of the Supervisory Council and the
7 12 - - - - - 19
Management Board, pcs.
Number of recipients acting as Nominated Employees, pcs. - - 1 9 - 1 4 5 20
Number of recipients performing senior management functions, ) ) ) ) ) 1 1 } 5
pcs.
FIXED REMUNERATION in 2024, EUR thousand 744 1849 157 1109 - 180 598 491 5128
Number of beneficiaries, pcs. 8 12 2 10 - 2 6 5 45
)IAI\\IN;JO%QLHYQS:?&IBEsRaE’\élgNERATION FOR 2023, AWARDED ) 1132 04 504 ) 88 105 116 2129
Number of beneficiaries, pcs. - 16 3 8 - 2 8 - -
Non-deferred annual variable remuneration for 2023 awarded in
cash in 2024 (paid in 2024), in EUR thousands - 162 52 297 - - 10590 706
Deferred annual variable remuneration for 2023 awarded in
shares in 2024 (not paid), in EUR thousands ) e cz 2 ) — ) 28 o
Deferred (not paid) annual variable remuneration for 2023 ) 1450 63 444 ) 132 ) 39 2128
awarded in shares in 2024, number of shares
éﬂ;ﬂl:dr?muzrégu%l as a percentage of fixed remuneration ) 60% 60% 54% ) 49% 18%  24% 1%
Guaranteed variable remuneration in 2024, EUR thousand - - - - - - - - -
Number of beneficiaries, pcs. - - - - - - - - -
Payments related to termination in 2024, in EUR thousands - - - - - - 45 - -
Number of beneficiaries, pcs. - - - - - - 1 - -
Of whom: maximum amount per person - - - - - - - - -
Deferred variable remuneration for prior periods - 1893 116 835 0 108 137 241 3330
Deferred annual variable remuneration for 2020 awarded in
shares in 2021 and paid in 2024, in EUR thousands ) 723 44 278 ) 32 36 81 1194
Deferred annual variable remuneration for 2021 awarded in
shares in 2022 outstanding at 31/12/2024, in EUR thousands ) e 8 20 ) & & * S
Deferred annual variable remuneration for 2022 awarded in
shares in 2023 outstanding at 31/12/2024, in thousands euro ) 573 34 316 ) 43 53 91 1110

MAIN INVESTMENTS DURING
THE REPORTING PERIOD

The table below shows the main investments made by the Bank's group during the reporting period, in EUR thousand:

Acquisition of property, plant and equipment, investment property and intangible assets 5,179
Acquisition of debt securities at amortized cost 316,044
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COMPANIES COMPRISING GROUP

Registration Company

Nature of activities Address Tel. e- mail, website
date code
3 . & . . Til gas info@sb.lt,
Giauli O 4 commercial banking 04/02/1992 112025254 LT-76348 (-+370 41 595 607 SbIt
The Bank directly controls the following subsidiaries

- finance lease, consumer Lai sw.®6 La- info@sbl.lt,

SB Lizingas UAB credits. 14/07/1997 234995490 44249 Kaunas +370 37 407 200 www.sblizingas It

i i . y (117}

SB Turto Fondas UAB|real estate management 13/08/2002 145855439  VINiAus st 167, 320 41 525 322 turtofondas@sb. |t

LT-76352 ¢ www.sbip.It

Life insurance SB|,.. . Lai svas ¢ info@sbdraudimas.lt,

draudimas UAB life insurance 31/08/2000 110081788 04215 Vilnius +370 5 236 2723 SE RGeS

SB modernizavimo|multi-apartment Ti | gralgo, LT- sbfondas@sb.It
fondas UAB*|renovation financing 05/04/2022 306057616 76348 C +370 41 595 607

SB Asset Management Gy n asfr. 4, LT- https://info@sbam.|t
UAB fund management 07/02/2023 306241274 01109 Vilnius +370 41 595 607

SB modernizavimo|multi-apartment Ti | ¢raldo, LT- sbfondas@sb.lt
fondas 2 UAB*|renovation financing 21/02/2024 306682354 76348 ¢ +370 41 595 607

*Not consolidated under IFRS 10 requirements
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OTHER INFORMATION, PUBLISHED
INFORMATION AND MAJOR EVENTS

TRANSACTIONS WITH RELATING PARTIES

Information on these transactions with related parties is provided in note 30 to the Bank's financial statements for the year 2024.

INFORMATION ON SANCTIONS IMPOSED

During2024, neither Giauli ® Bankas nor the Group companies were subj

INFORMATION ON RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT ACTIVITIES

The Bank is constantly investing and looking for ways to ensure expansion and better operational efficiency.

INFORMATION ABOUT HARMFUL TRANSACTIONS

During the reporting period, no harmful transactions that were not in accordance with the Bank's objectives, normal market conditions,
harming the interests of shareholders or other groups of persons and which had or could have a negative impact on the Bank's activities
or results of operations were concluded. There were also no transactions where the Bank's executives, controlling shareholders or other
related parties would have been in a conflict of interest due to their different duties to the Bank and their private interests and / or duties.

REPORTS ON MATERAIL EVENTS

In accordance with the procedures set by the Charter of the Bank and the legal acts of the Republic of Lithuania reports on material
events are announced in the Central regulated information base and on the B a n kweldsite at:

Ho me p aBask Inestors iIReports on Stock Events

Ot her i mportant events are available on the Bankds website at:

Ho me p aAbeut Us INews

ADDITIONAL INFORMATION

Governance information for 2024 (attached)
Remuneration information for 2024 (attached)

Sustainability information for 2024 (attached)

Chief Executive Officer M W Vytautas Sinius

2025-03-07
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Following Article 24th of the Law on Reporting of Enterprises and Groups of Enterprises of the Republic of Lithuania, the Bank discloses
its compliance with its specific provisions or recommendations.

Clause 1. Reference (s) to the applicable Corporate Governance Code (Codes) and where it is (they are) published and / or a reference
to all publicly available information on corporate governance practices.

The Bankds shares are traded on a regulated market and ¢telawdni st
Securities of the Republic of Lithuania and clause 25.4 of the Listing Rules of Nasdaq Vilnius, the Governance Code for the companies
quoted on the Nasdaq Vilnius applies to the Bank, which has been prepared by Nasdaq Vilnius in accordance with the Commission
recommendation 2014/208/ES dated 09 April 2014 approved by the European Commission regarding quality of governance reporting
provided by undertakings. The Bank follows the Corporate Governance Report form approved by the Board of Nasdaq Vilnius AB on 15
January 2019 which is prepared in accordance with the Governance Code for Listed Companies approved by the Board of Nasdaq
Vilnius on 15 January 2019.

Clause 2. In the event of a deviation from, and / or non-compliance with the applicable provisions of corporate governance code (s), the
provisions being deviated from and / or not complied with and the reasons for it.

Following Article 12(3) of the Law on Securities of the Republic of Lithuania and clause 25.4 of the Listing Rules of Nasdaq Vilnius AB,
the Bank discloses its compliance with the Governance Code for the companies quoted on the Nasdagq Vilnius AB, its specific provisions
and recommendations. Where the Bank does not meet some of its provisions or recommendations, it is indicated which specific provisions
or recommendations are not met and explanatory information is provided.

Free Form Summary of the Corporate Governance Report

According to the Articles of Association, the Bankds bodi g ar
Management Board and the Chief Executive Off i cenemberfupavisthabody &ith Su
four independent members. The Management Board of the Bank is an eight-member collegiate executive body of the Bank, consisting

of the Chief Executive Officer, Deputy Chief Executive Officers and Heads of Bank Divisions. The Bank has 7 committees. 5 Committees

T Risk, Audit, Nomination, Remuneration, Corporate Affairs i are formed by the decision of the Supervisory Council from the members

of the Supervisory Council, 2 Committees i Loan and Risk Management i by the decision of the Management Board.

The Supervisory Council is elected by the General Meeting of Shareholders for the term of 4 years. The Management Board of the Bank
is also elected by the Supervisory Council for a 4-year term. The Management Board elects and dismisses the Chief Executive Officer
and his/her Deputies, determines the remuneration of the Chief Executive Officer and other conditions of the employment contract.

More information on the Bankds corporate governance, sharkohrd | de
and Committees, member s, internal control and ri sk moaagemgrd repont s
for the year ended 31 December 2024.

Structured table for disclosure

YES
PRINCIPLES/ RECOMMENDATIONS INO/NOT
APPLICABLE
| Principle. General meeting of shareholders, equitable tree

The corporate governance framework should ensure the equitable treatment of all shareholders. The corporate governance
framework should protect the rights of shareholders.

1.1. All shareholders should be provided with access to the information and/or documents established in the legal acts Yes
on equal terms.

COMMENT

The information requiredby | egi sl ati on and the Bankds documents |
Lithuanian and English.

All shareholders have the same statutory rights to attend general meetings.

12,1t is recommended t hat t boasistconlyrmb thenshaves that grant theashme sighte o | Yes
voting, ownership, dividend and other rights to all of their holders.
COMMENT

T h e B awmhorizaed capital consists of 662,996,646 ordinary registered shares with a par value of EUR 0.29
each. Each share grants one vote at the general meeting. All shares of the Bank entitle the holders to equal
rights.

1.3. It is recommended that investors should have access to the information concerning the rights attached to the Yes
shares of the new issue or those issued earlier in advance, i.e. before they purchase shares.
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COMMENT

The Bankodés website contains the Bankés Articles of
of the Bankoés shares.

When new shares are issued, the rights granted by the shares shall be disclosed in the prospectus and in other
publicly available issue documents.

1.4. Exclusive transactions that are particularly important to the company, such as transfer of all or almost all assets No
of the company which in principle would mean the transfer of the company, should be subject to approval of the
general meeting of shareholders.

COMMENT

When approving the Articles of Association of the Bank, the General Meeting of Shareholders transferred the
right to approve the decisions of the Management Board regarding the sale of a significant part of the assets to
the Supervisory Council of the Bank (without prejudice to the requirements of the Law on Companies of the

Republic of Lithuania). I't should be noted that i
bodies, the Management Board or the Supervisory Council, could decide to convene a GMS on this issue,
although such an obligation is not dir ec Fdrexampla, sitthe i

Extraordinary General Meeting of Shareholders held on 22 February 2023, the issue of approval of the
implementation of the Master Agreement regarding merger of Invalda INVL AB retail asset management and life
insurance businesses with washpetothevta.l i O Bankas AB Gr

1.5. Procedures for convening and conducting a general meeting of shareholders should provide shareholders with Yes
equal opportunities to participate in the general meeting of shareholders and should not prejudice the rights and
interests of shareholders. The chosen venue, date and time of the general meeting of shareholders should not prevent
active participation of shareholders at the general meeting. In the notice of the general meeting of shareholders being
convened, the company should specify the last day on which the proposed draft decisions should be submitted at the

latest.
COMMENT
The General Meetings of Shareholders of the Bank are held in Vilnius/Gi aul i ai at an addr €
in advance. Ordinary shar ehentd March @.e., mithia 8 mamthssafteatheendiofe

the financial year) extraordinary i when necessary. The notice convening the General Meeting of Shareholders
shall specify that the draft resolutions may be submitted in writing or by e-mail before the time indicated on the
date of the meeting and shall be communicated to the chairperson after he/she has announced the agenda of
the meeting, until the meeting begins to discuss the agenda items.

1.6. With a view to ensure the right of shareholders living abroad to access the information, it is recommended, where Yes
possible, that documents prepared for the general meeting of shareholders in advance should be announced publicly
not only in Lithuanian language but also in English and/or other foreign languages in advance. It is recommended that
the minutes of the general meeting of shareholders after the signing thereof and/or adopted decisions should be made
available publicly not only in Lithuanian language but also in English and/or other foreign languages. It is recommended
that this information should be placed on the website of the company. Such documents may be published to the extent
that their public disclosure is not detri ment abtrevealedt f

COMMENT

All information and documents of the General Meeting of Shareholders are drafted in Lithuanian and English and
are publicly available on t helobBNewdwidesinfomnatiors delivery sgster
regulated by the Nasdaq Baltic.

1.7. Shareholders who are entitled to vote should be furnished with the opportunity to vote at the general meeting of Yes
shareholders both in person and in absentia. Shareholders should not be prevented from voting in writing in advance
by completing the general voting ballot.

COMMENT

The Bankdéds sharehol ders have the right to participz
representative, by issuing a duly authorized proxy or concluding a transfer of voting rights in accordance with the
procedure established by legal acts. Shareholders are also be provided with the opportunity to vote in writing in
advance by completing the general ballot paper and submitting it to the Bank prior to the meeting.

18 With a view to increasing the shareholdersé oppor No
shareholders, it is recommended that companies should apply modern technologies on a wider scale and thus provide
shareholders with the conditions to participate and vote in general meetings of shareholders via electronic means of
communication. In such cases the security of transmitted information must be ensured and it must be possible to identify
the participating and voting person.

COMMENT
Due to the specific nature of the Bankds share acc

beneficial owners of part of the shares are not known to the Bank prior to the disclosure at the General Meeting
of Shareholders, the Bank does not itself encourage or initiate the possibility to participate and vote in General
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Meetings of Shareholders by electronic means of communication. However, the Bank would be prepared to allow
shareholders to participate in the General Meeting of Shareholders and to vote by electronic means and to provide
voting instructions, if so requested by shareholders holding shares carrying at least 1/10 of the total votes.

1.9. It is recommended that the notice on the draft decisions of the general meeting of shareholders being convened Yes
should specify new candidatures of members of the collegial body, their proposed remuneration and the proposed audit
company if these issues are included into the agenda of the general meeting of shareholders. Where it is proposed to
elect a new member of the collegial body, it is recommended that the information about his/her educational background,
work experience and other managerial positions held (or proposed) should be provided.

COMMENT

The information made public together with the draft resolutions discloses information about the proposed
candi dat es, as wel |l as data on the candidatesd ed
Information on the remuneration paid to the members of the Supervisory Council is set out in the Remuneration
Policy, which is approved by the Bankédés Gener al Me ¢
In 2024, 1 (one) new independent candidate was elected to the Bank's Supervisory Board, together with details
of the candidate's education, work experience and other positions held, submitted to the General Meeting of
Shareholders. The name of the audit company proposed for election to the General Meeting of Shareholders and
the proposed remuneration for audit services are provided in the draft resolution for the relevant item on the
agenda of the meeting.

1.100Members of the companyo6s coll egial ma haghemempetentpersbys, Yes
related to the company who can provide information related to the agenda of the general meeting of shareholders should
take part in the general meeting of shareholders. Proposed candidates to member of the collegial body should also
participate in the general meeting of shareholders in case the election of new members is included into the agenda of
the general meeting of shareholders.

COMMENT

General Meetings of Shareholders, which are organized and coordinated in advance, are always attended by
persons who can provide information related to the agenda of the meeting.

Proposed candidates shall always attend the General Meeting of Shareholders who elect the members of the
Supervisory Council except in special cases (e.g., if physical attendance at the meeting would not possible due to
the illness, quarantine regime or other important circumstances).

Il Principle. Supervisory Council

2.1 Functions and liability of the supervisory council
The supervisory council f the company should ensure representation of the interests of the company and its shareholders,

accountability of this body to the shareholders and objecti:’
bodies as well as constantly provide recommendations to the management bodies of the company.

The supervisory counci l should ensure the integrity and tra
system.

2.1.1. Members of the supervisory board should act in good faith, with care and responsibility for the benefit and in the Yes

interests of the company and its shareholders and represent their interests, having regard to the interests of employees
and public welfare.

COMMENT

The members of the Supervisory Council act in accordance with the principles of good governance and perform
their functions taking into account the interests of the Bank and its shareholders, depositors and other interested
third parties. The obligations specified in the recommendation are enshrined in the agreement on the activities of
a member of the Supervisory Council and in the Rules of Procedure of the Supervisory Council.

2.1.2. Where decisions of the Supervisory Council may affect the interests of the company's shareholders differently, Yes
the Supervisory Council should treat all shareholders impartially. It should ensure that shareholders are properly
informed about the company's strategy, risk management and control and resolution of conflicts of interest.

COMMENT

The Supervisory Council follows the recommendations. Before making decisions, the members of the Supervisory
Council assess their influence on the activities of the Bank and the shareholders of the Bank. The Bank shall

comply with the disclosure requirementsof | i st ed companies and shall ensc
properly informed about the Bankdds strat.egy, operat
2.1.3. The supervisory council should be impartial in passing decisions thatares i gni fi cant f or th Yes

and strategy. Members of the supervisory council should act and pass decisions without an external influence from the
persons who elected them.

COMMENT

! For the purposes of this Code, heads of the administration are the employees of the company who hold top level management positions.
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When making decisions that have a bearing on the Bal
acts independently and follows the requirements of legal acts. The work and decisions of the members of the
Supervisory Council shall not be influenced by the persons who elected them.

The Rules of Procedure of the Supervisory Council include the provision stating that each member shall be
prepared and able to act objectively, critically and independently and to make informed, objective and independent
decisions.

2.1.4. Members of the supervisory council should clearly voice their objections in case they believe that a decision of the Yes
supervisory board is against the interests of the company. Independent 2 members of the supervisory board should: a)
maintain independence of their analysis and decision-making; b) not seek or accept any unjustified privileges that might
compromise their independence.

KOMENTARAS

The members of the Supervisory Council have the right to express their opinion on all issues on the agenda of the
meeting, which must be duly reflected in the minutes of the meeting in accordance with the Rules of Procedure of
the Supervisory Council. The Rules of Procedure of the Supervisory Council oblige the members of the Supervisory
Council to constructively and critically evaluate the proposals, explanations and information submitted to the
Supervisory Council. Also, in the event of circumstances that could cause a conflict of interest between a member
of the Supervisory Council and the Bank, the member of the Supervisory Council must immediately inform the
Bank and the Supervisory Council in writing about such new circumstances. The obligations specified in the
recommendation are enshrined in the agreement on the activities of a member of the Supervisory Council and in
the Rules of Procedure of the Supervisory Council.

215.The supervisory council should oversee that the comn Yes
in accordance with the legal acts in order to avoid faulty practice that is not related to the long-term interests of the
company and its shareholders, which may give rise to reputational, legal or other risks.

COMMENT

The Bankds SupesruwpiessoriyseGo urheei lacti vities of the Bank
including that all/l the Bankds strategies (as well i
accordance with legal acts.

2.1.6. The company should ensure that the supervisory council is provided with sufficient resources (including financial Yes
ones) to discharge their duties, including the right to obtain all the necessary information or to seek independent
professional advice from external legal, accounting or other experts on matters pertaining to the competence of the
supervisory council and its committees.

COMMENT

The Bank ensures the Supervisory Council is provided with the resources necessary for its activities i it technically
services the meetings of the Supervisory Council, ensures the secretarial function and providing all the necessary
information.

The Rules of Procedure of the Supervisory Council also provide for the right of the Supervisory Council to call on
the assistance of other specialists (i.e., consultants, subject matter experts, personal assistants, etc.) (e.g., to
appoint an expert/group of experts to audit and evaluate the financial accounts of the Bank, considering issues
within the competence of the Supervisory Council.

Il Principle. Supervisory Council

2.2 Formation of the Supervisory Council
The procedure of the formation of the supervisory board should ensure proper resolution of conflicts of interest and effective
and fair corporate governance.

2.2.1. The members of the supervisory council elected by the general meeting of shareholders should collectively ensure Yes

the diversity of qualifications, professional experience and competences and seek for gender equality With a view to
maintain a proper balance between the qualifications of the members of the supervisory board, it should be ensured that
members of the supervisory council, as a whole, should have diverse knowledge, opinions and experience to duly
perform their tasks.

COMMENT

Shareholders, in assessing the qualifications and professional experience of the members of the Supervisory
Council, shall vote accordingly at the General Meeting of Shareholders in respect of the proposed candidates to
the Supervisory Council.

Before recommending candidates to the Supervisory Council to the General Meeting of Shareholders, the
Nomination Committee evaluates the candidates for the members of the Supervisory Council in accordance with
the applicabl e | egal gietgnalllemdl botsnThe ewvaludtiontalse inclBdes & dvllective
evaluation of the Supervisory Council as a body. The diversity of the qualifications, professional experience and
competences of the members of the Supervisory Council is ensured by the fact that a member of the Supervisory
Council (nominated or already elected at the shareholders meeting) is allowed to start his/her duties only with the

2 For the purposes of this Code, the criteria of independence of members of the supervisory board are interpreted as the criteria of unrelated parties defined in Article 31(7) and
(8) of the Law on Companies of the Republic of Lithuaniai.
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permission of the supervisory authority. The supervisory authority shall also assess the individual and collective

suitability of the members of the Supervisory Council when issuing authorization.

The composition of the Supervisory Counci l is in |i
adopted in 2022, including the criterion of under-r e pr esent ati on of the genders

2.2.2. Members of the supervisory council should be appointed for a specific term, subject to individual re-election for a Yes
new term in office in order to ensure necessary development of professional experience.

COMMENT

The Supervisory Council is elected for four years. The number of terms of office of a person in the Supervisory
Council shall not be limited. The General Meeting of Shareholders may remove the entire Supervisory Council or
its individual members before the end of the term of office and may elect new members until the end of the term of
office of the existing Supervisory Council.

2.2.3. Chair of the supervisory council should be a person whose current or past positions constituted no obstacle to Yes
carry out impartial activities. A former manager or management board member of the company should not be immediately
appointed as chair of the supervisory council either. Where the company decides to depart from these recommendations,
it should provide information on the measures taken to ensure impartiality of the supervision.

COMMENT

The other (former) duties of the Chair of the Supervisory Council do not prevent him/her from acting impartially as
the Chair of the Supervisory Council. The current Chairman of the Supervisory Council (the independent
Supervisory Council member) does not hold any other positions, either has not been the Chief Executive Officer
or a member of the Management Board of the Bank.

2.2.4. Each member should devote sufficient time and attention to perform his duties as a member of the supervisory Yes
board. Each member of the supervisory board should undertake to limit his other professional obligations (particularly
the managing positions in other companies) so that they would not interfere with the proper performance of the duties of
a member of the supervisory board. Should a member of the supervisory board attend less than a half of the meetings
of the supervisory board throughout the financial year of the company, the shareholders of the company should be
notified thereof.

COMMENT

The members of the Supervisory Council devote sufficient time and attention to the duties of the member of the
Supervisory Council. In 2024, the Supervisory Council held eight (8) Supervisory Council meetings, of which one
(1) was an extraordinary meeting, and two (2) Supervisory Council decisions were taken by poll (i.e., by written
ballot). 6 (six) regular meetings were attended by all Supervisory Board members and 1 (one) regular meeting was
attended by 6 (six) of the 7 (seven). In 1 (one) extraordinary meeting of the Supervisory Board, convened as a
matter of urgency, 5 (five) out of 7 (seven) members were present.

2.2.5. When it is proposed to appoint a member of the supervisory board, it should be announced which members of the Yes
supervisory board are deemed to be independent. The supervisory board may decide that, despite the fact that a
particular member meets all the criteria of independence, he/she cannot be considered independent due to special
personal or company-related circumstances.

COMMENT

There are four (4) independent members in the current eight (7)-member Supervisory Council, whose term is until
the ordinary General Meeting of Shareholders in 2028S. The selection of 1 (one) independent member of the
Supervisory Board isongoing. Thi s i nf ormati on i s di scl| mahagdmentnepottshaad
the information published on the website of the Bank. The Supervisory Council has not decided that any of the
current independent members cannot be considered independent.

2.2.6. The amount of remuneration to members of the supervisory council for their activity and participation in meetings Yes
of the supervisory board should be approved by the general meeting of shareholders.

COMMENT

For their activities and participation in meetings, the members of the Supervisory Council are paid a fixed
remuneration which consists of a salary and a bonus paid for performing additional functions while holding the
position of a member of the Supervisory Council (Chair of the Supervisory Council, Chair of the Committee,
Committee member).

The annual amount of the official remuneration and the percentage of bonuses to the official remuneration paid to
a member of the Supervisory Council for the entire term of office shall be approved by the General Meeting of
Shareholders of the Bank when approving the Remuneration Policy.

2.2.7. Every year the supervisory board should carry out an assessment of its activities. It should include evaluation of Yes
the structure of the supervisory board, its work organization and ability to act as a group, evaluation of the competence
and work efficiency of each member of the supervisory board, and evaluation whether the supervisory board has
achieved its objectives. The supervisory board should, at least once a year, make public respective information about
its internal structure and working procedures.

COMMENT
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Each year, the members of the Supervisory Council participate in the overall process of assessing the effectiveness
of the Banko6s internal management sy s orgamzatiomand ability td astc
as a group, as well as assessing whether the Supervisory Council had achieved the set performance targets. The
composition and operating procedures of the Supervi
and published in the management reports.

11l Principle. Management Board
3.1 Functions and liability of the management board

The management board should ensure the i mplementation of th:
due regard to the interests of its shareholders, employees and other interest groups.
31.1.The management board should ensure the i mplementati Yes
board if the latter has been formed at the company. In such cases where the supervisory board is not formed, the
management board is also responsible.for the approval

COMMENT

The Bankds Management Board ensures the i mpl e Q@entsary

Council.
3.1.2. As a collegial management body of the company, the management board performs the functions assigned to it by Yes

the Law and in the articles of association of the company, and in such cases where the supervisory board is not formed
in the company, it performs inter alia the supervisory functions established in the Law. By performing the functions

assigned to it, the management board should take into
and other interest groups by respectively striving to achieve sustainable business development.
COMMENT

The Bank has a Supervisory Council, accordingly the Management Council, performs the functions assigned to it
by |l aw and t he /Asoddians Articles of

The duty to act in good faith, diligently, responsibly and prudently, to make decisions for the benefit of the Bank
and its shareholders and taking into account their legitimate interests is enshrined in the Rules of Procedure of the
Management Board of the Bank.

The duty to act in good faith, diligently, responsibly and prudently, to make decisions for the benefit of the Bank
and its shareholders and taking into account their legitimate interests is enshrined in the Rules of Procedure of the
Management Board of the Bank.

3.1.3. The management board should ensure compliance with the laws and the internal policy of the company applicable Yes
to the company or a group of companies to which this company belongs. It should also establish the respective risk
management and control measures aimed at ensuring regular and direct liability of managers.

COMMENT

The Board of the Bank ensures compliance with | aws
Association, the Management Board monitors the i mplementat:i
independent risk management and compliance, effecti

appropriate is governance structure, compliance with set principles, values, and code of conduct. The Management
Board monitors and supervises whether the actions o
strategy, policies, business plans, budget implementation and, where appropriate, special external or internal
factors (e.g., non-standard financial sector developments, regulatory changes, supervisory requirements,
substantial deviation from business plans, budget) may revoke decisions made by the Chief Executive Officer of
the Bank.

3.1.4. Moreover, the management board should ensure that the measures included into the OECD Good Practice Yes
Guidance?® on Internal Controls, Ethics and Compliance are applied at the company in order to ensure adherence to the
applicable laws, rules and standards.

COMMENT

The Management Board is responsible for enforcing applicable laws, regulations and standards in the areas of
internal control, ethics and compliance, including those included in the OECD Guidelines.

The Bank has various documents in place to ensure internal control, ethics and compliance management
measures, such as: Code of Ethics; Policy for Anti-Corruption and Unacceptable Conduct; Compliance Policy of
the Giauli ® Bankas Gr eniignandBanctiana Compliance®olicynStandard fenPrevention
of Money Laundering and Terrorist Financing; Conflict of Interest Management Policy; Risk Appetite Framework;
Risk Management Strategy, etc.

3.1.5. On Internal Controls, Ethics and Compliance are applied at the company in order to ensure adherence to the Yes
applicable laws, rules and standards.

COMMENT

3 Link to the OECD Good Practice Guidance on Internal Controls, Ethics and Compliance: https://www.oecd.org/daf/anti-bribery/44884389.pdf
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When appointing the Bankés Chief Executive Officer,
balance of his/her qualifications, skills, experience and competence, as well as his good reputation. It is also taken
into account whether the supervisory authority has not objected to such appointment.

11l Principle. Management Board
3.2 Formation of the management board

3.2.1. The members of the management board elected by the supervisory board or, if the supervisory board is not Yes
formed, by the general meeting of shareholders should collectively ensure the required diversity of qualifications,
professional experience and competences and seek for gender equality. With a view to maintain a proper balance in
terms of the current qualifications possessed by the members of the management board, it should be ensured that the
members of the management board would have, as a whole, diverse knowledge, opinions and experience to duly perform
their tasks.

COMMENT

The qualifications and professional experience of the members of the Management Board are assessed by the
Supervisory Council by voting in favor of the proposed candidates to the Management Board.

Before recommending candidates to the Management Board to the Supervisory Council, the Nomination
Committee evaluates the candidates to the Management Board in accordance with the applicable legal regulations
and the Bank6s i nt er nianlalsolinelglesla codlectivesevaludtibneof the Wlanbhgeraent Board
as a body. The diversity of the qualifications, professional experience and competences of the members of the
Management Board is ensured by the fact that a member of the Management Board (nominated or already elected
by the Supervisory Council) is allowed to start his/her duties only with the permission of the supervisory authority.
When granting authorizations, the supervisory authority assesses the individual and collective suitability of the
members of the Management Board of the Bank.

3.2.2. Names and surnames of the candidates to become members of the management board, information on their Yes
educational background, qualifications, professional experience, current positions, other important professional
obligations and potential conflicts of interest should be disclosed without violating the requirements of the legal acts
regulating the handling of personal data at the meeting of the supervisory board in which the management board or
individual members of the management board are elected. In the event that the supervisory board is not formed, the
information specified in this paragraph should be submitted to the general meeting of shareholders. The management
board should, on yearly basis, collect data provided in this paragraph onits member s and di scl ose
management report.

COMMENT

Information on candidates to the Management Board of the Bank, including their curriculum vitae and declaration
of interest s, shall be submitted to the meeting of
or its individual members are elected. Information about the positions held by the members of the Management
Board or their participation in the activities of other companies is constantly collected, stored and presented in the
Bank®&s ¢ omanadernemtateqpcdbrt and on itehe Bankds webs

3.2.3. All new members of the management board should be familiarized with their duties and the structure and Yes
operations of the company.

COMMENT

Members of the Management Board are familiarized with their duties, activities, organizational and governance
framework of the Bank, its strategy and operations.

3.2.4. Members of the management board should be appointed for a specific term, subject to individual re-election for a Yes
new term in office in order to ensure necessary development of professional experience and frequent reapproval of their
status.

COMMENT

According to the Bankds Articles of Associati on, t h
number of terms of office of a person in the Management Board shall not be limited. The Supervisory Council may
remove the entire Management Board or its individual members before the end of the term of office and may elect
new members until the end of the term of office of the existing Management Board.

3.2.5. Chair of the management board should be a person whose current or past positions constitute no obstacle to carry Yes
out impartial activity. Where the supervisory board is not formed, the former manager of the company should not be
immediately appointed as chair of the management board. When a company decides to depart from these
recommendations, it should furnish information on the measures it has taken to ensure the impartiality of supervision.

COMMENT

The other (current and former) duties of the Chair of the Management Board of the Bank do not prevent him/her
from acting impartially as the Chair of the Management Board. The fact that the Chair of the Management Board
also is the Chief Executive Officer of the Bank ensures the compliance with the requirement set forth in Article
33(2) of the Law on Banks of the Republic of Lithuania.
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3.2.6. Each member should devote sufficient time and attention to the duties of a board member. If a board member Yes
attended less than half of the board meetings during the financial year of the company, the company's supervisory
council should be informed about it, if the supervisory council is not formed in the company i the general meeting of
shareholders.

COMMENT

Members of the Management Board devote sufficient time and attention to the performance of the duties of a
Management Board member.

The minutes of the company record the participation and voting of the members of the Management Board in
making decisions.

In 2024, 66 meetings of the Management Board were held, all of which were attended by at least five Management
Board members (according to the Rules of Procedure of the Management Board, a meeting may take place and
decisions may be taken when at least 2/3 of the members of the Management Board are present).

3.2.7. In the event that the management board is elected in the cases established by the Law where the supervisory Not
council is not formed at the company, and some of its members will be independent?, it should be announced which | applicable
members of the management board are deemed as independent. The management board may decide that, despite the
fact that a particular member meets all the criteria of independence established by the Law, he/she cannot be considered
independent due to special personal or company-related circumstances.

COMMENT
The Bank has a Supervisory Council.

3.2.8. The amount of remuneration to members of the management board for their activity and patrticipation in meetings No
of the management board should be approved by the general meeting of shareholders.

COMMENT

The Bank has a Supervisory Council, which is responsible for electing and removing members of the Management
Board. All members of the Management Board also hold other positions in the Bank. In accordance with the
Remuneration Policy approved by the General Meeting of Shareholders, the prior approval of the Supervisory
Council is required when determining the remuneration and other terms of the employment contract of the members
of the Management Board holding other positions in the Bank. The Supervisory Council also approves the annual
variable remuneration of the members of the Management Board holding other positions in the Bank.

3.2.9. The members of the management board should act in good faith, with care and responsibility for the benefit and Yes
the interests of the company and its shareholders with due regard to other stakeholders. When adopting decisions, they
should not act in their personal interest; they should be subject to no-compete agreements and they should not use the
business information or opportunities related to t.he

COMMENT

In accordance with the Rules of Procedure of the Management Board, the Management Board acts in good faith,
with care and responsibly, in accordance with the principles of good governance, and performs its functions in the
interests of t he,clersakdother istbrestecethirddarties. A member of the Management Board
shall not have the right to vote and attend the Management Board meeting when dealing with issues related to
his/her activities on the Management Board or his/her responsibility, as well as matters in which the member may
have an interest, or where the lack of objectivity of the member of the Management Board may expose the Bank
to other risks.

3.2.10. Every year the management board should carry out an assessment of its activities. It should include evaluation Yes
of the structure of the management board, its work organization and ability to act as a group, evaluation of the
competence and work efficiency of each member of the management board, and evaluation whether the management
board has achieved its objectives. The management board should, at least once a year, make public respective
information about its internal structure and working procedures in observance of the legal acts regulating the processing
of personal data.

COMMENT

Each year, the members of the Management Board participate in the overall process of assessing the effectiveness

of the Bankoés internal management system, organization ana

ability to act as a group, as well as assessing whether the Management Board had achieved the set performance

targets. The composition and operating procedures o
of Association and published in the management reports.

IV Principle. Rules of procedure of the supervisory board and the management board of the company

The rules of procedure of the supervisory board, if it is formed at the company, and of the management board should ensure
efficient operation and decision-ma ki ng of these bodi es and promot e acti ve
management bodies.

4 For the purposes of this Code, the criteria of independence of the members of the board are interpreted as the criteria of unrelated persons defined in Article 33(7) of the Law
on Companies of the Republic of Lithuania.
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4.1. The management board and the supervisory board, if the latter is formed at the company, should act in close Yes
cooperation in order to attain benefit for the company and its shareholders Good corporate governance requires an open
discussion between the management board and the supervisory board. The management board should regularly and,
where necessary, immediately inform the supervisory board about any matters significant for the company that are
related to planning, business development, risk management and control, and compliance with the obligations at the
company. The management board should inform he supervisory board about any derogations in its business
development from the previously formulated plans and objectives by specifying the reasons for this.

COMMENT

The legal acts regulating the activities of the Supervisory Council and the Management Board, the Articles of
Association and the Rules of Procedure of the Bank, shall establish the principles and procedure of cooperation
between the Supervisory Council and the Management Board and ensure that the supervisory and management
bodies function properly for the maximum benefit of the Bank and its shareholders.

All or part of the members of the Management Board are normally invited to attend meetings of the Supervisory
Council. Members of the Management Board are invited to attend meetings of the Supervisory Council depending
on the agenda of the relevant Supervisory Council meeting.

42. 1 t is recommended that meetings of the company6s ¢ Yes
according to the pre-approved schedule. Each company is free to decide how often meetings of the collegial bodies
should be convened but it is recommended that these meetings should be convened at such intervals that uninterruptable
resolution of essential corporate governance issues would be ensured. Meetings of the company 6s col
should be convened at least once per quarter.

COMMENT

The Supervisory Council and the Management Board of the Bank act in accordance with the procedures
established in their Rules of Procedure.

Meetings of the Supervisory Council shall be held at least four times a year and at intervals not exceeding four
months. In 2024, the Supervisory Council held eight (8) meetings, and two (2) Supervisory Council decisions were
taken by poll (i.e., by written ballot).

Meetings of the Management Board shall be convened periodically, but at least once a month, in accordance with
the Rules of Procedure of the Management Board. In 2024, 66 meetings of the Management Board were held.

4.3. Members of a collegial body should be notified of the meeting being convened in advance so that they would have
sufficient time for proper preparation for the issues to be considered at the meeting and a fruitful discussion could be Yes
held and appropriate decisions could be adopted. Along with the notice of the meeting being convened all materials
relevant to the issues on the agenda of the meeting should be submitted to the members of the collegial body. The
agenda of the meeting should not be changed or supplemented during the meeting, unless all members of the collegial
body present at the meeting agree with such change or supplement to the agenda, or certain issues that are important
to the company require immediate resolution.

COMMENT

The Rules of Procedure of the Supervisory Council and the Management Board provide for a requirement that the
notice of the meetings being convened be given in advance.

Meetings of the Supervisory Council are held in accordance with a schedule agreed in advance with the
Supervisory Council. Extraordinary meetings are convened as necessary / questions are submitted to the
Supervisory Council by a survey. The agenda of the meeting is prepared by the secretary of the Supervisory
Council, approved by the chair and submitted to the members of the Supervisory Council in advance not later than
four working days before the meeting, and in case the issue should be solved by way of survey i not later than
two working days. The meeting may take place and the resolutions adopted at it will be considered valid even if
this procedure is not observed if all members of the Supervisory Council agree to it and this is indicated in the
minutes of the meeting.

The Management Board meets according to a pre-agreed meeting schedule, i.e., every week. Extraordinary
meetings are convened as necessary, subject to prior agreement with the Chairman of the Management Board.
The agenda of the meeting is prepared by the Secretary of the Management Board, coordinated with the Chairman
of the Management Board, and made available to all members of the Management Board in advance, at least 2
days before the meeting. Additional urgent items may be included on the agenda of a Management Board meeting
only with the consent of the Chair of the Management Board.

441 n order to coordinate the activities ofdedsioremakingmrpcass,y Yes
the chairs of the companyés coll egi al supervision ani
agendas of the meetings and close cooperate in resolving other matters related to corporate governance. Meetings of
thecompanyb6s supervisory board should be open to membe
where issues concerning the removal of the management board members, their responsibility or remuneration are
discussed.

COMMENT
The dates of all meetings of the Supervisory Council and the Management Board cannot be agreed due to the

different frequency of meetings of these bodies. Members of the Management Board are invited to attend meetings
of the Supervisory Council depending on the agenda of the relevant Supervisory Council meeting.
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V Principle. Nomination, remuneration and audit committees

5.1 Purpose and formation of committees

The committees formed at the company should increase the work efficiency of the supervisory board or, where the
supervisory board is not formed, of the management board which performs the supervisory functions by ensuring that
decisions are based on due consideration and help organize its work in such a way that the decisions it takes would be free
of material conflicts of interest.

Committees should exercise independent judgment and integrity when performing their functions and provide the collegial
body with recommendations concerning the decisions of the collegial body. However, the final decision should be adopted
by the collegial body.

5.1.1. Taking due account of the company-related circumstances and the chosen corporate governance structure, the Yes
supervisory board of the company or, in cases where the supervisory board is not formed, the management board which
performs the supervisory functions, establishes committees. It is recommended that the collegial body should form the
nomination, remuneration and audit committees®.

COMMENT

The Bankodés Super vifosmed Audit,CRisk, nNomithatiorh &amuneration and Corporate Affairs
Committees which operate in the Bank.

5.1.2. Companies may decide to set up less than three committees. In such case companies should explain in detail Not
why they have chosen the alternative approach, and how the chosen approach corresponds with the objectives set for | applicable
the three different committees.

COMMENT
See comment of clause 5.1.1.

5.1.3. In the cases established by the legal acts the functions assigned to the committees formed at companies may be Not
performed by the collegial body itself. In such case the provisions of this Code pertaining to the committees (particularly | applicable
those related to their role, operation and transparency) should apply, where relevant, to the collegial body as a whole.

COMMENT
See comment of clause 5.1.1.

5.1.4. Committees established by the collegial body should normally be composed of at least three members. Subject Yes
to the requirements of the legal acts, committees could be comprised only of two members as well. Members of each
committee should be selected on the basis of their competences by giving priority to independent members of the
collegial body. The chair of the management board should not serve as the chair of committees.

COMMENT

The Nomination, Remuneration, Risk and Audit Committees are composed of three members each, and the
Corporate Affairs Committee of four members. The Committees are made up of members of the Supervisory Board,
who are appointed to the Committees based on their expertise. The Remuneration, Nomination, Risk and
Corporate Affairs Committees each have two independent Supervisory Board members, the Audit Committee has
all independent members. The Chairpersons of the Remuneration, Nomination, Risk and Audit Committees are
independent members of the Supervisory Board. The Chairman of the Supervisory Board is also the Chairman of
the Nomination and Remuneration Committee.

5.1.5. The authority of each committee formed should be determined by the collegial body itself. Committees should Yes
perform their duties according to the authority delegated to them and regularly inform the collegial body about their
activities and performance on a regular basis. The authority of each committee defining its role and specifying its rights
and duties should be made public at least once a year (as part of the information disclosed by the company on its
governance structure and practice on an annual basis). In compliance with the legal acts regulating the processing of
personal data, companies should also include in their management reports the statements of the existing committees
on their composition, the number of meetings and attendance over the year as well as the main directions of their
activities and performance.

COMMENT

The recommendation is implemented through the committees of the Supervisory Council formed and operating in
the Bank. The powers (functions, rights and duties) of the committees of the Supervisory Council are determined
by the Supervisory Council by approving the operating regulations of each committee.

The chairs of the committees shall present to the Supervisory Council information on the activities of each
committee between the meetings of the Supervisory Council at the beginning of each meeting of the Supervisory
Council, as well as the management reports of the committees to the Supervisory Council.

The powers of the committees, their composition ani
semi-annual reports.

5 The legal acts may provide for the obligation to form a respective committee. For example, the Law on the Audit of Financial Statements of the Republic
of Lithuania provides that public-interest entities (including but not limited to public limited liability companies whose securities are traded on a regulated
market of the Republic of Lithuania and/or of any other Member State) are under the obligation to set up an audit committee (the legal acts provide for the
exemptions where the functions of the audit committee may be carried out by the collegial body performing the supervisory functions).
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5.1.6. With a view to ensure the independence and impartiality of the committees, the members of the collegial body
who are not members of the committees should normally have a right to participate in the meetings of the committee
only if invited by the committee. A committee may invite or request that certain employees of the company or experts
would participate in the meeting. Chair of each committee should have the possibility to maintain direct communication
with the shareholders. Cases where such practice is to be applied should be specified in the rules regulating the activities
of the committee.

COMMENT
Only Bank employees or other persons (experts) invited by the committee may attend and participate in the

meetings of the committees. The chairs of the committees are enabled to communicate directly with the
shareholders.

Yes

V Principle. Nomination, remuneration and audit committees

5.2 Nomination committee

5.2.1. The key functions of the nomination committee should be the following:

1) to select candidates to fill vacancies in the membership of supervisory and management bodies and the
administration and recommend the collegial body to approve them. The nomination committee should evaluate
the balance of skills, knowledge and experience in the management body, prepare a description of the functions
and capabilities required to assume a particular position and assess the time commitment expected;

2) assess, on a regular basis, the structure, size and composition of the supervisory and management bodies as
well as the skills, knowledge and activity of its members, and provide the collegial body with recommendations
on how the required changes should be sought;

3) devote the attention necessary to ensure succession planning.

COMMENT

The main functions of the Bankdéds Nomination Commitdt

6.2.2.  When dealing with issues related to members of the collegial body who have employment relationships
with the company and the heads of the administration, the manager of the company should be consulted
by granting him/her the right to submit proposals to the Nomination Committee.

COMMENT

Consultations between the Nomination Committee and the Chief Executive Officer of the Bank take place through
the information and documents required for the decisions of the Nomination Committee which are prepared by the
Secretary of this Committee i the responsible employeeof t he Bankés Personnel De
the issues relating to employment relations with the Chief Executive Officer.

Yes

Yes

V Principle. Nomination, remuneration and audit committees

5.3 Remuneration committee

The main functions of the remuneration committee should be the following:

1) submit to the collegial body proposals on the remuneration policy applied to members of the supervisory and
management bodies and the heads of the administration for approval. Such policy should include all forms of
remuneration, including the fixed-rate remuneration, performance-based remuneration, financial incentive
schemes, pension arrangements and termination payments as well as conditions which would allow the
company to recover the amounts or suspend the payments by specifying the circumstances under which it
would be expedient to do so;

2) submit to the collegial body proposals regarding individual remuneration for members of the collegial bodies
and the heads of the administration in order to
remuneration policy and the evaluation of the performance of the persons concerned;

3) review, on a regular basis, the remuneration policy and its implementation.
COMMENT

The main functions of the Bankdés Remunerati.on Commi

Yes

V Principle. Nomination, remuneration and audit committees

5.4 Audit committee
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5.4.1. The key functions of the audit committee are defined in the legal acts regulating the activities® of the audit Yes
committee.

COMMENT

The key functions of the Bankoés Audit Commi ttee ar
correspond to those specified in legal acts.

542. A1 | members of the committee should be provided wi Yes
accounting system, finances and operations. The head
committee about the methods of accounting for significant and unusual transactions where the accounting may be
subject to different approaches.

COMMENT

As provided for in the Regulations of the Audit Committee, the members of the committee must be provided with
detailed information regarding the specifics of th
Bankdéds management staff and persons responsible for
required to inform the Audit Committee of the methods of accounting for high-value and non-standard transactions,
if the accounting of these transactions can be managed by different methods as well as activities in preferential
trade zones and/or through specialist entities (enterprises, organizations) in order to find out whether such activity
is justified.
5.4.3. The audit committee should decide whether the patrticipation of the chair of the management board, the manager Yes
of the company, the chief finance officer (or senior employees responsible for finance and accounting), the internal and
external auditors in its meetings is required (and, if required, when). The committee should be entitled, when needed, to
meet the relevant persons without members of the management bodies present.

COMMENT

In accordance with the Regulations of the Audit Committee, other employees of the Bank may be invited to attend
the meetings of the Audit Committee (as observers or specialists), but they do not have the right to vote in decision
making. All those present at a meeting of the Audit Committee shall have access to information on the items on
the agenda for which they are invited. Furthermore, in carrying out its duties, the committee shall be entitled to use
the assistance of third parties for the purpose of conducting special investigations or other tasks and obtaining the
necessary funding from the Bank.

544.The audit committee should be informed ab o u tfurnisied with Yes
internal audit reports or periodic summaries. The audit committee should also be informed about the work program of
external auditors and should receive from the audit firm a report describing all relationships between the independent
audit firm and the company and its group.

COMMENT

The Banko6s Audit Commi ttee, ensuring the effectiven
assesses the work of internal audit function and discusses the results of inspections, assesses how the identified
deficiencies are being eliminated and internal audit plans are being implemented, and, if necessary, takes
appropriate actions.

I n supervising external auditors or audit fprogramsincluding
the scope of assignments in the financial statements audit, the materiality level applied, and the process of
identification of significant risks.

5.4.5. The audit committee should examine whether the company complies with the applicable provisions regulating the Yes
possibility of lodging a complaint or reporting anonymously his/her suspicions of potential violations committed at the
company and should also ensure that there is a procedure in place for proportionate and independent investigation of
such issues and appropriate follow-up actions.

COMMENT

The Audit Committee verifies if the Bank complies with the effective provisions concerning the possibility for
employees to submit complaints or anonymously report suspicions that significant violations are made within the
Bank and aims to ensure that procedures are established for a proportionate and independent investigation of
such issues and for the necessary follow-up. The Audit Committee also may demand information on major events
and non-compliance events, or whether they have been subject to appropriate measures in a timely manner.

5.4.6. The audit committee should submit to the supervisory board or, where the supervisory board is not formed, to the No
management board its activity report at least once in every six months, at the time that annual and half-yearly reports
are approved.

COMMENT
The Bankds Audit Committee reports to the Supervi st
submitted for approval to the Bankds Gener al Meet i n

6 |ssues related to the activities of audit committees are regulated by Regulation No. 537/2014 of the European Parliament and the Council of 16 April 2014 on specific
requirements regarding statutory audit of public-interest entities, the Law on the Audit of Financial Statements of the Republic of Lithuania, and the Rules Regulating the
Activities of Audit Committees approved by the Bank of Lithuania.
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VI Principle. Prevention and disclosure of conflicts of interest

The corporate governance framework should encourage members
avoid conflicts of interest and ensure a transparent and effective mechanism of disclosure of conflicts of interest related to
members of the supervisory and management bodies.

The corporate governance framework should recognize the rights of the stakeholders as established by law and promote
active cooperation between the company and its stakeholders in creating the company's well-being, jobs and financial

stability. In the conte x t of this principle, the term Astakehol derso i
customers, the local community and others with interests in a particular company.

Any member of thecompany6s supervisory and management body s Yes
interests are or may be in conflict with the company(

companyb6s supervisory or wiha areagaabe period bfdimey notifyhother medmbers of the
same body or the body of the company which el ected h
conflict of interest, indicate the nature of interests and, where possible, their value.

COMMENT

The recommendation is followed. This is ensured by the provisions of the Rules of Procedure of the Supervisory
Council and the Management Board of the Bank that members of the Supervisory Council and the Management
Board must avoid activities that may give rise to situations of conflict of interest and must disclose to the Bank,
prior to taking up their duties as a member of the supervisory and/or management body, any information that may
give rise to, or that has already given rise to, a conflict of interest, and must keep such information updated. In
accordance with the Banko6és internal regul ations, m ¢
Board annually submit to the Bank declarations of associated persons and private interests. Meanwhile, if there is
a change in the data contained in the declarations, the declarations are updated and submitted to the Bank
immediately.

It should also be noted that the Bank has adopted the Procedure for the Management of Conflicts of Interest, which
sets out the main measures for the identification, prevention and management of conflicts of interest in the Bank,
aswellastherights,duti es and r es pon s Supdarvisornt Jonal anal Manageneent Bady dnd of
other employees in relation to managing conflicts of interest.

VII Principle. Remuneration policy of the company

The remuneration policy and the procedure for review and disclosure of such policy established at the company should

prevent potential conflicts of interest and abuse in determining remuneration of members of the collegial bodies and heads

of the administration, in addition it should ensure the publ
its long-term strategy.

7.1. The company should approve and post the remuneration policy on the website of the company; such policy should Yes
be reviewed on a regular basi s an-termsteateggonsi st ent with
COMMENT

The Remuneration Policy approved by the General Meeting of Shareholders on 29 March 20247 is published on
the website of the Bank. This policy is in line with the long-term strategy of the Bank and is regularly reviewed in
accordance with the procedure and on terms provided for in the legal acts.

7.2. The remuneration policy should include all forms of remuneration, including the fixed-rate remuneration, Yes
performance-based remuneration, financial incentive schemes, pension arrangements and termination payments as well
as the conditions specifying the cases where the company can recover the disbursed amounts or suspend the payments.

COMMENT

The Remuneration Policy covers all forms of remuneration applied by the Bank.

7.3. With a view to avoid potential conflicts of interest, the remuneration policy should provide that members of the Yes
coll egi al bodi es which perform the supervisory funct,|
performance.

COMMENT

The applicable Remuneration Policy provides for a fixed remuneration for the members of the Supervisory Council,
independent of the Bank's performance.

This version of the Remuneration Policy, as app29darech@02dy t
is effective as of the date of its approval and applies to the full extent, except for the appointment, approval and payment
of remuneration (other than the deferred portion of the annual variable remuneration awarded) to the Designated Employees
in respect of service/performance for the year 2022 and for the payment to the Designated Employees in respect of
service/performance in respect of the years 2021 and 2020 (in such cases, the dates as of 31 March 2020 and 30 March
2022 shall apply. Remuneration Policy as approved by the Bank's General Meeting of Shareholders).
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7.4. The remuneration policy should provide sufficient information on the policy regarding termination payments. Yes
Termination payments should not exceed a fixed amount or a fixed number of annual wages and in general should not
be higher than the non-variable component of remuneration for two years or the equivalent thereof. Termination
payments should not be paid if the contract is terminated due to inadequate performance.

COMMENT

According to the Remuneration Policy, amounts of payments related to employment termination/end of term of
office and notice periods are determined based on the statutory amounts of such payments and/or the duration of
such notice periods established in the laws and the procedure laid down in the Remuneration Policy. The
Remuneration Policy also sets the maximum amount of severance pay available to a nominated employee at the
sum of twelve (12) months of his/her average salary, unless the Supervisory Council decides to grant a higher
amount on a case-by-case basis and subject to the fulfilment of other additional conditions set out in the policy (up
toamaximumamount of the employeebs average monthl)y sal a

7.5. In the event that the financial incentive scheme is applied at the company, the remuneration policy should contain No
sufficient information about the retention of shares after the award thereof. Where remuneration is based on the award
of shares, shares should not be vested at least for three years after the award thereof. After vesting, members of the
collegial bodies and heads of the administration should retain a certain number of shares until the end of their term in
office, subject to the need to compensate for any costs related to the acquisition of shares.

COMMENT

The Bank has a system of payment of a part of the
Remuneration Policy and ot her redumerationeysteénsprovide fputhearariting of
rights to shares four or five years after the initial appointment (through the Employee Options). The retention of
shares after the grant is not provided for the members of the Management Board and the Chief Executive Officer
and is in no way linked to the end of their term of office.

7.6. The company should publish information about the implementation of the remuneration policy on its website, with a Yes
key focus on the remuneration policy in respect of the collegial bodies and managers in the next and, where relevant,
subsequent financial years. It should also contain a review of how the remuneration policy was implemented during the
previous financial year. The information of such nature should not include any details having a commercial value.
Particular attention should be paid on the major chang
financial year.

COMMENT

On 29 March 2024, the Banko6s Ge 8harehaltlers Biaprevied thegRemuheration Policy, which
complies with the requirements of the Law on Companies of the Republic of Lithuania and other legislation
applicable to the Bank. As of 2021, the Bank publishes information on the implementation of the Remuneration
Policy.

7.7. Itis recommended that the remuneration policy or any major change of the policy should be included on the agenda Yes
of the general meeting of shareholders. The schemes under which members and employees of a collegial body receive
remuneration in shares or share options should be approved by the general meeting of shareholders.

COMMENT

In 2024, the Ordinary General Meeting of Shareholders approved a new version of the Remuneration Policy, and
the Rules for Granting Shares were approved in 2022. These documents govern the annual variable share-based
remuneration scheme through options.

Changes in the Rules for Granting Shares and Remuneration Policy are possible only by the decision of the
General Meeting of Shareholders.

VIII Principle. Role of stakeholders in corporate governance

The corporate governance framework should recognize the rights of stakeholders entrenched in the laws or mutual
agreements and encourage active cooperation between companies and stakeholders in creating the company value, jobs

and financi al sustainability. In the context of this princ
creditors, suppliers, clients, local community and other persons having certain interests in the company concerned.
8.1. The corporate governance framework should ensure that the rights and lawful interests of stakeholders are Yes
protected.

COMMENT

The Bank identifies employees, shareholders, customers, suppliers and partners, regulators, communities and the
public, associates and the media as key stakeholder groups. The rights and legitimate interests of all these groups
are respected, and this is more fully disclosed in the Social Responsibility Report.

8.2. The corporate governance framework should create conditions for stakeholders to participate in corporate Yes
governance in the manner prescribed by law. Examples of participation by stakeholders in corporate governance include
the participation of employees or their representatives in the adoption of decisions that are important for the company,
consultations with employees or their representatives on corporate governance and other important matters, participation
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of employees in the companyds authorized capital, inv
companybés insolvency, etc.
COMMENT

Depending on the stakeholder group, participation is made possible. This is explained in more detail in the Social
Responsibility Report.

Oneoft he Bankds exclusive instruments is employee par

of the annual variable remuneration in the Bankds s
8.3. Where stakeholders participate in the corporate governance process, they should have access to relevant Yes
information.

COMMENT

Stakeholders are given access to the necessary information, except where the information is confidential.

8.4. Stakeholders should be provided with the possibility of reporting confidentially any illegal or unethical practices to Yes
the collegial body performing the supervisory function.

COMMENT
The Bank provides different stakeholder groups with different channels for reporting illegal or unethical practices.

Foremployeesit hr ough the Bankd&s i nternal i nfidhroogainvesionrelatigns
channels, for customers i through the Remote Call Centre, etc.

IX Principle. Disclosure of information

The corporate governance framework should ensure the timely and accurate disclosure of all material corporate issues,
including the financial situation, operations and governance of the company.

91.lnaccordance with the companyo6s procedure on confide
regulating the processing of personal data, the information publicly disclosed by the company should include but not be
limited to the following:

9.1.1. operating and financial results of the company; Yes
COMMENT

Disclosed quarterly in interim and annual financial statements.

9.1.2. objectives and non-financial information of the company; Yes
COMMENT

Disclosed in interim and annual financial statements.

9.1.3. persons holding a stake in the company or controlling it directly and/or indirectly and/or together with related Yes
persons as well as the structure of the group of companies and their relationships by specifying the final beneficiary.

COMMENT

It is disclosed on the Banko6s website and in its i
stake is also publicly announced when the person or group of persons who have acquired or lost the stake inform
the Bank thereof in accordance with the established procedure.

914 members of the company6s supervisory and manhagemen]| Yes
the company, the shares or votes held by them at the company, participation in corporate governance of other
companies, their competence and remuneration;

COMMENT

I't is disclosed on the Bankds website and in its in
9.1.5. reports of the existing committees on their composition, number of meetings and attendance of members during No
the last year as well as the main directions and results of their activities;

COMMENT

Information on the composition and activities of the Committees is disclosed in an management report. The number
of committee meetings and attendance by the members shall not be disclosed.

9.16.potenti al key ri sk f managemestand supeevision@atigyany 6s r i sk Yes
COMMENT

I nformation on the Bankés risk management and super

917t he companyds transactions with related parties; Yes
COMMENT
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It is disclosed on the Bank 6 s website in accordance wi t h t he c
documents of the Bank.

9.1.8. main issues related to employees and other stakeholders (for instance, human resource policy, participation of

employeesincor por ate governance, award of the companyés sh
creditors, suppliers, local community, etc.);

COMMENT

It is disclosed on the Bankdés website i n aatsand ntdraah

documents of the Bank.

9.1.9. structure and strategy of corporate governance;
COMMENT

|t is disclosed on the Bankoés website and in its in

9.1.10. initiatives and measures of social responsibility policy and anti-corruption fight, significant current or planned
investment projects. This list is deemed minimum and companies are encouraged not to restrict themselves to the
disclosure of information included into this list. This principle of the Code does not exempt companies from their obligation
to disclose information as provided for in the applicable legal acts;

COMMENT

Information on environmental, social and governance (ESG) aspects and the management of these risks is
disclosed in the Social Responsibility Report.

I nformation on significant investment projects plan
is published as essential information of the issuer through the regulated information publication system
administered by Nasdag.

9.2. When disclosing the information specified in paragraph 9.1.1 of recommendation 9.1, it is recommended that the
company which is a parent company in respect of other companies should disclose information about the consolidated
results of the whole group of companies.

COMMENT

The Bank discloses consolidated results for the Group as a whole through consolidated interim and annual
statements and consolidated management report.

9.3. When disclosing the information specified in paragraph 9.1.4 of recommendation 9.1, it is recommended that the
information on t he professional experience and qual
management bodies and the manager of the company as well as potential conflicts of interest which could affect their
decisions should be provided. It is further recommended that the remuneration or other income of members of the
companyds supervisory and management bodies and the m
in greater detail in Principle 7.

COMMENT

I nformation on the professional experience, qgual i~
Supervisory Council, Management Board and Chief Executive Officer that could affect their decisions is disclosed.
The Consolidated Management Report and the Consolidated Financial Statements disclose information on the
total personnel costs, the salaries paid to key executives of the Bank during the year; the Remuneration Report
provides detailed information on the remuneration received by each member of the collegial body.

9.4. Information should be disclosed in such manner that no shareholders or investors are discriminated in terms of the
method of receipt and scope of information. Information should be disclosed to all parties concerned at the same time.

COMMENT

Information is provided to shareholders and investors to the same extent and simultaneously in the Lithuanian and
English | anguages and is publicly available on the

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

X Principle.Sel ecti on of the companyés audit firm

The companyés audit firm selection mechanism should ensure

10.1.With a view to obtain an objective opinion on the ¢
annual financial statements and the financial information provided in its management report should be audited by an
independent audit firm:

COMMENT
The Bankods consolidated financi al statement s ar e

management report is audited by an independent firm of auditors in accordance with the International Standards
on Auditing as adopted by the EU.

Yes
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10.2. It is recommended that the audit firm would be proposed to the general meeting of shareholders by the supervisory Yes
board or, if the supervisory board is not formed at the company, by the management board of the company.

COMMENT

The candidate audit firms are selected by the Audit Committee and proposed to the General Meeting of
Shareholders by the Supervisory Council.

10.3. In the event that the audit firm has received remuneration from the company for the non-audit services provided, Yes
the company should disclose this publicly. This information should also be available to the supervisory board or, if the
supervisory board is not formed at the company, by the management board of the company when considering which
audit firm should be proposed to the general meeting of shareholders.

COMMENT
The fee information for the audit firm for non-a u d i t services (if any) woul d

consolidated management reports. The Supervisory Council and the Management Board have this information at
their disposal.

Clause 3. Information on risk scope and risk management - describes risk management related to financial reporting, risk mitigation
measures and the internal control system in place.

More details are provided in the Financial Risk Management disclosure in notes to the financial statements for the year 2024 and on the
internal control system in the Consolidated Management Report 2024.

Clause 4. Information on significant direct or indirect holdings.

As of 31 December 2024, the following shareholdings have been declared in accordance with the procedure established in the Law on
Securities of the Republic of Lithuania and the disclosure rules of the Bank of Lithuania:

A Acquisition of a shareholding by Algirdas Butkus together with his controlled companies - UAB prekybos namais "Aiva" and UAB
"Mintaka" - notified on 22 March 2024. The holding amounted to 5,02% at the date of notification and to 5,06% of the Bank's
shares as of 31 December 2024.

A The dilution of the European Bank for Reconstruction and Development's (EBRD) holding of 10.00% on 4 June 2024, notified
on 31 December 2024. EBRD held a 7.25% stake.

Tesonet Global UAB - acquisition of a stake notified on 7 June 2024. As at 31 December 2024, 5.32% of the Bank's shares.

AB Invalda INVL's shareholding above 15%, notified on 19 December 2023. As at 31 December 2024, the stake held by Invalda
INVL AB together with its subsidiary UAB INVL Asset Management amounted to 19.93% of the Bank's shares.

A The 5,71 % stake held by Willgrow UAB (formerly UAB ME investicija), notified on 29 December 2021, amounted to 8,97 % as
at 31 December 2024.

Clause 5. Information on related party transactions as provided for in Article 372 of the Law on Companies (identifying the parties to the
transaction (legal form, name, code, register of the legal entity, register where the data concerning this entity are collected and stored;
natural person's name, address for correspondence) and transaction value).

In 2024, the Bank published on its website three notices regarding significant transactions with parties related with the Bank:
NOTIFICATION -06/03/2024
Transactonconcl uded with SB Lizingas UAB, a subsidiary of Giaul:
Registration No. 234995490, address: Karaliaus Mindaugo pr. 35, Kaunas.

Transaction information:

Credit limit EUR 290 000 000 (maturity until 30.03.2025, interest rate until 30.03.2024 4,35 %, from 30.03.2024 until 30.03.2025 5,35
%).

Credit limit EUR 7 000 000 (maturity until 30.09.2024, interest rate 5,80 %).
The credit transactions with a related party of AB Gi a u::’;hn'ka@ were concluded in the ordinary course of business of AB Gi a
Bankas under normal market conditions. AB Gi a uBhnkad considers that the loan transactions and the terms and conditions of the

credit transactions are fair and reasonable in relation to AB Gi a uBarka® and its shareholders, who are not parties to the credit
transactions.
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Clause 6. Information on and description of shareholders having special control rights.

There are no shareholders with special control rights in the Bank.

Clause 7. Details of any existing restrictions on voting rights, such as restrictions on the exercise of voting rights by a certain percentage
or number of persons, the time limits by which voting rights may be exercised or the systems by which ownership of the securities is
separated from the shareholder.

As of 31 December 2024, t he Bank was not aware of any restrictions on the
for exercising the voting rights, or any voting rights conferred by these shares separated from the shareholder under any systems.

Clause 8. Information on the rules governing the election and replacement of the members of the Board as well as amendments to the
Charter of the Company.

According to the Bankés Articles of Association, the membeths of
Bankdéds Supervisory Council. The selection of the members otionst he
on the Selection of Management Board Members, and the evaluation of the candidates to the Management Board is carried out in
accordance with the Policy for the Assessment of Managers. In accordance with Policy for the Assessment of Managers, the Nomination
Committee evaluates the candidate and recommends that the appointing/electing person/body make a final decision on the respective
position in the Bank. A member of the Management Board must also obtain the permission of the supervisory authority before taking up
his/her duties at the Bank.

The Bankés Articles of Association are amended by the Generdal Y
the Articles of Association are adopted by a majority of votes, which may not be less than 2/3 of all votes granted by the shares of the
shareholders participating in the meeting.

Clause 9. Information on the powers of board members.

The Management Board of the Bank is a collegial management body of the Bank consisting of eight (8) members. The term of office of
the Management Board is four years and the number of terms is not limited. If individual members of the Management Board are elected,
they are elected until the end of the term of office of the existing Management Board. The Management Board acts in accordance with
its Rules of Procedure.
TheBankds Man Bapel stelhdonsider and approve:
the Bank's management report;
the governance structure of the Bank and positions of employees;
regulations of the branches, representative offices and other separate subdivisions of the Bank;
the Bankodés | ending procedure in accordance with the Lending
the procedure for issuing guarantees, sureties and assuming other obligations;
the procedure for writing off loans and other debt obligations;
regulations of the Loan Committee and Risk Management Committee of the Bank;
a description of the procedure for participation and voting at the Meeting by electronic means;
the Rules of Procedure of the Management Board.
The Management Board also elects/appoints and removes the Chief Executive Officer of the Bank and his/her deputies, determines the
remuneration of the Chief Executive Officer, other terms and conditions of his/her employment contract, approves his/her job description,
promotes him/her and imposes sanctions, determines which information is considered a trade secret and confidential information of the
Bank.
The Management Board shall adopt:
1 decisions on the Bank becoming the promoter and/or participant of other legal entities;
1 decisions on opening branches, representative offices and other separate subdivisions of the Bank and on terminating their
activities;
1 decisions on the investment, transfer or lease of fixed assets with the book valuee x c eedi ng 1/ 2 futhorifed tapital B a
(calculated separately for each type of transaction);
T decisions on the pledge and mortgage of fi xed authericed capitalitteh t
total amount of transactions is calculated);
1 decisions on the issue of guarantees or sureties to secure obligations of other entities in the amount exceeding 1/20 of the
B a n ladthorized capital;
1T decisions on the acquisition of fi xed auherigeeltapitalf or a price ex
1 decisions to issue non-convertible bonds;
1 decisions on other matters that are considered or decided by the Management Board under the laws and Articles of Association

= =4 =4 -8 -8 8 8 8 9

of the Bank.
The Management Board shall set forth:
f the terms and conditions of i ssue of the Bankds shares;
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T the procedure for i ssuing the Bankdéds bonds. When the Gene,
Management Board shall have the right to determine additional terms and conditions of their issue and approve the subscription
agreements which the Chief Executive Officer or a person authorized by him/her is entitled to sign;

1 the recruitment procedure and cases in which employees are hired by the Bank with the approval of the Management Board.

The Management Board shall execute resolutions passed by the General Meeting of Shareholders and the Supervisory Council.
The Management Board shall analyze and evaluate the materials submitted by the Chief Executive Officer of the Bank concerning:

9 the strategic business plan of the Bank and information on its implementation;

M organization o f the Bankodés activities;

f the Bankés financi al position;

1 results of economic activity, revenue and expenditure estimates, inventory and other records of changes in assets.

The Management Board analyzes and evaluates the draft Rules for Granting Shares and submits it to the Supervisory Council and the
General Meeting of Shareholders along with the feedback and proposals. The Management Board, furthermore, analyzes and assesses
the set of annual financial statements of the Bank and profit/loss distribution project, and submits them to the Supervisory Council and
the General Meeting of Shareholders together with the management report of the Bank, and handles other matters related to the business
of the Bank if they do not fall within the competence of other bodies of the Bank under the laws or Articles of Association of the Bank.
The Management Board is responsible for convening and organizing the General Meetings of Shareholders in a timely manner.

Clause 10. Information on the competence of the general meeting of shareholders, rights of shareholders and their implementation, if
not provided by law.

The competence of the General Meeting of Shareholders, the rights of shareholders and exercise thereof do not differ from those provided
by law.

Clause 11. Information on the composition of the management, supervisory bodies and their committees, areas of their and company
headds activity.

The Supervisory Council is a collegial body supervising the activities of the Bank. The Supervisory Council is chaired by the
Chairperson. The Banko6s Su psven(7)snembgrs, i€ elactadchy the GeremliVieatirgg tofi Shagehotdérs for
a period of four years. The members of the Supervisory Council are proposed to the General Meeting by the initiators of the General
Meeting or shareholders holding 1/20 of the Bankés shares.
Candidates are proposed before or during the meeting. Each candidate to the Supervisory Council shall inform the General Meeting of
his/her duties and responsibilities, as well as his/her other activities related to the Bank and other legal entities related to the Bank.

In the election of the members of the Supervisory Council, each shareholder shall have the number of votes attributable to the shares
he/she holds multiplied by the number of members of the Supervisory Council being elected. These votes are distributed at the
sharehol derds discretion, for one or more candidates. The candi
Four (4) independent members were elected to the Supervisory Council for this term. The Articles of Association of the Bank provide that
the number of terms of office of a member of the Supervisory Council shall not be limited.

Functions of the Supervisory Council:

T considers and approves t lamlyzBsa nkmd adsussd snseesss isrtfrart magtyi,on on tF
business strategy, provides this information to the Ordinary General Meeting of Shareholders;

1 elects members of the Management Board and removes them from office, submits proposals to the Management Board
regarding the candidacy of the Chairperson of the Management Board. Setting the remuneration and other terms and conditions
of employment contracts of the members of the Management Board who hold other positions in the Bank, the Chief Executive
Officer and his/her deputies requires prior approval of the Supervisory Council. If the Bank is operating at a loss, the Supervisory
Council must consider whether the members of the Management Board are suitable for the position;

9 elects members of the Audit, Risk, Nomination and Remuneration Committees, and form and elect the members of the other
Board Committees;

1 supervises activities of the Management Board and the Chief Executive Officer of the Bank;
1  supervises the implementation of business plans of the Bank, analyzes t he Bankds revenue and ex
and capital adequacy issues;
1 considers and approves the Rules of Procedure of the Supervisory Council of the Bank;
1 approves business plans and annual budget of the Bank;
T approves any type of policies related to the Bankdds activit
1 approves the description of procedures and conditions for the valuation of transactions with related parties that are entered into
on an armés | ength basis and in the ordinary course of busi
1 ensures that the Bank has an efficient internal control system in place;
1 submits to the General Meeting of Shareholders feedback and proposals on the draft Rules for Granting Shares;
1 makes proposals and comments to the General Meeting of Shareholders on the draft set of annual financial statements of the

Bank, profit/loss distribution project and report of the Bank, and the activities of the Management Board and Chief Executive
Officer;

1 makes proposals to the Management Board and Chief Executive Officer to revoke their decisions that contradict the laws and
other legal acts, the Articles of Association of the Bank or decisions of the General Meeting of Shareholders;
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1 submits to the General Meeting of Shareholders and the Management Board comments and proposals regarding the draft
remuneration policy of public limited liability companies whose shares are admitted to trading on a regulated market and the
draft remuneration report;

approves the lending policy and sets forth the procedure for lending that is subject to the approval of the Supervisory Council;

makes proposals to the Management Board and Chief Executive Officer to revoke their decisions that contradict the laws and

other legal acts, Articles of Association of the Bank or decisions of the General Meeting of Shareholders;

1 draws up the list of transactions and decisions of the management bodies of the Bank, the conclusion/adoption or execution of
which requires the approval of the Supervisory Council,

1 passes decisions that fall within the competence of the Supervisory Council under the procedures approved by the Supervisory
Council, which the Supervisory Council is required to adopt in accordance with the laws, Articles of Association of the Bank and
decisions of the General Meeting of Shareholders;

1 considers and decides on other matters that must be considered or decided on by the Supervisory Council under the laws,
Articles of Association of the Bank and decisions of the General Meeting of Shareholders.

= =

Management Board of the Bank i see Clause 9.
Chief Executive Officer (CEOQ) is a single-person management body of the Bank who organizes day-to-day activities of the Bank and
performs other actions necessary to perform his/herf unct i ons, i mpl ement the decisions of t
activities.
Functions of the CEO of the Bank:
1 to organize day-to-day activities of the Bank;
1 to hire and dismiss employees of the Bank, conclude and terminate employment contracts concluded with them, provide
incentives to them and impose sanctions on them. The CEO is entitled to authorize another Bank employee to perform actions
listed herein;

1 to represent the Bank in dealings with other persons, in a court and arbitral tribunal without a separate authorization;

1 toissue and revoke authorization to represent the Bank and powers of procurations;

1 toissue orders;

T to perform other actions necessary to perform his/her fubscti
activities.

Chief Executive Officer is responsible for:

1 organizihngt he Bankods activities and achieving its goal s;

1 drawing up a set of financial statements and management report of the Bank;

9 drafting the Remuneration Policy, the Remuneration Report and the Rules for Granting Shares;

1 concluding an agreement with the audit firm;

1 submitting information and documents to the General Meeting of Shareholders, the Supervisory Council and the Management
Board in the cases provided for in the laws or at the request of the respective bodies;

1 submitting documents and data of the Bank to the manager of the Register of Legal Entities;

1  submitting documents to the Bank of Lithuania and Lithuanian Central Securities Depository;

1  publishing information required by laws and other regulations in sources specified in the Articles of Association of the Bank;

1  submitting information to the shareholders;

1 drafting a description of the procedure for participation and voting at the Meeting by electronic means;

T drafting a description of procedures and conditions fore th
ordinary course of business;

1 fulfilling other duties provided for in laws and regulations, Articles of Association of the Bank and job description of the Chief

Executive Officer of the Bank.

The Chief Executive Officer of the Bank shall act on behalf of the Bank and shall have the right to conclude transactions unilaterally,
except as otherwise provided for in the Articles of Association

More information about the composition of management bodies and committees is provided in the summary to this report and the
consolidated management report for 2024, section Bank Management.

Clause 12. For the selection of the company's chief executive officer, members of the management and supervisory bodies, a description
of the company's diversity policy in relation to gender, other aspects such as age, disability, education, professional experience, the
objectives of the policy, the manner in which it has been implemented and the results of its implementation during the reporting period.
If the diversity policy is not applied, the reasons for not applying it shall be explained. For companies with boards of directors and/or
supervisory boards, the section of the management report devoted to information on corporate governance shall also include statistical
information on gender representation on the company's management and supervisory bodies (percentages of representation by gender),
the measures already taken or to be taken by the company to ensure that the under-represented gender in the company's management
and supervisory bodies is not less than 33 %. (the proportion of gender representation in the company's management, board of directors,
supervisory board and the reasons for failing to achieve this proportion.

The Bank has a Diversity Policy approved by the Supervi s ovebgite.Cou
Diversity in the Bank is understood in a broad sense, not only in terms of the diversity of the management bodies, but also across the
organization and the B a n kGdosip. Diversity is a situation in which the characteristics of employees and members of management
bodies, including their age, gender, education, and professional experience, differ in such a way as to ensure a diversity of views within
the B a n kKGoosap and, as appropriate, the management / supervisory bodies. The geographical origin criterion is not mandatory as the
Bank does not operate internationally but is seen as an advantage by the Bank. The following Diversity Policy principles and objectives
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were identified: (i) Fostering the diversity culture; (ii) Increasing the diversity of the management body; (iii) Equality; (iv) Achieving gender
balance; (v) Increase of the number of the under-represented gender in management bodies; and (vi) Zero-tolerance to discrimination.
At | east 25 per cent o feolleghlaldodimemms berwomean fundérhepresénted derddsr), with a target of 30 per
cent as of 2028 (it should be noted that t h&2020i202d)ent term of of

The selection of members of the Bank's supervisory and management bodies is governed by the provisions on the selection of members
of the Management Board/Supervisory Board approved by the Bank's Supervisory Board. Before the selection is announced, the need
for the required competences, experience, knowledge and skills shall be assessed and the Nomination Committee shall prepare a
description of the functions and skills in this respect.

In 2024, the gender representation in the governing bodies of the Bank was as follows:

Bank body | Women (%) Men (%) Women (number) Men (number)
Management Board 37,5 62,5 3 5
Supervisory Council 28,6 71,4 2 5

Chief Executive Officer
(Member of the

Management Board) B 100 B 1
Total 33,3 66,7 5 10
As the overall representation of women (under-r e pr esent ed gender) in the Bank's governin

legal minimum threshold of 33%. In the future, the Bank will continue to apply transparent and equality-based selection processes in
order to maintain its diversity policy and promote gender balance at the highest levels of management.

Clause 13. Information on all the agreements between the shareholders (their substance, terms).

The Bank does not have any information about any mutual agcteeme
as of 31 December 2024.
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The Bank's information on remuneration has been prepared and approved in accordance with the procedure stipulated in the Republic
of Lithuania Law on Companies and complies with the requirements set out in Article 25 of the Republic of Lithuania Law on Accountability
of Enterprises and Enterprise Groups.

Upon approval by the Bank's General Meeting of Shareholders of the 2024 consolidated financial statements of the Bank and the Bank
Group, this information wil/| be publicly disclosed for a period

This section, dedicated to information on remuneration (reporting period from 2024-01-01 to 2024-12-31), provides details regarding the
remuneration of each member of the Bank's management (the Chief Executive Officer, the Management Board) and supervisory bodies
(Supervisory Council). The members of the management and supervisory bodies have been identified on the basis of their position in
the Bank as at 31 December 2024, and disclosures are also made regarding those members who commenced/ceased their roles during
the course of 2024 (if any).

As of 29 March 2024, the General Meeting of Shareholders of the Bank did not express disagreement/other remarks regarding the 2023
Remuneration Report, which, as an attachment to the Bank's consolidated management report, is publicly disclosed on the Bank's
website in the document titled A2023 Annual Report of AB Gomul i
certain shareholders i institutional investors i on the basis of undisclosed information concerning the performance metrics of board
members, which would allow understanding the relationship between the allocated variable remuneration and the achieved results,
objectives, and their weighting, as well as the respective lower and upper limits for the payment of variable remuneration and the
methodology for its calculation.

The allocation of remuneration to members of the Bank's management Board and supervisory bodies is governed by the Remuneration
Policy, approved by the Bank's General Meeting of Sharehol dhers
General Meeting of Shareholders approved a revised version of the Remuneration Policy, which is fully applicable when assigning,
confirming, granting, and paying remuneration for the year 2023. For work/activities in 2022, the allocation of remuneration follows the
version of the Remuneration Policy approved on 30 March 2022. According to this policy, the annual deferred portion of the variable
remuneration for members of the Bank's management Board is confirmed and granted in accordance with the 2022-approved version of
the Remuneration Policy.

The allocation, confirmation, granting, and payment of remuneration to the members of the Bank's management Board for work/activities
in 2021 and 2020 are guided by the edition of the Remuneration Policy approved on 31 March 2020.

The model of the Group's remuneration framework is consistent and aligned with the Group's business and risk strategy, objectives,
including those related to environmental, social, and governance (hereinafter the ESG) risks, values, corporate culture, risk culture, and
long-term sustainability interests, aiming to increase the long-term value of the Bank's shares, avoid conflicts of interest, promote reliable
and effective risk management, as well as robust management of money laundering and terrorist financing risks, and defines the
processes and principles governing the payment of remuneration. Remuneration is determined taking into account the employee's
knowledge, experience, qualifications, responsibility, operational efficiency, and work quality, as well as the position held, applicable
remuneration ranges for the position, and similar factors. A uniform remuneration system is applied, ensuring non-discrimination of
employees based on gender, age, nationality, race, social status, religion, etc. The successful implementation of the Remuneration Policy
provides the Bank with opportunities to attract, motivate, and retain the best employees who contribute to the achievement of the Group's
long-term goals and the strategic implementation of the business. The Bank monitors gender pay gaps and takes action to reduce them
when necessary.

According to the Remuneration Policy, fixed remuneration iesofpali
the Bankds Management Board receive both fixed and variablatterr en
evaluating the Bank's performance, taking into account existing and future risks, the use of capital, and the need for liquidity support. The
methods for calculating variable remuneration are developed to align with the Bank Group's business strategy, objectives, values, long-

term sustainable business interests, promote reliable and effective risk management, avoid conflicts of interest, ensure compliance with

the code of ethics, and prevent incentivizing excessive risk-taking by remuneration recipients.

In accordance with the Bank's Remuneration Policy, the annuiasl v
granted only after the annual performance assessment, based on the results of the last year's performance evaluation. In confirming the
deferred portion, consideration is given to the results of evaluating the member's performance over at least the last 3 years. When the
duration of employment or the Contract with the Employee is less than 3 years, decisions are based on the available performance
evaluation results. The size of variable remuneration is based on the overall assessment of employee, department, and predetermined
goals and achieved results of the bank and the Group. The allocated variable remuneration may also depend on the employee's position

and the significance of decision-making, which can have a significant impact on the risk assumed by the Group. When assessing
individual employee objectives and achievements, not only the achieved personal financial result is evaluated, but also the non-
financial/ qualitative contribution (e.g., compliance with ith he
clients/colleagues, adherence to standards, fulfilment of requirements set out in internal documents, initiative, leadership, participation in
project activities, process improvement).

As stipulated in the Bank's Remuneration Policy, annual v aadinabl
both cash and Bank shares. This section discloses information on the annual variable remuneration allocated in 2024 based on the
results of operations in 2023. Following the decision of 29 March 2024, approving the Remuneration Policy applicable to the allocation
of annual variable remuneration for the year 2023, the provision of the portion of remuneration payable in Bank shares to members of
the Bank's management body is deferred for a period of 5 (five) years from the date of allocation of the annual variable remuneration.
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The deferred portion is approved in increments of five times, meaning that each year, 1/5 of the allocated shares must be approved. 3/5
of the deferred portion is granted 3 years after the allocation of the annual variable remuneration, 1/5 of the deferred portion is granted 4
years after the allocation of the annual variable remuneration, and the remaining 1/5 of the deferred portion is granted 5 years after the
allocation of the annual variable remuneration. A retention period applies to the granted portions.

This deferred portion can be granted through an option agreement (option contract) entered into between the Bank and the employee,
granting the employee the right to acquire Bank shares at no cost upon the expiration of the deferral period or by any other method
determined by the Bankés Management Board.

The annual variable remuneration may be allocated to a member of the management body, maintaining an appropriate balance between
the variable and fixed components of remuneration, and allowing for flexible policies related to variable remuneration components;
specifically, the variable remuneration allocated for 1 calendar year cannot exceed 100% of the total amount of fixed remuneration
elements received during the same 1 calendar year for which the variable remuneration is allocated (i.e., the ratio of variable to fixed
remuneration cannot exceed 100%), aiming to promote reliable and effective risk management.

REMUNERATION OF MEMBERS OF THE SUPERVISORY BODY

In accordance with the Bankds Remuneration Policy, me mb e r ofthef t
base salary and additional allowances. Remuneration for members of the Supervisory Council is determined irrespective of the member's
gender, age, nationality, and experience, and is paid on a pro rata basis for the preceding month, quarter or at such other intervals as

may be specified in the member's contract of service as a member of the Supervisory Council of the Bank. The amounts of position salary

and supplements for the entire term of office of a member of the Supervisory Council are determined by the Bank's general shareholders'
meeting when approving the Bank's Remuneration Policy.

Information about the remuneration of the members of the Bank's Supervisory Council for the year 2024 (current or having resigned in
2024), excluding taxes:

. , . . . Remuneration paid by the
1
Full name Positions on the Bank's Supervisory Council and Committees Bank in 2024, EUR?
Independent Member of the Supervisory Council, Chairperson of the Supervisory
Valdas Vitkauskas Council, Chairperson of the Remuneration and Nomination Committee, Member of the 323,621
Audit, Risk, and Corporate Affairs Committees
Gintaras Kateiva Member of the Supervisory Council, Member of the Remuneration Committee 59,395
Darius Gul nis Member of the Supe_rws_ory Counql, Chalrp_erson of the Corporate Affairs Committee, 83,645
Member of the Nomination and Risk Committees
x S Independent member of the Supervisory Council, Chairperson of the Audit Committee,
Ramunad Vilija Member of the Remuneration and Risk Committees 18,750
Mi ha Kogak Independent Membgr of_ the Super_wsory Council, Chairperson of the Risk Committee, 16,936
Member of the Nomination Committee
. Independent member of the Supervisory Council, Chairperson of the Risk Committee,
Susan Gail Buyske Member of the Audit Committee 74,855
Mindaugas Raila Member of the Supervisory Council, Member of the Corporate Affairs Committee 59,395
Tomas Okmanas gggp;?i?tcéint Member of the Supervisory Council, Member of the Remuneration 66,976
Moni ka Rachyga Independent membe_r of_the Super_vlsory Council. Chairperson of the Audit Committee, 40,083
Member of the Nomination Committee
1The Corporate Affairs Committee was established on 2024-01-01.
2 Members of the Supervisory Council have been paid a fixed remuneration for their activities in accordance with the Remuneration Policy.
SRamund Zabuliend served in the B@38's Supervisory Council until 2024

“Mi ha Kogak serve
SMoni ka Nachyga b

d in
egan

the Bank03€28 Supervisory
serving in th662Bank's

Counci l unt il
Supervisory

2024
Council

from 2024
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Below is the information on the changes in the remuneration of the members of the Bank's Supervisory Council for the period 2019-2024:
Changes in remuneration, %?*

Eull name Positions on the Bank's Supervisory In 2020 In 2021 In 2022 In 2023 In 2024
Council and Committees compared to comparedto comparedto compared to compared to
2019 2020 2021 2022 2023
Independent Member of the Supervisory
Council, Chairperson of the Supervisory
Council,
Valdas Vitkauskas? Chairperson of the Remuneration Committee - - - 253%2 -5%

Chairperson of the Nomination Committee,
Member of Audit Committee,
Member of Risk Committee
Member of the Supervisory Council, Member of
the Remuneration Committee
. Member of the Supervisory Council, Member of
Dar i us Gul n ithe Nomination Committee 2% 1% -5% -7% 45%*
Chairperson of the Corporate Affairs Committee
Independent member of the Supervisory
Council, Chairperson of the Audit Committee, 6
Member of Audit Committee, 4% ~4% 0% 0% =76%
Member of Risk Committee
Independent Member of the Supervisory
Mi ha Kogak Council, Chairperson of the Risk Committee, 14% 4% 0% 0% -76%’
Member of the Nomination Committee
Independent member of the Supervisory
Susan Gail Buyske® Council, Chairperson of the Risk Committee, - 87% 5% 7% 15%°
Member of the Audit Committee

; S10 Member of the Supervisory Council, Member of 11
Mindaugas Raila the Corporate Affairs Committee ) B B . 24%
Independent Member of the Supervisory
Tomas Okmanas'? Council, Member of the Remuneration - - - - 47%%
Committee
Independent member of the Supervisory
Mo ni ka Ma c hCouncil Chairperson of the Audit Committee, - - - - -
Member of the Nomination Committee
1Up until 2020-03-31, the Supervisory Council members were paid bonuses for their activities. From 2020-04-01, the fixed remuneration specified in the Remuneration Policy
is paid. The changes in remuneration have been calculated by adding up the remuneration paid in the relevant year and comparing it with the corresponding previous year. The
calculations use remuneration data without deducting taxes.
2valdas Vitkauskas was elected as an independent member of the Bank's Supervisory Council in 2020, therefore remuneration changes for the period 2019-2022 are not
provided. 3 Increase due to the remuneration paid to the Bank for the period from 2022-06-01 to 2022-12-31 for the full year 2023 and after becoming Chairperson of the Bank's
Supervisory Council.
4In 2024, the increase in remuneration due to the payment of an annual increment on top of the remuneration after becoming a Chairperson of the Bank's Corporate Affairs
Committee as of 2024-01-01.
SRamund Zabuliend served in the B-8%28. Tie clculgiens mcudeamddifional @mumeratidn paidrior paiticipation2rdcommittee meetings
of AB Giaul i O banka2020iQi. 6Ddcreaspdee to thedemRr@ratidn paid by the Bank for the year 2023 compared to the remuneration paid for the partial
year 2024.
™Mi ha Kogak served in the Ban k0328 Bhegeaasevie sothe remu@eratian paidlby theBank for th2 Ye&r 2023 compared to the remuneration
paid for the partial year 2024.
8Susan Gail Buyske was elected as an independent member of the Bank's Supervisory Council in 2020, therefore no changes in remuneration for 2020 are presented. 4
Increase in 2024 in remuneration due to the payment of an annual increment on top of the remuneration after becoming a Chairperson of the Bank's Risk Committee from 2024-
03-29.
“Mindaugas Raila was elected as a member of the Bank's Supervisory Council in 2023, therefore remuneration changes for the period 2020-2023 are not provided. 11 In 2024,
the increase in remuneration due to the payment of an annual increment on top of the remuneration after becoming a member of the Bank's Corporate Affairs Committee as of
2024-03-29.
2Tomas Okmanas was elected as an independent member of the Bank's Supervisory Council in 2023, therefore remuneration changes for the period 2020-2023 are not
provided. 13 In 2024, the increase in remuneration due to the payment of an annual increment on top of the remuneration after becoming a member of the Bank's Remuneration
Committee as of 2024-03-29.
“Moni ka Nachyga joined t he-06826ghereforé, sochaygestnoremureiation for the (#i@o@ 2020-2024 are provided.

Gintaras Kateiva -3% -71% 0% 0% 3%

Ramuna Vil

—n

REMUNERATION OF MEMBERS
OF THE MANAGEMENT BODY

Al members of the Bankdés Management Board are also Bank eropl oy
Deputy Chief Executive Officer and/or Heads of Divisions. As Bank employees, they are subject to the fixed and variable remuneration
specified in the Bank's Remuneration Policy, is determined and appointed by the Supervisory Council of the Bank.

When allocating the annual variable remuneration to membersyof
Heads of Administration, and department heads i excluding those who also perform internal control functions such as Chief Risk Officer
(CRO) and Chief Compliance Officer (CCO) i the Group's performance results carry greater weight than divisional or individual
performance results. When allocating the annual variable remuneration to the CRO and CCO, the Group's performance results carry less
weight compared to divisional/individual performance results or the operating results of the Group company.
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Information on the remuneration of the Bankdés Management Board
Other Deferred annual variable
Annual variable remuneration allocated in variable remuneration partiyg
Fixed remuneration for 2024 2024 for 2023 remuneration 2024,lgranted in tlhlelfonln : .
aid in 2024 of options fo!' activities in Ratio ofAvarlabIe
P 2020 (equity-based) to fixed
Full name Roles at the Bank Fixed remuneration
remuneration  Income in kind Total allocated Portion paid Deferred Tl Gf for the year
) (excluging andlqther variablg a— portion in Paid in cash, Share e, 2023% %
income in kind additional remuneration, EUR ! shares, EUR value, EUR
and additional  benefits, EUR? EUR allocation units
benefits), EUR®
Chairperson of the
Vytautas Sinius [Management Board and 362,163 20,000 309,260 - 462,272 - 155,236 229,979 84%
Chief Executive Officer
Deputy Chairperson of
Donatas the Management Board,
Savick Deputy Chief Executive 150,064 10,222 113,300 - 169,357 - 66,321 98,254 78%
avickas Officer i Head of
Division
Member of the
| Management Board,
Dai v a G/{Deputy Chief Executive 166,411 11,548 131,840 - 197,070 - 77,253 114,449 79%
Officer i Head of
Division
. Member of the
Mindaugas | . ocementBoard, 150,914 11,944 121,540 - 181,674 - 66,321 98,254 76%
Rudys Head of Division
; Member of the
A'g'mal‘.”ﬁas Management Board, 172,940 10,694 89,700 - 134,081 - - - 62%
aulia Head of Division, CRO
B Member of the
Agndad Du% ManagementBoard, 147,222 8,333 68,180 - 101,913 - - - 47%
Head of Division, CCO
Member of the
Tomas s Management Board, 90,884 7,157 - - - - -
Varenbergas Head of Division
Member of the
Laura | \ojagementBoard, 84,175 14,251 ; - ; ; ; ; ;
Krigi nay Head of Division

Fixed remuneration (excluding income in kind and additional benefits) is calculated including the base salary paid in 2024, leave pay, and sick leave payments.

2Income in kind and additional benefits include pension insurance, contributions to third-pillar pension funds, health insurance contributions, cash bonuses, death benefits, and
other payments made under the Banko6s internal regul ations.

3Information on the ratio of fixed to variable remuneration is provided only for 2023, as the annual variable remuneration for 2024 activities has not yet been allocated.

‘Al gi mantas Gaulia took up his duties as a -0n80ytheefore thé deferrecanmial vakable renMiaenatiog gaid s 2024 f@ 2020 d o r
is not disclosed.

SAgnd Duksiend took up the duties as a me M58, theseforethe deferBed ankuél varididle rerauneration paid inR024 ford2020 n 2 0
is not disclosed.

STomas Varenbergas took up the duties as Me @d0 therefore, thdhamnud wariablé remuiesatioa gnantes and th@deferred o n

annual variable remuneration paid in 2023 for the performance in 2020, and the ratio of variable to fixed remuneration is not provided.
‘Laura Kriginauskienad took up the duties as nrD8-0M therefore,fthe tarneal vBiahlekrémsinerMianmaavardedh®m2023 B o a r
performance and the deferred annual variable remuneration paid in 2024 for the performance in 2020, and the ratio of variable to fixed remuneration is not provided.

Information on the portion of the annual variable remuner manceon |
criteria:
Weight of Weight of Weight of Limits of the varla_ble Overall achlgvement
Group remuneration portion result of objectives
Full name Roles at the Bank obiectives Management Department based on achieved (Group, Management
) ' objectives, % objectives, % R P, 9 :
% objective results Department)
Fnd Chairperson of the Management Board 0 0 . 0 o
Vytautas Sinius and Chief Executive Officer 60% 40% 5171 125% 93.7%
Deputy Chairperson of the
Donatas Savickas Management Board, Deputy Chief  50% 20% 30% 517 125% 91.7%
Executive Officer i Head of Division
. Member of the Management Board,
Dai va Gor i e |DeputyChief Executive Officeri Head 50% 20% 30% 5171 125% 89.1%
of Division
Mindaugas Rudys Member of the Management Board, 5004 20% 30% 517 125% 88.8%
: : Member of the Management Board, o o 0 o 0 ®
Algimantas Gaulia Head of Division, CRO 30% 10% 60% 517 125% 88.2%
= : Member of the Management Board, o o 0 - 0 o
Agna Duksi e Head of Division, CCO 30% 10% 60% 5171 125% 104.5%
TERES Varenbergasl msgc]jbgfrD(i)\f/istiT; Management Board, )
Lo Member of the Management Board,
LauraKrigi nau gk Head of Division g
Tomas Varenbergas began serving as a me mb®6-04dHereford imforBaionloroperfolmanceacdterianfor2023 iBrmtaproddeco n 2 0 2
2lauraKr i gi nauskiend began serving as a me mb e06-07% therefofednfoBratiorkoh perfdvhaance gitenadon2023 B oat pravided.n 2 0 2
No remuneration was paid to the members of the Bankds Managemen

Reclaims of variable remuneration for the year 2024 were not applicable to the Bank's Management Board members.
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Bel ow is information about the shares granted to the membetock
option agreements, transaction prices, and dates:
Option transactions?!
In 2024. shares The‘deferred First deferred 1‘/5th of  Second deferred_1/3rd Third deferred 1./3rd of
were grl’mted as portion of_the the annu‘al variable of the ann‘ual variable the annulal variable
an annual annual variable  remuneration for 2022, remuneration for 2021, remuneration for 2020,
Full name Roles at the Bank variable remuneration granted in shares granted in shares granted in shares
remuneration allocated in 2024 undeerptions, under.options, under_options,
for 2020. unit? for 2023, granted applrovgd in 2024, pcs. approvgd in 2024, pcs. approvgd in 2024, pcs.
’ in shares via (option implementation (option implementation (option implementation
options, units.3 date i 2028-04-07) date i 2025-04-11) date i 2024-04-12)
Chairperson of the
Vytautas Sinius |Management Board and Chief 229,979 462,272 39,707 57,109 76,659
Executive Officer
5 Deputy Chairperson of the
onatas Management Board, Deputy
Savickas Chief Executive Officer i Head 98,254 169,357 17,094 24,399 32,752
of Division
. |[Member of the Management
Dai v a Go|Board, Deputy Chief Executive 114,449 197,070 20,655 28,421 38,149
Officer i Head of Division
Mindaugas Member of the Management
Rudys Board, Head of Division 98,254 181,674 18,162 24,399 32,752
Algimantas Member of the Management
Gaulia* Board, Head of Division, CRO B 134,081 15,543 18,712 -
n Member of the Management
Agna Duk Board, Head of Division, CCO . 101,913 - - B
Tomas Member of the Management
Varenbergas® Board, Head of Division B - - - :
Laura Member of the Management
Kr i gi n a'u|Board, Head of Division B - : : :

Date of grant and confirmation of the option rights 2024-04-05. Option transactions grant the right to receive, upon exercise of the option transaction, shares in the Bank for no
consideration (with the recipient paying applicable taxes based on the share price on the date of exercise of the option), subject to taxation in accordance with the provisions of
the law in force at the time of grant.

2Average share price i 0.6690 EUR (determination period from 2023-09-11 to 2024-03-08 (exclusive)).

o f

SThe payment of a portion of remuneration to members of -yéahperio®feom theddate dflalocatigneohties artnuaB o a r

variable remuneration, with the assigned deferred portion being confirmed annually over five years, i.e., 1/5 of the allocated shares must be confirmed each year. 3/5 of the
deferred portion is granted 3 years after the allocation of the annual variable remuneration, 1/5 of the deferred portion is granted 4 years after the allocation of the annual
variable remuneration, and the remaining 1/5 of the deferred portion is granted 5 years after the allocation of the annual variable remuneration.

“Al gi mantas Gaulia began serving as a me mb0g-80, herfce infdineatioB ia provides refyhedincatioe gynareed stockBoptam rightsdan
2021 and subsequent years.

SAgnd Duksiend assumed t he du t0588thereforeahe Bformatiah isprevidédeegarding graht@doption rights to shares for 2023 and subsequent
years.

STomas Varenbergas assumed the duties of a melG®4etherefore, ndirfoemataonlshare opiba rightg geamedristpro\Bdeda r
‘Laura Kriginauskiend assumed the duties of a0640% tdrefore, noifforrhation onBshare loptien rights granteeispeonided. B

No amendments were made to option agreements with the members

Bel ow is information about t he MamagemantBoaadtmenbers foritha year 28024 irf theeir rolés ioetheB
period 2019-2023:

Changes in remuneration, %!?*

Full name Roles at the Bank In 2019 compared In 2020 compared In 2021 compared In 2022 compared In 2023 compared
to 2018 to 2019 to 2020 to 2021 to 20227
Vytautas Sinius Chairperson of the Management Board and 2.7% 7.8% 2.9% 2.6% 16%

Chief Executive Officer

Deputy Chairperson of the Management
Donatas Savickas Board, Deputy Chief Executive Officer i 4.4% -6.7% 1.9% 9.6% 6%
Head of Division

Member of the Management Board, Deputy

i g i 0 -8.89 0 0 0
Daiva Gori Chief Executive Officer i Head of Division 1.8% 8.8% 3.0% 10.7% %
Mindaugas Rudys2 E/Iﬁgﬁ;r of the Management Board, Head of _ _ 5.6% 14.7% 6%
Algimantas Gaulia® gﬁgi&zﬂ chgg Management Board, Head of - - - 22.7% 14%

= . |Member of the Management Board, Head of
Agna Duksi Division, CCO . B B B .
5 |Member of the Management Board, Head of ) R R R )
Tomas Varenbergas Division

. |Member of the Management Board, Head of

Laur a Kr'geDivision - - - - -
IRemuneration changes calculated by summing the fixed remuneration (salary, vacation pay, disability benefits, in-kind benefits, additional perks) and variable remuneration
(bonuses and annual variable remuneration in cash and shares assigned for specific years, excluding paid deferred portions of annual variable remuneration (in cash and
shares) paid in respect of the preceding year) for the relevant year, and by comparing them with the corresponding prior year. The calculations use remuneration data without
deducting taxes. For 2023, no change in remuneration is presented as the annual variable remuneration for 2023 performance has not yet been awarded.

Mi ndaugas Rudys commenced the duties as a me-088%, therefdre, reniuseraoa changes unM 202Gageaanh distlosedd o a r
SAl gi mantas Gaulia commenced the duties as a -0i30bhereforepemunenaton Enangds ansil 208 haneangt disolesed. B o
“Agnd Duksienda commenced the duties as a me mi5®O8, theseforetrdmanetmchanges utd 2023¢e moe distlosdio a r d
Tomas Varenbergas commenced the duties as a02466r08, therefaref remuheeatioB ehanges are rdtadisciosed. me nt B o

SLaura Kriginauskiend commenced the duties as 6-0fehaifere, reminerationehayesrarle nos distlseda g e me n t
“Increases due to the fixed remuneration review implemented in 2023 for current roles within the Bank.
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REMUNERATION INFORMATION FOR 2024

Y P
s1auLiy $p BANKAS
® (ADDITIONAL INFORMATION TO THE CONSOLIDATED MANAGEMENT REPORT FOR 2024)

CHANGESINTHEBANKO S RESL
AND AVERAGE REMUNERATION AMOUNT

Below is the information about the Bank's results and the average monthly remuneration of Bank employees who are not members of
the Bank's management and supervisory bodies, for the period 2020-2024:

| Net profit, in thousands EUR Average monthly remuneration, EUR (before taxes)
2024 78,787 3,248
2023 75,375 3,013
2022 67,449 2,642
2021 56,005 2,251
2020 43,095 2,080
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SUSTAINABILITY INFORMATION FOR 2024

(Additional Information to the Consolidated Management Report for 2024)

Til s 7164048 LGi aul i ai
Tel. (8 41) 595 607, faks. (8 41) 430 774
Email info@sb.It

www.sb.It
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CONFIRMATION FROM THE RESPONSIBLE
PERSONS

We,ChiefExecutive Officer of Giauli ® bankas AB Vytautas Siniu:

confirm hereby that the provided consol i dat4ardcofmpiledanci al st
in compliance with applicable accounting standards, correspond to the reality and correctly reveal the assets,
l'iabilities, financi al status, activity result and cash f

moreover, we confirm that the review of the business development and activities, the status of the Bank and the
Group, alongside with the description of the key risks and indeterminacies incurred, are correctly revealed in
the consolidated management report.

O/ / p
Chief Executive Officer [/ /M Vytautas Sinius

Chief Financial Officer ‘ . Donatas Savickas

4t March 2025
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